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I) GENERAL INFORMATION

a) Glossary of Terms and Definitions.

ADS

“América Telecom”,
“AMTEL” or the
“Compax)y”

AMX or
América Mévil

Bital -

BMV
“CGT” or “Telecom”
CNBV

Provisions

Dollars

EBITDA

GCarso
GFInbursa
GT2000
IMCP
IMPAC

Inbursa
Indeval

INPC
ISR
LGSM

LIBOR

American Depositary Shares
América Telecom, S.A. de C.V.
América Mévil, S.A. de C.V. and subsidiaries

Banco Internacional S. A., Institucién de Banca Miiltiple, Grupo Financiero Bital.
(Full-Service Bank) '

- Mexican Stock Exchnage

Carso Global Telecom, S.A. de C.V.
National Banking and Securities Commission.

General Provision applicable to securities issuers and other participants in the
stock market, published in the Federal Official Gazette on March 19, 2003,

Legal tender of the U.S.

Eamings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization. Also known as
operating flow.

Grupo Carso S.A. de C.V.

Grupo Financiero Inbursa, S.A. de C.V.
GT2000,S.A. de C.V.

Mexican Institute of Public Accountants
Asset Tax -

Banco Inbursa S. A., Institucion de Banca Muiltiple, Grupo Financiero Inbursa.
(Full-Service Bank)

S.D. Indeval, S.A. de C.V., Institucidén para el Depésito de Valores (Securities
Deposit)

National Consumer Price Index
Income Tax
General Corporation and Partnership Law

London Interbank Offer Rate.



LMY
Mancera
Meéxico
PCGA
Pesos
PIB
RNV
SBC
SBC1
Telecom LLC
Telcel

“Telmex” or “TMX”

Securities Exchange Law.

Mancera, S.C., member of Emst & Young Global
United Mexican States

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Mexico
Legal currency of Mexico (MXP)

Gross Domestic Product.

National Share Registry.

SBC Communications, Inc.

SBC International, Inc.

Global Telecom LLC.

Radiomoévil Dipsa, 8.A. de C.V.

Teléfonos de México, S.A. de C.V.

[Space left blank intentionally)
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b) Executive Summary

The Company was incorporated on December 5, 2001 as the result of the spin-off from Telecom as
agreed at Telecom’s general extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on November 30, 2001, for the purpose
of separating, within the Company, ownership of shares of América Mévil, whose main activity concemns
the wireless-telephone industry and various international investments.

The Company was incorporated with a net worth of $14,947,357,407 MXP, out' of which
$963,486,951.14 MXP correspond to its capital stock (figures set at the historical value).

The Company directly owns all the shares representing the capital stock of América Movil that had
been owned by Telecom. Also as a result of the spin-off, the Company was given various assets, which
include: (i) the rights and obligations derived from the agreement dated March 13, 2001 between Telecom
and SBCI regarding its investment in América Mévil; (ii) the rights generated from the Irrevocable Trust
Agreement entered into Bital, as the Settlor; Banco Inbursa, S.A., Institucién de Banca Multiple, Grupo
Financiero Inbursa, Trustee Department as Trustee; and SBCI, as Beneficiary; (iii) the rights and
obligations generated under the Service Rendering Agreement entered into by and between Ameérica
Movil and Telecom; (iv) all the shares that were owned by Telecom, which represented the capital stock
of Corporativo Empresarial de Comunicaciones, S.A. de C.V,, and (v) the debt certificates (“Notes™)
issued by Telecom Américas Investments Ltd. and guaranteed by Bell Canada International Inc., which
are owned by Telecom and that have a par value of approximately $92.7 million USD. As of December
31, 2003, accounts receivable from these debt certificates total $30.9 million dollars.

In March 2004, said amount was collected, and the acknowledged interests were eliminated under
the consolidation.

Once the spin-off from Telecom, as the corporation spun off from, was authorized, the Company’s
main investment was concentrated primarily in América Movil, representing approximately 99% of its
assets.

In May 2002, pursuant to the provisions set forth by the shareholders’ meeting whereat the spin-off
was agreed, the instruments that had been issued by the Company were delivered. Telecom shareholders
received one share of the Company’s paid-in capital stock for each share representative of Telecom’s
capital stock upon presentation and submission, in exchange, of the outstanding titles to which they were-
shareholders. Said shares were deposited with the Indeval, this right was exercised pursuant to applicable
legal and administrative provisions.

The foregoing concluded the spin-off process consisting of the total separation of the shares issued
by América Moévil, of which Telecom was the holding company. The Company’s shares have been listed
independently on the BMV since May 2, 2002.

As of December 31, 2003, there were 3,639.3 billion entirely subscribed and paid-in outstanding
shares representing the Company’s capital stock. The share price at the close of 2003 in the securities
market was $14.51 Mexican pesos per share, reporting a maximum price in December of $14.51 per share
and minimum price in January of $6.19 per share.

The Company is a pure shareholder; therefore, the Company has no employees, and administrative
services are provided by an affiliate company. As of December 31, 2003, 64.90% of América Movil
shares with the right to vote were directly or indirectly owned by the Company. Practically all of the
Company’s operations are carried out by its subsidiary, América Mdvil. América Movil was incorporated
in September, 2000 as part of the spin-off from Telmex, the largest local and long-distance telephone
concession holder in Mexico. América Mévil was established as a company independent from Telmex.

The following table shows the price variations for the Company’s shares, as well as the amount of
the price and trading index, as if these were comparable indexes. The first amount corresponds to the price
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at the close of the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2002, equivalent to 100. At the close of the fiscal
year ending on December 31, 2003, the price per share of the Company had decreased by 6.55% more
than the value of the price and trading index.
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The following selected consolidated financial information is partially based upon the financial statements
prepared by the Company and audited by Mancera. The selected financial information must be read
together with the audited financial statements to December 31, 2003.

[Space left blank intentionally]
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AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Selected Financial Information

Thousands of Constant MXP to December 2003

(Except for the share average)

Description 2003 2002 2001
Net Sales 85,940,972 59,748,342 45,461,778
Operational Profit 17,853,262 13,111,205 6,675,122
Majority Net Profit 4,885,463 : 1,549,339 (173,926)
Profit per Share 1324 ' 0413 (0.022)
Investments in Fixed Assets 22,353,512 25,487,84‘5 12,165,323
Depreciation and Amortization of the Fiscal Year 14,140,501 8,624,161 4,920,721
Total Assets 152,384,486 117,765,773 102,667,379
Total Long Term Liabilities 49,865,252 42,009,057 23,548,813
Consolidated Net Worth 61,583,708 46,459,470 57,839,904
Data
Tax Years’ Net Earnings 4,885,463 1,549,339 (173,926)
Share Average (millions of shares) 3,690 3,752 3,765.8
Basic Profit per Shares 1.324 : 0413 (0.022)
Total Investments in Fixed Assets 22,353,512 . 25,487,845 12,165,323
¢) Risk Factors

The Company and its subsidiaries may be exposed to structural changes due to economic and
financial adjustments that occur in the national and international market.

Below are the risk factors that the Company believes could have a major impact on its operation
earnings. These should be taken into consideration by the investing public.

The risks and uncertainties described in this report are not the only ones faced by the Company;
nevertheless, this report aims at describing the most important risks. There may be other risks that affect
its operations and activities. ’

The risks set forth below shall be considered together with Ameérica Movil’s risk factors, which are
described later herein.

Risks Related to the Company’s Strategy

In line with América Telecom’s business strategy, its main assets are shares of América Mévil. The
value of the shares of América Telecom is correlated to the price of América Moévil’s shares. América
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Mévil is exposed to various risk factors that are included in Section 2 of this report, which corresponds to
the specific information concerning said company.

Risks Related to the Issuer’s Debt

América Telecom implements financing operations whereby it uses América M6vil shares as a
guaranty. If the price of América Moévil’s shares in the securities markets decreases below the pre-

" established parameters set forth in the conditions to said financing schedules, the Company is obhgated to

contribute more cash resources as a supplemental guaranty.

The financial cost of América Telecom’s non-consolidated debt is served with flows from the
dividends decreed by América Mévil, its principal subsidiary, and by the revenue it receives from such for
technical and financial support. If América Mévil’s financial situation deteriorates to the extent that it is
no longer able to pay dividends, the Company could face liquidity problems and put compliance with its
financial obligations at risk.

Approximately 92.7% of Ameérica Telecom’s non-consolidated debt as of the close of 2003 was in
foreign currency, of which 68.7% is long-term debt. The Company’s non-consolidated flows are in pesos;
therefore, a significant variation in the exchange rate could affect the Company’s capacity to pay.

Risks Related to Majority Shareholders and the Capital Structure.

As of December 31, 2003, approximately 64.90% of América Movil’s shares with the right to vote
were directly or indirectly owned by the Company, whose principal shareholders are Carlos Slim Helu and
members of his immediate family, and who may designate the majority of the members of the boa.rd of
directors and affect the result of the other actions that require shareholders’ votes.

Risk from Being a Shareholder.

The Company’s shares are represented substantially by its subsidiaries’ shares which could be a
risk factor for the Company.

Transactions with Affiliate Companies that Create Potential Conflicts of Interest

The Company carries out financial as well as business operations with some affiliates, with Telmex,
GFInbursa and its subsidiaries, and GCarso, as part of its ordinary course of business and in accordance
with market conditions. Operations with affiliate companies could generate potential conflicts of interest.
(See: Administration — and — Operations with Related Parties and Conflicts of Interest s- in Section 2,
Number 4, Item b) of these presents).

Governmental Regulation Could Adversely Affect the Company’s Activities.

Given that the Company is a shareholder and all its operations are carried out by its subsidiaries,
principally América Mdévil, and given that América Movil’s operations are subject to considerable
governmental regulation, the Company’s operations could be adversely affected by legislative reforms and
changes in regulatory policies. Agreements concerning the concession, construction, operation, sale, resale
and interconnection of wireless-telecommunications services in Latin America and other countries are
regulated to different extents by governmental authorities. Any governmental authority with jurisdiction
over América Mévil’s companies could adopt new provisions or modify provisions presently in effect,
which could adversely affect América Mévil. In particular, regulation of the rates that operators can
charge for their services could significantly and adversely affect América Mdvil as it would reduce its
profit margins. In Mexico, Telcel’s operations are subject to considerable governmental regulation,
principally by COFETEL, the Federal Antitrust Commission and the Federal Consumer Protection
Agency, and could be adversely affected by legislative reforms or measures adopted by the government.
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The Department of Communications and Transportation _is authorized to impose specific conditions |
upon rates and other aspects with respect to any operator that the Federal Anti-Trust Commission deems
to exercise substantial power in the relevant market. Even though there has been no resolution of this
nature with respect to the wireless market in Mexico, neither América Moévil nor the Company can
guarantee that, in the future, the regulatory authorities will not adopt any resolution of this sort with
respect to rates or other conditions, such as the establishment of additional requirements concerning the
divulging of information and service quality. Any new provisions of this nature could have a significant
effect on América Movil’s activities and, indirectly, on those of the Company.

Many Latin American countries have already deregulated and privatized communication services,
including wireless services, and many laws, regulations and instruments that govern América Mévil’s
operations in Argentina, Brazil, Colombia, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras and Nicaragua were made
known or became effective recently; therefore, there are few precedents that allow América Movil to
predict the impact of these provisions on future operations. Said restrictions, which could consist in the
establishment of preferences with respect to the title to concessions and in telecommunications shares
remaining in the hands of national investors and not foreign investors, or in the hands of the government
and not the private sector, could result in the impossibility for América Mévil or its subsidiaries to
continue developing operations. These restrictions could result in lost earnings and investments in assts
that could adversely affect América Mdvil’s operating eamings and, consequently, those of the Company.
To date, there are certain restrictions; which in general terms consists of limits to the maximum share
ownership percentages that América Movil may keep in its coinvestments in other countries (See: - Risk
Factors for América Movil — and — Legal System — in Section 2 of these presents).

Volatility in Share Price

The Company’s shares are subject to volatiﬁty. Volatility of the price of shares of AMTEL, as the
holding company, is related to the volatility of América Movil’s shares.

d) Other Securities

In May 2002, América Telecom registered the shares representing its capital stock in the Securities
Section of the RNV for trading on the BMV.

In addition, Ameérica Telecom has the following securities registered with the RNV:
Commercial Paper.

The Company has two lines of commercial paper, one totaling $2,000 million Mexican pesos,
which was authorized by the CNBV on August 28, 2003 and its maturity date was August 23, 2004. Said
paper was placed with the support of Inversora Bursatil as the placement broker. At the end of May of said
year, the aforementioned line totaling $1,450 million Mexican pesos with a effective term between May
23 and June 28, 2004. The rest is intended to be used before its maturity date.

In addition, the Company has a second line of commercial paper totaling $2,500 million pesos, I
which was authorized by the CNBV on April 21, 2004 and whose maturity date is April 15, 2005. Said
paper was placed with the support of Inversora Bursitil S. A. de C. V. Casa de Bolsa, Grupo Financiero
Inbursa. As of the end of May of said year, said line had not been employed. |

The followivng table shows the details concerning said lines of commercial paper: l

GENERAL LIST OF EFFECTIVE LINES OF COMMERCIAL PAPER
Issuer Official Communiqué Authorized Amount | Ticker | Authorization Maturity
AmericaTelecom. S.A. De C.V. DGE-498-4298 2,000,000,000 Amtel 28-Aug-03 23-Aug-04
AmericaTelecom, S.A. De C.V. DGE-265-265 2,500,000,000 Amtel 21-Apr-03 15-Apr-05

10
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The Company has submitted, both to the CNBV and the BMV, the corresponding quarterly and
annua)] information pursuant to the LMV and the Provisions, such as the annual information related to the
annual ordinary shareholders’ meeting, which includes the board of directors’ report to the shareholders’
meeting, the statutory auditor’s report as set forth in Article 166 of the LGSM, the financial statements
drawn up by Mancera and other applicable information. The financial information reported quarterly is
accumulated and is accompanied by the information corresponding to the same period the year prior.

Likewise, the Company has submitted, in full and on time, since the time of its incorporation to
date, the reports that applicable Mexican and foreign regulations require of it with respect to significant
events and periodic information.

e} Significant Changes to the Rights or Shares Inscribed in the RNV

On May 2, 2002, pursuant to the resolution provisions of the shareholders’ meeting whereat the
spin-off from Telecom was resolved, the share certificates issued by the Company were distributed. Since
that date, the Company’s shares began to be traded in the BMV. Telecom’s shareholders received one
paid-in share of capital stock in the Company for each share comprising Telecom’s capital stock to which
they held title. Said swap was effected once they submitted their outstanding certificates to be exchanged.
As of said date, the Company became a new issuer on the BMV, under the ticker symbol “AMTEL Serie
Al”

Since the Company’s shares were handed to the shareholders, the rights beholden to shareholders of
the shares inscribed in the RNV have not experienced significant changes.

J) Public Documents

The Company’s annual report a to December 31, 2003 was submitted pursuant to the applicable
legal of said date to the BMV and the CNBV. It is available for investors on the BMV’s webpage
(www.bmv.com.mx).

Likewise, investor who so wished may request a copy of this report at the Company’s Investor
Relations Department with:

Mr. Jorge Serrano Esponda
Telephone: 5625-4900 ext. 1460
E-mail: jserranoe@inbursa.com

[SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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2) THE COMPANY
a) Issuer’s Background and Development
Name

The Company is a variable capital business corporation duly incorporated under the laws of Mexico

- and denominated as América Telecom, S.A. de C.V.

Incorporation

T he Company was incorporated as a variable capital business corporation as certified by public
deed 108,937 dated December 5, 2001, under the hand and seal of Notary Public No. 129 in and for the
Federal District, Mr. Ignacio Soto Borja y Anda. Said instrument is duly recorded in the Public
Commercial Registry of the Federal District under Commercial Folio 282,297 dated Decemeber 13, 2001.
The duration of the company is ninety-nine years as of December 2001.

Address and Telephone Numbers

The Company’s main offices are located at Avenida Insurgentes Sur No. 3500, planta baja, Colonia
Pefia Pobre, C.P. 14060, México, D.F. The Company’s telephone number is 5244-08-02.

History and Description of Recent Events

On June 5, 2001, Telecom announced that it would begin the process to spin-off the entirety of the
shares issued by América Movil, owned by Telecom, to create a new financial entity to own the shares.

The spin-off was subject to the approval of Telecom’s shareholders assembly, as well as the
corresponding authorities. Telecom’s board -of directors deemed that América Movil’s business faced
regulatory issues and its activities were very different from Telmex. Furthermore, it would seek greater
flexibility in Telecom’s corporate structure.

By virtue of the foregoing, Telecom’s general extraordinary shareholders’ meeting held on
November 30, 2001, approved the spin-off, to incorporate a new Mexican corporation named América
Telecom, S.A. de C.V. As a result of the spin-off from Telecom, a Company was incorporated to become
titieholder of the shares of América Moévil, even those that were owned by Telecom. The purpose of the
spin-off was to improve the capacity of both América Telecom and Telecom in order to face the future
challenges and opportunities in their respective sectors. Thus, as of December 2001, the Company’s main
investment became shares representative of América Mévil’s capital stock and was complemented with
other minor investments, while Telecom’s main investment consisted of shares representing Telmex’
capital stock.

The establishment of two different public companies via the spin-off has been beneficial for both
the Company and Telecom, since the administration and corporate strategies focus more specifically on
the circumstances specific to each business, and each company can adopt a financial strategy than reflects
its particular risks and potential yields.

For a more detailed explanation of the spin-off from Telecom and the incorporation of the
Company, it is recommended that the information leaflet required by Article 14 Bis | of the LMV. This is
available on BMV’s website, www.bmv.com.mx. ,

12
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Precedents of the Company 's Subsidiaries and Associate Companies

On June 24, 1996, with the incorporation of Telecom, all Telmex shares owned by GCarso were
transferred to Telecom as were the options equally acquired by GCarso.

In September 2000, Telmex announced it would spin off the cellular-telephone business and the
majority of its international investments, mainly in the United States and Central America to create the
new company of América Mévil. The purpose of the spin-off, approved by Telmex’ board of directors,
was to create two companies with different administrations, each focused on its business to quickly and
efficiently capitalize on the challenges and opportunities that could arise in their respective markets.
Telmex shareholders received an equal number of América Mévil’s shares.

In November 2000, the spin-off from Telmex became effective. Once the registration processes for
América Mévil were approved by Mexican and foreign authorities, its series-L, series-A shares and ADS
were listed on the Mexican Stock Market, the New York Stock Exchange and the Madrid Stock Exchange
in the first quarter of 2001.

América Movil became the largest wireless provider in Latin America and one of the ten largest
wireless providers in the world. América Mévil is comprised of the cellular-telephone business in Mexico
and the majority of the international investments made by Telmex in the last years. 2003 was an important
year for the Company’s growth given strategic investments that allowed it to significantly expand its
cellular-telephone user market in Latin America.

This year, América Movil made important investments in Latin America, entering diverse markets
or significantly strengthening its earlier presence therein. Among the most important investments figure
operations effected in Colombia (Celcaribe), Brazil (BSE and BCP), El Salvador (CTE), Argentina (CTI) |
and Nicaragua (ENTEL), among others. (For more information regarding América Mévil's recent
investments, see Section 2 of this Report).

Principal Investments

The number of América Moévil’s shares and the equity interest regarding the total number of shares
from each series that the Company owned from May 31, 2004 to December 31,2003 and to December 31,
2002 respectively, are set forth in the following.

Number of Shares (thousands) l % of Equity Interest
Series [May-31-04 2003 2002 7/May-31-04 2003 2002
AA
A
L

In 2003, the Company acquired 409 million series-L shares of América Mévil, which cost a total of
$135 million pesos.

In addition, as of May 31, 2004, the Company has purchased 99.8 million series-L shares and 29.1
million series-AA shares of América Movil which represented a total cost of $2,544 million pesos.
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b) Description of the Business

América Telecom’s principal strategy consists of maintaining share participation in América Mdvil
and in identifying opportunities and seeking development thereof in the wireless-telecommunications
sector, primarily in Mexico, Latin America and the Hispanic community of the United States.

The Company arose from a spin-off from Telecom on November 30, 2001 for the purpose of
separating activities related to the wireless-telephone sector and other international businesses, which are
presently concentrated in América Movil.

1) Principal Activity

The Company 1s a pure holding company of shares from other companies, principally América
Mévil, mainly América Movil. The primary operations are carried out by its subsidiaries and consist of
providing telecommunications services at the national and mtematxonal level to residential and business
clients that pursue a wide range of activities.

As of December 31, 2003, the shares issued by América Mdvil, property of the Company,
represented 99% of its total assets. América Mévil is the largest wireless-communication service provider
in Latin America and one of the ten largest in the world, with more than 43.7 million cellular subscribers
in 7 countries at the end of 2003. By means of its subsidiary Telcel, América Mévil offers cellular-
telecommunication services in the 9 regions into which the territory of Mexico is divided by means of a
network that covers approximately 35% of said territory, including the main cities, and reaches
approximately 81% of the national population. As of December 31, 2003, Telcel had 23.4 million
subscribers.

In addition, América Mdvil participates in the telecommunications industries in Brazil, Guatemala,
Colombia, Ecuador, United States, Argentina, and Nicaragua. (See: Information About América Movil in
Section 2 of these presents).

i)  Distribution Channels

As mentioned, The Company is a pure shareholder; therefore, it does not carry out operation
activities directly. Its operations are carried out by its subsidiaries, mainly América Moévil. (See:
Information About América Movil in Section 2 of these presents).)

ii)  Patents, Trademarks, Licenses and Other Agreements

The Company directly does not own patents, licenses or trademarks. However, América Mévil has
various patents, licenses and trademarks registered. (See: Information About América Movil in Section 2 of
these presents).

iv)  Principal Clients

The company does not have direct clients. Its clients are found at its subsidiaries’ level, mainly
América Movil. (See: Information About América Movil in Section 2 of these presents).

v) | Applicable Legislation and Taxes

The Company is subject to compliance with the laws, regulations and provisions applicable to any
variable-capital corporation, such as the Commercial Code, the LGSM, the LMV and all tax provisions.

Governmental regulation could harm our international businesses, which are subject to a wide range
of governmental regulation that could adversely affect them upon changes in laws, regulations or
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regulatory policies. Any authority with jurisdiction over our businesses can adopt or change regulations or
take actions that could adversely affect us.

América Mdvil is subject to certain provisions in the General Communication Routes Law, the
Federal Telecommunications Law and various concessions granted to Telcel. (See: Legal System in
Section 2 of these presents).

In addition, the Company, in its ordinary course of business, may become subject to anti-trust
provisions, with the Federal Anti-Trust Law and the Regulation thereof being applicable.

vi)  Human Resources

Given that the Company is a pure holding company, it does not have employees. However, its
subsidiaries have approximately 24,860 employees, of whom 83% are executive or management
employees. Seventeen percent of all personnel are unionized. The Company has no direct relation with
any union whatsoever; relations with unions take place at the subsidiary level, particularly by means of
América Movil.

vii) Environmental Measures

Because the Company is solely a holding company whose only assets are comprised of shares in
other corporations, the Company does not have an environmental policy, not does it have environmental
certificates or acknowledgements,

viii) Market Information

The Company is a pure holding company whose primary investment is directed at the
telecommunications sector. In 2003, América Telecom and its subsidiaries maintained their leadership
position in the domestic market and an important presence in various Latin American countries, being top
leve! participants in the telecommunications industry.

With respect to its competition given its indirect participation in the telecommunications sector,
there are groups that have been formed and that are channeling investments into the said sector, both
nationally and internationally.

The Company believes its leadership in the national economy, its experience in the
telecommunications sector and the capacity of its administration give it strength for developing the
business in Mexico and Latin America. Nevertheless, there are other groups that compete or that are
disposed to compete in the same markets in which América Telecom participates. (See: Information About
América Mévil in Section 2 of these presents)

ix)  Corporate Structure

América Telecom is not part of a group and is a shareholding company, principally of América
Movil, a company in which, as of the close of 2003, it held 36.2% of the total shares and 64.90% of the
shares with the right to vote. The Company has business relationships with subsidiaries, mainly offering
them technical and financial support, for which it receives income.

América Telecom, by means of its subsidiary América Mévil, has investments in subsidiary and
associated companies in the telecommunications sector in Mexico, Guatemala, Ecuador, Brazil,
Argentina, Colombia, Nicaragua and the United States.

The following table lists América M6vil’s main subsidiaries as of May 31, 2004:



1)

Name of the Company Jurisdiction of 2003 2002

‘ Incorporation
Subsidiarias: (1)
América Mdévil; S.A. de C.V. México 36.2% 32.8%
Sercotel, S.A.de C.V. Meéxico 100.0 100.0
Radiomévil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V. Meéxico 100.0 100.0
TracFone Wireless, Inc. USA 98.2 97.8
Telecom Américas, Ltd: Bermuda 97.8 96.5
ATL-Algar Telecom Leste, S.A. . Brasil 975 96.5
Americel, S.A. Brasil 96.0 78.1
Telet, S.A. : Brasil 96.5 78.6
Tess, S.A. Brasil 97.5 96.5
BSE, S.A. ’ Brasil 97.5
BCP, S.A. Brasil 97.5
América Central Tel, S.A. (ACT): (2) Guatemala 100.0 96.9
Telecomunicaciones de Guatemala, S.A. Guatemnala 98.8 96.0
Newcotel, S.A. Guatemala 98.8 96.0
Servicios de Comunicaciones Personales
Inaldmbricas, S.A., (Sercom) Guatemala 98.8 96.0
Telglob, S.A. Guatemala " 9838 96.0
Telefonia Publica de Guatemala, S.A. (Publitel) Guatemala 98.8 96.0
Estel, LLC Delaware 100.0
Compaiiia de Telecomunicaciones de El
Salvador, S.A. de C.V. (CTE) El Salvador 51.0
CTE Telecom.. Personal , S.A. de C.V. El Salvador 51.0
(Personal) )
Cablenet, S.A. de C.V. (Cablenet) El Salvador 51.0
Telecomoda, S.A.de C.V. (Telecomoda) El Salvador 51.0
Publicom, S.A. de C.V. (Publicom) E] Salvador 51.0
Comunicacion Celular, S.A. (Comcel): Colombia 95.67 95.7
Occidente y Caribe Celular, S.A. (Occel) Colombia 934 95.2
Celcaribe, S.A. Colombia 94.0
Consorcio Ecuatoriano de Telecomunicaciones,
S.A. (Conecel) Ecuador 100.0 80.6
Techtel-LMDS Comunicaciones Interactivas, S.A.  Argentina 60.0 60.0
Corporativo Empresarial de Comunicaciones, = México 99.9 99.9
S.A.deC.V.
CT1 Holdings, S.A. Argentina 92.0
CTI Compaiiia de Teléfonos del Interior, S.A.,
(CT1 Interior) Argentina 92.0
CTI PCS, S.A. (CTIPCS) Argentina 92.0
Afiliadas: (1)
Organizacion Recuperadora de Cartera, S.A. de
cVv. México 45.0 450
US Commercial Corporation, S.A. de C.V. México 29.7
Génesis Telecom., S.A. Venezuela 25.0 250
Iberbanda, S.A. Espafia 17.8 18.6
Network Access Solutions USA 2.0 2.0
CompUSA, Inc. USA 49.0
¢)] See Note 10 in América M6vil’s financial statements for a description of subsidiaries’ and associates’ movements,
(03] Includes operations in Nicaragua.

América Telecom, by means of its subsidiaries, has licenses to install, operate and administer
mobile telephony in México, Guatemala, Nicaragua, El Salvador, Ecuador, Colombia, Arnentma and
Brazil. Said licenses expire on different dates between 2008 and 2018.
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Unless stated otherwise in the following paragraphs, in general, said licenses do not require
payment of royalties to the corresponding governments.

In Mexico, for 800-megahertz Band-B licenses, payment to the Department of Communications
and Transportation fluctuates between 5% and 10% of Telcel’s gross revenue.

In Brazil, Colombia, Argentina and Ecuador, the respective Governments participate based on the
revenue permitted under concession, by means of set percentages in some cases, and based on the number
of channels in operation in other cases.

In 2003, América Mévil completed the purchase of five companies. As a result of said purchases,
América Mévil obtained 4.2 million new subscribers to wireless services in 2003, which represented
approximately 35% of the growth in the number of subscribers in 2003. Revenue from these companies
included in América Mdvil’s consolidated financial statements represent, together, 4.5% of the company’s
operating revenue. (For more information on América Movil’s most recent investments, see Section 2 of
this Report).

X) Description of Main Assets

The Company s main assets are shares of América Movil. Approximately 99% of the Company’s
total assets are in shares representing América Movil’s capital stock.

As a result of the credit agreements entered into with the Company, the Company sometimes grants
América M6vil shares in guarantee.

As of the close of 2002, the Company had two loans guaranteed with América Movil shares. The
following describes said loans.

In 2003, América Telecom received a loan for US$300 million from Banco Santander Central
Hispano Benelux, S. A.//N. V. To guarantee said credit, the Company submitted 16.6 million ADRs, which
represent 332.8 million series-L shares of América Movil, which shall be returned to América_Telecom in
2008, the date on which the credit amount must be paid. The Company shall pay the interests quarterly at
LIBOR plus a rate that fluctuates between 0.8% and 1.10%.

In 2003, the Company received loans from JP Morgan Chase Bank that totaled US$275 million. To
guarantee said credit, América Telecom submitted 17.3 million ADRs, which represent 347 million
series-L shares of América M6évil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in 2006 the date on
which the credit amount must be paid. For said financing, the Company shall pay the interests quarterly at

_ LIBOR plus a rate that fluctuates between 0.80% and 1.25%.

In addition, in 2003, América Telecom received a loan for US$80 million from_Banco Wachovia
Securities. To guarantee said credit, the Company submitted 5.6 million ADRs, which represent 113.5
million series-L shares of América Mdvil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in 2008, the date

“on which the credit amount must be paid. For such, the Company shall pay the interests quartcrly at

LIBOR plus 0.70%.
With respect to the liabilities contracted in previous fiscal years:

In 2002, the Company received loans from JP Morgan Chase Bank that totaled US$140 million To
guarantee said credit, América Telecom submitted 9.9 million ADRs, which represent 198.8 million
series-L shares of América Movil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in 2005, the date on which
the credit amount must be paid. For said financing, the Company shall pay the interests quarterly at
LIBOR plus 1.25%.

In 2001, América Telecom received a loan for US$124 million from_JP Morgan Chase Bank. To
guarantee said credit, the Company submitted 9.7 million ADRs, which represent 194 million series-L
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shares of América Movil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in 2003, the date on which the
credit amount must be paid. For such, the Company shall pay the interests quarterly at LIBOR plus 1.36%.
This loan was paid upon maturity, and the ADRs granted in guarantee were redeemed.

Subsequent Event

As of May 31, 2004, the Company has received loans from Banco Santander Central Hispano
Benelux and Banco Dresdner Bank AG Frankfurt for a total of US$250 million. To guarantee said credit,
the Company submitted 7 million ADRs, which represent 140.1 million series-L shares of América Movil,
which shall be returned to the Company in 2009. For said financing, the Company shall pay the interests
quarterly at LIBOR plus a rate_that fluctuates between 0.62% and 0.66%.

The guaranties shall be exercised by the counterpart should the Company fail in its obligation to pay
the loan.

xi)  Judicial, Administrative or Arbitration Proceedings

The Company, at the holding level, has no pending legal matters or pending legal, administrative or
judicial proceedings to date. Nevertheless, its subsidiary América Movil indeed has pending legal suxts
which are described in Section 2 herein.

xii)  Shares Representing the Capital

The Company’s subscribed and paid-in capital stock totaled $933.2 million pesos, represented by
639.3 million of common or ordinary shares with full right to vote, without par value, entirely subscribed
and paid-in, and corresponding to series-A-1 shares representing the fixed capital stock, taking into
account the shares repurchased by the Company under the terms set forth in Article 14 Bis-3, Section I of
the LMV. Since its incorporation, the Company has not increased its capital, authorizing its reduction for
adjustments resulting from the spin-off.

xiii) Dividends

At the annual ordinary shareholders’ meeting, the board of directors submitted the Company’s
financial statements for the previous fiscal year and their report to the shareholders. Once the
shareholders’ approved the financial statements, they determined the Company’s net profit distribution for
the previous fiscal year. By law, 5% of the aforementioned net profits must be separated into a reserve
fund that will not be available for distribution until the amount of said fund reaches 20% of the
Company’s capital stock (before the re-expression thereof in pesos becomes effective). The excess
amounts may be distributed to other reserve funds that the shareholders establish, which include a reserve
for the repurchase of the Company’s shares, in Article 14 Bis-3, Section I of the LMV, The remainder net
profit, if any, may be paid as dividends.

Series-Al shareholders have equal rights per share and may be paid dividends and other payments,
including any payment when liquidating the Company.

Since its incorporation, the Company has not ordered the payment of dividends. Due to its
investment obligations and the payment of servicing of debt, the Company has been unable to pay
dividends to its shareholders. Moreover, it is important to underscore that the board of directors does not
have an express policy about ordering dividend payment or advising about such at corresponding
shareholders’ meeting if profits exist for any fiscal year.
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3)  FINANCIAL INFORMATION
a) Selected Financial Information

The following comments should be read together with the consolidated financial statements and
their notes, which are included in this annual report. In addition, it should be noted that the financial
statements of the_Company, as the indirect owner of various investments abroad, reflect financial I
information reviewed and reported by qualified auditors located in the countries wherein the
investments occur. Given the foregoing, the Company’s external auditor, in drafting its report,
reviewed and analyzed the Company’s information and that of its national subsidiaries, as well as the
reports drafted by foreign external auditors, thereby basing its report on said information, The
foregoing is stated in the auditor’s report attached to the financial statements reported by the
Company. (See Information Regarding América Movil in Section 2 of this Report)

The PCGA require that financial statements acknowledge the effects of inflation, especially: (a)
non-monetary assets, including properties, plants and equipment, with the net worth expressed taking into
account the effects of inflation; (b) earnings and losses in purchasing power for ownership of monetary
liabilities and assets listed under revenue; and (c) the expression of all financial statement in constant
pesos to December 31, 2003.

The consolidated financial statements include accounts pertaining to América Moévil and
subsidiaries. The companies operate in the telecommunications sector or render services related to this
activity.

The minority interest expressed in the attached financial statements refers basically to the
participation of other shareholders of América Mé6vil.

~ Important inter-company balances and operations have been eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements. ~

The following table shows the Company’s selected consolidated financial information for the last
three fisca] years, which comes from and must be read along with the company’s audited financial
statements, Said statements have been audited by Mancera.

AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Selected Financial Information
Thousands of Pesos to December 2003
(Except by assumed share average) :
Description 2003 2002 2001

Net Sales 85,940,972 59,748,342 45,461,778
Operating Profit 17,853,262 13,111,205 6,675,122
Mayority Net Profits Profit 4,885,463 1,549,339  (173,926)
Profit per Share . 1324 0.413 (0.022)
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Investments in Fixed Assets . 22,353,512 25,487,845 12,165,323

Depreciation and Amortization during the Fiscal Year 14,140,501 8,624,161 4,920,721
Total Assets 152,384,486 117,765,773 102,667,379
Long-Term Debt 49 865,252 42,009,057 23,548,813
Consolidated Net Worth 61,583,708 46,459,470 57,839,904
Data

Net Earnings for the Fiscal Year 4,885,463 1,549,339 (173,926)
Share Average (millions of shares) 3,690 3,752 3,765.8
Basic Profits per Common Shares 1.324 413 {0.022)

Total Investments in Fixed Assets 22,353,512 25,487,845 12,165,323

b) Financial Information Related To Business Activities, Geographic Zone And Sales From Exportation

The Company is solely holding company; however, at a consolidated level through AMX, its
subsidiary, it operates primarily in the local, long distance and cellular telephone sectors. For more
information about AMX, (See: Financial Information Related To Business Activities, Geographic Zone
And Sales From Exportation of América Movil in Section 2 of these presents)

¢) Information about Significant Loans
Stock-Market Debt

Information concerning the Company’s stock-market debt and documented via the issuances of
commercial paper and stock-market promissory note is described in the foregoing Section I. (See Section
1. General Information, Other Shares).

Loans guaranteed with América Movil shares

In 2003, América Telecom received a loan for US$300 million from Banco Santander Central
Hispano Benelux, S.A./N.V. To guarantee said credit, the Company submitted 16.6 million ADRs, which
represent 332.8 million series-L shares of América Mévil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in |
2008, the date on which the credit amount must be paid. The Company shall pay the interests quarterly at
LIBOR plus a rate that fluctuates between 0.8% and 1.10%.

In 2003, the Company received loans from JP Morgan Chase Bank that totaled US$275 million. To
guarantee said credit, América Telecom submitted 17.3 million ADRs, which represent 347_million
series-L shares of América Mévil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in_2006, the date
on which the credit amount must be paid. For said financing, the Company shall pay the interests
quarterly at LIBOR plus a rate that fluctuates between_0.80% and 1.25%.

In addition, in 2003, América Telecom received a loan for US$80 million from Banco Wachovia
Securities. To guarantee said credit, the Company submitted 5.6 million ADRs, which represent
113.5 million series-L shares of América Mdvil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in
2008, the date on which the credit amount must be paid. For such, the Company shall pay the
interests quarterly at LIBOR plus 0.70%.

With respect to the liabilities contracted in previous fiscal years:
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In 2002, the Company received loans from JP Morgan Chase Bank that totaled US$140 million To
guarantee said credit, América Telecom submitted 9.9 million ADRs, which represent 198.8 million
series-L shares of América Movil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in_2005, the date
on which the credit amount must be paid. For said financing, the Company shall pay the interests
quarterly at LIBOR plus 1.25%.

In 2001, América Telecom received a loan for US$124 million from JP Morgan Chase Bank. To
guarantee said credit, the Company submitted 9.7 million ADRs, which represent 194 million series-L
shares of América Movil, which shall be returned to América Telecom in 2003, the date on which the
credit amount must be paid. For such, the Company shall pay the interests quarterly at LIBOR plus 1.36%.
This loan was paid upon maturity, and the ADRs granted in guarantee were redeemed.

Subsequent Event

As of May 31, 2004, the Company has received loans from_Banco Santander Central Hispano
Benelux and Banco Dresdner Bank AG Frankfurt for a total of US$250 million. To guarantee said credit,
the Company submitted 7 million ADRs, which represent 140.1 million series-L shares of América Mévil,
which shall be returned to the Company in 2009. For said financing, the Company shall pay the interests

‘quarterly at LIBOR plus a rate that fluctuates between 0.62% and 0.66%.

The guaranties shall be exercised by the counterpart should the Company fail in its obligation to pay
the loan.

In general, the aforementioned loans contain certain restrictions that include, among others, the
maintenance of certain financial ratios, the contracting of additional loans and the sale of certain of the
group’s assets. As of May 31, 20035, the Company complies with said conditions.

Loans to América Movil and its subsidiaries,
Syndicated Loans

In 2001 and 2002, América Movil received syndicated loans for US$500, US$200 and US$400
million.

Of the first loan of US$500 million, US$100 million was paid in 2002, and the remaining US$400
million mature in January 2005, triggering interests at LIBOR plus 1.0%.

The second loan for US$200 million matures in May 2005, triggering interests at LIBOR plus 1.0%.
The third loan for US$ 400 million is structured in 3 parts (loan A, B and C for US$121, US$137 .
and US$142 million, respectively), maturing in 2003, 2005 and 2007, triggering interests at LIBOR +

0.75%, LIBOR +1.10%, and LIBOR + 1.35%, respectively. América Movil renewed_US$110.5 million
from Loan A for an additional period of six months.

BNDES

As of December 31, 2002, ATL, Tess and Americel had taken out syndicated loans from resources
from the Brazilian Development Bank (“BNDES”). Said loans are denominated primarily in reales, with a
part indexed in U.S. dollars. The total amount of the principal is approximately R$618 million plus the
equivalent of approximately US$60 million in foreign currency.

Purchase of licenses.

As of December 31, 2003,América Movil owed the Brazilian government $365.7 million for the
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purchase of licenses. The principal shall be updated based on the general price index in Brazil and triggers
a real annual interest of 12%. Such shall be paid in 8 annual installments beginning in August 2005.

Stock-Market Certificates.

The CNBV authorized América Mévil to implement two programs for the issuance of unsecured
stock-market certificates with a guaranty from Telcel totaling $5,000 million each.

In 2003, América Mdvil issued three unsecured stock-market certificates under the coverage of the
third program, each for $1,000 million, the first maturing in 2006 at a rate of 91-day Cetes plus_1.20% and
the remaining two maturing in 2008 at a rate of 182-day Cetes plus 0.90% and 91-day Cetes plus 0.89%,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company has placed, in the Mexican market, stock-market
certificates totaling $12,600 million.

In 2002, América Movil issued seven unsecured stock-market certificates under the coverage of the
second program for amounts that ranged from $400 to $1,250 million and maturing between three and
seven years. Of such, three pay an annual fixed rate that ranges from 10.40% to 10.45%, and the
remaining four pay a floating rate determined as a differential over the CETES rate '

Credit lines guaranteed by institutions to foment exports.

América Mévil has various financing programs for the purchase of equipment, whereby certain
institutions, to foment exports, provide América Moévil with support to finance the purchase of export
equipment from its respective countries, In general, these are medium-term and long-term and imply
periodic amortization and interest payments at a marginal rate above the LIBOR. América Mévil makes
said programs widely available to its operating subsidiaries, generally subject to América Movil’s,
Telcel’s_and/or Sercotel’s granting of guaranties.

In 2002 and 2003, América Movil established credit lines up to US$250 million with the Export
Development Corporation (EDC) in Canada for the purchase of telecommunications equipment. These
credits amortize every semester and trigger interests ranging from LIBOR + 0.95% to LIBOR +1.25%,
maturing between 2004 and 2009.

d) The Administration’s Commentaries and Analysis of Operating Earnings and the Issuer’s Financial
Situation

1) Operating Earnings

The totality of the Company’s consolidated earnings come from the earnings of América Mavil, the
Company’s main subsidiary. In addition, the Company has revenue from service rendering resulting from
an agreement with said corporation, whereby it renders consulting services thereto with respect to
operations and financial administration. The term of the agreement is for one year and can be extended
indefinitely. Said revenue is eliminated as a result of the consolidation.

Consolidated earnings in 2003 totaled $85,940 million pesos, 43.8% greater than the previous year.
This growth was due primarily to the increase in earnings generated in Mexico by América Mdvil and to
the consolidation, as of 2003, of the eamnings generated by CTE’s operations in El Salvador, CTI’s
operations in Argentina and BCP’s operations in December of said year.

The Company’s consolidated operating profit was $17,853 million pesos in 2003, a growth of
36.2% compared to the $13,111 million pesos reported in fiscal year 2002.
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The Company’s EBITDA during fiscal year 2003 reached $31,993 million pesos, which represented
a 47.2% increase over the $21,735 millions pesos during 2002.

The significant growth in the Company’s income, together with América Moévil’s adoption of scale
and cost-control measures, contributed to the growth of América Telecom’s operating earnings and
EBITDA de América Telecom.

The integral cost of financing resulted in a loan of $1,854 million pesos for fiscal year 2003, while
in fiscal year 2002 such totaled $1,180 million pesos. This increase is due primarily to exchange
fluctuations, to interests triggered and the effect of monetary profit registered by América Movil.

Net profit prior to- minority interest in fiscal years 2003 and 2002 totaled $15,042 and $4,628
million pesos, respectively, while net majority profit totaled $4,885 million pesos, which represents an
increase of 215% over the $1,549 million pesos from 2002.

In addition to operating revenue, the Company receives, as part of its operating flow, dividends
from América Mévil shares. In fiscal year 2003, the Company received dividends from América Mévil for
$260 million pesos, at $ 0.06 per share.

Accounting policies and practices

For a description of the main accounting policies and principles, see paragraph II under Note 1 in
the Company’s financial statements reported through December 31, 2003, which is attached to these
presents as an annex.

i1)  Financial Situation, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Internal and external liquidity sources

Internal sources of liquidity come from the Company’s subsidiary’s own cash flow.

External sources of liquidity come mainly from bank financing by means short-term and long-term
lines of credit or by means of short-term stock-market debt as commercial paper or long-term_stock-
market debt as a medium-term stock-market promissiory notes or certificates.

Debt Level

Debt

The short-term and long-term debt (thousands of pesos) is comprised as follows;

Average interest rate considered

through December 31, Maturity Balances as of December 31,
Currency Type 2003 2002 2003 2003 2002
Délares
Promissory note 1.75% 3.40% 2004 y 2003 602,250 401,768
Loans, JP Morgan Chase LIBOR + 1.36
: Bank a LIBOR +0.80 2005 y 2006 4,668,794 2,832,845
LIBOR + 0.70 2006 808,880

Wachovia Securites
Santander Central LIBOR+1.10a

Hispano Benelux ~ LIBOR+0.80 2008 3,370,819
LIBOR+20a LIBOR+.20a

Loans Exim Banks ~ LIBOR+1.65 LIBOR+1.65 2009 8,934,407 8,788,913
LIBOR+.75 a LIBOR+.75 a

Syndicated Loans LIBOR+1.35 LIBOR+1.35 2007 11,236,000 10,722,937
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Fixed Revenue (1) 3.3990% 3.62% 2004 147,033 3,361,041
Lines of Credit LIBOR+.30a 3%8“-34; 2006 8,212,954
LIBOR+1.50 R+1.5 7,672,256
Suppliers 3.1675% a 10% 3.1675% a 10% 2004 149,619
643,687
BNDES UMBNDES+4.5% UMBNDES 4.5% a
a UMBNDES 5.0% 2008 675,565 782,772
UMBNDES+5.05
Lease 11,445
" LIBOR+4.50; 008
Others 11.25% 2 298,184
Subtotal in Dollars 39,405,950 35,206,219
Average interest rate
considered through Maturity Balances as of December 31
" December 31,
Currency Type 2003 2002 2003 2003 2002
Mexican Pesos
Stock-market certificates Varios (5) 2009 11,250,000 10,398,000
Syndicated Loans TIIE + .80 2008 1,750,000
Commercial Paper 7.69% 2003 746,914 1,070,569
TIIE 2004 1,000,000
Lines of Credit THE;5 +1 831,840
2004
Promissory note TIIEy +1 1,186,308
TIIE + .55 2006 950,000
- Lease
Subtotal in Mexican 15,696,914 13,486,717
Pesos
Reales
Syndicated Loans TILP+2.80%a TJLP+280%aTILP
1
TILP + 5.00% +5.00% 2007 2,402,875 2,273,263
Fixed Revenue CDI +.90 CDI+1.20 2005 60,607 925,626
12% + Inflacion . 2010 365,788
Concession Purchases 12% + Inflation. 922,784
Subtotal Reales 2,829,270 4,121,673
Other Currencies (2)
Bonds IPC +7.50% 2010 808,866
Lines of Credit 6.50% 9% 2004 y 2003 598,368 178,551
7.00% 2004 y 2005 31,497
Financial Leasing 13% 1,198
Subtotal in Other 1,439,231 179,749
Currencies .
Total Debt 59,371,365 52,994,358
Minus: short-term debt and a portion of .
outstanding long-term debt 13,228,323 13,115,948
Long-Term Debt 46,143,042 39,878,410

1) The note for $1,753,125 with BCl is free. It was paid in March 2003.
2) Other currency includes Quetzales.

3) The syndicated loan for $400 USD is guaranteed by Telcel, América Mévil and Telgua.

4) 10.40% a 11.33%; TIIE28 + .35; Cetes91 + 1.05 a Cetes91 + 1.08; Cetes182 + 1.00 a Cetes182 + 1.20
5) 11.33%; THIE28 +.35; Cetes182 + 1.20

The interests rates above do not include the effect of reimbursement from withheld taxes. The
average considered cost of the debt as of December 31, 2002 (includes interests, commissions and
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reimbursements to creditors for withheld taxes) was 7.60%, and 6.96% as of December 31, 2002
approximately.

Said rate does not include missions and reimbursements to creditors for withheld taxes (generally 4.9%),
that the Company must reimburse. In general, financing fees add ten base points to the cost of the
financing.

Policies Applicable to the Treasury

The Company individually invests its excess cash in deposits and investments in financial
institutions that have good credit ratings and that have guidelines regarding diversification and maturity
that seek security and liquidity. :

The cash and temporary investments are kept in pesos or in dollars depending upon the investment
requirements and liquidity necessities of every subsidiary based upon its cash flow and debt structure.

Important Investmenis in Capital

At the date of this report, the Company has no compromising investments in capital.

iii)  Internal Control

Given that the corporation, as a pure holding company, has no employees or personnel in its charge,
the fulfillment of the rules for internal control by the Company is supervised permanently by the
departments of management and finance and internal audit of some of its affiliated companies. These
review, analyze and correct, as the case may be, the divergences committed regarding the operations
approved by the Company’s board of directors and its registry. Said departments also review that general
accounting guidelines, criteria and principles that apply.

The external auditors study and evaluate the internal control system in order to audit the financial
statements, once they issue their report about suggestions for said controls.

The Company, by means of its board of directors, organized an auditory committee comprised of
board members whereby the Chairman and the majority thereof are independent. Said committee is in
charge of verifying the implementation of the systems for internal control in order that the transactions
carried out and registered by the Company as set forth by management and PCGA.

The Company is audited by an affiliated company and its subsidiaries are audited by their own
internal auditory departments whose scope is unlimited and its main objective is to ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries comply with their policies and procedures applicable thereto with respect to
internal control.

e) Critical Accounting Estimates

While drafting our financial statements, we made estimates about several issues. Some of these
issues were highly uncertain and our estimates involved opinions made based upon the available
information. We have identified several of these issues; therefore, our financial submittal may be affected
significantly if (a) we use different estimates that we could have used or (b) in the future we change our
estimates in regard to changes that could reasonably have occurred.

Opinions are made only about the estimates that we considered the most important based upon a
level of uncertainty and probability of a significant impact if we use a different estimate. There are many
areas in which we use estimates regarding uncertain issues, but reasonably the probable different changes
or estimates are unimportant for our financial submittal. Regarding the use of estimates in accounting
policies for AMX (See: Use of Estimates in Certain Accounting Policies in Section 2 of these presents).
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4)  ADMINISTRATION
a) External Auditors

The Company’s consolidated financial statements were audited by Mancera. Since the Company’s
incorporation, there has not been a change in the external auditors. The designation of the auditors
complies with the principles set forth in the LMV and the Provisions, that is to say the external auditors
are selected by the auditing committee, which celebrates the service-rendering agreement with the
auditors, certifies their independence and sets the fees to be paid for the auditing.

Since the Company’s incorporation, the external auditors have not issued a report with reservations
or a negative report nor have they abstained from issuing a report concerning the Company’s financial
statements. In fiscal year 2003, the extemal auditors did not render services to the Company beyond
auditing services.

The Company followed the following procedure to select the external auditors:

a) The audit committee analyzed various options and then made recommendations to the
board of directors about the candidates for external auditors. This included the scope of
their authorities and hiring conditions in order to carry out the Company’s accounting
audit for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2003;

b) The Audit Committee interviewed the Company’s external auditors in order to verify
that they would indeed comply with the requisites of independence and personnel
rotation; and

<) Based upon the foregoing, the Company ratified the appointment of the firm Mancera,

as its external auditors for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2003.

Fees for audited and non-audited services

The following table lists the fees billed to us by our independent auditors, Mancera, for the fiscal
years ending on December 31, 2002 and 2003:

Year
Completed
December 31,
(thousands of pesos adjusted to
December 2003)
2003 2002
Auditing fees $ 202 $194
Tax fees 80 77
Other fees 47 45
Total fees $329 $316

The auditing fees to which the foregoing table refers are accumulated fees billed by Mancera with
respect to the auditing of our annual financial statements, the review of our financial statements and

regulatory audits.

b) Operations with Related Parties and Conflicts of Interest
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During the regular course of operations, the Company entered into a wide range of financial
and commercial transactions with related parties such as Telmex’ subsidiaries and associates, Inbursa and
GCarso. It plans to continue these operations in the future.

Among said operations, it should be pointed out that the Company has made various public
offers to place debt instruments, including the placement of the aforementioned commercial paper and
stock-market notes, for which Inversora Bursatil, S.A. de C.V., Casa de Bolsa, Grupo Financiero Inbursa
has advised it with respect to said processes.

Likewise, the Company receives various financial services Inbursa, which includes opening
checking and investment accounts and approval of credit lines; To May 31, 2004, the Company has
received loans totaling US$41.450 million dollars from Inbursa.

Finally, the Company maintains business relations with Telmex and/or its subsidiaries as part
of its ordinary course of business, receiving from such telephone and internet services, etc., which are
contracted under market conditions. )

Moreover, the Company periodically renders consulting services to- América Movil as
covered by the service rendering agreement for financial consulting mentioned earlier.

¢) Directors and Shareholders
The Company’s administration and operations are entrusted to a board of directors. The board of
directors is presently comprised of six full members and six substitute members, who are chosen to serve
for one year. Substitute members may substitute, at board meetings, for shareholding members who do not
attend meetings and do not participate in the board of directors’ activities. Pursuant to the Company’s
bylaws, the board of directors shall be comprised of the number of full and substitute members that the
general shareholders’ meeting so determines, and such may not be fewer than five.
The main purpose of the board of directors is:
1)  To represent the Company before any federal state or municipal authority, before any
national or international individual or legal entity and before the federal or local Board of
Conciliation and Arbitration;

2)  To grant, subscribe, endorse and guarantee all manner of negotiable instrument.

3)  Appoint the Company’s directors, employees, managers and attorneys-in-fact to whom it
must state their duties, obligation and remuneration;

4)  Open or close offices, branches or agencies;

5)  To purchase shares, corporate participation and stock issued by third parties and to exercise
the right to vote with respect to said shares or corporate participation in other companies;

6)  Enter into, amend, terminate or cancel agreements;

7)  To accept, in the corporation’s name, orders from individuals and social entities, whether
Mexican or foreign.

8)  To set up bank accounts and to withdraw from such.

9)  Establish security interests in personal or real property and create a trust in order to guarantee
the Company’s obligations and become a joint obligor, surety and, in general, become
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11)

12)

13)

obligated regarding the fulfillment of third parties’ obligations, therefore establishing security
interests in personal or real property to ensure the fulfillment of said obligations;

Confer, substitute and delegate general and special powers for acts of ownership and
administration, lawsuits and collections, provided that these do not substitute completely the
Board’s duties or revoke its powers-of-attorney;

Confer authorities to grant, subscribe, endorse and guarantee all kinds of negotiable
instrument; provided, however, that said authority to guarantee negotiable instruments must
be granted always in order to be jointly exercise by at least two persons;

Summon shareholders’ meetings and execute the resolutions adopted thereby;

It is the board of directors’ sole authority to approve the operations that are not encompassed
by the regular course of business and that may be carried out by the Company and its partners
with persons that form part of the Company’s administration or with whom said persons are
connected in regard to assets, or as the case may be, a relationship by blood or marriage up to
the second degree, the spouse or common-law spouse; or if their subsidiaries intend to work
with related parties representing the purchase or sale of 10% or more of the assets; granting
security interest for an amount greater than 30% of the assets; as well as other operations for
more than 1% of the Company’s assets.

Below are the names of the Company’s board members, the office they represent and the years that
they have served as such. Said members were appointed since the Company was incorporated, except for
Messrs. Patrick Slim Domit and José Kuri Harfush, who were also appointed as of the Company’s
incorporation, but whose participation in the Corporation’s board of directors has changed under the terms
of the general ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on April 7, 2003, as ratified at the general ordinary
shareholders’ meeting held on April 27, 2004. ‘

The persons appointed shall continue to hold their positions, even when the term for such shall have
passed, until the meeting makes new appointments and the newly appointed board members assume their
respective positions.

" . Kind of
Name Title Seniority (years) Member
Shareholding Members
Honorary Chairman
for Life
Carlos Slim Hela 3 Shareholding
Member
Jaime Chico Pardo Vice-chairman 3 _ Related
Carlos Slim Domit Vice-chairman 3 Shareholding
Member
Claudio X. Gonzalez Laporte Vice-chairman 3 Independent
Patrick Slim Domit Vice-chairman 3 (In the past, he Shareholding
served as Member
Substitute Board
Member)
Juan Antonio Pérez Simén Member 3 Independent
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Substitute Members

Shareholding
Arturo Elias Ayub Substitute  Board 3 Member
Member Related
: Shareholding
Daniel Hajj Aboumrad Substitute  Board 3 Member
Member ' Related
Marco Antonio Slim Domit Substitute  Board Shareholding
3
Member Member
Humberto Gutiérrez  Olvera- Substitute  Board 3 Related
Zubizarreta Member
3 (In the past, he
José Kuri Harfush Substitute ~ Board served as
Member Substitute Board Independent
Member)
Eduardo Valdés Acra Substitute  Board 3 Independent
Member

Relationship by Blood or Marriage up to the Third Degree between Board Members and Officers

Relationship by Blood Relationship by Marriage
First Degree (straight line)

Carlos Slim Domit, Marco Antonio Slim
Domit and Patrick Slim Domit with
Carlos Slim Hela

e Second Degree (transversal line) e Second Degree (transversal line)
Carlos Slim Domit with Patrick Slim Arturo Elias Ayub and Daniel Hajj
Domit and Marco Antonio Slim Domit Aboumrad with Carlos Slim Domit,
Marco Antonio Slim Domit y Patrick Slim
Domit .

Shareholding Members

Carlos Slim Helu is a Civil Engineer from the Department Engineering of the National Autonomous
University of Mexico. He is 64 years old. He has worked as a CEQ or board member of the following
corporations: Telmex (Chairman); América Mévil (Chairman); CGT (Honorary Chairman for Life);
GCarso (Honorary Chairman for Life); GFInbursa (Honorary Chairman for Life). He is the father Carlos
Slim Domit, Chairman of the board of directors of GCarso, of Marco Antonio Slim Domit, Chairman of
the board of directors of GFInbursa and of. Patrick Slim Domit, Vice-Chairman of the board of directors
of GCarso.

Jaime Chico Pardo is an Industrial Engineer from the Universidad Iberoamericana. Since January -

1995, he has been the CEO of Telmex. He is 55 years old. Additionally he is the Vice-chairman of the
board of directors of Telmex and board member of CGT. In the past, he served as CEO of Grupo
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Condumex, S,A. de C.V. and Chairman of Corporacién Industrial Llantera (Euzkadi General Tire de
Meéxico). ‘

Carlos Slim Domit has a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Universidad
Anéhuac. He is 37 years old. He is the Chairman of the board of directors of the Company as well as
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Gcearso. He is a board member of the following companies, among
others: Grupo Sanborns, S.A. de C.V.; Sanborn Hermanos, S. A.; Promotora Snborns, S.A. de C.V_; Sears
Roebuck de México, S.A. de C.V.; Cigarros la Tabacalera Mexicana, S.A. de C.V. (Phillip Morris
Meéxico); Grupo Condumex, S.A. de C.V.; Telmex; CGT; and Promotora Musical, S.A. de C.V. He is the
son of Mr. Carlos Slim Helu and the brother of Marco Antonio Slim Domit and Patrick Slim Domit.

Claudio X. Gonzadlez Laporte is a Chemical Engineer by the National Autonomous University of
Mexico. For 25 years, he has served as Chairman of the board of directors for Kimberly Clark, S.A. de
C.V. He is 70 years old. He is a board member of the following companies: Gearso; CGT; Telmex;
GFInbursa; Kimberly Clark Corporation; General Electric Co.; Kellogs Co.; Unilever; Grupo Alfa, S.A.

de C.V.; Grupo México, S.A. de C.V.; Grupo Modelo, S.A. de C.V. and The Mexico Fund Inc.

Patrick Slim Domit has a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Universidad
Anghuac. Since October 2000 he has served as an executive at Telmex and as Vice-chairman of GCarso.
He has been the CEO of GCarso and of Industrias Nacobre, S.A. de C.V. since 1994. He is 35 years old.
He is a board member of the following companies: GCarso; America Movil; CGT; Telmex; Hoteles
Calinda, S.A. de C.V; Grupo Condumex, S.A. de C.V.; Empresas Frisco S.A. de C.V.; Sears Roebuck de
México, S.A. de C. V.; Cigarros la Tabacalera Mexicana, S.A. de C.V., Promotora Inbursa, S.A. de
C.V.and Industrias Nacobre, S.A. de C.V. He is the son of Mr. Carlos Slim Held and the brother of Marco
Antonio Slim Domit and Carlos Slim Domit.

Juan Antonio Pérez Simon is a Public Accountant by the National Autonomous University of
Mexico. He is 63 years old. Since 1995, he has served as Vice-chairman of Telmex as well as Chairman of
the board of directors for Sanborns Hermanos, S.A. He is a shareholding member for the following
companies: CGT; GCarso; GFInbursa; Inbursa; and some of their subsidiaries; Cigarros la Tabacalera
Mexicana, S.A. de C.V.; Radio Mdvil Dipsa, S.A de C.V. (Telcel); Sears Roebuck de México, S.A. de
C.V.; Industrias Nacobre, S. A. de C.V.; Empresas Frisco, S. A. de C. V.; and other affiliates of Telmex
and GCarso. . :

Substitute Members

Arturo Elias Ayub has a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Universidad
Andhuac and is the Director of Strategic Alliances, Communications and Institutional Relations of

. Telmex. He is 38 years old. He is a board member of the following companies: Telmex; GCarso; América

Moévil; GFInbursa; CGT; and Sears Roebuck de México, S.A. de C.V. He is Carlos Slim Held’s son-in-
law and Carlos Slim Domit, Marco Antonio Slim Domit and Patrick Slim Domit’s brother-in-law.

Daniel Hajj Aboumrad has a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Universidad
Anghuac. He is 38 years old. He is the CEO of América Mévil, América Telecom and Radiomévil Dipsa,
S.A. de C.V. He is a board member of the following companies: GCarso; Phillip Morris México.
Furthermore, he has collaborated with Corporacién Industrial Llantera, S.A. de C.V. (General Tire); Galas
de México, S.A. de C.V.; Agusa; Bimex and Paginas Amarillas, S.A. de C.V. He is Carlos Slim Heli’s -
son-in-law and Carlos Slim Domit, Marco Antonio Slim Domit and Patrick Slim Domit’s brother-in-law.

Marco Antonio Slim Domit has a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Universidad
Anéhuac. Since August 25, 1997, he serves as CEO of GFInbursa. He is 36 years old. The corporations in
which he is a board member are: all the subsidiaries of GFInbursa, GCarso; América Movil; CGT;
Telmex; and Sears Roebuck de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. He is the son of Mr. Carlos Slim Heli and the
brother of Calos Slim Domit and Patrick Slim Domit.
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Humberto Gutiérrez Olvera Zubizarreta has a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the School of
Banking and Commerce. He is 63 years old. He is presently the CEO of GCarso and of Grupo Condumex
S.A. de C.V. Additionally, he is a board member of: GCarso, CGT, Telmex, GFInbursa, Promotora
Inbursa, S. A. de C. V., Grupo Condumex, S.A. de C.V., Ferrosur, S.A. de C.V., Grupo Primex, S.A. de
C.V., Quimica Fltor, S.A de C.V., and Chairman of the board of directors of Empresas Frisco, S.A de
C.V. and of Industrias Nacobre, S.A. de C.V.

José Kuri Harfush has a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Universidad
Andhuac. He is the CEO of Janel, S.A. de C.V. He is 55 years old. Additionally, he is a board member of
the following companies: Telmex, America Movil, CGT, Gearso; GFInbursa and many of its subsidiaries,
Promotora Ibursa, S. A. de C. V. and Grupo Sanborns, S.A. de C.V.

Eduardo Valdés Acra has a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Universidad
Iberoamericana. Currently, he is the Vice-chairman of GFInbursa and CEO of Inversora Bursitil, S.A. de
C.V,, Casa de Bolsa, Grupo Financiero Inbursa. He is 40 years old. He is a board member of the following
companies: GFInbursa and all its subsidiaries; Hoteles Calinda S.A. de C.V.; GCarso; CGT and Telmex.

Board Members and Shareholders’ Equity Interest

In regard to the equity interest of more than 1% of the shares of capital stock owned by
Company’s individual board members and officers and the shareholders that are beneficiary of 5% or
more of the issuers’ shares entitled to vote as well as the Company’s 10 majority shareholders, despite
their equity interest not reaching the latter percentage, it is important to underscore that the Corporation
does not have complete and exact information about the individual interest of the board members and
officers nor of its shareholders by virtue of the fact that their shares are not registered in the Company’s
share registry under the terms of the law.

Nevertheless and pursuant to the information that the Company has as of April 29, 2004, 6 board
members maintain, directly or indirectly, share participation greater than 1%, and 7 shareholders have a
share participation greater than 5% of the Company’s outstanding capital stock. Likewise, Mr. Carlos Slim
Helu and his close relatives comprise, directly or indirectly, the Company’s primary shareholders as they
hold approximately 78.4% of the Company’s outstanding capital stock as of, April 31, 2004.

Remuneration for Board Members and Officers

During the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2002, the board members only received their fees as
payment for attending the board of directors’ meetings. The payment was $44,000 MXP per member for
all the meetings held throughout 2003.

Officers

The Company does not have employees since it is only a sharcholder. Mr. Daniel Hajj Aboumrad is
the CEO, in addition to being the CEO of América Mévil, and did not receive any payment whatsoever
from the Company for the 2003 fiscal year.

Statutory Auditors

The current statutory auditor is Public Accountant Alberto Tiburcio Celorio, managing partner of
Mancera. The substitute statutory auditor is Public Accountant Fernando Espinoza Lopez.

Comité de Auditoria

The Company has an auditing committee, which is a subcommittee of the board of directors. It is
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comprised of board members of whom the chairman and the majority thereof are independent. The
statutory auditors attend the meetings as guests, without the right to an opinion or vote.

The duties of the audit committee are:

Draft an annual report about its activities and submit it to the board of directors;

¢ Give an opinion about transactions with related persons, and

¢ Propose hiring independent experts, if necessary, to give an opinion about the transactions set
forth in article twenty-four, section XIV of the bylaws or the transactions that are not
encompassed by the regular course of business and that may be carried out by the Company and
its partners with persons that form part of the Company’s administration or with whom said
persons are connected in regard to assets, or as the case may be, a relationship by blood or
marriage up to the second degree, the spouse or common-law spouse; or that the Company’s
subsidiaries intend to celebrate with related persons that the purchase or sale of 10% or more of
the assets; granting security interest for an amount greater than 30% of the assets; as well as
other operations for more than 1% of the Company’s assets.

The auditing committee is made up as follows:
José Kuri Harfush Chairman
Juan Antonio Pérez Simén

Eduardo Valdés Acra

Said committee has at least one finance expert.

d) Bylaws and other Agreements

Below is a brief summary of some of the relevant provisions of the bylaws and applicable
legislation. The aforementioned summary does not aim at including all of the provisions of the bylaws or
applicable legislation. It is subject thereto by reference. The Company’s bylaws have been duly recorded
in the Public Commercial Registry of the Federal District and may be looked up there.

General Information The Company was incorporated on December 5, 1996 as a variable capital.
business corporations derived from the spin-off from CGT, pursuant to the provisions of the LGSM.

The Company’s authorized capital stock is comprised of 3,935 million series-Al shares that are

. common, registered, without par value and that represent the fixed portion of the capital stock. The M

issuance of new shares for the fixed portion of the capital stock requires an amendment to the Company’s
bylaws through an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting. As a variable capital business corporation, the
Company requires a minimum fixed portion of the capital and it may have a variable portion of capital.
Currently, the Company does not have shares that represent the variable portion of the capital stock.
Shares can be subscribed by Mexican and foreign investors.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries may be shareholders of the Company or
corporations in which the Company is deemed a subsidiary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company
does have the option of acquiring its own shares pursuant to the applicable provisions.

Stock Registry Series-Al shares shall be represented by stock certificates that have a coupons
attached. Pursuant to LGSM, only the shareholders registered in the Corporation’s shareholders’ ledger
will be deemed shareholders. Shareholders may physically hold the shares (that together with the
corresponding record in the shareholder’s ledger will certify ownership) or though the registry in financial
entities with an account in Indeval. The ownership of the shares deposited at Indeval will be evidenced by
the registry and lists kept by Indeval.
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The shareholders’ ledger shall be closed on the business days before the shareholders’ meeting is
scheduled to be held pursuant to the published call.

Voting Rights and Shareholders’ meetings Each series-A1l share entitles its holder to one vote in
any of Company’s shareholders’ meeting. The shareholders may appoint all of the board members.
Presently, the board of directors is comprised of 6 shareholding members and 6 substitutes. Pursuant to the
Company’s bylaws, the board of directors shall be made up of at least 5 members. Each shareholder or
group of shareholders that represent 10% or more of series-Al shares shall be entitled to appoint a board
member.

General shareholders’ meetings may be ordinary or extraordinary. General extraordinary
shareholders’ meetings are called to discuss the issues set forth by Article 182 of the LGSM and the
bylaws. Basically, these issues are increases and reductions to the fixed portion of the capital stock and
other amendments to the bylaws, liquidation, mergers, spin-offs, transformation from one kind of
corporation into another, change in nationality and change in-corporate purpose. General ordinary
meetings are called to discuss all other issues, including the appointient of board members and statutory
auditors. The Company’s general ordinary shareholders’ meeting must be held at least once a year during
the following four months after the close of the previous fiscal year. It shall discuss certain issues set forth
by Article 181 of the LGSM, including the appointment of board members and statutory auditors,
approval of the board of directors’ Report regarding the Company’s performance and the financial
statements thereof during the previous fiscal year as well as the distribution of the results for said fiscal
year.

Pursuant to the bylaws, the quorum for the first summons of a general ordinary shareholders’
meeting is at least half of the outstanding series-Al shares. Resolutions may be adopted by a favorable
vote of the majority of the series-Al shares that are present. If there is no quorum in the first summons,
then a second meeting may be called to adopt resolutions by means of a favorable vote of the majority of
the shares that are present, regardless of the number of shares. The quorum needed for the first summons
of a general extraordinary shareholders’ meeting or a special meeting is 75% of the outstanding shares
entitled to vote on issues to be addressed by said general extraordinary or special shareholders’ meeting.
In order to consider a resolution as validly adopted by an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting, whether by
a first or ulterior call, the favorable vote of the shareholders owning at least half of the outstanding shares
entitled to vote in regard to issues to be addressed in said extraordinary meeting. In order for a special
shareholders’ meeting to adopt a resolution, whether by a first or ulterior call, the favorable vote of the at
least 50% of the outstanding shares is needed.

Pursuant to law, the shareholders owning 20% of the Company’s outstanding capital stock may
oppose the resolutions of general meetings by submitting a suit before the competent court within 15 days
after the close of the meeting in which said resolution was taken. Said brief must state that the resolution
being challenged violates the law or the Corporation’s bylaws. The right to challenge pursuant to these
provisions may be exercised only by the shareholders (i) that have a right to vote in the meeting that
adopted the resolution being challenged; and (ii) whose shares were not represented when the resolution
was taken or, if they were represented, they voted against said resolution.

The shareholders’ meetings may be called by the board of directors through its chairman or
secretary, statutory auditor or any competent judge. Shareholders owning 10% of the outstanding shares
may request the board of directors or statutory auditor to call a shareholders’ meeting. Furthermore, the
board of directors or statutory auditor must call a shareholders’ meeting when it receives a written request
of any series-Al shareholder if a general ordinary shareholders’ meeting has not been held for two
consecutive years or if the shareholders’ meeting held during said period have not taken into consideration
the issues set forth by the aforementioned Article 181 of the LGSM. If no meeting is called within the
following 15 days after the date of the request, the competent judge may request that the meeting be held.
The call to the meetings must be published in an official newspaper of the Company’s domicile or in a
major newspaper in the Federal District at least 15 days prior to the date of such meeting. The
shareholders’ meetings may be held without said publication, provided that 100% of the outstanding
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shares entitled to vote regarding the issues to be considered by said meeting are represented. In order to
attend a shareholders’ meeting, the shareholders must request and obtain an admission card. Said
shareholders may obtain such, at least with the anticipation set in the call to the shareholders’ meeting, by
submitting adequate proof of ownership of the Company’s shares. They shall obtain said admission by
depositing the shares with Company’s corporate secretary or with an institution authorized to accept said
deposit. If a shareholder is entitled to attend a meeting, said shareholder may be represented by a proxy
executed before two witnesses.

Dividends At the ordinary shareholders’ meeting, the board of directors shall submit Company’s
financial statement for the previous fiscal year along with the report thereof to the shareholders. The
shareholders, once they have approved the financial statements, shall determine the Company’s
distribution of net profits, corresponding to the previous fiscal year. Pursuant to law, 5% of said net profits
must be set aside as a statutory capital reserve, which shall not be available for distribution until the
amount of said legal reserve is equivalent to 20% of the Company’s capital stock (before the effective re-
expression thereof in constant pesos). The excess amounts of legal reserve fund shall be distributed to the
other reserve funds established by the shareholders. These include a fund to purchase the shares from the
Company. The remainder of the net profits, if any, shall be available for distribution as.

The series-Al shareholders shall have equal rights per share to receive dividends and other
distributions, including any distributions at the moment of Company’s liquidation. Partially paid shares
will participate in any distribution to the degree that they have been paid at the moment of distribution, or
if they have not been paid, then solely regarding the paid portion.

Capital Stock Variations In general, the capital may be increased by additional contributions in cash
or kind made by the shareholders, capitalization of liabilities or capitalization of certain entries of capital.
Normally, an increase in the capital stock may not be made until all of the shares of capital stock
previously issued and subscribed have been paid completely. A reduction of the capital stock may be
carried out in order to absorb losses, redeem shares or release shareholders from pending payments. The
reduction of the capital stock in order to redeem shares, reimbursing the shareholders must be done
prorated manner or by draw. Also, shareholders may approve amortization of shares fully paid-in with
profits withheld. Said amortization would be carried out by means of a share repurchased in the BMV
(should the shares be registered therein).

The Company’s fixed portion of capital stock may increase or decrease by a resolution of the
general extraordinary shareholders’ meetings and by an amendment to the bylaws, while the Company’s
variable portion may increase or decrease by a resolution of the general ordinary shareholders’ meeting.

A shareholders’ resolution is not needed to reduce the capital stock as a result of exercising the right
to withdraw the shares corresponding to the variable portion of the capital stock or from the acquisition by
the Company of its own shares or from increases to the capital stock resulting from the sale of shares that
it previously purchased.

Right of First Refusal Except under certain circumstances, in the case of an increase of capital
through the issuance of new shares for payment in cash or kind, a series-A1 shareholder at the moment of
increasing the capital has a right of first refusal to subscribe enough number new shares so as to keep its
same percentage of equity interest or in the case of an increase in capital through the issuance of shares
entitled to a restricted vote or with limited corporate rights, to subscribe the number of shares to be issued
that is enough to keep its same percentage of equity interest. Said right of first refusal must be exercised
within the following 15 days after the date of the corresponding notification in the official newspaper of
the Company’s domicile or in one of the major newspapers in such domicile. It may also be exercised
after the shareholders’ meeting that approved the increase of capital if all the shareholders were
represented in said meeting, otherwise said rights will expire. Pursuant to law, shareholders may not waive
their right of first refusal in advance, except under certain circumstances. Furthermore, these may not be
represented by a negotiable instrument aside from the corresponding share certificate.
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Foreign Investment Law Ownership in the Company’s capital stock by foreign investment is
regulated by the Foreign Investment Law and the Regulation to the Foreign Investment Law. The
Secretariat of Economics and the National Foreign Investment Commission are the agencies in charge of
applying the Foreign Investment Law.

The bylaws establish that the Company can directly admit, as partners or shareholders, any

foreign investor or corporation without a foreigner-exclusion clause.

Minimum Fixed and Variable Capital As a variable capital business corporation, the Company
may issue shares corresponding to its fixed portion and shares corresponding to the variable portion of its
capital stock. Presently, there are no shares of the Company corresponding to the variable portion of the
capital stock or that are outstanding. If there were shares of variable portion, these may be withdrawn
completely by their shareholders. Except under certain circumstances, the minimum capital may not be
withdrawn. A shareholder of variable portion wishing to completely or partially withdraw said shares must
notify the Company about said withdrawal through a written and signed notification. If the withdrawal
notice is received before the last quarter of the fiscal year, said withdrawal will become effective at the
close of the fiscal year in which the notification was sent. Otherwise, the withdrawal will become effective

on the following fiscal year.

The redemption of the Company’s variable portion of the capital stock shall be carried out at the
lesser of (i) 95.0% of the average share price by operating volume traded in the BMV during the 30
business days before the date in which the withdrawal will become effective or (ii) the book value per
share calculated by taking the Company’s financial statements as a basis (approved by an ordinary
shareholders’ meeting) corresponding to the close of the fiscal year prior to the date of which the
withdrawal will become effective. Any amount that the Company must pay will mature on the foilowing
day after the ordinary shareholders’ meeting mentioned in item (ii) above.

Duration Pursuant to the Bylaws, the duration of the Company is indefinite.

Share Repurchase At any time, the Company may purchase its own shares through the BMV at
any time at the prevalent market price. The authority to effect said purchases must be approved by the
board of directors, which shall designate the executives responsible for carrying out said operations and
the maximum amount that may be applied for said purpose, in the understanding that the resources

earmarked for carrying out said operations may not, under any circumstances, exceed the total amount of.

the Company’s net profit, including withheld profit. In the case of share repurchases, the amount of the
operation shall be charged to the net worth while said shares pertain to the issuer or, should it be resolved
that they be returned to the treasury, the Company’s capital stock shall be automatically reduced by an
amount equal to the theoretical value of each repurchased share (calculated by dividing the Company’s
outstanding capital stock by the number of outstanding shares prior to said repurchase). If the purchase
price for said shares is greater than the assumed par value, the difference shall be charged to the net profits

transferred to the special legal reserve created to repurchase the shares. Repurchased shares shall be kept .

in the Company’s treasury to be later placed in the BMV. The net worth or, as the case may be, the
Company’s capital stock shall increase automatically at the moment said shares are resold for an amount
equal to their assumed par value. Any excess amount shall be transferred to the aforementioned special
legal reserve. The repurchased shares’ corresponding equity rights and votes may not be exercised while
these are owned by the Company. Moreover, said shares shall not be deemed as outstanding for the
purpose of calculating quorums for declaring meetings in session or for voting in any shareholders’
meeting during said period.

Repurchase in the Case of Registry Cancellation If the registry of Company’s shares before the

Securities Section of the RNV is cancelled, whether requested by the Company or pursuant to a resolution
adopted by the CNBV, then the Company’s bylaws and the CNBV’s regulations require that majority
shareholders must make a public tender to purchase the shares owned by the minority shareholders.
Unless the CNBV approves a different price, said majority shareholders must purchase the shares at the
highest price of either (i) the average estimated price by volume of corresponding operations to the shares
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for the 30 days before the date of the offer or (ii) the amount in the shareholders’ ledger, reflected in the
last quarterly report filed before the CNBV and the BMV before the date of the offer and the Company
demonstrates that the amount to offer for the shares listed for the greater investing public be less that
300,000 investment unit.

Shareholders’ Conflict of Interest Pursuant to law, any shareholder that has a conflict of interest
regarding any operation whatsoever must abstain from voting on such matter at the corresponding
shareholders’ meeting. If a shareholder votes on a matter in which his or her interest conflict with those of
the Company, such shareholder may be liable for damages if such transaction would not have been
approved without his or her vote.

Board Members' Conflict of Interest Pursuant to law, any board member that has a conflict of
interest with the Company must reveal this fact to the other board members and abstain from voting. Any
board member that does not comply with the aforementioned provision may be liable for damages caused
to the Company. Furthermore, the members of the board of directors and the statutory auditors may not
represent other shareholders at any shareholders’ meeting. '

Right to Withdraw At all times when the shareholders approve an amendment to the corporate
purpose, the Company’s nationality or transformation into another kind of corporation, then any
shareholder entitled to vote regarding said amendment or transformation that voted against such shall be
entitled to withdraw from the Company. Said shareholder shall receive the amount calculated that
according to law may be attributed to its shares. However, such shareholder must exercise its right to
withdraw within 15 days after the date in which the aforementioned meeting was held. The amount that a
withdrawing shareholder may receive is equivalent to its equity interest in the Company’s capital stock
pursuant to its most recent balance sheet approved by a general ordinary shareholders’ meeting.

Legal Actions Against Board Members Pursuant to law, legal action may be filed for civil liability
against the board members by resolution of the ordinary shareholders’ meeting. If an ordinary
shareholders’ meeting decides to file such action, the defendants shall immediately stop being board
members. Furthermore, the shareholders’ representing at least 15.0% of the Company’s outstanding shares
may take direct action against the board members; provided that (i) said shareholders have not voted
against taking such action in the corresponding shareholders’ meeting and (ii) said lawsuit includes the
damages that have been allegedly caused to the Company and all of its shareholders and not only to the
plaintiffs individually. Said action may be exercised also in regard to statutory auditors, or as the case may
be, against the members of the Audit Committee. Any reimbursement for such action shall inure to the
benefit of the Company and not to the shareholders who filed such action.

The Amendment to the LMV and other provisions. On June 1, 2001, the Official Daily Gazette
published the decree by which the LMV and the National Banking and Securities Commission Law were
amended. The Company’s bylaws have been adapted already to them LMV amendments published in the
Official Daily Gazette on June 1, 2001.

The amendment included various aspects such as adjustments to certain exceptions to the general
regime of the LGSM such as: a) Statutory Auditor: shareholders with or without voting rights, which
represent at least ten percent (10%) of the capital may appoint a statutory auditor. Only when the
remainder have been revoked, may the appointment of board members or statutory auditors designated by
said shareholders shall be revoked; (b) Integration and Duties of the Board of Directors: The board shall
be comprised of at least five (5) and no more than twenty (20) shareholding members, whereby at least
twenty five percent (25%) must be independent. For every shareholding member a substitute shall be
appointed; however, the substitute board members of an independent board member must have the same
nature. The chairman shall have the tie breaking vote; (¢) Audit Committee: an audit committee must be
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constituted with board members. The majority thereof must be independents and shall include the
statutory auditor(s) who will attend the meetings as visitors with a right to be heard, but not to vote; (d)
Opposing Interests: the board members, statutory auditors that attend the audit meetings and, as the case
may be, the members of said committee, who during any operation have an opposing interest to the issuer
must state it to the other board members or the audit committee members or aforementioned committees
and abstain from deliberating and resolving. The person who contravenes this provision shall be liable for
the damages and losses caused to the issuer; (e) Shareholders’ Meetings: regarding shareholders’
meetings, several provisions are established about their summons, information and documents related to
every issue on the agenda; the powers of attorney to represent a shareholder, civil liability charges against
board members; postponement of resolutions and opposition and suspension of resolutions.

Afterwards, on March 19, 2003, the General Provisions Applicable to Securities Issuers and Other
Stock Market Participants were published in the Official Daily Gazette. Said provisions establish certain
issues that must be included in the Company’s bylaws.

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting dated December 8, 2003 approved the amendment to
articles 6, 7, 8, 12, 13, 14, 20, 24, and 29 of the bylaws, and Article 20 B was added. Said articles were
drafted as follows: -

ARTICLE SIX. Company’s Capital. The Company'’s capital is variable. The minimum fixed capital
stock not entitled to be withdrawn is $1,009,083,661.05 (ONE BILLION NINE MILLION EIGHTY
THREE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED AND SIXTY ONE PESOS WITH TWENTY FIVE CENTS,
Mexican legal tender).This amount is represented by three billion nine hundred and thirty five million
seventy six thousand seventy six ordinary, registered, without par value, completely subscribed and
paid-in shares with full voting rights. Such shares correspond to series A-1 representing the minimum
fixed portion of the capital stock. The variable portion of the capital stock shall be represented by
registered shares without par value shares corresponding to series A-2 that represent the variable
portion of the capital stock. The latter shares shall have the characteristics determined by the general
shareholders’ meeting that approves their issuance.

ARTICLE SEVEN. Acquisitions by the Subsidiaries. The Company’s subsidiaries, as defined by the
generally accepted accounting principles in Mexico, must not invest, directly or indirectly, in the
Company’s capital stock or in any other corporation regarding which the Company is a subsidiary
except if said corporations in which the Company is a majority shareholder acquires shares of the to
Julfill sale of shares options or plans that constitute or that may be granted or designated in favor of
employees or directors or said corporations or of the Company; provided that the number of shares
acquired for such purpose does not exceed 25% (twenty five percent) of the total number of
outstanding shares of the Company.

Likewise, the Company’s board of directors must approve the operations that its subsidiaries, as
defined by the generally accepted accounting principles in Mexico, intend to enter into with related.
parties or that imply compromising their equity pursuant to the terms of Article 14 B-3, section I of the
LMV. The Company shall establish measures to provide whatever is necessary in order for this
paragraph to be complied with.

ARTICLE EIGHT. Increases and Decreases. Except for the increases or decreases from the purchases
of its own shares as referred to under Article 14 B-3, section I of the LMV, the Company’s variable
capital may be increased or decreased without needing to amend the bylaws. The only formality for
said increases or decreases shall be agreed by the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting and for those
minutes to be protocolized before a notary public; however, said deed need not be registered in the
Commerce Section of the corresponding Public Registry of Property and Commerce. The minutes of a
shareholders’ meeting need not be protocolized when they concern a reduction to the capital in order
to exercise the right to withdraw of any shareholder or in the case of increases or decreases as a result
of the acquisition of its own shares as referred to under Article 14 B-3, section I of the LMV or in the
case of a reduction to the capital in order to exercise the right to withdraw of any shareholder.
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The minimum fixed portion of the corporation’s capital may not be increased or decreased if without
the approval of an Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting and if the corporate bylaws are not
subsequently reformed, unless derived from trading its own shares acquired by the Company through
any means or to any person that authorized by the board of directors.

Both increases and decreases to the capital stock must be registered in the Company's ledger.

When the capital stock is increased, all the shareholders shall have a preferential right proportionate
to the number of their shares of the corresponding series to subscribe those issued or outstanding. The
right granted by this paragraph must be exercised during the following fifteen days afier the
corresponding decrees are published in the Official Daily Gazette or in any other leading newspaper
in Mexico City. This right is rnot applicable as a result of the company's merger, conversion of
obligations, for a public offering pursuant to Article 81 of the LMV and these bylaws and for the
placement of its own shares acquired according to Article 14 B-3, sections I of the LMV.

In case such shares are not subscribed after the term corresponding to the shareholders’ preferential
right granted by the aforementioned article has expired, these shares may be offered to any person for
their subscription and payment in the terms and dates established by the shareholders’ meeting that
approved the increase to the capital or in the terms and dates established by the board of directors of
delegates appointed by the meeting for such purpose; provided that their offering price for third
parties is not lower than that offered to the Company’s shareholders for their subscription and

payment.

The corporation may issue unsubscribed shares of any series or class that form part of the capital
stock. These shall be kept in the corporation’s treasury and shall be distributed when their subscription
is carried out.

Likewise, by the previous authorization of the CNBYV, the corporation may issue unsubscribed shares to -
be publicly traded; provided that these are kept in a securities deposit and comply with the conditions
pursuant to Article 81 of the LMV.

At the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting that decreed the issuance of unsubscribed shares, an
explicit waiver must be made to the preferential right established by Article 32 of the LGSM.

“Once there is the quorum, as set forth by the bylaws, the resolution taken shall produce its full effects.

Said consequences shall affect those shareholders that did not attend the meeting; therefore, the
corporations shall be at liberty to publicly trade the shares without needing to make the publication
established by the article mentioned in the paragraph above. When a minority representing at least
25% (twenty five percent) of its voting capital stock votes against the issuance of unsubscribed shares,
said issuance may not be carried out.

The summons to the extraordinary shareholders meeting must state expressly that it is called for the
purposes established by Article 81 of the LMV. A special mention must be made to the contents of
Section 10 of said article.

Any shareholder that votes against the resolutions during the meeting shall have the right to demand
the corporation to trade its shares at the same price that the said issuance's shares are publicly traded.
The corporation shall be obligated to trade first the shares belonging to the disgruntled shareholders.

ARTICLE TWELVE. Reduction to the Capital. The reductions to the fixed minimum capital not entitled
to be withdrawn must be approved by the general ordinary shareholders’ meeting. The reductions to
the variable potion of the capital stock, except when the shareholders exercise their right to withdraw,
shall be approved by the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting or by the general ordinary
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shareholders’ meeting, irrespectively. The corresponding minutes must be protocolized before a notary
public.

The capital may be reduced pursuant to Article 35 and others of the LGSM and if the fixed portion is
reduced besides the aforementioned provision, Article 9 of said legislation shall apply.

Regarding shares representing the corporation’s capital stock that were recorded in the RNV, the
procedure to exercise the shareholders’ right to withdraw the variable portion besides being limited to
the provisions under Articles 220 and 221 of the LGSM, shall be subject to the fact that the
corresponding reimbursement is paid pursuant to the lowest value between: i) 95% (ninety-five
percent) of the trading value that is obtained by the average of operations carried out during the thirty
days in which the issuer’s shares have been traded prior to the effective date of the withdraw during a -
period of no more than six months, or ii) if the number of days in which the issuer’s shares have been
traded is less than thirty days, the days which shall be taken into account are those in which the shares
have been traded; or, the shares net worth according the balance sheet corresponding to the fiscal
year previous to the one in which the separation should become effective, which was approved
previously be the general ordinary shareholders’ meeting.

The payment of the reimbursement may be demanded from the Corporation following the date in which
the general ordinary shareholders’ meeting that approved the balance sheet corresponding to the
fiscal year in which the withdraw will become effective is held. A corporation’s capital may never be
reduced to less than the legal minimum.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN. Previous Authorization and Exclusion Offering. Article 130 of the LGSM
establishes that the transference of shares issued by a Corporation, or certificates or instruments
issued based upon said shares or rights to said shares may only be carried out by the board of
director’s previous authorization if the number of shares, rights to said shares that are intended to be
transferred, in an act or series of acts, without deadline, or a group of related shareholders that act
together becomes ten percent (10%) or more of the shares issued by the corporation with a right to
vote. Pursuant to this article, if the board of directors denies the authorization, it shall designate one
or more buyers for the shares. Said buyers must pay the stock market price to the interested party. If
the shares are not recorded in the RNV and intermediaries, the price shall be determined pursuant to
the aforementioned Article 130. Any party in breach of the paragraph above shall be obligated to pay
liguidated damages to the Corporation for an amount equivalent to the price of all the shares,
certificates or instruments representing the Corporation’s capital stock that they own either directly or
indirectly or that form part of a prohibited operation in the case of parties that have participated in the
operation but do not own the shares issued by the corporation. If as a result of the operations, a
percentage of shares, certificates or instruments representing the corporation’s capital stock were
acquired and that are equivalent to more than 10% (ten percent) of the capital stock, free-of-charge,
the liquidated damages shall be equivalent to the market value of such shares, certificates or
instruments provided that no authorization established in the previous paragraph existed. While the
corporation keeps the shares that it issued, recorded in the RNV, the request above in the case of
operations carried out in the stock market shall be subject additionally to the rules set forth by the
LMV or those issued by the CNBV. Furthermore, the buyer or group of buyers that obtains or
increases a significant equity in the corporation, without having previously requested the offering
pursuant to the provision established under the general rules applicable to securities acquisitions that
must be revealed and regarding public offerings to buy securities issued by the CNBV, may not
exercise the corporate rights derived from the corresponding shares entitled to vote and the
corporation shall abstain from recording said shares in the ledger referred to by articles 128 and 129
LGSM. Moreover, the majority of the board members that have been elected to serve before verifying
any circumstance that could imply a change in control, must grant their authorization in writing
through a resolution taken during a board meeting summoned expressly for such purpose pursuant to
these bylaws so that a change in the corporation’s control may be carried out. “Control” or “to
control” means (i) to own the majority of ordinary voting shares of the corporation’s capital stock or
certificates or instruments issued based upon said shares; (ii) the authority to make, directly or
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indirectly, management and policy decisions for the corporation or its subsidiaries; or (iii) the
authority to veto important decisions regarding the corporation or its subsidiaries’ policies whether
through ownership of the voting shares, by contract or otherwise. The board of directors shall be
entitled to determine if any of the parties is acting together or coordinated for the purposes hereof. If
the board of directors adopts such resolution, said parties must be deemed as one party for the
purposes hereof.

While the corporation’s shares are recorded in the Securities Section of the RNV, pursuant to the LMV

and the applicable general provisions of the CNBV in the case of cancellation of the inscription of the

corporation in the Securities Section of the RNV, the shareholders owning the majority of the ordinary
shares or having the possibility, by any certificate, 1o take decisions in the general ordinary

shareholders’ meeting or appoint the majority of the corporation’s board members shall be obligated

to make a public purchase offer, previous to the cancellation, pursuant to Article 8, section Il of the

“Provisions Applicable to Securities Issuers and Other Stock Market Participants” issued by the

CNBYV.

The aforementioned shareholders shall be obligated to place in trust for at least six months the
necessary funds to purchase the shares at the same price as the other investors when the public
purchase offering is made and previous to the cancellation of the inscription in the RNV, the
aforementioned shareholders who do not accomplish acquiring 100% (one hundred percent) of the
paid-in capital stock. '

ARTICLE FOURTEEN. General Shareholders"Meelings The general shareholders’ meetings are the
supreme managing board. General shareholders’ meetings may be ordinary or extraordinary. Both

shall be held at the corporation’s headquarters, except in cases of Acts of God or force majeure.

Ordinary shareholders’ meetings shall be called to discuss any issue that the Law or these bylaws do
not set aside for extraordinary shareholders’ meetings.

Ordinary shareholders’ meetings shall be held at least once a year, within the four months after the
end of the fiscal year. Aside from the issues on the agenda, said meeting shall carry out the following:

a) Discuss, approve or amend the board members’ report under Article 62 of the LGSM by taking into

account the statutory auditors’ report and implementing the measures it deems necessary.

b) Appoint the board members and statutory auditors.
¢) Determine the corresponding reimbursements for the board members and statutory auditors.

ARTICLE TWENTY. Board of Directors. A board of directors shall be in charge of the corporation’s
management. Said board shall be comprised of no less than 5 (five) and no more than 20 (twenty)

' members appointed by an ordinary shareholders’ meeting. Said meeting may appoint a substitute for

up to a number equivalent to the shareholding members and, if so, shall have the authority to
determine the manner in which the substitutes shall stand-in for the shareholding members. If the
meeting does not decide upon the foregoing, any substitute may stand-in for any shareholding
members, irrespectively, and the substitutes appointed by the shareholders in exercise of a minority
right may only stand-in for shareholding board members appointed by said minority. '

The board members need not be shareholders. Any shareholder or group of shareholders that
represents at least 10% (ten percent) of the ordinary shares dividing the capital stock shall be entitled
to name a shareholding member and substitute. In said case, the foregoing shareholder may rot
exercise his voting rights to appoint the shareholding member and substitute that correspond to the
majority’s appointment. If any shareholder or group of shareholders that represents at least 10% (ten
percent) of the ordinary shares dividing the capital stock exercises the right to appoint a shareholding
member and substitute, the remaining majority shall only have the right to appoint the remainder of the
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board members that correspond to said majority. Said members may only be revoked when the
appointment of rest is revoked, unless said removal is based upon a just cause pursuant to Article 14
B-3 of the LMV. The board members elected for one year shall continue in office even when the
appointed term has expired until the persons designated to substitute them take office. Board members
may be reelected and shall earn the wages determined by the general shareholders’ meeting. Substitute
board members shall stand-in for their corresponding board members when absent. For the purposes
of the LMV and notwithstanding that said legislation does not require the incorporation in the bylaws
of the requisites set forth below, additionally in regard to the board of directors, the following shall be
complied with:

I The board of directors shall be comprised of a minimum of 5 (five) and a maximum of 20
(twenty) shareholding members.

At least 25% (twenty five percent) of the board members must be independent pursuant to the
provisions under Article 14 B-3 of the LMV.

iL Shares

bI/8 Each shareholding members shall have a corresponding substitute; provided that said
substitutes must have the same capacity.

v The Audit Committee’s report must be submitted in the shareholders’ meeting.

ARTICLE TWENTY BIS. Irrespective of the corporation’s obligation to comply with the principles
established in the second paragraph and its subsections of Article 20 of these bylaws, and while said
Article is effective, failure to comply with said paragraph and its subsections for any reason, shall not
generate or grant rights to third parties to challenge the lack of validity regarding the legal acts,
contracts, agreements, covenant or any other act entered into by the corporations by means of or
through its board of directors or any other intermediary, delegating, managing or representing board
nor shall these be deemed as validity or existence requirements for such acts.

ARTICLE TWENTY FOUR. Authorities. The board of directors shall have the most extensive
authorities to properly manage the corporation’s business. Said board shall have a general power for
lawsuits and collections, to administer assets and exercise ownership acts without any limitation
whatsoever, which is to say with all the general and special authorities that require a special clause

pursuant to law in terms of the first three paragraphs of Article 1554 of the Federal Civil Code and its

correlative Civil Codes for the States of the Republic and other states of the Mexico, including the
authority listed in Article 2,587 of the aforementioned legislation. The foregoing mcIudes but is not
limited to the explicit authorities listed below:

I Represent the corporation before any authority, whether federal, state or municipal; represent the
corporation before any individual or legal entity, national or foreign; represent the corporation before
conciliation boards and before the Board of Conciliation and Arbitration, whether federal or local,
with the express authorities for all the purposes set forth in section two and three of Article 692 of the
Federal Labor Law together with Articles 786 and 866 of the aforementioned legisiation. Therefore,
said board is authorized expressly to answer or propound interrogatories on behalf of the corporation,
conciliate, settle and draft agreements; file criminal charges and complaints; file or desist from any
kind of lawsuit or remedy including the writ of constitutional relief and represent the corporation
before any authority, whether judicial, administrative or otherwise that aim at resolving labor
disputes; submit lawsuits for constitutional relief and, as the case may be, desist from them; file
complaints and, as the case may be grant a pardon; file criminal charges and become an assistant to
the attorney general’s office; desist, settle, submit to arbitration; answer and propound
interrogatories; to challenge or receive paymenis.

II. To grant, subscribe, endorse and guarantee all manner of negotiable instrument.
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IIl. Appoint the corporation’s directors, employees, managers and attorneys-in-fact to whom it must
states their duties, obligations and remuneration.

IV. Open or close offices, branches or agencies.

V. Acquire shares, equity interests or securities issued by third parties and exercise the right to vote on
such shares or equity interests of other companies.

VI. Enter into, amend, terminate and rescind contracts.
VII. Accept on behalf of the corporation, agencies of Mexican or foreign individuals or legal entities.

VIII. Open bank accounts and withdraw deposits therefrom and appoint the persons authorized to use
the corporate signature, deposit in said bank accounts and withdraw the deposits with the limitations
established by the board. :

IX. Establish security interests in personal or real property and create a trust in order to guarantee the
Company's obligations and become a joint obligor, surety and, in general, become obligated
regarding the fulfillment of third parties’ obligations, therefore establishing security interests .in
personal or real property to ensure the fulfillment of said obligations.

X. Confer, substitute and delegate general and special powers for acts of ownership and
administration, lawsuits and collections, provided that these do not substitute completely the Board's
duties or revoke its powers-of-attorney.

¢ Confer authorities to grant, subscribe, endorse and guarantee all kinds of negotiable instrument;
provided, however, that said authority to guarantee negotiable instruments must be granted always in
order to be jointly exercise by at least two persons;.

XII.  Summon shareholders’ meetings and execute the resolutions adopted thereby;

XIII.  Execute any legal acts or adopt any decision that is necessary or expedient to achieve the
corporate purposes.

XIV. It is the board of directors’ sole authority to approve the operations that are not encompassed by
the regular course of business and that may be carried out by the Company and its partners with
persons that form part of the Company’s administration or with whom said persons are connected in
regard to assets, or as the case may be, a relationship by blood or marriage up to the second degree,
the spouse or common-law spouse or if their subsidiaries intend to work with related parties
representing the purchase or sale of 10% or more of the assets; granting security interest for an
amount greater than 30% of the assets; as well as other operations for more than 1% of the
Company’s assets. The board members shall be liable for the resolutions reached for issued set forth
under this section, excep! for the case established by Article 199 of the LGSM.

Neither the board member, chairman of the board, nor vice-presidents of the board, secretary, and -
assistant secretary for the sole fact their appointment shall be authorized to submit the testimony
evidence and therefore, are prevented from answering interrogatories during the whole trial or
procedure involving the corporation. The aforementioned authorities correspond exclusively to the
delegates appointed by the board and for its attorneys-in-fact that have been expressly granted such.

ARTICLE TWENTY NINE . Audit Committee. The corporation, though its board of directors, shall
create an audit committee that shall be comprised in the manner and terms below:
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1 The audit committee is comprised of board members whereby the president and the majority thereof
must be independent. The corporation’s statutory auditors must attend their meetings as visitors with a
right to be heard but not to vote.

2. The audit committee shall appoint a secretary, who shall not require being a member thereof. The
secretary shall carry out the duties inherent to its office or that are assigned by such committee.

3. The duties of the audit committee are:
a. Draft an annual report about its activities and submit it to the board of directors;

b. Give an opinion about transactions with related persons, and

¢. Propose hiring independent experts, if necessary, fo give an opinion about the transactions set
Jforth in Article Twenty-Four of these bylaws.

4. The audit committee may establish rules to regulate its performance.”

Authorities of the board of directors — Decisions Based Upon Personal Interests The Company’s

board of directors may establish payment plans for executives, although this authority is not established
expressly in the bylaws. Neither the board of directors nor the other internal administrative bodies shall be
authorized expressly to take decisions on any matter in which any of its members may have a personal
interest.

Corporate Rights Conferred by Shares There is no distinction in the shares representing the
Company’s capital stock that grant different corporate rights to their holders regarding voting at general
shareholders’ meetings. Furthermore, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no agreement
aside from the bylaws that will delay, prevent, defer or make more onerous a change in the management
thereof.

The corporate rights conferred by the shares to each of the Company’s shareholder are not
restricted by any trust or any other existing mechanism.

Intermediary Administrative Agencies The Company has an auditing committee, which as an
intermediary administrative body assists the board of directors with any decision-making regarding its
duties. See section “Directors and Shareholders — Duties of the Auditing Committee.”

Restrictions There are no articles in the bylaws or agreements amongst shareholders that limit or

* restrict the Company’s administration or its shareholders in any manner whatsoever.

[Space left blank intentionally]
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2702 3102 4702

2 Volume 106,971,300 100,415,200 69,640,700
Maximum 8.49 6.64 6.63
Minimum 5.58 5.15 5.60
Slosure 5.96 5.59 6.10

5)
STOCK
MARKET

a)
Sharehold
er

Structure

Th
e
Company

has authorized 3,935,076,076 ordinary series-A-1 shares, which are registered, without par value and

include the right to vote. As of December 31, 2003, 3,639,338,499 shares were outstanding,

b) Performance of the Shares in the Stock Market

Below is an information table that shows the performance of the shares in the BMV during the last

two fiscal years.

[Space left blank intentionally]

Below is an information table that shows the quarterly performance of the shares in the BMV during the

last fiscal year.
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Below is an information table that shows the performance of the shares in the BMV during the last fiscal

[Space left blank intentionally]

years.
May-02 Jun-02 Jul-02 Aug-02 Sep-02 Oct-02 Nov-02 Dec-02
May-02 Jun-02 Jul02 Aug-02 Sep-02 Oct-02 Nov-02 Oec-02
= Volume 65,950,500 41,020,800 37,798,700 38,115,200 24,501,300 21,592,700 27,262,800 20,785,200
Maximum 8.49 7.43 6.64 6.50 6.35 6.50 6.63 £6.63
Minimumn 7.38 5.55 561 5.15 | 5.50 ] 580 5.80 6.05
= Closure 7.38 596 575 630 5.59 6.20 6.61 6.10
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6) PERSONS IN CHARGE

The following contains the corresponding caveat under the terms set forth in Article 33 of the
Provisions:

CEO, Director of Finance and Administration, and Chief Counsel

Pursuant to Article 33, Item b), of the “General Provisions Applicable to Securities Issuers and Other
Stock Market Participants,” published in the Federal Official Gazette on March 19, 2003:

“We, the undersigned, state under oath, with respect to the area corresponding to our
respective duties, we drafted the issuer’s information contained in this brochure, which, to
our faithful knowledge and understanding, reasonably reflects the issuer’s standing.-
Likewise, we state we have no knowledge of significant information’s having been
omitted or falsified in this brochure of this brochure’s possibly causing an error on the
part of investors.”

[Signature on the original document].
Date: MR.DANIEL HAJJ ABOUMRAD

CEO

[Signature on the on'ggnal docugnent]
MR. ARMANDO IBANEZ VAZQUEZ'
Director of Administration and Finance

\w)
I
&

! Because it is a holding company, the Company does not have employees or officers. Therefore, the officer singing this caveat
has a similar or equivalent title as referred to in the General Provisions Applicable to Share Issuers or other Participants of the
Stock Market, published in the Official Daily Gazette on March 19, 2003; provided that there is no such Chief Legal Counsel.
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External Auditor

Pursuant to Article 33, Item b), of the “General provisions applicable to securities issuers and
other stock market participants,” published in the Federal Official Gazette on March 19, 2003 and

“exclusively regarding information in the audited financial statements according to the aforementioned

Article, Section 1, Item a), Numeral 3 as well as any other financial information included in this annual
report whose source are the financial statements audited by our firm, Mancera, S.C., Part of Emst &
Young Global: '

1 hereby state under oath that the financial statements for América Telecom, S.A. de C.V. and its
subsidiaries to December 31, 2003 and 2002 contained in this annual report were audited according to the
generally accepted accounting principles. Furthermore, I hereby state that within the scope of the work
carried out to audit the aforementioned financial statements, I do not have knowledge of relevant financial
information that has been omitted or falsified in this annual report or that it contains information that could

‘induce the investors to err.

By: Signature on the original document

Name: Fernando Espinosa Lopez
Title: External Auditor

Date: June 30, 2004
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
with Report of Independent Auditors
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Stockholders of
América Telecom, S.A.de C.V.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of América Telecom, S.A. de
C.V. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements
of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and changes in financial position for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The
financial statements of America Central Tel, S.A. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2002, which
were originally prepared in conformity with international accounting standards and collectively
account for 9.8% of total assets and 8% of total operating revenues in 2002, were examined by
other independent auditors. Consequently, our opinion, insofar as it relates to the financial
information of such subsidiaries (prior to its conversion to accounting principles generally
accepted in Mexico), is based solely on the reports of the other independent auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Mexico.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts (including the conversion of the financial statements of
América Central Tel, S.A. and Telecom Américas, Ltd. to accounting principles generally
accepted in Mexico performed by one of the Company’s subsidiaries) and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits and the reports of other independent auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion. :

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other independent auditors, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of América Telecom, S.A. de C.V. and subsidiaries at December
31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations, changes in their stockholders’
equity and changes in their financial position for the years then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

Mancera, S.C.
A Member Practice of
Ernst & Young Global -

Fernando Espinosa

Mexico City
February 27, 2004
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REPORT OF STATUTORY AUDITOR

To the Stockholders of
América Telecom, S.A. de C. V.

In my capacity as statutory auditor and in compliance with Article 166 of the Mexican Corporations
Act and the bylaws of América Telecom, S.A. de C.V., | am pleased to submit my report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2003, presented to you by the

Board of Directors.

Among the auditing procedures applied, I personally (or in my absence the alternate statutory
auditor) attended the stockholders’, board of directors’ and audit committee meetings to which 1
was summoned. I reviewed, to the extent that | considered necessary in the circumstances, the
unqualified report of the Company’s independent auditors, dated February 27, 2004, issued as a
result of their audit of the financial statements made in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in Mexico. Such financial statements are the responsibility of the Company ’s
management.

in my opinion, based on my examination and the report of the other independent auditors
mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the accounting and reporting policies and criteria observed
by the Company in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are being
presented to the stockholders are adequate and sufficient and were applied on a basis consistent
with that of the prior year. Consequently, it is also my opinion that the above-mentioned
consolidated financial statements present accurately, fairly and sufficiently, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of América Telecom, S.A. de C.V. and subsidiaries at

December 31, 2003, and the consolidated results of their operations, changes in their

stockholders’ equity and changes in their financial position for the year then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

Alberto Tiburcio
Statutory Auditor

Mexico City
February 27, 2004
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AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

December 31

2003 2002
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and short-term investments Ps. 9,466,996 Ps. 9,581,309
Marketable securities (Note 3) 794,873 1,510,246
Accounts receivable, net (Note 4) 11,431,543 6,522,529
Related parties (Note 17) 647,805 609,456
Inventories, net (Note 5) 5,229,256 3,127,493
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
{(Notes 6 and 7) 2,182,518 946,614
Total current assets 29,752,991 22,297,647
Long-term and other investments (Note 10) 2,548,599 3,291,132
Plant, property and equipment, net (Note 7) 71,161,642 63,000,058
Prepaid expenses (Note 6) 2,696,527 -
Licenses, net (Note 8) 25,807,951 15,986,024
Trademarks (Note 9) 7,884,781 6,797,184
Goodwill, net (Note 10) 10,234,707 6,393,728
Other non-current assets (Note 7) ' 2,297,288 -
Total assets Ps. 152,384,486 Ps. 117,765,773
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term
debt (Note 14) Ps. 13,228,323 Ps. 13,115,948
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 13) 20,019,568 11,401,056
Taxes payable 2,983,266 1,926,976
Related parties (Note 17) 81,068 46,446
Deferred revenues 4,623,301 2,806,820
Total current liabilities 40,935,526 29,297,246
Long-term debt (Note 14) 46,143,042 39,878,410
Deferred taxes (Note 19) 3,592,801 2,130,073
Deferred credits 129,409 574
Total liabilities - 90,800,778 71,306,303
Stockholders’ equity (Note 18):
Capital stock 4,268,428 4,295,060
Stock premium 401,875 401,875
Retained earnings:
Prior years 6,747,578 6,566,286
Net income for the year 4,885,463 1,549,339
' _ 11,633,041 8,115,625
Other accumulated comprehensive loss items ( 721,847) ( 1,111,208)
Total majority stockholders’ equity 15,581,497 11,701,352
Minority interest 46,002,211 34,758,118
Total stockholders’ equity 61,583,708 46,459,470
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity Ps. 152,384,486 Ps. 117,765,773

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

- Consolidated Statements of Income

(Thousands of Mexican pesos, except earnings per share,
with purchasing power at December 31, 2003)

Operating revenues:

Services:
Usage charges
Monthly rent
Long-distance
Other services

Telephone equipment sales and other:
Sales of handsets and accessories

Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of sales and services

Cost of sales and services with related parties

Commercial, administrative and general

Commercial, administrative and general with
related parties

Depreciation and amortization (Notes 7 to 10)

Impairment in equity investment in subsidiaries and
affiliates (Note 10) o

Operating income

Comprehensive financing income (cost):
Interest income
Interest expense
Interest income (expense) with related parties
Exchange gain (loss), net
Monetary position gain, net
Other financing income, net

Other (expense) income, net
Income before income tax and employee profit sharing

Provisions for:
Income tax (Note 19)
Asset tax
Employee profit sharing

Income before equity interest in net loss of affiliates
Equity interest in net loss of affiliates
Net income

Distribution of net income:

Majority interest

Minority interest

Net income

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding (million)

Net majority interest earnings per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Year ended December 31

2003 2002

Ps. 48,849,771 Ps. 32,858,240
11,639,345 10,765,385
7,385,984 4,951,591
5,996,308 3,977,277
12,069,564 7,195,849
85,940,972 59,748,342
33,572,259 21,746,574
3,902,024 3,637,594
15,943,873 11,930,796
529,053 657,215
14,140,501 8,624,161

- 40,797

68,087,710 46,637,137
17,853,262 13,111,205
2,587,830 1,462,554

( 4,153559)  ( 2,791,361)
4,706 (  57,215)

959,685  ( 1,667,246)
2,645,433 3,128,531
(189,395  ( 1256,163)
1,854,700  ( 1,180,900)
(1,053,351 286,006
18,654,611 12,216,311
3,224,438 3,207,215
10,443 8,449

247,938 202,324
3,482,819 3417988
15,171,792 8,798,323

( 129582) ( 4,170,156)
Ps. 15042210 Ps. 4,628,167
Ps.  4,885463Ps. 1,549,339
10,156,747 3,078,828

Ps. 15,042,210 Ps. 4,628,167
3,690 3,752

Ps. 1.324  Ps. 0.413
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AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Financial Position

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power

at December 31, 2003)

Operating activities:

Net income

Add (deduct) items not requiring the use of
resources:
Depreciation
Amortization
Amortization of loss on sale and lease back
Amortization of prepaid expenses
Deferred income tax
Impairment in equity investment in affiliates
Equity interest in net loss of affiliates

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Inventories
Other non-current assets

Increase (decrease) in:
‘Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Related parties
Deferred revenues and credits
Taxes payable
Deferred taxes

Resources provided by operating activities

Financing activities:
New loans
Repayment of loans
Decrease in capital stock and retained earnings due
to purchase of Company’s own shares
Cash dividends paid
Resources provided by financing activities

Investing activities:
Investment in plant, property and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries and affiliated companies
Initial cash from companies acquired
Investment in licenses
Investment in trademarks
Investment in marketable securities

Resources used in investing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and short-term
investments

Cash and short-term investments at beginning of
year

Cash and short-term investments at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Year ended December 31

2003 2002
Ps. 15,042,210 Ps. 4,628,167
9,726,756 6,426,161
4,413,745 2,198,000
134,042 i
75.428 ]
27,147 389,072)
. 40,797
129,582 4,170.156

( 4,892,157) 1,690,500)
( 4,083,330) 255.528)
( 2,107,763) 619,915
( 2,484,790) ;
8,618,512 903,093

( 3,727) 950,392
1,945,317 1,102,973
1,056,290 623.794
1,435,581 :
39,032,343 19,328,343
28,763,194 44,145,118

( 22,386,187) 19,980,390)
(  1,905,290) 2,307,318)
( 506597) 415.349)
3,965,120 21,442,061

( 22,353512) 25,487,845)
( 2,247,008) 376,110
. 1,562,042

( 7,419855) 13,770,112)
(1,807,274 6,798,184)
715373 10,150,447

( 33,112.276) 33.966.542)
( 114313) 6,802,867
9,581,309 2,778,442
Ps. 9,466,996 Ps. 9.581.300
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AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

1. Description of the Business

a) Spin-off from Carso Global Telecom, S.A. de C.V.

América Telecom, S.A. de C.V. (hereinafter the Company or América Telecom) was
incorporated on November 30, 2001, as a result of the spin-off from Carso Global
Telecom, S.A. de C.V. (hereinafter Telecom).

The principal assets of América Telecom at December 31, 2003 and 2002 consist of the
equity investment in América Mévil, S.A. de C.V. and subsidiaries (América Movil), as
well as in another company in the telecommunications sector.

Teléfonos de México, S.A. de C.V. (Telmex), a subsidiary of Telecom and Radiomévil Dipsa,
S.A. de C.V. (Telcel), a significant subsidiary of América Telecom, have extensive operational
relationships, including, among others, the interconnection of their respective networks and the
common use of facilities, particularly with respect to the offices and installation they share on
premises owned by Telmex. These operational relationships are subject to various agreements,
which for the most part, were in place prior to the spin-off. Most of these agreements are subject
to specific regulations governing all telecommunications operations. The terms of these
agreements are similar to those under which each of these subsidiaries does business with
unaffiliated parties.

The Company has no employees of its own; all administrative services are provided by an
affiliate. .

b) Operations of the Company

Ameérica Telecom is the leading provider of wireless communications services in Mexico through
its subsidiary Radiomévil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V., which operates under the tradename “Telcel”.
América Telecom has the most extensive nationwide cellular telecommunications coverage in
Mexico.

Additionally, América Telecom has equity investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies -
in the telecommunications sector in Guatemala, Ecuador, Brazil, Argentina, Colombia,
Nicaragua, El Salvador and the United States.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the America Telecom’s equity interest.in its principal
subsidiaries and affiliated companies is as follows:
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AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

1. Description of the Business (continued)

b) Operations of the Company (continued)

Equity Interest at
December3l,
Name of company Location 2003 2002
Subsidiaries: (1)

América Mévil, S.A. de C.V. Mexico 36.2% 32.8%
Sercotel, S.A.de C.V. . Mexico 100.0 100.0
Radiomadvil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V, Mexico 100.0 100.0
TracFone Wireless, Inc. USA 98.2 97.8
Telecom Américas, Ltd: (2) Bermuda 97.5 96.5

ATL-Algar Telecom Leste, S.A. Brazil 97.5 96.5
Americel, S.A. . Brazil 96.0 78.1
Telet, S.A. Brazil 96.5 78.6
Tess, S.A. Brazil 97.5 96.5
BSE, S.A. Brazil 97.5
BCP, S.A. Brazil 97.5
América Central Tel, S.A. (ACT): (3) Guatemala 100.0 96.9
Telecomunicaciones de Guatemala, S.A. Guatemala 98.8 96.0
Newcotel, S.A. Guatemala 98.8 96.0
Servicios de Comunicaciones Personales
Inalambricas, S.A., (Sercom) Guatemala 98.8 96.0
Telglob, S.A. Guatemala 98.8 96.0
Telefonia Publica de Guatemala, S.A. Guatemala 98.8 96.0
(Publitel) ]
Estel, LLC Delaware 100.0
Compaiiia de Telecomunicaciones de El
Salvador, S.A. de C.V. (CTE) (4) El 51.0
CTE Telecom Personal , S.A. de C.V. El 51.0
~ (Personal) Salvador
Cablenet, S.A. de C.V. (Cablenet) El 51.0
Telecomoda, S.A. de C.V. (Telecomoda) El 51.0
Publicom, S.A. de C.V. (Publicom) El 51.0
Comunicacién Celular, S.A. (Comcel): (5) Colombia 95.67 95.7
Occidente y Caribe Celular, S.A. (Occel) Colombia 93.4 95.2
Celcaribe, S.A. Colombia 94.0
Consorcio Ecuatoriano de Telecomunicaciones,
S.A. (Conecel) Ecuador 100.0 80.6
Techtel-LMDS Comunicaciones Interactivas, Argentina 60.0 60.0

Corporativo Empresarial de Comunicaciones,
S.A.deC.V. Mexico 99.9%

99.9%
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1. Description of the Business (continued)

b) Operations of the Company (continued)

Equity interest at
‘ December31,
Name of company Location 2003 2002
CTI Holdings, S.A. (6) Argentin 92.0
CTI Compaiiia de Teléfonos del Interior,
S.A. (CTI Interior) Argentina 92.0
CTIPCS, S.A. (CTIPCS) Argentin 92.0
a
Affiliates: (1)
Organizacion Recuperadora de Cartera, S.A. de :
~ C.V. Mexico 45.0 45.0
US Commercial Corporation, S.A. de C.V. Mexico 29.7
Génesis Telecom., S.A. - Venezuela 25.0 25.0
Iberbanda, S.A. Spain 17.8 18.6
Network Access Solutions ’ USA 2.0 2.0
CompUSA, Inc. USA 49.0

(1) See Note 10 for a description of activity in subsidiaries and affiliates.

(2) The name “Telecom Américas” as used hereinafter will refer collectively to the
companies ATL, Americel, Telet, Tess, BCP and BSE. ”

(3) Includes Nicaragua operations.

(4) The name “CTE” as used hereinafter will refer collectively to the companies CTE,
Personal, Cablenet, Telecomoda and Multicom.

(5) The name “Comcel” as used hereinafter will refer collectively to the companies Comcel,
Occel and Celcaribe.

(6) The name “CTI” as used hereinafter will refer collectively to the companies CTI
Holdings, CTI Interior and CTI PCS.

América Telecom through its subsidiaries has licenses to install, operate and manage mobile
telecommunications services in Mexico, Guatemala, Nicaragua, El Salvador, Ecuador, Colombia,
Argentina and Brazil. Such licenses will expire on various dates between the years 2008 and
2018.

Except as mentioned in the following paragraphs, the licenses granted to the Company do not
require royalty payments to the respective governments.

As payment for the 800-megahertz (Band B) licenses awarded in Mexico, the Mexican Federal
government receives a percentage of Telcel’s gross annual revenues ranging from 5% to 10%.

Licenses awarded in Brazil, Colombia, Argentina and Ecuador generate the payment of
contributions to their respective governments, based in some cases on revenues and in other cases
on the number of channels in operation. 3.



)

{

{
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at December 31, 2003)

1. Description of the Business (continued)

b) Operations of the Company (continued)

- Telgua and CTE provide fixed-line telephone services.

TracFone Wireless, Inc. (TracFone) resells cellular airtime on a prepaid basis through retailers to
customers who use telephones equipped with TracFone software. TracFone does not own a
cellular infrastructure but purchases airtime from carriers throughout the United States.
TracFone’s revenues are also derived from the sale of cellular telephones and accessories.
TracFone provides services throughout the United States, Puerto Rico and the Virgin Islands.

In December 2002, the Mexican Federal government awarded Telcel a license to install, operate
and manage basic radiotelephone domestic and international long-distance and data transmission
services in Mexico. The term of the license is for 15 years, which may be extended at the
discretion of the Mexican government.

In February 2003, Telecom Américas switched its original Band B cellular concessions, from a
mobile cellular communications system (SMC) to personal communication services (PCS). This
change will allow these companies to exercise an option to extend the life of the licenses for an
additional 15 years, upon payment of a certain fee.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The most important accounting policies and practices followed in the preparation of these
financial statements are described below: '

a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of América Telecom and those of the
subsidiaries mentioned in Note 1. All of the companies operate in the telecommunications sector
or provide services to companies operating in such sector.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements.

Minority interest relates to the interest of América Movil and its foreign subsidiaries. -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

2, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
b} Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenues include: usage charges, monthly rent, incoming interconnection, long-
distance charges, value added services and proceeds from sales of handsets and accessories and
charges for other services.

Revenues are generally recognized at the time services are provided. Those services are either
under prepaid (calling cards) or under contract (post-paid) plans. In both cases, airtime revenues
are recognized as a customer uses the airtime or when the card expires in the case of prepayments
for unused airtime. ‘

Except for Mexico and Colombia, monthly basic rent under non-prepaid plans is billed based on
the rates approved by the regulatory authorities in the respective countries. For Mexico and
Colombia, basic monthly rent is billed one month in advance and recognized as revenues in the
month the service is provided.

Revenues from interconnections, which consist of calls of other carriers that enter America
Movil’s own cellular network (incoming interconnection), are recognized at the time the service
is provided. Such services are billed at rates previously agreed with the other carriers, which are
regulated by the respective authorities.

Sales of handsets and accessories, which for the most part are made to authorized distributors, are
recorded as revenue upon shipment, provided the Company is under no obligation to hold or store
merchandise or for possible damages in handling merchandise. The cost of telephone equipment -
delivered to customers under non-prepaid plans is charged to income at the time the respective
agreements are signed.

Telgua and CTE’s revenues from fixed-line telephone installation fees are recognized over the
estimated useful life of subscribers.

¢) Cost of cellular telephone equipment

Costs related to cellular telephone equipment are charged to operations at the time the
telephones are delivered to the distributor or customer.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
d) Interconnection costs

Interconnection costs represent the costs of calls of other carriers that enter the
Company's own cellular network, the costs of link-ups between fixed and cellular
networks, long distance charges and rent paid for use of infrastructure (links and ports),
all of which are recognized as costs at the time the service is received.

e) Commissions paid to distributors

Commissions paid to distributors for activations are charged to income at the time of activation of
new customers, which corresponds to the time the distributor is paid. Commissions for loyalty
and activation volumes are accrued based on factors determined by the Company.

f) Recognition of the effects of inflation

The Company recognizes the effects of inflation on financial information as required by Mexican
accounting Bulletin B-10, Accounting Recognition of the Effects of Inflation on Financial
Information, issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants (MIPA).

Consequently, the amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements and in these notes
are expressed in thousands of constant Mexican pesos as of December 31, 2003. The December
31, 2003 restatement factor applied to the financial statements at December 31, 2002 was 3.98%,
which represents the annual rate of inflation for 2003 based on the Mexican National Consumer
Price Index (NCPI) published by Banco de México (the central bank). Accordingly, the financial
statements have been restated as follows:

Telephone plant, property and equipment and construction in progress were restated as described
in Note 7. Depreciation is computed on the restated value of telephone plant and equipment using
the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets, starting the
month after the assets are put into use.

Annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Telephone plant 10% to 33%

System performance monitoring equipment 33%
included in telephone plant -

Buildings 3%

Other assets 10% to 25%
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
f) Recognition of the effects of inflation (continued)

In Mexico, inventories are restated based on factors derived from the NCPI. Due to the high
turnover, it is estimated that inventories are presented at their replacement cost, which is not in
excess of market value. Foreign subsidiaries record their inventories at replacement value, not in
excess of market. Cost of sales represents estimated replacement cost at the time inventories were
sold, restated in constant pesos at year-end.

Capital stock, retained earnings and other non-monetary assets were restated based on the NCPI.

Other accumulated comprehensive loss items include the deficit from restatement of
stockholders’ equity, which consists of the accumulated monetary position gain determined at the
time the provisions of Bulletin B-10 were first applied, which at December 31, 2003 aggregates
Ps. 16,471, the result from holding non-monetary assets, which represents the net difference
between restatement by the specific indexation method (see Note 7) and restatement based on the
NCPI, which at December 31, 2003 aggregates Ps. 5,731,002, deferred taxes allocated to equity
for the result from holdmg non-monetary assets and the effect of translation of foreign
subsidiaries.

The net monetary position gain represents the effect of inflation on monetary assets and
liabilities. The related amounts are included in the statements of income under the caption
Comprehensive financing income (cost):

Mexican accounting Bulletin B-12, Statement of Changes in Financial Position, issued by the
MIPA specifies the appropriate presentation of the statement of changes in financial position
based on financial statements restated in constant Mexican pesos in accordance with Bulletin B-
10. Bulletin B-12 identifies the sources and applications of resources representing differences
between beginning and ending financial statement balances in constant Mexican pesos. In

. accordance with this Bulletin, monetary and foreign exchange gains and losses are not treated as

non-cash items in the determination of resources provided by operating activities.
g) Basis of translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates, located in Guatemala, Nicaragua,
El Salvador, Ecuador, Colombia, Argentina, Brazil and the United States, which in the aggregate
account for approximately 39% and 29% of the Company’s total operating revenues in 2003 and
2002 and approximately 65% and 58% of the Company’s total assets in 2003 and 2002,
respectively, are translated into Mexican pesos in conformity with Mexican accounting Bulletin
B-15, Transactions in Foreign Currency and Translation of Financial Statements of Foreign
Operations, issued by the MIPA, as follows:
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
g) Basis of translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries (continued)

¢ The financial statements as reported by the subsidiaries abroad were adjusted by management
in Mexico to conform to Mexican GAAP, which includes, among other, the recognition of the
effects of inflation as required by Mexican accounting Bulletin B-10, using restatement factors
of each country.

e The financial information already restated to include inflationary effects, is translated to
Mexican pesos as follows: 1) all balance sheet amounts, except for stockholders’ equity
accounts, were translated at the prevailing exchange rate at year-end; 2) stockholders’ equity
accounts were translated at the prevailing exchange rate at the time capital contributions were
made and earnings were generated, 3) statement of income accounts were translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

e Exchange rate differences and the monetary effect derived from intercompany monetary
items were not eliminated in the consolidated statements of income.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, translation income (loss) aggregated Ps. 6,874,951 and Ps.
{14,797,552), respectively, and is included in stockholders’ equity under the caption Effect of
translation of foreign entities in Other accumulated comprehensive loss items.

The Company’s financial statements at December 31, 2002 were restated to constant Mexican
pesos with purchasing power at December 31, 2003 based on the annual rate of inflation in
Mexico. The effects of inflation and variances in exchange rates were not material.

h) Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities

Cash and cash equivalents. are represented principally by bank deposits and highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less; and marketable securities are represented by
equity securities and foreign government bonds held for trading purposes. Both are stated at
market value.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
i) Allowance for doubtful accounts

Doubtful accounts are provided for based on the operating conditions of each subsidiary.
Accounts are provided for when they are between 90 and 120 days old.

j) Licenses

Licenses to operate wireless telecommunications networks are amortized using the straight-line
method over the term of the license. The licenses to operate wireless mobile services (PCS) in
Mexico, Guatemala, Ecuador, Colombia, Brazil and Argentina are being amortized over periods
ranging from 15 to 20 years. (See Note 8).

k) Trademarks

Trademarks are recorded at their market values at the date acquired, as determined by an
independent expert using the discounted cash-flow techniques and are amortized using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Trademarks relate principally to
subsidiaries over which the Company acquired control in 2003 and 2002. (See Note 9).

1) Equity investments in affiliates

The investment in shares of affiliates in which the Company has significant influence and holds
an equity interest of 10% or more is accounted for using the equity method. This accounting
method consists basically of recognizing the investor’s equity interest in the results of operations
and the stockholders equity of the investees at the time such results are determined. (See Note
10).

" m) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of subsidiaries
and affiliates acquired and is amortized in a period of five to ten years. (See Note 10).

n) Exchange differences

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the prevailing exchange rate at the time of the
related transactions. Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated at the
prevailing exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Exchange rate differences are charged or
credited directly to income of the year.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
o) Employee benefits obligations

The cost of seniority premiums for the applicable subsidiaries is recognized periodically during
the years of service of employees, based on actuarial computations made by independent
actuaries, using the projected unit-credit method and financial hypotheses net of inflation, as
required by Mexican accounting Bulletin D-3, Labor Obligations, issued by the MIPA (See Note
12). Termination payments are charged to income in the year in which the decision to dismiss an
employee is made.

p) Income tax and employee profit sharing

Bulletin D4, Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employee Profit Sharing, issued
by the MIPA, requires that deferred taxes be determined on virtually all temporary
differences in balance sheet accounts for financial and tax reporting purposes, using the
enacted income tax rate at the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the provision for
income tax includes both the current year tax and the deferred portion. See Note 19 for
additional information.

In conformity with Bulletin D-4, employee profit sharing is recognized only on temporary
differences that are considered to be non-recurring and that have a known turnaround time.

q) Advertising

All advertising costs are expensed as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
advertising expenses amounted to approximately Ps. 2,627,498 and Ps.1,544,918, respectively.

r) Comprehensive income

In conformity with Bulletin B-4, Comprehensive Income, issued by the MIPA, comprehensive
income (loss) in Ameérica Telecom consists of current year net income or loss shown in the
statement of income plus the current year result from holding non-monetary assets, the effects of
translation of foreign subsidiaries, the minority interest and the effects of deferred taxes applied
directly to stockholders’ equity.

s) Earnings per share

The Company determined earnings per share by dividing current year majority net income by the
average weighted number of shares issued and outstanding during the period, as specified in
Mexican accounting Bulletin B-14, Earnings per share, issued by the MIPA. To determine the
average weighted number of shares issued and outstanding in 2003 and 2002, the number of
repurchased treasury shares has been excluded from the computatlon

10.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

t) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and in the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

u) Concentration of risk

The Company invests a portion of its surplus cash in deposits in financial institutions with strong
credit ratings and has established guidelines relating to diversification and maturities to maintain
safety and liquidity. The Company has not experienced any important losses in its marketable
securities. América Telecom does not believe it has significant concentrations of credit risks in its
accounts receivable, because the Company’s customer base is geographically diverse, thus
spreading the trade credit risk.

The Company operates internationally; consequently, it is exposed to market risks for
fluctuations in exchange rates and other events.

Approximately 34% and 56% of the Company’s aggregate interconnection expenditures in its
cellular network for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, represented
services rendered from one supplier; approximately 75% and 75% of the aggregate cost of
telephone equipment for such periods represented purchases from three suppliers; and
approximately 65% and 90% of telephone plant purchases were made from two suppliers.

If any of these suppliers fails to provide the Company with services or equipment on a timely and
cost-effective basis, the Company’s business and results of operations could be adversely
affected. '

v) Financial instruments

The Company follows the requirements of Bulletin C-2, Financial Instruments, issued by the
MIPA, which establishes the rules to be observed by issuers of and investors in financial
instruments when valuing, presenting and disclosing these instruments in their financial
information. Bulletin C-2 requires that financial instruments (derivatives) be recognized as assets
and liabilities and that the determined gains and losses on such instruments be credited and
charged, respectively, to income.

11
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
v) Financial instruments (continued)

With the aim of reducing its financing costs, the Company uses derivatives such as interest-rate
swaps and cross-currency swaps. Those instruments have been recorded at their market values,
and changes in the market values are charged or credited to operations. (See Note 11).

w) New accounting pronouncements

Intangible Assets.- Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the requirements of
Mexican accounting Bulletin C-8, Intangible Assets, issued by the MIPA, which, among other
things, specifies that project development costs are to be capitalized if they meet certain
established requirements with respect to their recognition as assets. Pre-operating costs are to be
recognized as an expense of the period and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
to be amortized, but instead evaluated annually for impairment. Unamortized balances of pre-
operating expenses capitalized through December 31, 2003 in terms of the previous Bulletin C-8
are to be amortized as specified in such bulletin. The adoption of these new rules did not have
any effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Liabilities, Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities and Commitments.- Effective January
1, 2003, the Company also adopted the requirements of Mexican accounting Bulletin C-9,
Liabilities, Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities and Commitments, issued by the MIPA
which is more precise in defining provisions, accrued liabilities and contingent liabilities, and it
contains new requirements with respect to the recording of provisions, the use of the present
value and the early retirement of debt securities or their replacement by a new issue. Bulletin C-9
also specifies the rules for the valuation, presentation and disclosure of liabilities and provisions.

As a result of the application of Bulletin C-9, the Company recorded a provision at present value
of Ps. 155,830 for costs related to retirement of assets. The amount of such provision was
estimated using prevailing prices in each country in which the Company operates. The initial
cumulative effect of the application of this new accounting pronouncement represented an
adjustment of Ps. 112,074 to the balance of retained earnings at the beginning of the year.

Rates used to discount the provision to present value were computed by each subsidiary

considering, among other factors, the economic situation of their respective countries (country
risk), cost of debt and free rate risk.

12.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
w) New accounting pronouncements (continued)

Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.- In March 2003, the MIPA
issued Bulletin C-15, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, the
observance of which is compulsory for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2004.
Bulletin C-15 defines the rules for computing and recognizing losses derived from the
impairment of assets and their reversal, as well as for presenting and disclosing both assets whose
values have been impaired and discontinued operations. The Company adopted early this new
Bulletin in 2003. Adoption of this guideline did not affect the Company’s financial position or
results of operations.

Segment Financial Information.- The requirements of Mexican accounting Bulletin
B-5, Segment Financial Information, issued by the MIPA, went into effect on March 14, 2003.
Bulletin B-5 specifies that analytical financial information is to be disclosed by operating
segment, as well as by product and service, by geographical area and similar customer groups
(See Note 21).

X) Reclassifications

Some amounts shown in the 2002 financial statements as originally issued have been reclassified
for uniformity of presentation with 2003.

13.
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3. Marketable Securities

A summary of marketable securities as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 ‘ 2002
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Government bonds Ps. 355,439Ps. 371,221Ps. 1,214,318Ps. 1,297,176
Equity securities 469,674 423,652 481,746 213,070

Ps. 825,113Ps. 794,873Ps.  1,696,064Ps. 1,510,246

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, net unrealized losses on marketable securities were
Ps. 30,240 and Ps. 185,801, respectively. Net realized gains were Ps. 487,244 and
Ps. 299,771 in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following:

2003 2002
Subscribers Ps. 8,746,157 Ps. 3,114,715
Cellular operators for interconnections 949,935 407,067
Retailers 1,571,312 2,602,319
Recoverable taxes 1,195,570 360,614
Other 848,984 478,492

13,311,958 6,963,207
Less: Allowance for bad debts ( 1,880.,415) (  440,678)
Total Ps. 11,431,543 Ps. 6,522,529

Activity in the allowance for bad debts for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was as
follows:

2003 2002
Opening balance as of December 31 Ps. ( 440,678)Ps. ( 156,805)
Increases charged to costs and expenses ( 855,926) ( 668,787)
Effect of acquired companies ( 1,252,315) .
Less: charges to allowance 668,504 384,914

Ending balance Ps. ( 1,880,415)Ps. ( 440,678)

14.
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5. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

2003 2002
Cellular telephones and accessories Ps. 5,427,107 Ps. 3,160,808
Less:
Reserve for obsolete inventories ' ( 197,851 (33315
Total Ps. 5,229,256 Ps. 3,127,493

6. Prepaid Expenses

In September 2003, Telcel entered into an agreement with Operadora Unefon, S.A. de

C.V., whereby the latter agrees to provide Telcel exclusive and uninterrupted access to
a nationwide wireless network using the 1850-1865 MHz / 1930-1945 MHz (Band “A™)
radio spectrum, for a 16-year period. Under the terms of the agreement, Telcel paid in
advance a total consideration of Ps. 2,925 million (US$ 267.7 million) that represented

the present value of the amounts due over the term of the contract and which is being

amortized using the straight-line method over a 16-year period.

Current portion of prepaid expenses amounts to Ps. 184,797 and long-term portion of

prepaid expense amounts to Ps. 2,696,527.

7. Plant, Property and Equipment

a) Plant, property and equipment consist of the following:

2003 2002
Telephone plant and equipment Ps. ‘83,725,347 Ps. 67,853,243
Land and buildings 7,050,009 7,031,225
Other assets 14,832,107 12,018,185
. : 105,607,463 86,902,653
- Less: Accumulated depreciation (_ 40,909,625) ( 28,924,007)
Net 64,697,838 57,978,646 .
Construction in progress and advances to
equipment suppliers and contractors 5,557,136 4,012,202
Inventories for use in construction of the ,
telephone plant 906,668 1,009,210
Total Ps. 71,161,642 Ps. 63,000,058
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7. Plant, Property and Equipment (continued)

b) Included in plant, property and equipment are the following assets held under capital leases:

2003 2002
Assets under capital leases Ps. 1,022,071 Ps. 45,082
Less: Accumulated depreciation (_ 60,853) ( 44,033)
Ps. 961,218 Ps. 1,049

c) In 2003, Telcel entered into a Ps. 950 million sale and lease back agreement of a
portion of its telephone plant with an unrelated party. Such transaction gave rise to a
loss of approximately Ps. 2,784 million, which in conformity with Mexican accounting
Bulletin D-5, Leases, issued by the MIPA, was deferred and is being amortized based on
the remaining useful life of the asset. The Company recorded the telephone plant under
the sale and leaseback agreement as a capital lease and the corresponding liabilities
are represented by minimum future payments (see Note 16). Capitalizable assets under
lease are depreciated over the life of the agreement. Derived from the transaction
mentioned above, the Company also recorded a deferred tax liability of approximately
Ps. 889 million.

Current portion of the deferred charge amounts to Ps. 397,250 and long-term portion of the
deferred charge amounts to Ps. 2,297,288.

d) Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was
Ps. 9,726,756 and Ps. 6,426,161, respectively.

e) Through December 31, 1996, items comprising the telephone plant in Mexico were restated
based on the acquisition date and cost, applying the factor derived from the specific indexes
determined by the Company and validated by an independent appraiser registered with the
Mexican National Banking and Securities Commission (NBSC).

Effective January 1, 1997, Bulletin B-10 eliminated the use of appraisals to present telephone
plant, property and equipment in the financial statements. At December 31, 2003 and 2002 this

-caption was restated as follows:

. The December 31, 1996 appraisal value of the imported telephone plant, as
well as the cost of subsequent additions to such plant, were restated based on
the rate of inflation in the respective country of origin and the prevailing
exchange rate at the balance sheet date {specific indexation factors).

* The appraised value of land, buildings and other fixed assets of domestic
origin at December 31, 1996, and the cost of subsequent additions to such

assets were restated based on the NCPI.
' ' 16.
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7. Plant, Property and Equipment (continued)

At December 31, 2003, approximately 89% of the value of the telephone plant, property and
- equipment (74% in 2002) has been restated using specific indexation factors.

f) Following are the plant, property and equipment amounts at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
restated on the basis of the 2003 NCPI (starting with the appraised values at December 31, 1996),
to meet NBSC disclosure requirements with respect to the restatement of fixed assets based on
specific indexation factors:

2003 2002
Telephone plant and equipment Ps. 93,511,069 Ps. 69,705,564
Land and buildings 6,242,065 6,262,127
Other assets 14,785,466 12,046,444
114,538,600 88,014,135
Less: Accumulated depreciation ( 44,109,760) ( 28,890,146)
Net 70,428,840 59,123,989
Construction in progress and advances to
equipment suppliers and contractors 5,557,136 4,012,201
Inventories for use in construction of the
telephone plant ' 906,668 1,009,210
Total Ps. 76,892,644 Ps. 64,145,400

8. Licenses

An analysis of licenses at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002
Investment:
Opening balance as of December 31 Ps.  16,488,010ps. 2,719,483
Effect of acquired companies 8,142,931 13,770,113
Effect of translation of foreign entities 5,204,148 -
Cancellation ( 1,479,999) -
Other increases 758,460 -
29,113,550 16,489,596
Amortization:
Opening balance as of December 31 ( 503,572) : -
Amortization of the year (  2,333,703) ¢ 503,572)
Effect of translation of foreign entities ( 468,324) -
‘ (_3305599) ¢ 503,572)
Ending balance, net Ps. 25,807,951Ps. 15,986,024

17.
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9. Trademarks
As of December 31, 2002 and 2003 trademarks are as follows:

2003 2002
Investment:
Opening balance as of December 31 Ps. 6,797,184
Effect of acquired companies 1,807,274 Ps. 6,797,184
8,604,458 6,797,184

Amortization:
Opening balance as of December 31 '
Amortization of the year ( 719,677) -

‘ (  719,677) -
Ending balance, net Ps. 7,884,781ps. 6,797,184

10. Investments

An analysis of this caption at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002
Investments in:
Affiliates Ps. Ps. 2,910,904
2,192,355
Other investments 356,244 380,228
Total Ps. Ps. 3,291,132
2,548,599

L Investments in affiliates

An analysis of equity investments in affiliated companies at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and a

brief description of major acquisitions is as follows:

2003 2002
CompUSA, Inc. Ps. - Ps. 2,
Organizacioén Recuperadora de Cartera, S.A. de C.V. 425, 476,
US Comercial Corporation, S.A. de C.V. 1, ‘ -
Total Ps. 2, Ps. 2,
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10. Investments (continued)

I. Investments in affiliates (continued)
CompUSA

In December 2003, the Company exchanged its 49% equity interest in CompUSA, Inc. for a
29.69% equity interest in U.S. Commercial Corp, S.A. de C.V. (“USCO”). The Company
received an additional Ps. 180 million on the exchange. ,

At the time of the sale, the affiliate’s book value was Ps. 2,226,016, and based on the amounts of
the transaction described in the preceding paragraph, a loss of Ps. 279,016, was included as part
of the caption other Income (loss), net.

América Movil’s equity interest in the net loss of CompUSA at December 31, 2002 includes an
impairment on its goodwill of Ps. 2,137,216, which is included under the caption Equity interest
in net loss of affiliates in the statement of income.

Subsequent event

In January 2004, América Mo6vil changed the classification of its investment in USCO from
equity investee to available for sale.

SBC Intemational Puerto Rico

In January 2002, América Mévil sold its 50% equity interest in SBC International Puerto Rico,
Inc. (SBCI Puerto Rico) to SBCI in the amount of US$ 106 million in cash and its 11.9% equity
interest in Telecom Américas, which was owned by SBCI at that time. A gain of Ps. 11,218 was
recognized as a result of this transaction. Such gain is included under the caption Other income
(loss), net in the statement of income.

Empresas Cablevision

In April 2002, América Movil sold its 49% equity interest in Empresas Cablevisién, S.A. de C.V.
and subsidiaries in a public offering through the Mexican Stock Exchange for

- Ps. 2,065,974, realizing a gain of Ps. 1,334,070 on the sale, which is included under the caption

Other income (loss), net in the statement of income.
Other

At December 31, 2002, América M6vil charged Ps. 40,793 to results of operations for the
impairment in the value of investments in Eurotec, S.A.
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10. Investments (continued)

II. Investments in subsidiaries

a) An analysis of this caption at December 31, 2003 and 2002, is as follows:
2003 2002

% equity % equity
interest Amount interest Amount
Issuer

América Mévil, S.A. de C.V. 35.65% Ps. 22,858,185 32.29% Ps. 16,120,484
Corporativo Empresarial de
Comunicaciones, S.A. de

CV.(1) 100.00% 360,012  100.00% 276,723
Ps. 23,218,197 Ps. 16,397,207

(1) At December 31, 2003 and 2002, this subsidiary holds 0.55% and 0.54%, respectively, of the
shares of América Mévil.

The Company’s percentage equity interest in América Mévil was determined considering the
total number of this subsidiary’s shares issued and outstanding, irrespective of the series of
shares.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the number of shares that the Company holds in América Mévil
and the corresponding percentage equity interest in relation to the total number of outstanding
shares of each series is as follows:

Number of shares % equity interest
Series 2003 2002 2003 2002
AA 2,500,000 2,500,000 68.55 68.55
A 48,139 48,139 17.26 16.49
L 2,101,861 1,692,802 23.58 18.85

In 2003 and 2002, the Company purchased 409 and 68 million América Movil Series “’L” shares,

respectively, at a total cost of Ps. 4,153,051 and Ps. 492,617, respectively. The book value of
such shares was Ps. 1,813,302 and Ps. 346,298, respectively. Such purchase gave rise to

additional goodwill of Ps. 2,339,749 and Ps.. 146,319, respectively, which is being amortized in a
period of 5 years.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company has obtained several loans providing in guaranty
47.6 and 19.6 million América Movil ADR’s (American Depository Receipts), respectively, which
represent 952 and 392 million shares at those dates (see Note 14). Such shares will be released
at the maturity date of such loans.

20.



O

)

)

AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

10. Investments (continued)

II. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Subsequent event

During the period from January 1 to February 27, 2004, the Company purchased 52,243,200
América Movil shares in the amount of Ps. 1,003,720. Such purchase gave rise to additional
gooawill of Ps. 725,854. As a result of such purchase, the Company increased its equity interest
in such subsidiary by 0.41%. The subsidiary repurchased 84,505,200 of its own shares, which
gave rise to an increase in the Company’s equity interest in such subsidiary of 0.25%.

Acquisitions made through América Mévil in 2003

As explained in detail in subsequent paragraphs, during 2003 and 2002, América Mévil acquired
several subsidiaries. The results of operations of the acquired entities were incorporated into
América Moévil financial statements in the month following the acquisition date.

All of América Mdvil acquisitions were recorded using the purchase method. The purchase
prices of net acquired assets were allocated based on their estimated market values, as follows:

Historical amounts at acquisition date in thousands of U.S. Dollars

Ceicaribe BSE CTE CTI BCP Total

Current assets US$ 13,795 US$ 36,550 US$ 168,503 US$ 110469 US$114,829 US$ 444,146
Fixed assels 17,696 112,714 409,011 93,331 152,713 785,465
Licenses 82,205 101,602 23,640 55271 494,417 757,135
Trademarks 93,666 90,336 184,002
Other assets 25,055 2,859 5,792 33,706
Less:
Current liabilities 13,408 38,980 173,420 71,186 106,947 403,941
Long-term debt ' 2,000 51,250 40,298 17,435 110,983
Fair value of net assets

. us US$209,886 US$ 495205 US$ 240,782 US$643,369 US$ 1,689,530

acquired 100,288

Y equity interest acquired 98.08% 97.55% 51.00% 92.00% 100.00%
Net assets acquired 98,362 204,744 252,085 221,519 643,369 1,420,049
Amount paid 98,362 204,744 417,000 221,519 643,369 1,584,994
Goodwill generated Us$ - us$ - US$ 164,945 USS - uss - US$ 164,945
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10. Investments (continued)
I1. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Through appraisals made by independent experts, América Movil determined the fair value of
trademarks. The Company made estimations in order to determine the fair value of licenses, based
on market values of licenses with similar characteristics.

a) CELCARIBE (Colombia)

In February 2003, América Mévil acquired from Millicom International Cellular a 98.08% equity
interest in Celcaribe for approximately US$ 98.3 million. As a result, América Moévil has
expanded its capacity to provide services throughout Colombia. Celcaribe provides in addition to
cellular services, data transmission, internet and short-message services.

b) BSE (Brazil)

In May 2003, América Mévil, through Telecom Américas, acquired from BellSouth Corporation
and Verbier an 89.45% equity interest in BSE, S.A., for approximately US$180 million. Through
additional capitalization in May 2003 of approximately US$25 million, the Company increased
its equity ‘interest in BSE to 97.55%. BSE provides cellular telecommunications services to
approximately one million subscribers in the Ceard, Piaui, Rio Grande do Norte, Paraiba,
Pernambuco and Alagoas states in Brazil.

c¢) CTE (El Salvador)

In October 2003, América Movil acquired from France Telecom and other investors a 51% equity
interest in Compaiiia de Telecomunicaciones de El Salvador (CTE) for approximately US$ 417
million. CTE provides fixed mobile and other telecommunications services in El Salvador and
has approximately 700 thousand fixed line subscribers and 166 thousand cellular subscribers.
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10. Investments (continued)

I1. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

" d) CTI (Argentina)

As a result of the October 2003 debt restructuring agreement in CTI Holdings, S.A. (“CTI"), the
controlling company of CTI PCS, S.A. (“CTI PCS”) and CTI Compaififa de Teléfonos del
Interior, S.A. (Interior), América Mdvil acquired a 64% equity interest in such companies. In
November 2003, América Mévil increased such equity interest to 92% by purchasing additional
shares from various minority stockholders. The total purchase price was approximately US$
221.5 million. The remaining 8% equity interest in CTI is owned by Techint Compaiiia Técnica
Internacional S.A.C.1., or Techint Group, which has the right to require the Company to purchase
all of their equity interest in CTI for US$17.1 million at any time during the two years following
the completion of CTI’s debt restructuring. Ameérica M6vil has the right to require the Techint
Group to sell their interest in CTI at any time during such period for US$18.8 million. CTI
provides nationwide PCS wireless services in Argentina.

At the time of the acquisition, CTT had US$263 million in principal amount of senior notes due in
2008, which were in default. These notes are subject to an out-of-court reorganization agreement
(acuerdo preventivo extrajudicial or “APE”) in Argentina, which was approved by the court in
December 2003. Pursuant to this agreement, the notes will be cancelled in exchange for an
aggregate cash payment of approximately US$37.1 million. The judgment approving the APE
has been challenged by a creditor of one of CTI’s operating subsidiaries. América Mévil believes
the appeal is inadmissible. In February 2004, the judge allowed the appeal to proceed but did not
suspend the effect of his order approving the APE. Accordingly, América Movil has decided and
expects to make the payment prescribed under the APE on March 1, 2004. If the appeal were"
successful, CTI’s obligations under the notes would be reinstated. As of the date of this report,
only US$43 5 million in prmcnpal amount of the notes remain outstanding in the hands of third
parties.

" ¢) BCP (Brazil)

In November 2003, América Movil, through Telecom Américas, acquired a 100% equity interest -
in BCP, S.A., for approximately US$ 643.3 million. BCP provides cellular telecommunications
services to approximately 1.7 million subscribers in the Sao Paulo metropolitan area.
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10. Investments (continued)

IL. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

f) ENITEL (Nicaragua)

On December 17, 2003, the Nicaraguan government accepted América Mévil’s public bid to

purchase 49% of the shares of Empresa Nicaragiiense de Telecomunicaciones, S.A. (“ENITEL”)
for a total purchase price of US$ 49.6 million. The closing date of such transaction was January

2004. ENITEL is the sole provider of fixed telephone services in Nicaragua and has -

approximately 200 thousand phone lines. ENITEL also provides cellular telephone services to
approximately 120 thousand subscribers.

Acquisit)’ons made through América Mdvil in 2002
a) Telecom Américas (Brazil)

Telecom Américas (TA) was incorporated in November 2000 as a joint venture formed
by América Mévil, Bell Canada Internacional (BCl) and SBC Internacional Inc. (SBCI),
with the aim of advancing the three parties’ strategies for expansion in Latin America.
After its incorporation, TA’s initial shareholding structure was approximately as follows:
América Movil 44.3%; BCl 44.3%, and SBCI 11.4%.

At December 31, 2001, as a result of a series of transactions involving the cancellation

by the stockholders of contributions payable to Telecom Américas and additional

capitalizations, the shareholding in TA was as follows: América Movil 45.5%; BCI 41.7%,
and SBCI 12.8%. ’

. In February of 2002, Telecom Américas was reorganized in such a way that it would hold equity

investments solely in Brazilian cellular companies. Under the related agreements entered into as
part of such restructuring, América Movil transferred to Telecom Américas its 41% equity

interest in ATL plus US$ 80 million in cash; Telecom Américas transferred its 77.1% and 60%

equity interest in Comcel and Techtel, respectively, to América Mévil; its 76% equity interest in
Canbras to BCI; and its 59% equity interest in Genesis equally to América M6vil and BCI. BCI,
SBCI and América M6vil’s equity interest in Telecom Américas has not changed as a result of
such restructuring.

24.



()

)

AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

10. Investments (continued)
II. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
a) Telecom Américas (Brazil) (continued)

In April 2002, Telecom Américas issued to a financial investor 1,844 convertible
preferred shares with no voting rights, which at that date represented 6.9% of Telecom
Ameéricas capital stock. The preferred shares may be converted to common shares at
any time at the option of the holder. Preferred shares have no voting rights, or right to be
represented in the board of directors. As of 20086, the holders will have the right to sell
half of the preferred shares back to América Mévil for US$ 150 million plus interest at a
nominal rate and, likewise, as of 2006, América Moévil will have the right to purchase half
of the shares at the same price.

In May 2002, América Movil acquired BCl's 39.1% equity interest in TA for
approximately US$ 370 million, and in June 2002, it acquired SBCl's 11.9% equity
interest in TA for approximately US$ 173 million.

As a result of the aforementioned acquisitions, América Movil’s equity interest in Telecom
Américas increased from 45.5% at December 31, 2001 to approximately 96.5% at December 31,
2002.

At December 31, 2003, as a result of an additional capitalization of stockholders’ contributions,
América M6vil’s equity interest in Telecom Américas was 97.55%.

At December 31, 2003, Telecom América’s cellular holdings in Brazil include: ATL, Tess, Telet,
Americel, BSE and BCP band B cellular operators in the states of Rio de Janeiro, Sao Paulo, Rio
Grande do Sul and various -states in northern Brazil. During the fourth quarter of 2003, América
Moévil launched its new Claro brand throughout Brazil.

b) Comcel (Colombia)

Comunicacion Celular S.A. (“Comcel”) and Occidente y Caribe Celular S.A. (“Occel”) provide
wireless telecommunications services in Colombia’s eastern and western regions, respectively.
América Mdvil acquired its investment in Comcel and Occel in 2002 as a result of the
restructuring of Telecom Américas and increased its equity interest to the present levels through a
series of capitalized investments made in 2002 and 2003. América Mévil currently holds a
95.67% equity interest in Comcel and a 93.4% equity interest in Occel.

At December 31, 2003, Comcel’s cellular holdings in Colombia include: Comcel, Occel and
Celcaribe band B cellular operators.
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10. Investments (continued)
IL. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
¢) Techtel-LMDS Comunicaciones Interactivas (Argentina)

América Mdvil holds a 60% equity interest in Telcel Wireless Argentina, LLC (Telcel
Argentina), which, in turn, wholly owns Techtel, a company that provides video and data
transfer, as well as value added telecommunications services. América Movil acquired its equity
interest in Techtel in 2002 as a result of the restructuring of Telecom Américas.

Other acquisitions

During 2003, América Mévil invested approximately US$ 77 million (US$ 154 million in 2002)
to acquire minority interests in Conecel (Ecuador) and ACT (Guatemala). As a result, the
Company increased its equity interest in these subsidiaries from 80.6% and 96.9% to 100%,
respectively.

Other minor acquisitions made by América Moévil in 2002 aggregated approximately
Ps. 353,498.

The results of operations of the companies acquired in 2003 and 2002 have been included in the
Company’s financial statements from the month following the date of acquisition through the end
of the period presented. '

The Company is not obliged to make any further payments or provide any form of additional or
contingent consideration related to these acquisitions, other than those already di_sclosed. :

The following consolidated pro forma financial data for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 have not been audited and are based on the Company’s historical financial statements,
adjusted to give effect to (i) the series of acquisitions mentioned in the preceding paragraphs; and
(ii) certain accounting adjustments related to the amortization of goodwill and licenses, a
reduction in interest income derived from the decrease in cash as a result of the previously-
mentioned purchases and adjustments to depreciation of the net fixed assets of the acquired '
companies.

The pro forma adjustments assume that the purchases were made at the beginning of the
acquisition year and the immediately preceding year and are based on available information -and
other assumptions that management considers reasonable. :
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10. Investments (continued)
II. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The pro forma financial information is not intended to indicate what the effect on the Company
would have been had the transactions in question actually occurred, nor are they intended to
predict the Company’s results of operations.

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated
Figures - América Telecom for the
years ended December 31

‘ 2003 2002 v
Operating revenues: ‘ Ps. 97,201,552 Ps. 75,602,854
Net income (loss) 17,074,923 { 7,258,147)
Earnings (loss) per share (in Mexican pesos) 4.627 { 1.934)

II1. Goodwill
An analysis of goodwill at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002
Investment: '
Opening balance as of December 31 Ps. 9,388,381 ps. 5,683,615
Effect of acquired companies 4,193,071 3,251,051
Effects of translation of foreign entities 1,503,222 635,662
Cancellations - ( 181,947)

15,084,674 9,388,381

2003 2002
Amortization: :
Opening balance as of December 31 (  2,994,653) ( 1,143,803)
Amortization of the year ( 1,360,365) ( 1,693,555)
Effects of translation of foreign entities ( 494,949) ( 157,295)

(_4,849,967) ( 2,994,653)

Ending balance, net Ps. 10,234,707 Ps. 6,393,728

27.



()

(]

AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

11. Financial Instruments

An analysis of the most important financial instruments at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as
follows:

a) Forwards

As a part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Company uses derivatives to reduce the
risk associated with exchange rate fluctuations on its U.S. dollar denominated transactions.
During 2002, the Company entered into short-term hedges, which at December 31, 2002 covered
liabilities and assets of US$ 270 million and US$195 million, respectively. These hedges gave
rise to a credit (charge) to results of operations of 2003 and 2002 in the amount Ps. 13,522 and
Ps. (145,922), respectively, for exchange rate fluctuation.

At December 31, 2002, the caption Prepaid expenses and other current assets includes
Ps. 16,910 for the valuation of these instruments. At December 31, 2003, the Company has not
entered into any forward contracts.

b) Interest-rate swaps

To reduce exposure to financial risks, the Company has contracted interest-rate swaps, whereby
during the term of such swaps and on previously established dates the counterparties agree to
exchange cash flows for the amount determined by applying agreed rates to the contracted
amount. In these specific contracts, the Company agreed to receive the interbank (TIIE) interest
rate, the CETES rate and the 90-day LIBOR rate paying fixed rates in all cases. The swaps are
recorded in results of operations at their respective market interest rates. At December 31, 2003,
the Company has contracted interest-rate swaps for notational amounts of Ps. 10,000,000 and
US$ 1,511.4 million. In the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company has
contracted currency swaps in U.S. dollars with principals of US$ 310.4 and US$ 208.8 million,
respectively. On the aforementioned contracts, in 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized a
credit to comprehensive financing income (cost) under the caption Interest income of Ps. 314,499
in 2003 (interest expense of Ps.167,817 in 2002). Additionally, the caption Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities includes Ps. 32,269 for interest accrued in 2003.

OSUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2004, the Company settled in advance its 90-day LIBOR rate swaps in the amount of
US$45 million. On such settlements, the Company recognized a gain of
US$ 1.7 million (Ps. 19,434).

In February 2004, the Company contracted interest-rate swaps, for which it will receive the
interbank (TIIE) interest rate and pay a fixed rate. The notational amount of such contract was Ps.
1,500,000.
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12. Employee Benefits Obligations

In 1994, Telcel set up an irrevocable trust fund to cover the payment of the obligations for
seniority premiums, adopting the policy of making annual contributions to such fund. No
contributions were made to the fund in 2003 and 2002.

The transition assets, past services and variances in assumptions are amortized over a thirteen-
year period, which is the estimated average remaining working lifetime of Telcel’s employees.

An analysis of the net period cost for 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002
Labor cost Ps. 1,870 Ps. 1,766
Financing cost on projected benefit obligations 451 340
Return on plan assets ( 252) ( 245)
Amortization of cost of past services ( 23) ( 21)
Net period cost , Ps. 2,046 Ps. 1,840

An analysis of the seniority premium reserve at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002

Projected benefit obligation - Ps. 8,557 Ps. 6,734
Established fund { 4,581) ( 2,753)
Transition asset 47 _ 55

Actuarial gain 1,275 1,054
Net projected liability Ps. 5,298 Ps. 5,090
Current net liability Ps. 3,976 Ps. 3,981
Current benefit obligation Ps. 8,557 Ps. 6,734

The current net liability was included in the balance sheet under the caption Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities.
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12, Employee Benefits Obligations (continued)

The rates used in the actuarial study at December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003 2002
Labor obligation discounts 6.80% 6.80%
Salary increase 1.90% 1.90%
Annual return on fund 6.80% . 6.80%
13. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:

_ 2003 2002
Suppliers Ps. 12,619,234 Ps. 7,387,668
Guaranty deposits 316,574 342,268
Accrued expenses 5,982,906 2,686,101
Interest payable 954,869 934,935
Others ' 145,985 50,084
Total Ps. 20,019,568 Ps. 11,401,056
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14. Debt

The Company’s long- and short-term debt consists of the following:

Weighted average interest rates at

at December 31, 2003)

December 31 Maturity from Balance at December 31
Currency Description 2003 2002 2003 to 2003 2002
U.S. dollars . - .
‘Bank note 1.75% 3.40% 2004 and 2003 Ps. 602,250 Ps. " 401,768
Loans from JP Morgan LIBOR + 1.36 2005 and 2006
Chase Bank a LIBOR +0.80 4,668,794 2,832,845
Wachovia Securities LIBOR +0.70 2006 898,880 -
Santander Central LIBOR+1.10a ]
_ Hispano Benelux LIBOR + 0.80 2008 3,370,819 -
LIBOR+20 a LIBOR+.20a
Exim Bank loans LIBOR+1.65 LIBOR+1.65 2009 8,934,407 8,788,913
LIBOR+.75a LIBOR+.75a
Syndicated loans LIBOR+1.35 LIBOR+1.35 2007 11,236,000 10,722,937
Fixed-rate securities (1) 3.3990% 3.62% 2004 347,033 3,361,041
LIBOR+.30 a LIBOR+.34a
Lines of credit LIBOR+1.50 LIBOR+1.50 2006 8,212,954 7,672,256
3.1675% a 10% 3.1675% a 10% 2004 .
Suppliers 149,619 643,687
BNDES UMBNDES+45%a UMBNDES 4.5%a }
UMBNDES+5.05 UMBNDES 5.0% 2008 675,565 782,772
Leasing LIBORH4.50; 11,445 -
Other 11.25% 2008 298,184 -
Subtotal U.S. dollars 39,405,950 35,206,219
Mexican pesos
Domestic senior notes Sundry 5) 2009 11,250,000 10,398,000
Syndicated loans TIIE +.80 2008 1,750,000 -
Commercial paper 7.69% 2003 746,914 1,070,569
Lines of credit THE THEq +1 2004 1,000,600 831,840
Senior notes TIE; +1 2004 - 1,186,308
Leasing TIIE +.55 2006 950,000 -
Subtotal Mexican pesos 15,696,914 13,486,717
Reals
Syndicated loans TIJLP+2.80%a  TJLP+2.80%aTILP
TILP +5.00% +5.00% 2007 2,402,875 2,273,263
Fixed-rent securities CDI +.90 CDi+1.20 2008 60,607 925,626
Purchase of licenses 12% + Inflation 12% + Inflation. 2010 365,788 922,784
Subtotal Reals 2,829,270 - 4,121,673
Other currencies (2)
Bonds IPC +7.50% 2010 808,866 -
Lines of credit 6.50% 9% 2004 and 2003 598,868 178,551
Financial ieasing 7.00% 13% 2004 and 2005 31,497 - 1,198
Subtotal other currencies ' 1,439,231 179,749
Total debt 59,371,365 52,994,358
- Less: short-term debt and current portion of
long-term debt 13,228,323 13,115,948

Long-term debt

46,143,042 8 39,878,410
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14. Debt

1) The BCI note for Ps. 1,753,125 does not bear interest and was paid in March 2003.

2) Other currencies include Guatemalan quetzals,

3) The syndicated loan for US$ 400 million is guaranteed by Telcel, América M6vil and Telgua.
4) 10.40% to 11.33%; TIIE28 + .35; Cetes91 + 1.05 a Cetes91 + 1.08; Cetes182 + 1.00 to
Cetes182 +1.20

5) 11.33%; TIIE28 + .35; Cetes182 + 1.20

The interest rates shown above do not include the effect of reimbursement of withheld taxes. The
average weighted cost of the debt at December 31, 2002 (including interest, commissions and
reimbursement of withheld tax to creditors) was approximately 7.60% (6.96% at December 31,

12002).

Such rate does not include any interest, commissions and the reimbursement of withheld taxes to
creditors (usually 4.9%), which must be reimbursed by the Company. Financing fees are
generally equal to ten base points over the financing cost.

Short-term debt at December 31, 2002 and 2003 consists of the following:

Description 2003 2002
-Domestic senior notes Ps. - Ps. 1,819,650
Fixed-rate securities 347,033 2,748,421
Syndicated loans 1,241,578 1,297,476
Other loans 7,952,043 2,713,172
Total Ps. 9,540,654 Ps. 8,578,719
Weighted average interest rate 3.05% 6.7%
Maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2003 are as follows:
Years Amount
2005 Ps. 16,466,564
2006 14,663,010
2007 5,595,528
2008 6,640,495
2009 and thereafter
2,777,445
Total Ps.
46,143,042

Lines of credit guaranteed by export credit agencies

Ameérica Mdvil has at its disposition a number of equipment financing programs under which export
development agencies provide support for financing the purchase of exports from their respective
countries. Such financing is generally in the medium- to long-term, and requires periodic amortization of
the principal and interest payable at the LIBOR plus a premium. América Movil’s operating subsidiaries
make extensive use of this type of financing, usually with guarantees provided by América Mévil, Telcel
and/or Sercotel. ' 32.
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14. Debt (continued)

During 2003 and 2002, América Mévil opened lines of credit of up to US$ 250 million with the Export
Development Corporation (EDC) in Canada to purchase telecommunications equipment. Drawings on
these lines of credit are repayable semiannually and bear interest at LIBOR plus 0.95% to LIBOR plus
1.25%. The loans mature between 2004 and 2009.

Senior notes

In 2001, América Telecom issued a medium-term note in the amount of Ps. 3,810,485, bearing
interest, payable monthly, at the TIE rate plus one percentage point. At December 31, 2002,
the outstanding balance payable was Ps. 1,186,308. In 2003, the Company repaid early, free of
any penalty, the total amount of such loan.

In 2003, América Telecom also issued a short-term note in the amount of Ps. 53.6 million,
bearing interest at an annual 1.75% rate. On February 27, 2004, the date of the audit report on
these financial statements, the Company repaid early, free of any penalty, this loan.

Loans guaranteed by shares

In 2003, América Telecom obtained a loan of US$ 300 million from Santander Central Hispano
Benelux, S.A/N.V. To guarantee such loan, the Company placed in trust 16,644,800 ADR’s
representing 332,896,000 series “L” América Movii shares, which will be returned to América
Telecom in 2008, at which time the loan is repayable. The loan bears interest, which is
repayable quarterly, at the LIBOR rate plus a premium ranging from 0.8% to 1.10%.

In 2003, the Company obtained loans of US$ 250 million from JP Morgan Chase Bank. To
guarantee such loan, América Telecom placed in trust 15,310,100 ADR's representing
306,202,000 series “L" shares of América Mévil, which will be retumed to Ameérica Telecom in
2006, at which time the loan is repayable. The loan bears interest, which is payable quarterly, at
the LIBOR rate plus 1.25%.

In addition, in 2003, the Company obtained a loan of US$ 80 million from Wachovia Securities
bank. To guarantee such loan, the Company placed in trust 5,677,786 ADR’s representing
113,555,720 series “L” shares of América Mévil, which will be retumed to América Telecom in
2008, at which time the loan is repayable. The loan bears interest, which IS payable quarterly, at

- the LIBOR rate plus 0.7%.

In 2002, the Company obtained loans of US$ 140 miillion from JP Morgan Chase Bank. - To
guarantee such loan, América Telecom placed in trust 9,942,778 ADR’s representing
198,855,560 series “L” shares of América Moévil, which will be returned to América Telecom in
2005, at which time the loan is repayable. The loan bears interest, which is repayable quarterly,
at the LIBOR rate plus a premium ranging from 0.8% to 1.10%.
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14. Debt (continued)

Loans guaranteed by shares (continued)

In 2001, América Telecom obtained a loan of US$ 124 million from JP Morgan Chase Bank. To
guarantee such loan, América Telecom placed in trust 9,700,000 ADR's representing
194,000,000 series “L” shares of América Mévil, which will be released in 2003, at which time
the loan is repayable. The loan bears interest, which is payable quarterly, at the LIBOR rate
plus 1.36%. The Company repaid such loan at maturity, and released the ADR's placed in trust.

Subsequent event

On February 27, 2004, the date of the audit report on these financial statements, the Company
obtained a new secured loan of US$ 100 million from Santander Central Hispano Benelux,
S.A/N.V. To guarantee such loan, the Company placed in trust 2,827,255 ADR’s representing
56,545,100 series “L” América Movil shares. The loan matures in February 2009 and bears
interest at the 90-day LIBOR rate plus a premium of 0.66%.

Syndicated loans

During 2001 and 2002, América Mévil entered into three syndicated loan agreements for US$500, US$
200 and US$ 400 million.

With respect to the first loan of US$ 500 million, US$ 100 million was repaid in 2002 and the remaining
US$ 400 million is due and payable in January 2005, bearing interest at the LIBOR rate plus 1.0%.

The second loan for US$ 200 million is due and payable in May 2005, bearing interest at the LIBOR rate
plus 1.0%. '

The last loan for US$ 400 million has been structured into three tranches (credits A, B and C for
US$121, US$137 and US$142 million, respectively) with maturities in 2003, 2005 and 2007,
bearing interest at the LIBOR rate plus 0.75%, LIBOR rate plus 1.10% and LIBOR rate plus

1.35%, respectively. América Mévil has rolled over tranche A for US$110.5 million for an

additional six-month period.

BNDES

At December 31, 2002, ATL, Tess and Americel have outstanding syndicated loans with the Brazilian
Development Bank (“BNDES”) as the agent institution. These loans are principally denominated in reals,
with a portion indexed to US dollars. The principal amount of the loan is approximately R$618 million
plus the equivalent in reals of approximately US$ 60 million in foreign currencies.
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14. Debt (continued)

Purchase of licenses

As of December 31, 2003, América Movil owes the Brazilian Government Ps. 365.7 million in
reals-denominated obligations. The principal amount is to be indexed based on factors derived
from Brazilian Consumer Price Index and, bearing 12% annual interest. Such interest is payable
over 8 years beginning in August 2005.

Domestic Senior Notes

The NBSC has authorized América Mévil to establish two programs for the issuance of domestic
senior notes guaranteed by Telcel for Ps. 5,000 million each.

During 2003, América Mévil made three issues of the third program each for an amount
of Ps.1,000 million, the first one with maturity in 2006 at a rate of 91-day Cetes plus
1.20% and the other two maturing in 2008 at a rate of 182-day Cetes plus 0.90% and
91-day Cetes plus 0.89%, respectively.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had a total of Ps. 12,600 million outstanding in the market.

During 2002, América Moévil made seven issues of the second program for amounts
ranging from Ps. 400 to Ps. 1,250 million, with maturities ranging from 3 to 7 years.
Three issues bear a fixed annual interest rate ranging from 10.40% to 10.45% and the
remaining four issues bear a floating interest rate established as a percentage of the
CETES rate.

General

At December 31, 2003, América Mévil had a number of bank facilities bearing interest at
LIBOR plus a spread. For certain of the facilities, the spread over LIBOR can vary if -
there is a deterioration in América Movil’s financial position. The facilities have similar
terms as to covenants, and under all of the facilities América Mévil, Sercotel and Telcel
are either borrowers or guarantors. For certain of these facilities, Telgua is also a
guarantor. ' ~

Additionally, as of December 31, 2003 América Mévil has available two commercial
paper programs for Ps. 2,000 and Ps. 5,000 million.
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14, Debt (continued)

América Movil is subject to financial and operating covenants under the loan
agreements. Such contracts limit the ability to pledge assets, to effect a merger or a
sale of all or substantially all of the assets, and to permit restrictions on the ability of the
subsidiaries to pay dividends or make distributions to América Moévil. The most
restrictive financial covenants require América Mévil to maintain a consolidated ratio of
debt to EBITDA not greater than 3.5 to 1 and a consolidated ratio of EBITDA to interest
expense not less than 2.5 to 1 (using terms defined in the loan agreements). Telcel is
subject to financial covenants similar to those applicable to América Mévil. A number of
the financing instruments are subject to either acceleration or repurchase at the holder’s
option if there is a change of control. In the event of a default under certain material
provisions of some of the bank loans, América Mévil is prohibited from paying dividends
to the stockholders. At December 31, 2003, América Mévil was in compliance with all of
these requirements. '

At December 31, 2003, approximately 87% of total outstanding consolidated debt is
guaranteed by Telcel.

Subsequent Event

América Movil is in the process of issuing senior notes up to US$ 1,000 million in a private
offering.

15. Foreign Currency Position and Transactions

a) At December 31, 2003 and 2002, América Telecom had the following foreign-currency
denominated assets and liabilities:

Foreign currency in million

Exchange Exchange rate
rate at at December
2003 December 31, 2002 31, 2002
2003
Assets
U.S. dollar - 1,354 11.23 440 10.31
Quetzal 702 1.39 432 1.34
Reals 2,356 3.89 1,942 291
Colombian peso 290,163 0.004 240,505 0.0035
Argentinean peso 380 3.83
Euro 1 14.11
Liabilities’
U.S. dollar ( 4,580) 11.23 ( 4,012) 10.31
Quetzal (  1,330) 1.39 ( L107) 134
Reals (4,160 3.89 ( 1,540) 2091
Colombian peso ( 781,447) 0.004 ( 288,605) 0.0035
Argentinean peso ( 395) 3.83
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15. Foreign Currency Position and Transactions (continued)

At February 27, 2004, the date of the audit report on these financial statements, the exchange rate of
the Mexican peso relative to the U.S. doliar, quetzal, reals, Colombian peso, Argentinean peso and
Euro is Ps. 11.09 per U.S. dollar, Ps. 1.33 per quetzal, Ps.3.76 per reals; Ps. 0. 004 per Colomblan
peso, Ps. 3.77 per Argentinean peso and Ps.13.72 per Euro.

b) In the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had the following transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. Currencies other than the U.S. dollar (reals, quetzals,
Colombian pesos, Argentinean peso and Euro) were translated to U.S. dollars using the average
exchange rate for the year.

U.S. dollars (thousands)

2003 2002
Net service revenues 3,037,013 - 1,711,259
Interest income 4,130,981 123,201
Interest expense 156,522 159,641
Operating costs and expenses 283,075 2,408,863
Other income (expense), net 260,147 ( 106,574)

16. Commitments and Contingencies

a) As of December 31, 2003, América Movil has entered into various leases (as a lessee) with
related parties for the buildings in which its offices are located, as well as with owners of
property where the Company has instalied radio bases. The leases expire within one to five years.

Following is an analysis of minimum rental payments due in the next five years. In some cases,
the amounts will be increased either based on the NCPI or on the appraisal values of the property.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had the following commitments under non-cancelable

~ leases:
Year ended December 31, Capital lease Operating lease

2004 Ps. 27,915 Ps. 752,771

2005 493,205 769,516

2006 492,557 790,920

2007 - 800,905

2008 and thereafter - 3,705,691

Total 1,013,677 Ps. 6,819,803
Less: interest ( 20,735)
Present value of minimum rental payments 992,942
Less current installments ( 37,401)
Long-term obligations : Ps. 955,541
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16. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Rent charged to expenses in 2003 and 2002 aggregated Ps. 1,091,415 and Ps. 344,679,
respectively. '

b) Under Mexican legislation, Telecom is jointly and severally liable for obligations transferred
to América Telecom pursuant to the spin-off for a period of three years from the date of
publication of the spin-off resolution. Such liability, however, does not extend to any obligation
with a creditor that has given its express consent relieving Telecom of such liability and
approving the spin-off. Telecom may not be released from such commitments without the
consent of the respective beneficiaries.

c) Certain Telmex Obligations

Telmex has guaranteed certain obligations of Iberbanda, S.A.(formerly FirstMark
Comunicaciones Espafia, S.A.). The guarantee is limited to 13.7 million euros (Ps. 194 million).
América Movil has agreed to indemnify Telmex for any claim or liability derived from these
guarantees.

Post spin-off agreement

In conformity with the post spin-off master agreement between Telmex and América Mévil,

Telmex is obligated to indemnify and hold América Mdvil harmless from any and all claims

resulting from any liability or contingency which was to be paid by Telmex as a result of the

spin-off of América Movil from Telmex and América Mévil, in turn, is obligated to indemnify

and hold Telmex harmless from any and all claims resulting from any liability or contingency

which was expressly transferred to América Movil as a result of the spin-off of América Mévil.
from Telmex. ' '

d) Payment guarantees with suppliers

At December 31, 2003, some of the subsidiaries had commitments to acquire equipment
comprising their GSM networks, for as much as approximately US$580 million (approximately
Ps. 6,516 million), which amounts have been guaranteed by America Mévil.

Telcel

) Antitrust proceedings

In November 1995, a competitor of Telcel that provides cellular telephone services reported
Telmex and Telcel to Cofeco, the Federal Competition Commission, for alleged monopolistic

practices. In July 2001, Cofeco ruled that Telmex was responsible for the alleged monopolistic
practices. The ruling did not find Telcel responsible for such practices.
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Administrative proceedings were commenced in January and June 2001 by Cofeco against Telcel
for alleged anti-competitive behavior in connection with certain actions carried out by certain
distributors of Telcel in 2001. In May 2002, Cofeco ruled against Telcel in connection with the
proceeding initiated in January. Telcel appealed this ruling in June 2002. In September 2002,
Cofeco ruled against this appeal. Telcel filed an appeal against this ruling in January 2003, the
resolution of which is still pending. With respect to the administrative proceedings initiated in
June 2001, Cofeco ruled against Telcel in December 2002, and Telcel appealed this ruling. In
May 2003, Cofeco ruled against this appeal. In August 2003, Telcel filed an appeal against this
ruling, the resolution of which is still pending. If the Company is unsuccessful in challenging
these proceedings, they may result in fines or specific regulations applicable to Telcel.

f) Administrative investigation

América Movil has received requests for information from the NBSC and the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission regarding Telcel’s entry into a capacity services agreement with
Operadora Unefon in September 2003. The investigation relates to the alleged use by Operadora
Unefon of the US$267.7 million paid by Telcel to Operadora Unefon under the agreement and
related public disclosures made by an affiliate of Operadora Unefon. América Mévil is
cooperating with the authorities.

g) Interconnection

Under the terms of its concessions for the 800 megahertz spectrum, Telcel must pay a royalty on
gross revenues from concessioned services. The royalty is levied at rates that vary from region to
region but average approximately 8%. Telcel believes that short message services are value-
added services, which are not concessioned services, and that. revenues from short message
services should not be subject to this royalty. In related proceedings, Cofetel has ruled that short
text messages are subject to the interconnection regulatory regime and that such services do not
constitute value-added services. Telcel is currently disputing these issues in an administrative
proceeding, the resolution of which is still pending. Telcel has created provisions in the financial
statements to cover this potential liability.

" CompUSA

h) In January 2000, COC Services, LTD. (“COC Services™) filed with the District Court for the
County of Dallas, Texas, a lawsuit against CompUSA, Inc. (CompUSA) alleging breach of
contract and civil liability on the part of CompUSA in connection with certain letter of intent
relating to the franchises granted to various Mexican retailers. The lawsuit also named Grupo
Carso, Grupo Sanborns and Carlos Slim Helt as additional defendants. In the lawsuit, COC
Services sought to recover from CompUSA US$150 million (approximately Ps. 1,685.4 million)
in actual damages for breach of contract, tortuous interference with a contract or prospective
contract, and conspiracy, as well as US$2 million (approximately Ps. 22.4 million) in damages
for fraud and US$300 million (approximately Ps. 3,370.8 million) in punitive damages, plus
interest and the reimbursement of all court and legal costs and expenses.

‘ 39.



)

AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)
16. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
CompUSA (continued)

The lawsuit was turned over to the 116™ District Court for the County of Dallas, Texas, and a

* jury trial was held in January and February 2001. The jury trial concluded in February 2001 with

a verdict against all the defendants in respect of several COC claims. The verdict awarded to
COC Services actual and punitive damages from the various defendants, as follows: punitive
damages of US$175.5 million (approximately Ps.1,971.9 million from James Halpin,
CompUSA’s former Chief Executive Officer, US$94.5 million (approximately Ps. 1,061.8
million) from CompUSA, US$67.5 million (approximately Ps. 758.4 million) from Carlos Slim

‘Held, US$13.5 million (approximately Ps. 151.6 million) from Grupo Carso and US$13.5 million

(approximately Ps. 151.6 million) from Grupo Sanbomns.

The defendants filed with the court a motion challenging various legal aspects of the final award.
On May 18, 2001, the court reduced the amount of the damages awarded by the jury verdict
against Grupo Carso, Grupo Sanborns, Carlos Slim Heli, CompUSA and James Halpin, from -

- US$454.0 million (approximately Ps. 5,101.1 million) to US$121.5 million (approximately Ps.

1,365.1 million), which represented a 73% reduction. In addition, the court vacated the jury
award against CompUSA and James Halpin. Grupo Carso, Grupo Sanborns and Carlos Slim Helu
have filed various motions in connection with these proceedings, and have filed an appeal with
the competent courts of the State of Texas. Such actions are pending and we cannot predict their
outcome, but we have posted with the court a bond to guarantee the payment of any amounts that
may be awarded by a final resolution. Although the amount of the jury verdict has been reduced,
we plan to continue pursuing all legal avenues available before the competent courts, for so long
as it may be necessary, in order to obtain the dismissal of the pending accusations. COC Services
has appealed the judgment, seeking to obtain the payment of damages in an amount closer than
that stipulated in the jury verdict, and to reinstate CompUSA and James Halpin as defendants.
The appeals have been processed and all arguments have been heard. The final resolution of the
court of appeals is currently pending.

- Telgua

1} Reversal of Privatization

In June 2000, the executive branch of the Guatemalan government issued declarations concerning -
Empresa Guatemalteca de Telecomunicaciones (“Guatel”), a Guatemalan state agency that
conducted the privatization of Telgua. The declarations stated that certain actions of Guatel
relating to the privatization of Telgua were contrary to the interests of the Guatemalan State. In
September 2000, the Guatemalan government commenced judicial proceedings against Guatel,
Telgua and certain other parties involved in the privatization of Telgua seeking reversal of the
privatization. ‘
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16. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
1) Reversal of Privatization (continued)

In October 2001, the Guatemalan State announced a governmental accord issued by the President
of Guatemala and the Cabinet Ministers establishing the principal terms and conditions of a
settlement agreement among the Guatemalan State, Telgua Guatel and American Central Tel,
S.A. (“ACT”), and ordering the Attorney General of Guatemala to enter into such agreement in
the name and on behalf of the Guatemalan State.

Under the terms of this settlement agreement, Telgua agreed, among other things: (i) to undertake

a fixed, mobile, rural and internet telephone development project within Guatemala, to be
completed within a period of three years, to consist of an investment of at least 1,950 million
quetzals (approximately US$ 246 million), and (ii) to establish a total of 380,000 public, mobile
and rural telephone lines. Pursuant to the settlement agreement, the Guatemalan State, ACT and
Telgua agreed to abandon all litigation and related actions with respect to this matter. While the
competent court held that as a procedural matter the attorney for the Guatemalan State could not
withdraw the State’s claims, it recognized the settlement agreement and ordered the files closed.
During 2002, certain former government officials presented claims to the Guatemalan courts
challenging the validity of the October 2001 settlement agreement. These actions are still
pending.

j) ITI-GEDO

Judicial proceedings were commenced in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York in March 2001 by International Telecom, Inc. (“ITI”) against Generadora
Eléctrica de Oriente, S.A. (“GEDO”), Antonio Jorge Alvarez and Telgua, alleging breach of
contract, tortuous interference with contract and fraud in connection with an international
telecommunications service agreement. - In March 2002, the court granted Telgua’s motion to
dismiss the case against it for lack of personal jurisdiction, holding that Telgua had insufficient
contacts with New York to subject it to jurisdiction in that forum. After a final judgment is
issued, ITI, GEDO or Mr. Alvarez may appeal the decision dismissing Telgua from the lmgatlon
to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. v
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16. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Comcel

k) Value added tax

The Colombian tax authorities have demanded that Comcel and Occel pay additional value-added
taxes arising from cellular activation fees in 1995 and 1996. Comcel and Occel have challenged
these claims before the corresponding administrative authorities. The administrative authorities
have reviewed several of the bi-monthly tax periods in question and have decided all of them in
favor of Comcel and Occel.

The amount claimed by the tax authorities (including fines and interest) relating to the tax periods
for which challenges were still pending as of December 31, 2003 totaled approximately
Colombian Ps 19,600 million for Comcel and Ps. 2,700 million for Occel (approximately Ps. 79.2
million and Ps. 10.9 million, respectively). In the opinion of its management, Comcel and Occel
have appropriately filed their respective tax returns and paid the related value-added tax for all of
the periods in question and has made no provisions in its financial statements as of December 31,
2003 against these proceedings.

1) Voice/IP

In March 2000, the Colombian Superintendencia de Industria y Comercio (SIC) issued
Resolution No. 4954, requiring Comcel to pay a fine of Colombian Ps. 234 million for alleged
anti-competitive behavior. In addition to this administrative fine, the SIC ordered Comcel to pay
damages to other long distance operators. The long distance operators estimated their damages to
be US$70 million. Comcel requested an administrative review of the damages decision, which
was declared inadmissible in June 2000. Comcel appealed, and the appeal was considered
inadmissible in November 2000. Comcel filed again the appeal in February 2001.

Comcel also filed a special action in court challenging the denial of the administrative
review. Following a series of court proceedings, a Colombian appeals court in June
2002 ordered that Comcel's February 2001 appeal be granted and that the
administrative decision against Comcel be reviewed. After additional proceedings, the
Consejo Superior de la Judicatura ratified this decision. However, in 2003, an appeals

" court decided to revoke the decision of the Consejo Superior de la Judicatura, and the

Tribunal Superior de Bogota is currently reverting the procedure back to the SIC in order
to continue the damages claim.
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16. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Telecom Americas
m) Tess and ATL-Telecom Leste

ANATEL has challenged each of Tess and ATL calculations of the inflation-related adjustments
due under these companies’ concession agreements with ANATEL. Forty percent of the
concession price under each of these agreements was due upon execution and the remaining 60%
was due in three equal annual installments (subject to inflation-related adjustments and interest)
beginning in 1999.

Both companies have made these concession payments, but ANATEL has rejected the
companies’ calculation of the inflation-related adjustments and requested payment of the alleged
differences. The companies have filed declaratory and consignment actions in Brazilian courts
seeking resolution of the disputes. The court of first instance ruled against ATL’s filing for
declaratory action in October 2001 and ATL’s filing for consignment action in September 2002.
Subsequently, ATL filed appeals, which are pending. In September 2003, the court of first
instance ruled against Tess’ filing for consignment action. Subsequently, Tess filed an appeal,
which is still pending. No ruling has been made to date with respect to the declaratory action
filed by Tess. The aggregate contested amounts were approximately R$422 million (including
potential penalties and interest) (US$1,640.45 million) at December 31, 2003. ATL and Tess
have made provisions in their financial statements to cover this potential liability.

n) BNDESPAR

Prior to the acquisition of Telet and Americel, BNDESPar, a subsidiary of BNDES, the Brazilian
development bank, had entered into investment and other stockholder agreements with Americel,
Telet and certain of their significant stockholders. Under these agreements, BNDESPar had the
right, among others, to participate in the sale of shares of Telet and Americel in the event of
certain transfers of control, for so long as BNDESPar held a 5% equity interest in those
companies. In October 2003, América Mdvil increased its equity interest in each of Telet and
Americel and BNDESPar’s ownership fell below 5% from approximately 20% in each as it
elected not to exercise its preemptive rights. Subsequently, BNDESPar sent official notices to
Telet and Americel reserving its rights under the agreements in respect of certain past transfers of
shares. To América Mévil’s knowledge, BNDESPar has not commenced judicial action against
América Mévil or any of its subsidiaries.
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16. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
n) BNDESPAR (continued)

América Movil does not believe that BNDESPar has a valid claim against it or its subsidiaries
under the agreements. Moreover, América M6vil does not believe that any such possible actions,
even if successful, could result in a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations or
liquidity, but it is difficult for América Mdvil to predict the outcome of any such possible actions
since a lawsuit has not yet been filed.

17. Related Parties

a) Following is an analysis of balances due from/to related parties as of December 31, 2003 and
2002:

2003 2002
Due from:
Teléfonos de México, S.A. de C.V. Ps. 497,629 Ps. 506,241
Sanborns Hermanos, S.A. de C.V. 69,306 63,282
Sears Roebuck, S.A. de C.V. 40,665 21,078
Teléfonos del Noroeste, S.A. de C.V. 27,081 16,799
Seguros Inbursa, S.A. de C.V. 7414 -
Others 5,710 - 2,056
Ps. 647,805 Ps. 609,456

Due to:
Fuerza Guardina Inbursa, S.A. Ps. 26,511 Ps. 23,457
Consorcio Red Uno, S.A. de C.V. 3,634 18,873
Alquiladora de Casas, S.A. de C.V. 4350 214
Carso Global Telecom, S.A. de C.V. 21,767 -
Compaiiia de Teléfonos Bienes y Raices, S.A. de

C.V. 16,631 330
Others v 12,075 3,572
Total Ps. 81,068 Ps. 46,446

b) Interest eamed on such instruments for the year ended December 31, 2002 was
Ps. 81,346. ‘
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17. Related Parties (continued)

c) In the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had the following significant
transactions with related parties, mainly with Telmex:

2003 2002

Revenues:

Calling Party Pays (CPP) interconnection fees (1) Ps. 9,553,850 Ps. 8,747,178

Interest , 31,462 73,805
Costs and expenses: ‘

Payments of long-distance, circuits and others (2) 3,902,024 3,637,944
Commercial, administrative and general: '

Advertising 533,662 473,114

Other expenses 87,707 194,772

Interest and commissions paid 31,568 60,591

(1) Interconnection fees from the “Calling Party Pays” program (CPP): incoming calls from a
fixed-line telephone to a wireless telephone. Prior to the spin-off, Telcel had entered into
interconnection agreements with Telmex. The interconnection agreements specify a number of
connection points, locations of interconnection points, the method by which signals must be
transmitted and received and the costs and fees of interconnection.

(2) Includes: a) Interconnection (cost): payments of interconnection for outgoing calls from the
wireless network to the fixed-line network; b) Long-distance: payments for the use of national
and international long-distance; c) leases of buildings and other cellular space.

d) Telcel has entered into various leasing and co-location agreements with a subsidiary of
Telmex. Under these agreements, Telcel promises to pay monthly fees for the use of Telmex’s
antenna and repeater space, and has the right to install its interconnection radio frequency
equipment.

¢) The Company purchases materials and services from related parties under terms no less

favorable than it could obtain from unaffiliated parties. Such materials and services include
insurance and bank services provided by Grupo Financiero Inbursa, S.A. and certain subsidiaries.

45.



1

()

)

AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

18. Stockholders’ Equity

a) The Company's fixed minimum capital at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is
Ps. 4,268,428 (Ps. 933,246 nominal amount) and Ps. 4,295,060 (Ps.959,156 nominal
amount), respectively, represented by 3,639,338 (thousand) and 3,740,379 {thousand)
Series A-1 common, registered shares with no par value. In addition, the Company'’s
bylaws provide for the issuance of Series A-2 variable capital shares. At December 31,
2003, no variable capital shares have been issued.

b) At the date of the incorporation of América Telecom, it was agreed to set up a reserve
of Ps. 1,648,602 (Ps. 1,500,000 nominal amount) for the purchase of the Company’s
own shares. In 2003, the stockholders agreed to increase such reserve in the amount of
Ps.1,536,750 (Ps. 1,500,000 nominal amount). In addition, the maximum amount of
capital stock that may be affected by the repurchase of the Company’s own shares is
Ps.60,000.

c¢) During 2003 and 2002, the Company repurchased 972,615 and 106,719 (thousand) shares,
respectively. At December 31, 2003, there were 295,737,577 treasury shares for re-placement.

d) At December 31, 2003, Other accumulated comprehensive income (loss) items include the
deficit from restatement of stockholders’ equity net of deferred taxes and the effect of translation
of foreign entities in the amount of Ps. 721,847 (Ps. 1, 111,208 in 2002).

e) In conformity with the Mexican Corporations Act, at least 5% of the net income of
each year must be appropriated to increase the legal reserve until it reaches 20% of the
capital stock issued and outstanding.

Subsequent event

From the period of January 1 through February 27, 2004, the Company repurchased 20,025
(thousand) shares. At the date of the audit report on these financial statements, there are
315,762,277 treasury shares for re-placement.

19. Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employee Profit Sharing

a) Mexico

1) Income tax shown in the statements of income corresponds to income tax determined
individually for the Company and for each of its subsidiaries. In addition, the Ministry of
Finance and Public Credit authorized América Moévil to consolidate its tax results with the result
of its Mexican subsidiaries, except for GCA (poner nombre de la compaiiia), effective January 1,
2002.
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19. Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employee Profit Sharing (continued)
a) Mexico (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company reported a tax loss of Ps. 96,915 (Ps.
94,515 nominal amount). In 2002, the Company reported taxable income of
Ps. 10,850, against which it carried forward tax losses from prior years of Ps. 753 (the Company
reported a tax loss of Ps. 716 in 2001).

2) The 1.8% asset tax is computed on the average value of most assets net of certain liabilities.
Since asset tax may be credited against income tax, the former is actually payable only to the
extent that it exceeds income tax. Asset tax for the year ended December 31, 2003 was Ps. 10,443
(Ps. 2,487 of asset tax from previous years). Asset tax actually paid in a given year may be
recovered, restated for inflation, in any of the succeeding ten years in which income tax exceeds
asset tax.

3) The corporate income tax rate for 2003 and 2002 was 34% and 35%, respectively. However,
through December 31, 2001, corporate taxpayers had the option of deferring a portion, so that the
tax payable for those years represented 30% of taxable income. The earnings on which there was
a deferral of taxes had to be controlled in a so-called “net reinvested tax profit account”
(“CUFINRE”). This was basically to clearly identify the earnings on which the taxpayer had
opted to defer payment of corporate income tax. The option of defemng a portion of annual
income tax was eliminated effective January 1, 2002.

Since the Company opted for this tax deferral, earnings will be considered to be distributed first
from the “CUFINRE” account and any excess will be paid from the “net tax profit account”
(“CUFIN”) so as to pay the 5% deferred tax.

4) Any distribution of earnings in excess of the above-mentioned account balances will be subject
to payment of corporate income tax at the enacted rate at that time.

5) An analysis of income tax charged to results of operations for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002
Current year income tax of Mexican subsidiaries Ps. 2,642,174 Ps.3,313,567
Current year income tax of foreign subsidiaries 555,117 282,720
Deferred income tax 27,147 ( 389,072)
Total Ps. 3,224,438 Ps.3,207,215

6) At December 31, 2003, the balance of the Restated Contributed Capital Account (CUCA), the
Net Tax Profit account (CUFIN), and Net Reinvested Tax Profit account (CUFINRE) are Ps.
4,510,727, Ps. 8,432,767 and Ps. 8,209, respectively (Ps. 4,510,727, Ps. 8,168,267 and Ps. 8,209
in 2002).
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19. Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employee Profit Sharing (continued)

a) Mexico (continued)

7) A reconciliation of the statutory corporate income tax rate to the effective rate recognized by
the Company for financial reporting purposes is as follows:

Statutory income tax rate in Mexico

Financing costs
Goodwill
Recoverable taxes
Asset tax

Transactions of subsidiaries abroad
Sale of shares of affiliates

Others

Effective tax rate on Mexican operations
Revenues and costs of foreign subsidiaries

Effective tax rate

2003 2002
34.0% 35.0%
727 0.2
3.2 0.5
(7.4) -

7.5 -
(10.4) .

- (4.5)
3.43 (2.9)
37.6 283

(20.3) 2.0)
17.3% 26.3%

8) The temporary differences on which the Company recognized deferred taxes in the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, were as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Liability provisions

Other

Deferred revenues
Tax losses

Asset tax

Deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets

- Inventories
Sale and lease back

Licenses

Valuation allowance
Deferred income tax liability

2003 2002

Ps. ( 434,134) Ps. (1,201,044)
( 164,117) 69,462)
( 782,689) 488.471)
(19,415,402) (5,672,294)
(12,930 (_10.823)
(20,809,716) (7,442,094)
2,539,064 1,883,678
935,909 723,853
889,290 -
651,778 583,706
5,016,041 3,191,237
19,386,476 6,380,930

Ps. 3,592,801 Ps. 2,130,073
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19. Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employee Profit Sharing (continued)
a) Mexico (continued)

On January 1, 2002, an annual one-percentage point decrease in the income tax rate was
approved, starting in 2003, so that in 2005 the rate will be 32%. The effect of the tax rate change
on the computation of deferred taxes was a credit to income for the year ended December 31,
2003 of approximately Ps. 130 million.

9) Telcel is legally required to pay employee profit sharing in addition to the compensations and
benefits to which employees are contractually entitled. The statutory employee profit sharing rate
in 2003, 2002 and 2001 was 10% of taxable income.

b) Foreign subsidiaries

The foreign subsidiaries determine their income tax based on the individual results of each
subsidiary and in conformity with the specific tax regimes of each country. The combined pretax
(loss) income of these subsidiaries in 2001, 2002 and 2003  were
Ps.(2,449,956), Ps. 1,330,656, Ps. 3,759,371, respectively, and their combined income tax
provisions were Ps. 119,925, Ps. 282,692 and Ps. 555,117, respectively.

At December 31, 2003, an analysis of available tax loss carryforward of foreign subsidiaries is as
follows:

Million of pesos at December 31, 2003

Years Brazil Argentina USA Colombia  Ecuador
1997  Ps. 45 Ps. 12

1998 1,540 408

1999 11,116 Ps. 83 390 Ps. 81
2000 7,721 949 1,786 Ps. 1,243 460
2001 9,125 517 1,223 1,180 348
2002 . 1,758 5,191 94 162 116
2003 4,628 641 - 46

Ps.

41,933 Ps.

7,381 Ps.

3,913 Ps.

2,585 Ps. 1,051

In Brazil there is no time limit on the carryforward of tax losses; however, the carryforward in
each year may not exceed 30% of taxable income for such year.

In Argentina, tax losses reported in a given year may be carried forward against taxable income
generated in the next five years.

49.



1)

p

AMERICA TELECOM, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Thousands of Mexican pesos with purchasing power
at December 31, 2003)

19. Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employee Profit Sharing (continued)
b) Foreign subsidiaries (continued)

Through 2002, tax losses incurred in Colombia could be carried forward against taxable income
generated in the next five years, with no restrictions whatsoever. As of 2003, the tax loss of a
given year may be carried forward only against taxable income generated in the next eight years,
without exceeding 25% of income generated in any given year.

Tracfone experienced a change in ownership as defined by section 382 of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code, under which, there is an annual limitation on Tracfone’s ability to realize the
benefit of its loss carryforward. Accordingly, some or all of the Tracfone’s losses might not be
carried forward in the future.

In Ecuador the tax loss reported in a given year may be carried forward only against taxable
income generated in the next five years, without exceeding 25% of income generated in each of
those years.

In Guatemala and El Salvador, current year tax losses may not be carried forward against future
income.

20. Stock Option Plan

In September 2001, América Mdvil established a stock option plan for most of its senior
executives. The plan is for a duration of four years, and as many as 3,215,000 million series “L”
own shares may be made available. The subscription price for the 2001 plan is P. 1.00 per share.
Participants under the plan may exercise 25% of the options during 2001, 25% during 2002, 25%
during 2003, and the remaining 25% during 2004. Because the options do not expire if not
exercised in a particular year, a participant could theoretically wait until the fourth anniversary of
the plan to exercise 100% of the options granted. During 2002 and 2003, América Movil
established second and third option plans, respectively, each of which functions under the same
rules as the 2001 plan, except that the second plan established in 2002 has a one-year lag while
the third plan established in 2003 has a two-year lag. Additional series “L” treasury shares were
assigned to such plans. At December 31, 2003, a total of 5,080,750 series “L” shares have been
acquired by employees under the stock option plans. At December 31, 2003, the difference
between the market value of the total authorized shares and the subscription price is charged to
results of operations.

21. Segments

América Telecom operates primarily in one segment (cellular services); however, as mentioned
in Note 1b above, the Company has international telecommunications operations in Mexico,
Guatemala, Nicaragua, Ecuador, El Salvador, Brazil, Argentina, Colombia and the United States.
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2. The following
summary shows the most important segment information: ‘
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PARTI
Item 3. Key Information .
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

This annual report inchades our audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2002
and 2003 and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003. Our financial staternents have
been prepared in accordance with Mexican GAAP and presented in Mexican pesos. The financial
statements of our non-Mexican subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform to Mexican GAAP and
translated to Mexican pesos. See Note 2(g) to our audited financial statements.

MmmGAAPthﬁasmmmrespects&omUSGAAP Note 23 to the audited financial
statements provides a description of the principal diffe Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP,
as they relare to us, a reconciliation to U.S. GAAPufopumgmour net income and total stockholders”
equity and a condensed statement of cash flows under US. GAAP.

Pursuant to Mexican GAAP, in our financial statements and the selected financial information set
forth below:

. mmmyasﬁ(xmlu&ngphnnmmdeqnpmmomemmgn)md
stockholders” equity are restated for inflation based on the Mexican National Consumer Prce
Index: plant, property and equipment of non-Mexican origin are restated based on the rate of
mflation in the courry of origin and converted into Mexican pesos using the prevailing
exchange rate at the balance sheet date;

o gains and losses in purchasing power from holding monetary Liabalities o assets are recognized

in income; and

o all financial statements are restated in constant pesos as of December 31, 2003.

The effect of inflation accounting under Mexican GAAP has not been reversed in the reconciliation to
U.S. GAAP of net income and stockholders” equity, exospt with respect to the methodology for .
restatement of imparted telephone plant. See Note 23 to the audited financial statements.

This a2nnual report also meludes audited financial statements of Telecom Amernicas for the year
ended December 31, 2001 and, for comparative purposes only, for the 186-day period ended December
31,2000. The audited financial statements of Telecom Americas have been prepared on a consolidated
basis tn accordance with U.S. GAAP and presented in U.S. dollars.

References berein 10 “U.S.§" are to U.S. dollars. References herein to “pesos,” “P.” or “Ps.”
are 1o Mexican pesos.

This anmal report contzins translations of various peso amounts wmto U.S. dollars at specified rates
solely for your conventence. You should not construe these translations as representations by us that the
pominal peso of constant peso amounts actually represent the U.S. dollar amounts or could be coaverted
into US. doliars at the rate indicated. Unless otherwise indicated, we have translated U.S. dallar amounts
from constant pesos at the exchange rate of Ps. 11.2360 to U.S.$1.00, which was the rate reported by
Banco de México for December 31, 2003.
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The selected financial and operating information set forth below has been derived in part from our
andited financial statements, which have been reported on by Mancera S.C., a member practice of Emst
& Young Global, independent auditors. The selected financial and operating information should be read in
conjunction with, and 15 qualified in its emtirety by reference to, our andited financial statements.

As of and for the vear ended December 31,

M;jwity net income (loss).......
Majuisy net income (loss) per

Basn:(!}._u ....................
Ditutetk4) .- v e

Majority :;ehm::um(!rsu)~
Mu)unynﬂmm(bss)pu

Bast(3) s
DAIBAA) e

~

1599(1) 2000 2001 1002 2003 2083
{millions of pesos as of D ber 31, 2003)(2) (millions of
US. dellars)2)
Ps, 18010 - Ps. 33073 Ps. 45457 Ps. 543 Px 85941 USS 769
15,453 29.880 38783 3 61581 600
1,737 3395 4920 8606 13878 1,235
2557 3,193 6674 12980 17,960 1559
G317 (1196 665 103 2123) (189)
5010 ol (®10} 4784 15,032 1338
Q35 007 ©07) 036 116 0.0
035 0.07 ©07) 036 116 010
- - 0040 0044 0.060 0.002

- 0030 0043 0056 0005

- - 13,199 1313 12512 -

- - 13,199 1313 12914 -
Px 18237 Ps. 33490 Ps 45457 Ps. 5973 Ps. 85941 USS 759
16360 31308 39316 46431 61,405 599
1931 3,606 5496 8138 13,368 1,190
1,868 218 6,141 13312 18,536 165
G.612) 1480 1y n (1973 (176)
3,140 @ €70) 6037 14,899 132
o 0m) ©.05) 046 115 010
021 ©8) 005 046 115 010

(see foomotes on following page)
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As of and for the year ended December 31,

1999(1) 2000 2001 2002 2003 2003
{millions of pesos as of D ber 31, 2003)(2) (milions of
U.S. dollars)2)

Ps. 14610 Ps. 37557 Ps. 43634 Ps. €94 P LI USS 6313

6995 100,857 101,233 117538 149979 13349
460 7.636 6928 10,637 12,108 1078
251 1,340 16674 37399 37,205 334
65472 75,136 62,233 SL146 212 6,160
- L4 31,201 31,193 3L19 278

- 366 3807 3547 3647 3647

- » 315 31 wm m

- 10,405 9,077 97 8910 8910

Ps. 15034 Ps. 37657 Ps 47118 Ps. 6413 Ps. 76893 USS 6843

8,756 1R875 105,993 120611 158,586 14,114
- 7,132 6,928 10637 12,108 1978
2,868 1357 16,674 3799 37,205 33m
86 2421 822 125 5,009 454
63458 7,030 8,615 50,389 71,167 6334
- 31,617 31,594 31,587 31,585 2811
17,124 26,594 31,60 $725 -

- 353% 188% B4% -

[4)] WmlmmmeMWMJT&M&Nm SA deCV. (Telmex),
pesaticns of the entities that Tebmex tansferred to us in the spin-off that established
AmmuMwﬂmSeptmi:aZOOO

@  Exoept per share data.

() For 1999, based on 14,485 million shares outstanding at September 25, 2000, the date América Moril was esablished. For
2000, assames 14,485 million shares cutstanding £or the peniod prior to September 25, 2000. We have not inchaded net
incotne of dividends on a pes ADS basis. Each L Share ADS represents 20 L Shares and each A Share ADS represents 20 A
Shares.

&) For 1999, besed oo 14,485 miltion dilned shares oxtstanding at Septernber 25, 2000, the date América Mowil was
established. For 2000, assumes 14,485 million diluted shares owstanding for the period priat to September 25, 2000. We
have not included net income or dividends on a per ADSbagit. Each L Share ADS represents 20 L Shares and each A Share
ADSrmZOAShzu

) Naomi Figures provided rep the anmmal dividend declared at the general shareholders’ meeting.

(®) Nominal smounts. For more infonmation oo dividends paid per shars lated into U'S. dollars, see “Fnancials
Dividends” under Item 8. Amount in U.S. dollars tranzlated at the exchange rate co each of the respective psyment dates.

(M Inclodes ounority interest.
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EXCHANGE RATES

Mexico has a free market for foreign exchange, and the Mexican government allows the peso 10
float freely against the US. doliar. The peso was relatively stable from 1999 until 2001. In 2002 and
2003, the peso declined m valne aginst the U.S. dollar. Thers can be no assurances that the government
will maintatn its current policies with regard to the peso or that the peso will not further depreciate o
appreciate sigmficantly in the fisure.
noon buying rate in New York City for cable transfers in pesos published by the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York, expressed in pesos per U.S. dollar. Thexmhzvenmhemmdmccmt:mnmmcy

units and therefore represent nominal historical figares.
Figh Low Average(l) Period End
92430 10.6000 95630 94800
9.1830 10.0870 94717 9.6180
9.0270 9.8850 89386 9.1560
9.0000 10.4250 © 96630 10.4250
10.1130 11.4060 10.8463 112420
103210 10.9780
10.7740 11.0640
10.6610 112350
103080 10.7700
10.1130 104240
e 102240 10.7390
Ry . 103390 10.5850
August . 10.5900 11.0600
September ...t 10.8600 11.0400
October 105690 113180
10.9790 113950
11.1730 11.4060
10.8050 11.0970
10.9095 112450
105180 11.2290
11.1570 114315
11.3815 11.6350

()  Average of month-end rates.
On June 25, 2004, the noon buying rate was Ps. 11.3150 to U.S.$1.00.
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roxwmmomc STATEMENTS

This annual report contains forward-looking statements. We may from time to time make
forward-looking statements in our periodic reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Forms
20-F and 6-K, in our annual report to shareholders, in offening circulars and prospectuses, in press releases
and other written materials, and in oral statements made by our officers, directors or employess to
mmmmdﬂxmmm Examples of such forward-

e  projections of operating revenues, net income (foss), net income (loss) per share, capital

expenditures, dividends, capital structure or other financial ftems or ratios;

o statements of our plass, obyectives or goals, mchxding those relating to competition, reguiation
and rates;
o  statements sbout our future economic performance or that of Mexico or other countries 1
which we operate;
* competitive developments in the telecomymmications sector in each of the markets where we
currently opetate;,
. mm«mmﬂxmmwwmw
amdmmmpsnaﬂrznd
. of e the focogo
We use words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” *‘mmd, “target,” “estimate,”
“project,” “predict,” “forecast,” “gndeline,” “should™ and other sirnilar expressions to identify forward-
loohngm,bmdxymmtﬂronlymwtxdmnfywdlm
Forward-{ooking statements involve inherent risks and uncertatnties. We caution you that a
number of important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the plans, objectives,
expectations, estimates and intentions expressed m such forward-looking statements. These factors, some
of which are discussed under “Risk Factors,” incinde ecanomic and political conditions and govemment
policies in Mexico, Brazil or elsewhere, inflation rates, exchange rates, regulatory developments,
technobgical tmprovernents, custorner demand and competition. We caution you that the foregoing list of
factors is pot exclusive and that other risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to differ matenially
from those in forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements speak onty as of the date they are made. We do not undertake any
obhigation to update such statements i light of new information or firure developments.
You should evaluate any statements made by us in light of these important factors.
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RISK FACTORS
Risks Relating To Qur Businesses

Substantial and increasing competition in the wireless industry could adversely affect the
revennes and profitability of our business

Our wireless businesses face substantial competition, typically from at least one other wireless
provider, and increasingly from muiltiple providers. We also face competition from fixed-lme telephone
companies and, increasingly, other service providers such as cable, paging and Intemnet companies.

We expect that competition will tntensify in the futare as a result of the entry of new competitors,
the development of new technologies, products and services, and the auction in each of the jurisdictions i
which we operate of additional spectrum. We also expect the current consolidation trend in the wireless
industry to continue, a5 companties respond to the need for cost reduction and additional spectnm. This
trend may result in larger competitors with greater financial, technical, promotional and other resources to
compete with our businesses.

Among other things, our competitors could:

o  provide increased handset subsidies;

o offer higher conumissions to retailers;

. wmi&ﬁum«odmmim(sﬁd:aslmam);

o expand their networks faster; or

o develop and deploy improved wireless technologies faster.

We anticipate that competition will lead to increases in advertising and promotional spendmg, along
with increased demznds on access to distribution channels. In addition, poctability requirernents, winch
enable customers to switch wireless providers without changing their wireless mumbers, have been
introduced in some of our matkets and may be mtroduced in other markets i the fimxe. These
Jevelopments may lead to smaller operating margins, greater choices for customers, possible consumer
confission and increasing movement of customers among competitors, which may make it difficult for us to
setain custemers or add new customers. The cost of adding new customers may also continie to
ncrease, reducing profitability even if customer growth contimes.

Our ability to compete successfully will depend on customer service, on matketing and on our
ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive factors affecting the telecommmmcations mdustry,
incinding new services, changes in consumer peeferences, demographic trends, economic conditions and
disoount pricing strategies by competitors. If we are unable to respond to competition and compensate for
declining prices by addmg new customers, increasing usage and offering new services, our revenues and
profitability could dectine.

Changes in government regulation could hurt onr businesses

Our businesses are subject o extensive government regulation and can be adversely affected by
changes in law, regulation or regulatory policy. The licensing, construction, operation, sale, resale and
intercomection amangements of wirebess telecommmmications systems in Latin Amenica and elsewhere
are regulated to varying degrees by govermment or regulatory authorities. Aty of these authorities having
jurisdiction over our businesses could adopt or change regulations of take other actions that could
adversely affect our operations. In particular, the regulation of prices operators may charge for thesr
services could have a material adverse effect on us by reducing our profit margins. In Mexico, Telcel's
business 15 subject to extensive government regulation, principally by the Comusion Federal de

6
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Telecommmicaciones (Federal Telecommmunications Commission, or “Cofetel™) and the Comisitn Federal
de Campetencia (Federal Competition Commission, of ‘Cofeco”),andmybeadvusdyaﬁecwdby
changes in faw or by actions of Mexican regulatory authorities.

The Mexican Commumcations Ministry 1s autharized to mpose specific rate and other
requirements oa any wireless operator that is determined by Cofeco to have substantial market power.
‘While no such determtnarion has been made with respect to the wireless market tn Mexico, we can
provide no assurances that the regulatory authorities will not make such a determination with respect to
Teloe! and impose specific rate requirements or other special regulzations on us, such as additional
requirements regarding disclosure of information or quality of service. Any such new regulation could
have a material adverse effect on our operations. :

Many Latin American countries are m the process of deregulating and privatizing the provision of
commumications services, inchsding wireless services, and many of the laws, regulations and ficenses that
regulate our businesses, including in Argentina, Brazil, Colombsa, Ecuador, El Saivador, Guatemnala and
Nicaragua, became effective only recently. Consequently, there 1s onty a himited history that would allow
us to predict the impact of these legal regulations on our future operations. In addition, changes m political
administrations could fead to the adoption of policies conceming competition, privatization and taxation of
commumications services that may be detrimental to our operations throughout Latin America. These
restrictions, which may take the form of preferences for local over foreign ownership of commmications
icenses and assets, or for govemment over private ownership, may make it impossible for us to contme
to develop our businesses. These restrictions could result in our incurring losses of revenes and require
capital investments all of which could matenally adversely affect our businesses and results of operations.

We will, in the fisture, either have to acquire additional radio spectrum capacity or bufld more
cell and switch sites in Mexico In order to expand our customer base and maintain the guality
of our services

Licensed radio spectrum is essential to our growth and the quality of our services, particularty for
GSM services. In onder to utibize less spectrum, we could increase the density of our network by building
more cell and switch sites, but such raeasures could be costly and would be subject to local restrictions and
approvals.

The Mexican government has not aucticoed additional spectrum since 1998, In 2003, wedeuded
10 acquire capacity services from Operadora Unefon in the 1900 megahestz spectrum for a peniod of 16
years. The Mexican govemment has amounced that st intends to auction 1900 megahertz spectrum during
2004, and we expect 1o participate tn any such anction. Prior to participating in any auction for spectrum,
each participant must obtain an authorization from Cofisco. A separate anthornization s required for each
auction, and spectram for each region is auctioned separately. Cofeco has broad discretion in granting
such authorzations, and Cofeco may take into account factors such as competition and capacity utitization
poior to granting any authorization to Telcel to participate m any auction.

n 1998, Cofeco did not allow Teleed to participate in certain spectrum anctions, but we believe
that the reasons for Cofeco’s denial are no longer applicable given the entry of new competitors in the
Mexican market and our spm-off from Telmex. Athough we believe that Cofeco should authorize Telcel
to participate in firture spectrum auctions, we can give no assurance that it will do so. We cannot assure
you that, if additional spectram is awarded to us by the Mexican govemnment, a third party will not appeal
the result of such bidding process. Any restrictions on our abality to acquire or use spectrum may have a
matenial effect an our business.

Our essions and b are subject to terminati
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The terms of our concessions and licenses typically require the operator to meet specified netwark
build-out requirernents and schedules, as well as to maintatn mimmum quality, service and coverage
standards,  If we fail to comptly with these and other criteria, the result could be revocation of our
concessions or licenses, the mmposition of fines or ather govemment actions. Our ability to comply with
these critenia is subject in certain respects to factors beyond cur control. We cannot assure you that our
ntemational businesses will be able to comply fully with the terms of their concessions or licenses.

n Mexico, the Mexican telecommmmnications law and Telcel’s concessions inctude vanious
provisions under which the concessions may be terminated by the Mexican Commmmnications Mimistry
before their scheduled expiration dates. Among other things, these concessions may be terminated if we
fail to meet specified network build-out requirements and schedules o to maintain mintmem quality,
service and coverage standards by, for example, interrupting service without jostified cause or failing to
meet interconnection requirements. Also, the Mexican telecommumications Lrw gives certain nights to the
hmmwﬂmghngmwmnmgmwmmmawub
over the management of Telcel’s networks, facilities and p { in cases of mmmi danger to national
secunty, internal peace or the national econonyy, namraldmm-szndpnbhcmrst. The loss of any one
concession could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

We have invested in countries in which we have limited experience, ond we may be
unsuccessful in addressing the new challenges and risks they present

Wehwmmdmagmwmgmmbuoﬂehcmmhsmwmdeww
core activity of providing wireless telecommunications services in Mexico, and we plan to continne to do
so i the rest of Latin America  These investments have been made in some countries in which we have
little expenience and may mvolve nisks to which we have not previousty been exposed. Some of the
nvestments are in countries that may present different or greater risks than Mexico, such as Argentina,
Brazil, Colombia, Ecuador, E] Salvador, Guatemala and Nicaragua. Many of these businesses are start-up
or development-stage compantes with eapeoven business models and mexperienced management that in
some cases will require substantial investments in the near future. We cannot assure you that these
mvestmens will be soccessful.

We are subject to significant litigation
Some of our subsudiaries are subject to significant litigation, which if determined adversely to our
interests may have a matenal adverse effect o our business, results of aperations, financial condition or
. In Mexico, Telcel 15 subject to proceedings for alieged antitrust practices. We camnot predict
how these proceedings will be resolved and, if resolved contrary to our tterests, what fines or restrictions
may be imposed on our Mexican operations. These restrictions, which could be imposed by means of
special regulations, may include significant limitations on our ability to conduct business as cumently
conducted Other significant Litigation is described in “Legal Proceedings™ under Item 8.
A system failure could cause delays or interruptions of service, which conld cause us to lose
customers
We will peed to contime to provide our subseribers with reliable service over our network. Some
of the risks to our network and mfrastracture incide the following:
s physical damage to acoess lines;
*  power surges or outages;
o software defects; and

*  disruptions beyond our comrol.
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Disruptions may cause interruptions in servioe or reduced capacity for customers, either of which could
cause us 1o lose subscribers and incur additional expenses.
If our current churn rate increases, our business conld be negatively affected

The cost of acquiring a new subscriber is much higher than the cost of maintaining an existing
subscriber. Accordingly, subscriber deactivations, ar chum, could have a material negative smpact on our
operating income, even if we are able to obtain one new subscriber for each lost subscriber. Becavse a
substantial majority of our subscribers are prepaid, we do not have long-term contracts with those
subscribers. Our weighted monthly average chum rate for the twelve-month period ended December 31,
2003 was 2.9% as compared to 3.2% for the twelve -month period ended December 31, 2002. If we
cxpmmanmeasemuurdmmm: owabxlnytoachmrercvumegmwﬂlcouldbemmaﬂy

Risks Relating to the Wireless Industry Generally
Changes in the wireless industry conld affect our fusure financial performance

The wireless commmmications mdustry is expeniencing significant change. These changes incinde,
zmong others, the increasing pace of digital upgrades in existing analog wireless systems, evolving industry
standards, ongoing improvements in the capacity and quality of digital tecknology, shorter development
eyeles for new products, and changes m end-user needs and preferences. In Mexico and m the other
countriss in which we conduct husiness, there is uncertainty as to the pace and extent of growth m
subscriber denuand, and as to the extent to which prices for airtime and line rental may contime to declme.

There are three existing digital technologies for wireless comnmmications, none of which is
compatible with the others. In the past, Telce! and certain of our intemanonal businesses used time
division muitiple access (TDMA) technology for their digital netoorks, white certain of our other
intemational businesses used code division omltiple access (CDMA) as their digital wireless technology.
We are mtrochxcing global system for mobile commmnications (GSM) technology m all of our markets.
Telce! launched GSM services in Mexico in October 2002, and we began offering GSM services
Arpentina, Brazil, Colombia, Ecuador and Guatenmala during 2003. If fisture wireless technologies that gain
widespread acceptance are not compatible with the tecimologres we use, we may be required to make
capital expenditures in excess of our current forecasts in order to upgrade and replace our technology and
mfrastructure.

We are dep upon a lipited ber of suppliers and vendors to provide us with services
or eguipment on o timely and cosk¢ffective basis

Each of our wireless businesses relies primanly on a single vendor for its switch and cell site
equipment and on a single supplier or small group of suppliers for its handsets and other ¢
equipment. 1f we had to replace a primary supplier of switch and cell site equipment because, for
example, it ceased to provide timely or cost-effective equipment o service, the transttion to another -
supplier could entail detays and additional costs. Suppties of customer equipment may be subject to
pesiodic shortages, and our abelity to grow will be limited if we cannot rely on our suppliers w ensure
sufficient quantities and quality of equipment

e may hicur significant losses from wireless fraud and from our failure o successfully
wanage collections

Our wireless businesses incur losses and costs associated with the unmuthonized use of these
wireless aetwaorks, particularty their analog celtular networks. These costs indde admimsmative and

.
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capital costs associated with detecting, monitoring and reducing the incidence of fraud. Fraud also affects
interconnection costs, capacity costs, administrative costs and payments to other carriers for unbillable
fraudulert roammg. In the year ended December 31, 2003, Telcel refunded to 1ts customers
approxumately Ps. 1.53 million due to wireless fraud.  Although we seek to cambat this problem throngh
the deployment of anti-frand techmologies and other measures, we cannot assure you that these efforts wll
be effective or that fraud will not result in matenial costs for us i the fisture.

Cloning, which 15 cne form of wireless fraud, involves the use of scanners and other electronic
devices to obtam illegally telephone munbers and electranic seral mumbers during cellular transmission.
Stolen telephone and senal mumber combinations can be programmed into a celular phone 2nd used to
obtain tmproper acoess to celhilar networks. Roaming fraud oocurs when a phone programmed with a
number stolen from one of our subscribers is used to place fraudulent calls from another camier’s markest,
resulting in a roaming fee charged to us that cannot be collected from the subseriber.

Concerns about health risks relating to the use of wireless handsets and base stotions may
adversely affect our business
Media and other reports have linked radio frequency emissions from wireless handsets and base

stations to various health conoerns, incloding cancer, and to interference with vanaus electronic medical
devices, including hearing aids and pacemakers. Although we do not know of any definitive studies
showing that racio frequency emissions raise heatth concerns, concerns over radio frequency emissions
may discourage the use of wireless handsets, which could have a matenial adverse effect cn our results of
35 a fesult of these concems. In addition, lawsurts have been filed in the United States against cerin
participants in the wireless imdustry alleging various adverse health consequences as a result of wireless
phone usage, and our businesses may be subject to sinular litigation i the fiuture. Research and studies
are ongoing, and there can be 1o assurance that firther research and studies will not demonstrate a link
adversely affect the use of wireless handsets and, as a result, our fiture financial performance.
Risks Relating to Our Controlling Shareholders, Capital Structure and Transactions with
Affiliates

We are controlled by one shareholder

As of Apal 30, 2004, 64.49% of our voting shares was directly or ndirectly owned by Aménica
Telecom, S A de C.V. Acconding to reports of benefictal ownership of our shares filed with the SEC,
Carlos Skim Heh, the Chairman of our Board of Directors, and certain members of bis immediate family,
inchxding his son and member of our Board of Directors, Patrick Shm Domit, together own a majonty of
the voting stock of América Telecom América Telecom 1s able to elect 2 majority of the members of our
board of directors and to determine the outcome of other actions requiring a vote of our shareholders,
except m very himited cases that recuuire a vote of the holders of L Shares.

We have significant transactions with affiliates
We engage in transactions with Teléfonos de México, S.A. de CV., ar “Telmex,” and certain
subsidiaries of Grupo Carso, S.A. de C.V. and Grupo Financiero Inbursa, S A de C.V,, all of which are
affiiates of América Mgwil. Many of these transactions occur in the ordiary course of business and
the case of transactions with Telmex, are subject to applicable telecommminications regulations in Mexico.
Transactions with affiliates may create the potential for conflicts of interest.

10
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The protections afforded 10 minorily shareholders in Mexico are different from those in the
United States

Under Mexican law, the protections afforded 1o minoaity sharebolders are different from those in
the United States. In pareular, the baw concerning fiduciary duties of directors 15 not as fully developed
s i other funisdictions, there is no procedure for class actions or shareholder derivative actions, and there
are different procedural requirements for bringing shareholder lawsuits. As a result, in practice it may be
more difficult for minority shareholders of Aménica Movil to enforce their rights against s or our directors
of comrolling sharehalder than it would be for shareholders of a company incorparated in another
sansdiction, such as the United States.

Holders of L Shares and L Share ADSs have limited voting rights, and holders of ADS's may
vote only through the depositary
Our bylaws provide that holders of L Shares are not permitted to vote except on such hmited
matters as the transformation or mesper of América Mévil o the cancellation of registration of the
L Shares with the Mexican National Banlang and Secunities Commission of any stock exchange on which
they are isted. If you hold L Shares ar L Share ADSs, you will not be able to vote on most matters,
inchuding the declaration of dividends, that are subject 10 a shareholder vore in accordance with our
bylaws,
Holders of ADS's are not entitled to atrend shareholders’ meetings, and they may only vote
through the depository
Under Mexican law, a shareholder is required to deposit its shares with a Mexican custodian in
order to attend 3 shareholders™ meeting. A holder of ADSs will not be able to meet ths requuirernent. and
accordingly 13 not entitled to attend sharsholders’ meetings. A holder of ADSs is entitied to mstruct the
depositary as to how 1o vote the shares represemtad by ADSs, in accordance with procedures provided for
in the deposit agreements, but a holder of ADSs will not be able to vote its shares directly at a
shareholders' mesting of to appoint a proxy t do so.

You may not be entitled to participate in future preempftive rights offerings

Under Mexican law, if we issue new shares for cash as part of a capita] increase, we generally
must grant our shareholders the right to purchase a sufficient number of shares to maintain therr existing
ownership percentage in Aménica Mévil Rights to purchase shares n these circumstances are known as
preemptive rights. We may not legally be permitted to allow hoiders of ADSs or holders of L Shares or -
A Shares in the United States to exercise any preemptive tights in any fiture capital increase unless we
file a registration statement with the U.S. Secumities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, with respect to
that firure tssuance of shares. At the time of any future capital increase, we will evaluate the costs and
potential liabikities associated with filing a registration statement with the SEC and any other factors that
'we consider fmportant to determine whether we will file such a registration statement.

We cannot assure you that we will file a registration statemert with the SEC to allow holders of
ADSs or U.S. bolders of L Shares or A Shares to participate in a preemptive rights offering. As a result,
the equity mierest of such holders in Aménica Mévil be diluted propartionately. In addition, under current
Mexican law, it is nor practicable foc the depositary to sell preemptive nights and distribute the proceeds
from such sales to ADS holders.

Ounr byvlaws restrict transfers of shares in some circumstances

Our bylaws provide that any acquisition or transfer of more than 10% of our capital stock by any
person ar group of persons acting together requires the approval of our Board of Directors. If you acquire
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Board of Directoss.

Mexican law and our bylaws restrict the ability of non-Mexican shareholders to invoke the
protection of their governments swith respect to their rights as shareholders
As required by Mexican taw, our bylaws provide that non-Mexican shareholders shall be
considered as Mexicans in sespect of their ownership mrerests i América Movil and shall be deemed to
have agreed not to mvoke the protection of their governments in certain cirawnstances. Under this
provision, a non-Mexican shareholder is deemed to have a2gresd not to invoke the protection of his own
government by askang such government to mterpose 3 diplomatic claim against the Maxican goverxment
with respect to the shareholder’s rights as a shareholder, but is not deemed to have waived any other
nights it may have, inchxding any rights under the U.S. securitiss Laws, with respect to its investment m
Aménica Movil If you invoke such governmental protection in violation of this agr your shares
could be forfeited to the Mexican government.
Our bylaws may only be enforced in Mexico
Our bylaws provide that legal actions relating to the execution, mterpretation or performance of
the bylaws may be brought only i Mexican cowts. As a result, it 'y be difficult for non-Mexican
shareholders to enforce their shareholder nights pursuant to the bylaws.
It may be difficult to enforce civil liabilifies against us or our directors, officers and consrolling
persans ’
América Movil is organized under the laws of Mexico, and most of our directors, officers and
controlling persons reside outside the Usited States. In addition, all or a substantial portion of our assets
and their assets are located outside of the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for mvestors to
effect service of process within the United States on such persons of to enforce judgments agamst them,
including in any action based on civil lizbilities under the U.S. federal securities laws. There 1s doubx as to
the enforceabslity against such persons in Mexico, wbethﬂmangmlmormamommmﬁuce
judgments of US. oourts, of hiabilities based solely on the U.S. federal securities laws.

Risks Relating to Developments in Mexico and Other Countries
Latin American economic, political and social condifions may adversely affect our dusiness

Our financial performence may be significantly affected by general economic, political and soctal
conditions m the countries where we operate, particularty Mexico and Brazil. Many courtries m Latin
Armenica, mchuding Mexico and Brazil, have suffered significant economic, political and social crises in the
past, and these events may occur again i the fithwe. Instability in the region has been cansed by many
different factors, tinchuding:

s significant govemmental mfluence over local economies;

»  substantial fluctuations in economic growth;

o high levels of inflation;

o changes in currency values;

* exchange controls ar nestrictions on expatmation of eamings;

e high domestic interest rates;

* wage and price controls;
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* changes i governmental economic or tax policies;

* imposition of trade bamiers;

* unexpected changes in regulation; and

. ” ol and ic instability.

Adverse economic, pokitical and social conditions in Latin America may minbit demand for
wireless services and create uncertainty reganting our operating esnvironment, which could have a material
adverse effect on our company.

Our business is especially affected by conditions in Mexico and Brazil Mexico has experienced 2
prolonged period of slow growth since 2001, pramanly 2s a result of the downtum in the U.S. econorry.
According to preliminary data, darmg 2003, Mexico's gross domestic product, or “GDP,” grew by 13% m
real terms. In 2002, GDP grew by 0.9%. Mexic o has also experienced high levels of tnflation and high
domestic interest rates. The anmmual rate of inflation, as measured by changes in the National Consumer
Price Index as published by the Banco de México, was 4.0% for 2003

Brazil has in the past expenienced exremety high rates of inflation, with anmual rates of mflation
durnng the last ten years reaching as high as 2,489% m 1993 and 929% in 1994, as measured by the
Brazlian National Consumes Price Index. More recently, Brazil's rates of inflation were 9.4% in 2001,
14.7% m 2002 and 10.4% in 2003. Inflation, governmental measures to combat inflation and public
speculation about possible fisture actions have in the past had significant negative effects oo the Brazitian
econcmy.

Depreciation or fluc tuation of the currencies in which we condyct operations relative to the U.S.
dollar could adversely affect onr financial condition and results of aperations

We are affected by fincmations i the value of the currencies in which we conduct operations
compared to the U.S. dollar, in which a substantial portion of our indebtedness is denominated. Changes m
the value of the various cumrencies 1 which we conduct operations agamst the Mexican peso, which we
s as our feporting currency in our financial statements, and against the U.S, dollar may result m
exchange losses or gains on our net US. doflar-denominated indebtedness and accounts payable. In 2003,
changes in cumrency exchange sates led us to report a foreign exchange gam of Ps. 1,355 million (an
amount that 1s equal to 7.5% of our operating income tn 2003), while in 2002 we reported a foreign
exchange loss of Ps. 1,526 million. In addition, currency fluctuations between the Mexican peso and the
currencies of our noa-Mexican subsidianies affect cur results as reported in Mexican pesos, Currency
fluctuations are expected w contime to affect our financial income and expense.

Major devaluation or depreciation of any such currences may also result m disruption of the
mtemational foreign exchange markets and may limit our ability to transfer or to convert such currencies
into U.S. dollars and other camencies for the purpose of making timely payments of interest and principal
on our mdebtedaess. While the Mexican government does not cumrently mstrict, and for many years has
Dot restricted, the night or ability of Mexican or foreign persons or entities to convest. pesos into U.S.
dollars or to transfer other currencies out of Mexico, the govemment could institute restrictive exchange
rate polices in the future.

Additional Mexican taxes and contributions levied on services we offer and on the exploitation
of frequencies could affect onr resnits of operations

Taxes applicable to certain telecommunications services, as well as taxes and contributions on the
exploitation of frequencies, have been enacted from time to time tn Mexico. Taxes or conmitasions of this
nature could adversely affect our business and our results of operations.
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Currently in Mexico, concessionaires for the 800 megahertz (Band B) radio spectrum are required
to pay the Mexican government an anmual fee ranging from 5% to 10% of the gross revenues under such
concessions whereas concessionatres for the 1900 megahertz (Band D) radio spectrum are not required to
pay anmual fees. Pursuant to amendments to the Federal Contribations Law (the Ley Federal de
Derechos) enacted in 2003, owners of concessions in Mexico granted or renewed on or after Jamzary 1,
2003 are required to pay anmual fees (derechos) for the use and explotation of radio spectrum bands. The
amount of anmal fees payable could be significant and vary depending on the relevant region and radio |
spectrarn bend. These anmul fees are payable m respect of all spectram bands. The application of this
fee to renewals of concessions granted prior to 2003 is the subject of debate in Mexico, as it could affect
competitors differently and tmpact competition. Currently we do not expect to renew any of oarr current
concessions until 2010, buz, if permitied, we intend to participate in any auctions for the acquisition of
additional spectrum in Mexico.
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Item 4. Informaticn on the Company
GENERAL

With 43.7 million wireless subscribers in nine countries at December 31, 2003 (compared t0 31.6
million at year-end 2002), we are the largest provider of wireless communications sesvices m Latin
Amenica and one of the ten largest in the world  Because our focus is on Latin Amernica, a substantial
majority of cur wireless subscribers are prepaid customers. We also had approxtmuately 1.6 million fixed
fines i Guaternala and El Salvadar at December 31, 2003, making us the largest fixed-line operator m
Central America. We have recently deployed GSM networks in Mexico, Braztl, Colombia, Ecaador,

Guatemata and Nicaragua, and are in the process of deploying a GSM petwork in Argentina,
Our principal operations are:
o  Mexico. Through Radiomévil Dipsa, S.A. de C.V., which operates under the name “Telcel
we provide cellular telecommunications service i all nine regions m Mexico, with 3 network
i wmﬁy%%ofﬂnmapﬁdmdmhﬂudﬁgaﬂmummd
tmately 81% of Mexico’s population. At December 31, 2003, Teicel had 23.4 million
whsuﬂ:as,dedodudxlngstp(wmofwm&mmmm

o Argentina. In 2003, we aoquired CTI, the fourth largest wireless operator in Argentina

* measured by the numiber of subscribers. CTI provides nationwide wireless services in
Argentina.

s  Braztl With approximately 9.5 million subscribers at December 31, 2003, we are the second
largest provider of wireless telecomumunications services in Brazil We operate in Brazil
through our subsidiary, Teleoom Americas, and 3 number of operating companies. under a
unified brand name, “Claro.” Duning 2003, we significamiy expanded our coverage in Brazil
by acquiring BCP S A. and BSE S.A. BCP is the second Largest wireless provider m the Sio
Paulo metropolitan area  Our network covers the principal cities in Brazil (inchuding Sao
Paulo and Rio de Janeiro) and approximately 140 licensed points of presence. .

o  Central America. We provide fixed-tine and wireless services in Guaternala and El Salvadar,
through our subsidianies Telgua and CTE. We provide wireless services in Nicaragua through
our subsidiary Sercom Nicaragua. The wireless business of Telgua and Sercom Nicaragua
operate under the *PCS Digital” and, for prepaid services, “Alo” brands. We acquired a
coatrolling wnterest tn CTE in 2003. CTE operates under the *“Telecom” brand.

»  Colombia. Our three operating subsidianies in Colombia —Comee], Oceet and Celcaribe—
operate under the “Comcel” brand. We are the largest wireless operator tn the country
mezsured by the aumber of subscribers.

*  Ecuador. Copecel, our subsidiary in Ecuador, is the larpest wireless operator in Ecuador
measured by the mumber of subscribers. Conece] opegates under the “Porta™ brand.

*  United States. Our U.S. subsidiary, TracFone, is engaged in the sale and distribution of
the USS. Virgin Istands.

América Movil, SA de CV. is a corporation {sociedad anéntma de capital vartable) organized
under the laws of Mexico with its principal exsctive offices at Lago Albesto 366, Edificio Telcel I Piso 2,
Colomia Andhniac, 11320, México DF., México. Our telephone mumber at this location is (5255) 2581-
4411,
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Our Markets -

We operate pursuant t0 concessions of licenses to provide wireless telecommunications services
i each of the countries i which we operate. We seek to provide a full range of wireless
telecomnmimications services in each of our markets. Our netwarks are consistently optimized to try to
ensure maxinmm coverage and high quality service. We have recently deployed GSM netwotks in
Mexico, Brazil, Colombia, Ecuador, Guatemala and Nicaragua, and we are in the process of deploying a
GSM network in Argentina. In 2003, we mmvested Ps. 13.7 bithon n our netwarks in capital expenditures.
We also seek to expand market share by exploring strategic acquisition opportunities tn Latin Amenca.

Our principal markets of operations are Mexico and Brazil, the two largest economiss in Latn
America. We are the largest provider of wireless communication services in Mexico and the second
largest in Brazil, based on the mmmber of subscribers at December 31, 2003. Teloal and Telecom
Amesnicas combinad representad 74.3% of our operating revenues in 2003. In 2003, the Mexican Finance
Ministry estimates that the Mexican economy grew at a rate of 1.5% per annum and has projected
ecanomic gronvth of 3.5% for 2004. In Brazil, the economy comracted at a rate of 0.2% in 2003
according to the Brazilian Mimistry of Economy, and economic growth in 2004 is projected at 3.5%. We
believe that econommc growth in these two key countries will enhance our operating revemnes.

We believe our countries of operation offer considerable growth potential Mexico, Brazil,
Argentina, Colombia, Ecuador, E? Salvador, Guatermala and Nicaragna represent a combined estimated
population of 362 mithan, or 67%% of the total estimated population of Latin America of 540 million in 2003.
Our markets are characterized by relatively low fixed lne and wireless penetration rates as compared to
the United States and Europe.

n most of our markets, the regulatory envirorment has becorne increasmgly more open and
flexible over the past decade. These changes have mereased competition as markets have become more
open to new entrants. In Mexico, these changes have exposed us to competition from domestic
competitors and from international operators. In other markets, these changes have allowed us an
opportunity to eater as a competitor and capture market share from local providers.

Our Strategy ,

We mtend to capitalize on our position as the leader in wireless telscommunications in Latin
America to continue to expand our subscriber base, both by development of cur existing businesses and
selected strategic aoquisitions in the region. We seek 1o become 2 leader in each of our markets by
providmg better coverage and services and benefiting from economies of scale. We closely monitor our
costs and expenses, and we will continne to explore altematives to further mnprove our opefating margins.
History

We were established in September 2000 in a spin-off from Teléfonos de México, SA deCV,
also known as Telmex, the largest provider of local and long-distance telephone services i Mexico. The
spin-off was implemented using a procedure under Mexican corparate law called escistén or “split-up.”
The shares of our company were delivered to Telmex shareholders on Febrmary 7, 2001.

Our wireless business in Mexico is conducted through our wholly-owned subsidiary Telcel, which
traces 1ts history to the establishment m 1956 of Publicidad Turistica, S A, an affiliate of Telmex that
published telephone directooes. In 1981, the Mexican Mimstry of Conmmmications and Transportation
granted Publicidad Turistica a conocesston for the installation and operation of a wireless telephone system
i Mexico City. In 1984, Poblicidad Turistica changed its name to Radiomovil Dipsa, SA de C.V, and in
1989, the company began operating under the trademark “Telcel.”
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Between 1988 and 1990, Teloel expanded its celhular network on the 800 megzhertz (Band B)
frequency spectrum to cover the Mexico City metropolitan area and the cities of Cuerravaca,
Guadalajara, Montesrey, Tjuana and Toluca, and m 1990, Telcel began offering celtular services in all nine
geographic regions of Mexico. In 1998, Telcel was awarded the 1900 megaheriz (Band D) frequency
spectrum for personal comnmnications services (PCS) in all nine regions in Mexico m an auction held by
the Mexican government. Teloe! Launched a PCS system in Mexico City in 1999 and cumrently offers the
service 10 all nine geographic regions of Mexico, In October 2002, Telcel launched its GSM network,
which covered approximately 400 cities as of December 31, 2003. In December 2002, the
Commumications Mimstry granted Telcel a new concession to install, operate and exploit a
dmmwﬁmgw&mldmmmlhng—&memamﬂsdzﬂ
transmission services. This concession limits Telcel to provide these services 1o its wireless subseribers
for the first two years, which term can be extended by Cofetel

In 1999, we began acquinng our imtemnational subsidiaries and nvesting o Telecom Americas and
our other international affiliates.

See “—Mexican Operations,” “~—Non-Mexican Operations” and “—Other Investments ”
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Major Subsidiaries and Affiliates .
each such entity and the mam activity of such entity as of the date of this anmsal report.

Ownership
5 {c Irisdiction L @ Main Actich
Sercotel. S.A de C.V. . Mexico 1000%  Holding company
Telee! (Radiomévit Dipsa, S.A de CV) Mexi 100.0 Wireless
SubDipsa Treasurv LLC Ded 100.0 Treasary
CTI Holdings, S.A A 920  Holding company
CTIPCS. SA Argenti 920 Wireless
CTl Compaiiia de Teléfonos del Interior, SA —......... Argentina 920 Wireless
" AM Latin America LLC Del 1000  Holding company
Telecom Americas Ltd B d 915  Bolding company
ATL-Algar Telecom Leste SA..oooooeeecoevvemr. Beazll 975 Wireless
Tess S.A Baz! 915 Wireless
Americel S.A Beazil 96.0 Wireless
Telet SA. Brazil 965 Wireless
BSESA Brxzi! 97.5 Wireless
BCPSA Brazl 975 Wirsless
Stemar Tel icaGes Lida Beazl 975 Wireless
Alecan Tel icacdes Lida Bexzl 915 Wireless
Tel iCaci de G 2. S.A G £ 9.0 Fixed-line
Servicios de C: Py les Fualimbri
S.A G d 9.0 Wireless
Sesvicios de C jcaciones de Ni SA_. Ns 9.0 Wireless
C iiia de Tel icaciones de El Satvador (CTE) ... El Salvador 526  Fixed-line/Wireless
Empresa Ni de Tel jcacs SA
(ENTTELY2) Ni 490  Fixedline/Wireless
Conzmicacion Cetalar S.A. (Comeel) Cotombs 95.1 Wireless
Occidente v Caribe Celular S.A. {Occef) (3).......c...... e Colognbia 934 ° Wireless
Celcanbe SA(4) Colombia 94.0 Wireless
C o E iano de Tel icaci SA
(OCINECEL) Ecuad 1000 Wireless
TracFone Wireless. Inc. Florida 98.2 Wireless
US. Commercial Corp, SA deCV.. ... e Miexico 2907  Holding company
CompUSA. Inc D 2.7 Technology solntiony/
Retailer

(1) Percentage of equity owned by América Movil directly or indirectly through subsidiaries o affiliates.
@ In January 2004, wewqmadlnmonﬂoﬂmg@%mﬂ&mm ENITEL provides fixed, mobile
and other tel services in N g hmm“mdmwwnqmen
additionat 50.03% interest in ENITEL. See "—NonMexi 3 Central America.”
Comeel holds directty 93.8% of Occel, and Améri Mbvﬂbalds irectly 3.6% of Occel.
mmmosm«m,mmwmmmamam.
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MEXICAN OPERATIONS

Our subsidiary Telcel is the leading provider of wireless commmmications services in Mexico. As
of December 31, 2003, Telcel’s cellular network covered 35% of the geographical area of Mexico,
inctuding all major cities, and 81% of Mexico's population  Telce! holds concessions to operate a wireless
petwork in all mune geographic regions mn Mexico using both the 800 megahertz (Band B) and 1500
m:gahnu(BmdD)mdmmm As of December 31, 2003, Teloel had 2pproximarely 234 million

celtular subscribers and, according to Cofete], as of October 2003, an approxinmtely 79% share of the
Mexican wireless market. AppxmnmelylS6mdhunor298%odecdsmlcdhﬂzstbscibusam
located in the Mexico City area.

n 2003, Telcel had revermes of Ps. 52,466 miftion (U.5.54,669 milkion), representing 61.0% of our
consolidated revenues for such period. As of December 31, 2003, Telcel acoounted for approximately
53.6% of our total wireless subscribers.

The following table sets forth mformation on our Mexican operations’ financial results, subscniber
base, coverage and related matters at the dates and for the pentods indic ated:

Decenber 31,
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
(Pose smounts in milions #f cowstant peses 55 of December 31, 2009
Reveroes Ps. 16221 Ps. 25861 Ps. 35461 Ps. 42408 Ps. 52466
Average monthly revenues per subscriber during
ding 12 months(1) 324 b 201 165 1%
Operating i (2) 3500 5965 9.£3¢ 12290 17285
Cellular lines in service (in thonsands)..... ... .. 5272 10,462 16965 20,067 344
Subscriber erowth during preceding 12 months..... 149% 98.4% 21 183% 168%
C y jon(3) 54% 10.7% 169% 19.7% 21%
Average monthly mi of use per subscrid
during preceding 12 months. 0 86 73 &7 8
Cellular call minutes for the oreceding 12 meaths
(:n milkons). 3513 7891 nen 15,082 20358
Employees 4510 6452 7684 7943 8624
1) Avenge fcxtheyw oﬂhemmobhmeduchmmthbydwndmgmeemmbvﬁemb&nf
customers. The figure includes both prepaid and postp and quip sales
revenue.

() See Note 21 to our audited financial statements.
() Number of Telce! cellular lines in service divided by the population of Mexico based cn the latest census
data availsble.

The business of Telcel 1s subject to comprehensive regulation and oversight by the Mexican
Communications Ministry, Cofetel and Cofeco. The Comnmmications Mimistry is part of the exscutive
branch of the Mexican federal govemment, and Cofetel 15 an independent agency of the Commumications
Ministry. Cofeco is an independent agency of the Ministry of Economy. Regu!mandovemgnm
governed by the General Commumications Law, the Federal Law of Telecomnmmications, the
Telecommmnications Regulations adopted under both the General Commumications Law and the Federal
Law of Telecommunications, the Federal Economic Competition Law, 2nd the concessions and license
agreements granted by the Commmnications Ministry. See “~Regulation™
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Services and Products
Voice services
Telcel offers voice services under a vanety of rate plans o meet the needs of different nser
segments. The rate plans are either “postpaid,” where the customer is bifled monthly for the previous
month or “prepaid,” where the customer pays in advance for a specified volume of use over a specified
pesiod.
Telcel's postpaid plans inchude the following charges:
» mm&iydmg&gwbd:wdlyhthﬁeammbuofmﬁnmscfmeﬁmmhchdedin&:
moathly service change;
. usagcchargm,fuusagemmofﬂrspaaﬂedmmbaofmmnnhﬂedm&nuﬁ?y
charge; and

»  additional charges, including charges for data servicss, voicemail, caller ID, call waiting, call

blocking, short text messaging and general information.

Certain plans inchide the cost of roaming and long-distance in the price per mimue so that all calls
usage subscribers, who are typically willing to pay higher monthly fees in exchange for larger blocks of
mimses that are inchaded in the monthly service charge, services such as voicemail, call forwarding, calt
waiting, caller ID and three-way calling, and lower per minute airtime charges under a smgle contract. To
satisfy the more limited needs of low -usage postpaid subscribers, Teleel also offers plans which provide a-
moderately priced, fixed monthly charge coupled with a high per minute atrtime charge and relatively few
subscribe for additional digital services such as voicemail, call forwarding, call waiting, caller ID and three-
way calling, which are all included in the monthly fee. The minimem term of our postpaid plos is one
year.

Teloel adjusts ifs rates based on competitive conditions, inflation rates and mternational standards.
In July 1998, Telce! increased its pominal rates for monthly charges by 7% and usage charges by 5%, and
in April 1999, it increased its nominal rates for monthly charges by 12%. Rawes for postpaid plans have
pot increased since Apnl 1999 and are expected to remam stable as long a5 the Mexican economic
environment remains stable. Telcel offers discounts that reduce the effective rates paid by its customers
based on the time of use, so that calls made during off-peak hours (10:00 pm. to 7:00 am. dunng the
week or anytime on weekends) are less expensive than calls made during the remaming. or pek, hours.
During 2003, Telcel offered promotions thar inchuded effective price-per-mimute reductions. These
promotions helped increase Telcel's average monthly revenues per subscriber duning 2003,

Telcel also offers several prepaid plans, nooe of which inchudes activation or monthly charges.
Prepaid customers purchase a prepaid card for a specific amount of airtime and also recetve additional
services such as voicemzil and caller ID, although these services are less comprehensive than those
available under postpaid plans. Telcel began to offer cellular digital packet data (CDPD) services to
prepaid customers in October 2001, short message services (SMS) o its own customers (prepaid and
postpaid) in January 2002 and GSM data services over arcut switched technology (CSD) m October 2002
and to exchange SMS services with other ceflular operators in December 2003.

Prepaid customers typically generate low levels of cellular usage and are often unwilling to make
2 fixed financial commutment or do not have the credit profile to purchase postpaid plan. Prepaid plans
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serve the needs of distinct consumer segments soch as the youth market, families, customers with vanizble
income who otherwise would not be able to obtain service due to their credit profile, and customers who
prefer to pay i cash. Prepaid customers also inchide parents who wish to control costs for their children.

) rmm&mdmwammmmmeh
Mexico and an opportunity to improve margins because, compared to the average postpaid plan, prepaid
plans mvolve higher average per mimute airtime chatpes, lower customer acqusition costs and o billing
expenses, credit or payment risk  Howevey, prepaid customers on average have substantiaily lower
mimutes of use than postpaid customers and do not pay monthly fees and, as a result, generate substantially
lower average monthiy revenues per customer.

Mexico uses the “calling party pays” system for cellular service, under which sobscribers only pay
for outgoing calls. This replaced “mobile party pays,” under which subscribers also paid for incoming
calls, in May 1999. Subscribers have the option of retaining the “mobile party pays” system but must
change their cellutar telephone mmber to do so.

Data services

Short Message Services (SMS)

In January 2002, Telce! began to offer two-way SMS to its customers as part of its value-added
services. Since the laumch of two-way SMS, Telcel has experienced significant growth in traffic.
Through arrangements with other operators, Telcel began to dfer to its customers the abslity to send and
recefve short messages to and fram users of networks of other camiers thronghout Mexico in the fourth
quarter of 2003.

Multimedia Messaging Service (MALS)

As an enhanced version of SMS, MMS allows customess the capability to send, in a single
message, mubiple color images, sounds and different size text to another mobile phooe of e-mail account.
Tdodbegmwoﬁahﬁ\dSﬁnwgbGSMm&mbgywm&pmdmduqmdmanrb2w3

Prempum SMS and Content Conamumity

In April 2002, Teleel became the first Mexican operatar to offer preminm information services
through its SMS capabilities, inchuding weather reports, financial quotes and entertainment news. Other
premium services include personalized fing tones and games. To further enhance its premium SMS
offerings with well-known brands and conterst, Teleel has built 2 “Content Commumity”” through
agreements and special alliances with other companies, such as MTV, Universal Music, the Cartoon
Network and the Discovery Channel

Internet

Wireless application protocol (WAP) 1s a global standard designed to make Internet services
available to mobile telephone users. At present, Telcel offers WAP include e-mail, data and mfoemation
services and electronic commerce transactions. The standard allows a micro “browser” i 2 mobile phone
o Ik mto a gateway service in Teloel’s network enabling users to saroll through different pages of
information on the Iternet.

Telcel launched its WAP gateway in September 2000, enablmg its prepaid and postpaid users in
ﬁwsemgumstoaocssc -mail, banking, and a varisty of reservation and ather types of electroric
commerce services.

Data transmission

21



1)

4

In September 2000, Telcel rolled out a data service network based on the cellular digital packet
data (CDPD) platform availabie to postpaid subscribers in the major cifies in all nine regions m Mexico.
As of November 2001, these services were available to Telcel's prepaid customers. The CDPD network
15 a packet-switched network that takes advantage of the fact that, in many data applications, information
1s sent tn bursts of activity, with fmermittent quiet periods. Unlike data services carried over cirouit-
switched analog or digital wireless networls, the CDPD platform provides a signmficantly more cost-
effective means of sending data for the majornity of applications, as it allows many users to share the
network channel  Instead of dialing in, subscribers to the CDPD system atways remain connected to a
network service that provides access to packet data networks.

Telcel's CDPD services are able to accommodate such industry-specific applications as:

»  Telemetry—Wireless networks will allow companies such as gas and electric supphers to
track customer nsage via wireless conne ction between the field metes and a central control.
Telemetry can also be apphied in medicine to monitor patients within and away from the
bospital

o [ireless credit card validation—Terminal equipment allows merchants to venfy credit/debst
cards. With CDPD, the validanon terminals can remam online wirelessly, substantially
reducing the time required to process a validation and eliminating the need for a separate
telephone hine at the venification tenmnal. This can open up a variety of new applications m
remote service mdustnies, such as fast food and detivery.

s Disparch applications—Courier companies, delivery compantes, and companies with large
field instaliation and repair groups use the CDPD technology to support thewr employees.
Workers can be dispatched with detailed work orders, can acoess customer databases from
the field and can close out work orders onlioe.

o Public safety applications—States and mmmicipalities can use CDPD as the primary means
of data comnmnication with public safety vehicles.

o 4 d vehicle location—Utlizing a szmall device containmg a CDPD modem and 2
global posttioning system, or GPS, device, users can track velncle fleets on the Internet,
allowing rapud, cost-effiective access to the information necessary to route and dispatch
vehicles and packages.

Teloe] offers careust switch data (CSD) to all its users and general packet radio services (GPRS)
to fts postpaid users through its new GSM network. Teloel extended its GPRS services to prepaid users in
October 2002. See “—Wireless Network.”

Products

Telcel offers a variety of products as complements to 1ts wireless service, inchuding handsers and
accessories such as chargers, headsets, belt clips and batteries. As part of its basic prepaid service
offering. Telcel provides new customers with an “Amigo Kit,” which inchudes a handset, a charger and
other accessones at a discounted price. New postpaid customers also recetve a handset at a discounted
poice, if they enter mto a long-term contract with Telcel

In the past, Teloel has offered a vaniety of handset types, inchoding analog, digital and dualmode
dualband devices. Most of the handsets that Telcel currently offers are dual mode dualtband, which can
operate in both analog and digital modes and can switch between the 800 and 1900 mepaberts radio
spectrums.
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Interconnection

Teloel eams interconnection revenues from calls to any of its subscribers, or to an tnternational
roaming subscriber of another cellular service provider located within the region covered by Telcel, that
originates with another service provider (cellular or fixed). Teloel charges the service provider from
whose network the call originates an interconnection charge for every mimite Teleel's network is used i
comnection with the call The current mte recnnection charge tn Mexico for calls made from exther a fixed
tine or a celhular line to another celhular line 1s Ps. 1.90 per mimite. The current tnterconnection charge fior
calls made from a celhular kine to 2 fixed kne, which Telcel pays to Telmex, 1 U.S $0.00975 per minute,

Telcel has interconnection agreements with Telmex and other service providers. The
interconnection agreements specify a number of connection points, locations of interconnection potnts, the
method by which signals nmst be transmitted and received and the costs and fees of interconnection. See
“—Regnlation—Interconnection ”

Roaming

Telcel offers intemational roaming services to its subscribers. Subscribers paying the imemational
roaming fees are able to roam outside of Mexico, using the networks of celiular service providers with
which Telce] has entered mio roaming agreements. Telcel has entered into approximately 270 such
agreements covering TDMA and GSM networks around the world. Roaming payments are chammeled
through Telecommmumication Services Interational for TDMA and Electroic Data Systems Corporation
for GSM, which funxtion as central international clezring houses that collect and redistribute roaming fees
from and to the participating providers.

Marketing

Teleel develops customer awareness through its marketing and promotion efforts and high-quality
customer care, Ithﬂkaﬂwsnmgmdhswdl-mmdhmdnmwmm
spmsh:pofmemsmdoﬂumdo«admmgmp& Inaddmax'l'dndwxploys
concentrated advertising efforts to promote specific products and services such as the Amigo Kit, its
Intemnet services and certain value-added services such as SMS.

Telcel targets groups of customers who share common charactenistics or have common needs.
Telce! then assembles a packet of services that meets the particular needs of that targeted group through
one of its vaious pricing plans. As part of its promotional efforts, Telce! offers its new prepaid and
postpaid subscribers either a complimentary handset or a handset at a discounted price when they
subscribe, which the postpaid customers may keep when their service agreement expires in accordance
with ifs terms.

Telcel has designed promotional packages, including free handsets and low monthly fees, ©
encourage new customers and current prepaid customers to subscribe to postpaid plans that include
services such as voicemail, call waiting and caller ID.

Sales and Distribution

Teloe! markets its wirebess services primarily through exchusive distributors located throughout
Mexico. In the year ended December 31, 2003, approximately 90% of Telcel's sales of handsets were
generated by cellular distributors, with approximatety 9% from sales in company-cwned stores, and
approximately 1% from direct sales to corporate accounts. Telcel also sells and distnbutes 1ts products



L]

1)

<1

Telce! has relationships with a network of approximately 912 excinsive dismibauors, who sefl
Teleel's services and products and receive commissions. Telce! operates permanent traiming and
evaluation programs for distributors to help maintam the level of service quality. -

Teleel's company-owned retail stores offer one-stop shopping for a variety of celhular services
and products. Walk-in customers can subscribe for postpaid plans, purchase prepaid cards and purchase
handsets and accessories. Company-owned stores also serve as pomts of customer service and payment
centers. Telcel owns and operates 129 customer sales and service centers throughout the nine regions of
Mexico and will continue to open new service centers as necessary m order to offer its products directly
to subscnbers in more effective ways.

Telcel also distnbutes prepaid cards and handsets, the latter as part of the Amigo Kit consisting of
handsets and free zirtime ranging from 25 t 250 mimtes, through distnbutors that inctude Telmex, Sears,
Sanboms and its network of retail outiets. Telmex purchases the Teloel prepaid cards and handsets on the
same of similar commercial terms offered to other cellular distnbutors.

To service the peeds of 1ts large corporate and other high-usage customers, Telcel has a dedicated
corparate sales group.
Billing and Collection

Teleel bills its postpaid customers through monthly frvotees, which detail stemized charges such as
usage, servioes such as voscemail, call forwarding, call waiting, caller ID and three-way calling, and long-
distance and roaming charpes, in addition to applicable taxes. Customers may pay thetr bills with a credit
cand, through a bank (inchuding its Intemet website), in person at Telce! retail stores and, since July 2001,
through Telcel's Internet website.

1f 2 postpaid customer’s payment is overdue, service may be suspended until full payment for all
outstanding charges is received. If the subscriber’s payment 15 more than 60 days past doe, service may
be discontinmed. Accounts that are more than 90 days past due are considered doubtful accounts.

A prepaid customer who purchases a prepaid card has 60 days from the date of activation of the
card to use the atrtime. After 60 days, the customer can no longer use that airtime for outgoing calls
unless the customer activates a new card. After 180 days, unless the customer activates a new card, the
service is discontinued and the balance on the card, if any, is recognized as revenue.

Customer Service

Teleel places a high priority cn providing its customers with quality customer care and support.
Approximately 48.2% of Telcel’s employees are dedicated to customer service. Customers may cali a
toll-free telephone mumber or go to one of the customer sales and service centers located throughont the
nine regons for inquiries regarding their servics or plan options. In addition, using Teleel’s website,
subscribers may leam about the various offered rate plans, products and promotiogs, as well as subscribe
for additonal services and pay bills oa line.

Wirekss Network

: Telcel's wireless networks use principally digital technologies. As a proportion of total traffic,
digital wraffic measured 83.4% in December 2003. Over the last several years, Telcel has converted its
network from amalog to digital, and most of tts customers have migrated to digitat service. Telcel uses
time division amltiple access (TDMA) digital technology m the 800 megahertz (Band B) and the 1900
megahertz (Band D) frequency spectra. TDMA is a digital technology that divides radio spectum o
assigned time slots to transmit signals. In October 2002 Teleel mmched a new network using global
system for mobile commmmicatians (GSM) digital technology in the 1900 megahertz (Band D) frequency
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spectrum.  GSM is a digital standard used in Europe, North Amernica and elsewhere. Because it is so
widely used, 1t provides higher quality and faster availability of new products and services and 2 wider
variety of suppliers than TDMA technology. In addition, GSM provides access to a bettar developedpath
toward third generation wireless technologies,

An altemative digital technology, CDMA, divides radio spectrum using codes rather than time
slots. Compared to TDMA and GSM, ¢ permits more subscribers to use the same spectrum but is less
mature and less well supported by suppliers. Because of GSM's advantages aver both TDMA and
CDMA technologies, Telcel considers developing 2 GSM network to be the logical step to maintaining its
Ieadership in the wireless market.

TDMA nerwork

Teloe! has a nationwide TDMA network TDMA permits the use of advanced dualmode dual
band handsets that allow for roaming across analog and digital systems and across 800 megahertz and
1900 megaheriz spectrums. TDMA digital technology also allows for enhanced services and features,
such as short alphammmeric message service, extended bartery life, added call security and improved voice
quality. TDMA equipment is available from leading telecommmmications vendors such as Locent, Ericsson
and Nortel

GSM retwork

Teloel has buih and installed a GSM network in the 1900 megzhertz frequency spectram m ail nme
regions m Mexico, which began commiercial operation in October 2002. The new GSM netwark allows
Telee! to augment 11s digital capacity and progress in its evohition toward the third geperation of wireless
technology. GSM technology supports a wide range of voice and data services, including SMS, CSD,
high-speed CSD and GPRS, and is currently the most widely used and tested wireless system in the world.
GSM technology, whichis used in all nine regions, is expected to yield global economies of scale in
developing network equipment and handsets, as well as seamless global roammg capabilities.

Currently, in its first stage of deployment, Telcel's GSM network offers service m all nine regions
m Mexico, but does not provide coverage in all cities i thase regions. As of December 31, 2003, Telced
covered approumately 400 cities with the GSM petwork, and Telcel’s GSM subscriber base amounted to
appraximately four mifion As Telcel continues to roll out the GSM network, it plans to expand GSM
coverage throughout the nine regions. Telce! expects that many customers will choose GSM equipment
when they replace their existing TDMA equipment.

C8D and HSCSD technology

Circuit switch data (CSD) is an altemative system based on circuit switch platforms that provides
data services by integrating the existing vowoe infrastructure. Like CDPD, CSD is considered to be the
first level of 2.5G techmology.

High-speed CSD (HSCSD) offers the same service as CSD, mxgmeedmnndsfum
transmission, but by joining several slots of mformation, it offers increased capacity and speed, makang it
better suited to the needs of users wransmmitting large amounts of information. Teleel plans to offer CSD as
well as HSCSD services in all nine regions through its new GSM petwork.

GPRS technology

General packet radio services (GPRS) is a system for the transmission of data in packets using
the GSM platform It allows for the high-speed transmission of information and accommodates a variety
of handsets, offering some third generation services but using different bands, hardware and software.
GPRS aflows GSM operatars to offer new Intemnet protocol services and provide more attractive wireless
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internet Applications to a wide group of users. It offers customers efficient aocess to the Internet,
allowing several users to share the same air-interface resources. Operators using GPRS are able to
charge their customers based on the amount of transferred data rather than airime, making GPRS 2 more
attractive option for short transmissions of data. GPRS is similar to the CDPD technology offered through
Telcel's TDMA network, but it allows greater capacity than CDPD. Togrther with CSD and HSCSD
services, GPRS services allow Teleel’s GSM subscribers to select data services suited to their specific
needs.
Third generation development strasegy
voice services over the Internet. Any successful third generation swategy nmuist allow the wireless
mwduwxbewapavmtfommqmddymdwﬂeﬂnmvﬂyandmaglobalsakm
roaming capacities. While third generation networks are currently under development and
Mmmumhm!wdnﬂomnrhdmgm CSDandGSM/GPRSlavebegmtobndge&rgap
between second and third generation techmologies by offering enhanced high-speed data services.

Teleel 1s considering choosing enhanced data rates for global evolution (EDGE) as the
intergeneration wireless architecture that will facilitate 15 ultinate deployment of third generation
technology. One benefit of EDGE s that 1t can be deployed in existing spectrum. As customers upgrade
their equipment to EDGE, Telcel expects that all the applications developed and deployed today will be
able to operate at Ingher speeds and in more places. EGExsnnrunlybangdnﬂq:cdbyEucssax
Nokia, Nortel, Lucent and Motocola.

The evolution from 2.5G to third generation technology is expected to make wireless networks
capable of transmitting voice, data and video over a single network. The wireless industry has recently
agreed to convesge towards a common standard called wideband CDMA (W-CDMA) for the
development of third generation technology. W-CDMA offers configurations tha allow multifaceted
processing and enable the transmrission of large volumes of data, such as video data, at high speeds.

As part of 1ts strategic evaluation conceming the deploymment of EDGE technology, Telcel 1s
engaged in discussions with suppliers and plans to test the techmology with heavy-use consumers or
corporate users. Telcel expects to Iaunch EDGE with the existing cellular or PCS technologies and
pugrate to the W-CDMA third generation technology once 2 new set of broadband frequencies is made
available by Cofetel and there is demand in Mexico for services requining this technology.

Spectrum

Telcel currently holds concessions in each of the nine regions of Mexico in both the 800
megahertz and 1900 megahertz radio spectrums and is the only wireless provider in Mexico with a
the 1900 megahertz spectrum.  The Mexican government has announced that it intends to auction 1900
megahertz spectrum durmg 2004. Telcel expects to actively participate tn such anction whenever it occurs
to ensure that its network meets consumer demand and that we retain our leading competitive position.
‘We cannot be sure, however, that we will be granted additional spectrum in any such auction or that
Cofeco will suthorize Telcel to participate m any such auction. In 1998, Cofeco did not aliow Telcel to
participate in cestain spectrim anctons, but we believe that the reasons for Cofeco’s denial are no fonger
applicable given the entry of new competitors m the Mexican market and our spin-off from Telmex.

In September 2003, Telcel entered into a service agreement with Mexican wireless operator
Operadora Unefon, S A de CV. (“Unefon™) o acquire capacity services from Unefon in the 1900
megahertz spectrum. The agreement has a 16-year tenm, and in September and October 2003, Telcel
made two payments to Unsfon amounting m the aggregate to U.S.$267.7 million, in prepayment of all

26



L

{p

amounts owed by Telcel to Unefon over the kife of the agreememt. Telcel is cusrently negotiating an
amendment to this service agreement in order to recerve more services from Unefon. Teloel does not
expect to nuke any additional payments for these addittonal services.

Fixed wireless

Fixed wireless technology provides wireline quality voice telephony available over cellular
petworks.  Voice channels are delivered over the exisang telephone wiring within the resdence or small
business premises, allowing customers to utilize their existing telephones.

Telcel provides fixed wireless votce services 1o, among others, Telmex's Ladafon shared
telephone network, under which a line is available for public use by the residents of mmltiamit dwellings.
Telephone service is provided at a discount through existing wire lines within the residential premises,
which are then connected to Telcel's cellular network. Teloe! also provides fixed wireless service to
Telmex's Ladatel public telephone network.

Property
Tdnel‘swimhsnetvmkimh:dsmnspmandmmpmuequm as well as exchange and
transmission equipment consisting primarily of switches (which set up and route telephone calls either to

the number called or to the next switch along the path, and which may also record information for billing
and control purposes), celhuar base stations (radio transmitters or receivers that mamntan commumeations
with the cellular telephones within given grographical areas or “cells™), microcells (small cells coversd by
w-power base stations), and local binks and repeaters (equipment for radko or fiberoptic transmission
between network elements). Telcel owns all of its network equipment, except for certain equipment that
Teleel sold for Ps. 950 million o an unrelated financial instinution during 2003 and subsequently leased
back for a period of three years. Telcel has the option to reacquire such property at the end of the lease
period. Telce] owns certain properties for commercial and admimistrative offices, the installation of some
of its equipment; and 129 customer sales and service centers, while it leases other locations. Telcel
operates certain equipment on Telmex property under a co-location agreement. See“Rehdemy
Transactions™ under Item 7.

Teloe! currently relies on Enicsson for the supply of more than 60% (measured i tenos of cost) of
1ts switch and cell site equipment. Teloel purchases handsets and other customer equipment priroanly
from the majar vendors, inchxding Nokia, Soay Encsson, Motorola, Siemens and Samsung.

Competition

Telcel faces competition from other cellular providers using the 800 megzhertz (Band A)
spectrum and from providers with PCS licenses that have developed and continue to develop wireless
service on the 1900 megzhestz (Bands A, D and F) spectrum. Telcel's competitors in Mexico inchude
Grupo lusacell, S.A de C.V. (which is controlled by Movil@ccess, an affiliate of Grupo Salinas, S.A. de
C.V. and Unefon), Movistar (2 brand used by a group of companies controlied by Telefonica Méviles and
Unefon, which is an affiliate of Grupo husacel], S.A. de C.V)). We also compete with Nextel in certain
segments. According to Cofetel, Teleel's share of the Mexican celhiar market was approximately 79% in
October 2003.

Concessions m the nine regions of Mexico have also been granted to permit the provision of PCS
services using the A, B, D 2nd E bands. Teloel uses Band D to provide PCS services and competes with
other PCS services providers using the A, B and E bands in each of the nine regions of Mexico.

The effects of competition on Telce] depend, in part, on the business strategies of its competitors
and the general economic and business climate in Mexico, mchxing demand growth, mterest rates,
mflation and exchange rates. The effects could inchude loss of market share and pressure to reduce rates.
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that any loss of market share will be partly offset by increasing demand.

Regulation

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the General Commmications Law, the
Telecommunications Law and the Telecommmmications Regulations applicable to Telcel and of the vanious
concessions held by Telcel

General

’I‘h:GenualComnnm:czumslzw the Telecommmications Law and the Telscommmmications
Regul provide the g i legal fra ork for the regulation of telecommunications services in
Mexico. mTehmmmuquﬂmmethdemmmm
and established that only those provisions of the General Conmmmications Law not opposed to the
Telecommmications Law would rernam in effect. Other regulations implementing particular provisions of
the Telecommunications Law have been adopted or are pending. Themobjecmuofﬂ:
Telecommunications Law are to pr the efficient develoy of the tel s industry, to
mngefan'oompammmthepxwxsmofqmlny bw-;xwedsemocsandto:ssmesauﬁcm
breadth of coverage of the Mexican population.

Under the Telecommmmications Law, an operator of public telecommunications networks, such as
Teleel, must operate under a concession granted by the Commmmications Ministry. Such a concession
may only be granted to a Mexican citizen or corporation and may not be transferred or assigned without
the approval of the Communications Ministry. A concession to provide services which utilize electro-
magnetic frequencies, such as cellular telecommunications services, may have a term of up to twenty
years and may be extended for additonal terms of equal duration.

The Telecommunications Law requires public telecommmmications concessionaires to establish
open network architecture which permits intesconnection and interoperability. Operators of private
networks that do not use electro-magnetc frequencies or provide services to the public are not required to
obtain a concession, permut Of regISTation.

The Mexican Congress is in the process of considening a new Telecommunications Law. Some
of the draft proposals for this new law inchude provisions aimed at strengthening the regulatory power of
Cofetel, stimulating increased investment m telecommunications and increasing competition. I passed, the
new Telecommumnicanons Law could have a matenal effect on our operatons. We are unable to predict
whether or when such new law may be enacted and its effect on our business. As of the date of this
anmul report, a new Telecommmnications Law has not been enacted.

Furthermore, the executive branch of the Mexican government alkso s considering the enactment
of a new decree and regulations pertaining to Cofetel If enacted, the provisions of this proposed decree
and these regulations would lanit Cofetel’s current authority and transfer some of Cofitel’s oversight to

Regaiatory oversight

The Mexican Comnmmications Ministry, through Cofetel, is the government agency principally
respoasible for regulating teleconumamic ations services. The Ministry's approval is required for any
change in Telcel’s bylaws. It also has broad powers to monitor Teicel’s compliance with the concessions,
and it can require Telce! to supply 1t with such technical, administrative and financialinformation as it may
request. Teloel is raquired to publish its annual network expansion program and must advise the Mimstry
of the progress of its expansion and modemization program oa a quartedy basis.
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Cofete] is an independent agency within the Commumications Ministry, with four commssioners
2ppointad by the Commmmications Mimstry on behalf of the President of Mexico, one of whom is
appointed as chairman. Cofetel's mandate s to regulate the Mexican telecommmications sector. Many
of the powers and obligations of the Communications Ministry under the Teleconmmunications Law and the
Telecommumications Regulations have been delegated to Cafetel.

The Telecommunications Law gives certain rights to the Mexican govemnment m its relations with
concessionaires, inchuding the right to take over the management of an operator’s networks, facilines and
personnel in cases of imminent danger to national secunity, mtermal peace or the national economy, natural
disasters and public unrest. The Telecommmmrications Law also provides that at the expiration of Telcel's
concessions, the Mexican government has a right of first refissal to acquire Telcel's assets. See “—
Termination of the Concessions.”

The Telecommunications Law provides that if 2 company is detenmined to be dominant m a
relevant market according to the Federal Law of Economic Competition, the Communications Ministry has
the power 1o adopt specific regulations on rates, quality of service and mformation provided by 2 dominznt
provider. To date, Telcel has not been declared a dominaat provider, although there can be no assurance
that such a determmation will not be made in the fiture.

Rates

The Telecommmnications Law provides that concessionaires may freely deterrmne the rates for
telecomnmnications services. Cellular rates are not subject 1o 3 price cap or any other form of price
regulation However, Telee! and other cellular camiers operating in Mexico are required to disclose to, and
register with, Cofetel therr rates for cellular service. The Commmmnications Ministry ts authorized to tmpose
specific rate requirements on any operator that is determined to have substantial market power under the
Federal Law of Economic Competition. Although no such determimation has been made with respect to
d:ematkafu'celhﬂartebcommmm there can be 00 assurance that such a determination
will not be made in the fimre.

Concessions

telecomnamications services using the 800 megahertz (Band B) radio spectrum. It also bolds natioawide
coacesstons 1o use the 1900 megahertz (Band D) radio spectrum and 3 related concession to provide
ceftular telecommunications services on that frequency. The Band B concessions requure Telcel to pay
fees (aprovechamientos) determined as a pescentage of gross revenues derived from the concessioned
services. The percentage is 5% for the Mexico City area and the states of Mexico, Morelos and Hidalgo
and between 5% and 10% in other regions. The 1900 megahertz concessions were purchased for a fixed
amount m 1998 and do not require Teicel to pay continving fees (aprovechamientos).

Pursuant to the Federal Contributions Law (Ley Federal de Derechos), owness of concessions
granted before January 1, 2003 and acquired for a fixed amotmt are not required to pay confinmng fees
(derechos) for the use and explottation of radio spectrum bands. However, owners of concessions
granted or renewed on or after Jamuary 1, 2003 are required to pay annual fees (derechos) for the use
and exploitation of radio spectrum bands. The amount of anmml fees (derechos) charged would depend
on the relevant region and radio spectrum band. Such annual fees (derechos) can be substantially high in
amount and are payable trespective of the amount of fees (gpprovechamientos) paid.
tmitial verms of twenty years that will expire m 2010 and 2011. The Band B concession covening the
Mexico City area (Region 9) was renswed effective October 2000 for a term of fifteen years that will
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expire in October 2015. The 1900 megahertz concessions were granted in 1998 for an initial term of 20
years that will expire in 2018,

1n December 2002, the Commumications Mimistry granted Telcel a new concession to mstall,
operate and exploit a telecommmunications network to provide aational and mnfemational long distance
services, as well as data transmission services. The conoession was granted for an initial term of 15
years, and 1t i subject to extension for an additonal 15-year period. The concession lemits Telcel to
provide these services 1o its wireless subscribers for the first two years, which term can be extended by
Cofetel.

Expansion and modernization requirements

Telcel’s concessions impose a number of requirements for expansion and modemization of its
network. The concessions establish certain mintmuim network capacities that Telcel nust achieve, to
extend service coverage to a targeted percentage of population.  Teleel is in compliance with these
requirements.
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Service quality requirements

mcommabosafoﬂhmmmﬁxﬂnqualnymdcmmyoﬁdcds
service, including, in some cases, maximum sates of incomplete and dropped calls and coonection time. In
May 2003, Cofetel issved the Fundamental Technical Plan for Quality of Local Mobile Services Networks,
applicable to all operators, mctuding Telcel. Due to the fast growth in cellular services, Telcel, like ail
Mexican cellular carriers, has faced some service problems. Service problems have not, however, bad
requirements of the concessions and has shown marked improvement according to recent measurements
conducted by Cofetel. Teloal has filed 2n tnjunction against the application to it of the Fundamental
Technical Plan for Quality of Local Mobile Services and other related laws and acts pronmulgated by
Cofete], seeking protection from the provisions of this Technical Plan. It remains uncertain that Teloel will
succeed in obtamning an mjunction, and currently, Teloed remains subject to the provisions of the Technical
Flan.

Competition

The Telecommunications Regulations and the concessions contain vanous provisions designed to
fimroduce competition in the provision of commmmications services. In general, the Mexican
Communications Minsstry ts authorized to grant conoessions to other parties for the provision of any of the
services provided by Telcel under the concessions.

Interconnection

Terms of interconnection (inchiuding fees) are negotiated between Teloel and other public
telecommunications providers. In the event they are unable to agree, Cofetel may tmpose tarms on Telos!
and the other public telecommmumications networks. The cument tnterconnection charge payable to us by
another operator for a call from its customer to our celhular line is Ps. 1.90 per muinute. The current
nmcmcnmdmgzﬁarmlkmkﬁumaeeﬁﬂrhrwaﬁxedlmnwhdeﬁdmsdemw
U.S.$0.00975 per munute.

Termination of the concessions

The Genesal Communications Law, theTekcommnmmmslzwmdth:ommmdnde
various provisions under which the concessions may be terminated before their scheduled expiration dates.
Under the Telecommumications Law, the Commmunications Ministry may cause early termination of any of
the concessions in certain cases, meludng: )

s falure to exercise nghts under a cancesston during the 180 days after that concession is
granted, .

o failure 1 expand telephone services at the rate specified in the concession;

» interruption of all or a material part of the services provided by Teloel

o acts by Teloel with the effect of impeding the operations of other concessionaires;

o refusing interconmection arrangements with other concessionaires,

o change of junisdiction by Tekoel;

o transfer, assignment of, o grant of hens 1o, Telcel's concessions or any asset used to provide

» failure to pay certain government fees;
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«  violation of the prohibition against ownerstup of shares of Telcel by foreign states;
s  any matenal modification of the nature of Teloel's services without prior Ministry approval;
and
»  breach of certain other obligations under the General Comnmunications Law.
In addition, the concessions provide for early termination by the Communications Ministry
followmg admimistrative proceedmgs m the event of

e amaterial and contmumg violation of any of the condittons set forth in the concessions;
o muaenal failure to meet aay of the service expansion requrements undes the concessions;
o nutenal failure to meet any of the requirernents under the concession for mprovement in the
quality of service;
*  engagement in any telecommumications business not authonized under the concession and
requinng paor approval of the Commmencations Ministry,
o followng notice and a cure period, failure without just cause to allow other concessionaires to
intercommect therr networks 1o Telcel's network; of
o bankrupicy of Telcel
The General Commumications Law (and one of Telcel's cellular concessions in respect of that
concession) provide that in the event of early termmation of Telcel's celinlar concessions, all assets that
are the subject of such concession would revert to the Government without compensation to Telcel In the
event of early tenmination of one of Telcel’s PCS concessions, the Government would have the option to
purchase the equipment, installations and other assets used directly for the exploitation of the frequencies
which are the subject of such concession. There is doubt a5 to whether the provisions of the concessions
and the Telecommumcations Law regarding the consequences of expiration of the conoessions would
apply to mitigate the provisions of the General Comnmmications Law in the event of earty termination. In
the case of foreign mvestors, NAFTA and other sunilar international treaties may require compensation as
mitigation for provisions of the General Communications Law that could result in measures tantamount to
expropniation.

Speedy Movil

Speedy Movil, S.A de C.V. 15 3 Mexican company that develops mobile data soluticos for SMS,
wireless Internet (WAP) and voice-activated data applications for Telcel and our other subsidianes and
mvestments.

In addition to developing mobile data applications, Speedy Mowvil evahiates cortent and application
providers and enters mto comtracts with thern in order to provide our wireless providers with content and
applications. No concesstons ar Licenses are necessary for Speedy Movil's operations.

32



)

NON-MEXICAN OPERATIONS
We have subsidiaries or businesses in the telecommunications sector in Argenting, Brazil, Central
Amenica (El Salvador, Guaternala and Nicaragua), Colombia, Ecuador and the United States. Our
prncipal substdiaries cutside Mexico are described below. Thcrevemtsafmrmb&dxmsoﬂrxﬁm
Telcel represented 39.0% of our consolidated revemes for 2003.

In addition, we expect to have opportunities to invest in other telecommmmications companies
outside Mexico, especially in Lann America, becaus e we believe that the telecomnmmnications sector will
contimne to be charactenized by growth, technological change and consolidation. We may take advantage
of these opportunities through direct 1 or other gic aliances. We can give no assirance
as to the extent, timmg or cost of firture mtemational mvestments, and such investments may mvatve nsks
to which we have not previously been exposed.

The following table sets forth financial and operating information for certain of our noa-Mexic an
operations for the penods indicated. For some countnes, as specified in the notes to the table, we have
inchaded data for periods prior to dates on which we acquired these operattons. We provide this
information to show the trends in these businesses, but i is not reflected in our financial statements, which
consclidate each operation from the date on which we acquired it. We have presented separately the
results of the companies acquired dunng 2003—CTI, BCP, BSE, CTE and Celcaribe. The table presents
full year 2003 data for these companies, although we did not own these compames oa January 1, 2003 and
did not consolidate them in our financial statements until after their respective acquisition dates.

December 31,
2001 2002 2083
(in constant Mexicas peses as of

Decomber 31. 2003, excent
Lines in serviee)

ARGENTINA
CTIK1) (ﬂﬂ] vear 2003 data)

(eiltions) - — Ps. 2700
Awmﬂlymwmdmm&mumﬁdn ....... -_— — P 1R
COpessting income (mitions), - ~— Ps. 677
Cellular ines in sesvice {th d -— -— 1411

BRAZIL
Telecom America(3)
Consolidated operating revennes from contining opesstions (muillions).......... P 5074 Ps. 7340 P 11397
Averags mothly reventes per subscriber during preceding 12 monthe(2)...... Py 149 Ps 123 P 119
Operatine incorme (loss) (milhtm\ B (29 Ps. (190 Pe 134)
Ceilular Lines in service (th 4333 5192 9,521
BCP and BSE {combined fall vear 2003 data)(4)
Combined operating (amillions) - - Ps. 7212
Avenaze monthly per subscriber during ding 12 mooths(2}....... - — P 121
Opersting income (Joss) (millions) - — B @419
Cellular lines in service (th ) — - 3050
CENTRAL AMERICA
Telgus (G 1a and Ni X(5)
Cexnbined operating (uTtions), B 4406 Ps. 460 Ps. 5,663
A mouthly per subscriber diming ding 12 moothe(2)....... Pr. 154 Ps. 12 . 178
Operating income (oss) (mitbons). Px 1343 Ps. 1250 Ps. 1,706
Lines in service (thousands):
Frxed s 804 930

Cellular 0 628 970

33



CTE (E2 Salvador}(§)

Combined i (milions) - — Ps. 4241

Average mosthiy revennes per subscriber doring preceding 12 monthe(2) .. - — Ps. A9

Operating income (tillions). - - Ps. 1139

Lines in service (thousands):

Fixed - - 704
Celhular - - 216
COLOMBIA
ComceLOcedndCeluﬂbe(astnmhhwvm
thined (xnillions) Ps. 2962 Ps. 3738 Ps. 5770

Ammmazhh/ per subscriber during ding 12 months(2)....... R 136 Ps. 147 Ps. 123

Operating income (loss) (millious). Pr (355 Ps. 254 Ps. 592

Cellular lines & service (th & 1,884 282 3,674

Celcaribe(B)

Operati (millions). — — P, 549

Avenage mouthly revetmes per subscriber diizg preceding 12 months(2).... - - Ps. 12

Operating meome (loss) {zillions) - — Pe 3

Celhular Lines in service (th ds) - — 414

ECUADOR
Conecel

Op (millions) P 82 Ps. 1301 Ps. 2717

Ammmmmmmum . PL 139 Py 116 Ps. 130

Operating income (loss) {milkons) Pk (470 Ps. (110) Ps. 3549

Cellular lines in service (i ). 484 923 1537

UNITED STATES
Trackone

Op (ruillions).. Pu. 4748 Ps. 4242 Ps. 6246

Ammmivmwmbm‘nsmmﬂmmﬂnﬂ)m- P 20 Ps 167 Ps. 189

Operating income (loss) (milhons) Ps (1,694 Ps. Q5D Ps. 200

Cellalar lines in service (thx ds). 1913 1,968 2,952

(1) We began consolidating the results of CTI in November 2003.

@ Avmgefa&eyezofﬁxammnobhmedu:ﬁmﬁW&vﬂmgmmbydzmmbuof
costomers, The figore includes both prepaid snd postpaid 5 and excindes equipment sales
menne

@ E: 1 tnfo d as if the acquisition of Tess had occurred on Japuary 1, 2001, and all-
mm&adwremmmpmmmummmmduamm
opesations. Accordingly, continuing operations consist of Tess, ATL, Telet and Americel, and starting in
mmssz(ummzooa) BCP(sﬁmDecunthWS)mdmupmasmmdmme
states of Samta Catarina, Parani (excinding the ipatities of Londnina and T ), Balna and
Sergipe. Webegmmwbd&mgmemdedmAmmmthm

@ Webegan consclidating the results of BSE and BCP in May and December 2003, respectively.

() Includes Sercom Nicaragua, which began operations in Decernber 2002

@) We began consolidating the results of CTE in November 2003.

() Inches Coarcel, Occel and Celoaribe (as from February 2003). We began consolidating Comcel and
Occel in February 2002,

(® Webegan consolidating the results of Celcaribe in February 2003.

Argentina (CTI)

CTI Holdings provides nationwide PCS wireless service in Argentina under the “CTI Movil™

brand aame, throuph its wholly -owned subsidiaries CTI Interior and CTT PCS. We own 3 92% infesest m
CTL, which we acquired through a series of transactions tn 2003, and the rematning 8% nterest is owned
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by Techint Compaitia Técnia Internaciogal SA CL, or “Techint Group,” one of Argentina’s largest
industrial groups. We began including the results of CT1 in our consolidated financial statements in
November 2003. The Technt Group has the nght to require us to purchase al} of thetr interest in CTI for
U.S.$17.1 miltion at any time dunng the two yezars following the completion of the restructuring of CTT's
unsecured indebtedness. We have the night to require the Techint Group to sell us their interest in CTT at
any time during such period for U.5.$18.8 million.

We paid appraximately U.5.$221.5 million for the acquisition of our interests in CTT Holdings.
This transaction trvolved the purchase by vs and our parer of approxtmately U.S $600 million in pancipal
amount of secured indebtedness of CTI's operating subsidianies. At the time of the acquisition, CTI had
Usmmmmmdmmum ‘which were in default. These notes were
subject to an out-of-court reorganization agreement (Acuerdo Preventtvo Extrafudicial, o« “APE™) in
Arpgentina, which was approved by the court in December 2003. Pursuant to the APE, the notes were
canoelled in exchange for an aggregate cash payment of approximately U.5.$37.1 millicn.

At December 31, 2003, CTI had approximately 1.4 milkon subscribers, and CTI had approximately
3 19.8% share of the Argentine wireless market as of October 2003. Approximately 81% of CTT's
subscribers at December 31, 2003 resided in the interior of Arpentina and the balance in the greater
Buenos Asres region. Durng 2003, CT1 reported consolidated revenues of Ps. 2,700 million and operating
mcome of Ps. 677 mifhon, based on Mexican GAAP.

CTI began providing services in the mterior of Argentina in 1994 and in Greater Buenos Atres m
2000. CTI offers basic cellular service through a variety of rate plans and also offers prepaid services. In

CTT's cellular network uses analog and CDMA technology and covers approximately 95% of
Argentina's population  CTI has been authonized to develop 2 GSM netwark, and in December 2003 CT1
reached an agreement with Nolaa to deploy a nationwide GSM network. We have already deployed the
GSM network in Buenos Aires and currently expect the network to be fully deploved by the summer of
2005. ArDecember 31, 2003, CTI had 1,215 full-ttme employees.

CTI's pancipal competitars are: Telecom Personal, a subsidiary of Telecom Argentina, the
principal telecom operatar in Argentina, which is controfied by Telecom Italia; Unifon, a subsidiary of
Telefonica Moviles of Spain;, and Movicom, which is cortrolled by BellSouth.

CTI Interior and CTI PCS hold Licenses covering the entire Argentine territary. These Licenses
contain coverage, reportmg and service requirements, taxt do not have a fixed expiration date. The

Commumications Mimstry (Secrefaria de Comunicaciones de la Nacion) 1s i charge of supervising the
telecomnuuncations mdustry in Argentina. It is authorized to foreclose and sefl the shares of a licensee m

case of specified breaches of the terms of a license.
Brazil (Telecom Americas)
General ’ .

. Telecom Americas 15 the second Iargest provider of wircless telecommunication services in Brazl,

‘with an estimated natioawide market share in Brazil at December 31, 2003, of approximately 21%.

Telecom Americas provides services in Brazil under a unified brand name, “Claro,” and it offers a variety

of rate plans to its postpaid customers and offess prepaid services i all of its markets. At December 31,

2003, Telecom Americas served approximately 9.5 million subscribers compared to 5.2 million subscribers

at December 31, 2002 and covered approximarety 140 million licensed points of presence (POPs).
Telecom Americas owns and operates celhular networks that use TDMA digital technology. In

addition, in 2003, 1t launched a new GSM network in cestain major wrban areas. We continue rolling out
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the GSM network with the goal of providing sinxitar coverage as the Band A incumbent providers in the
major markets. We intend to focus our commercial and marketing efforts towards encouraging use of
GSM technology by new subscribers and existing subscribers renewing their contracts. We expect GSM
to gradually become our principal wireless technology.

Telecom Americas has owned companies with operations in Brazil since shortly aftes Brazil
alkowed compention 1n the wireless mdustry i 1957 and 1998 and recently began to operate in two othes
regions m Brazil pursuant to new licenses acquired in November 2002, As discussed further below, these
companies were acquired by Telscom Americas in a numiber of transactions commencing in 2000 and
eading with the acquisitions of BSE and BCP during 2003. Umnil the £all of 2003, these companies were
required o operate under different brands, but they now operate under the unified “Claro” brand. We are
in the process of integrating their marketing efforts and product offerings, but each company is required by
law to mantain certain separate administrative and reparting functions. At December 31, 2003, the
Telecom Americas operating companies had approxintely 5,705 employees.

Telecom Americas' wireless properties in Brazil inchude ATL, Tess, Telet, Americel, BSE and
BCP. We acquired our interests in BSE and BCP during 2003. All of these companies are licensed to
opesate under the PCS (Servigo Movel Pessoal) regime. ATL operates ia the states of Rio de Janeiro
and Espirito Santo; Tess operates i the state of S30 Panlo (other than the city and metropolitan region of
S30 Paulo); Telet operates i the state of Rio Grande do Sul; Americe] operates in seven states in the
centralwest and northem regions of Brazil; BSE operates i the states of Ceard, Piaui, Rio Grande do
Norte, Paraiba, Pernambuco and Alagoas; and BCP operates m the metropolitan area of S50 Paulo. In
addition, m 2003, Telecom Americas, through its subsidiaries, Stemar Telecomumicagdes Lida. and Albra
Telecomunicagdes Lida., began operating in the states of Santa Catanna, Parand (exchuding the
nmnicipalities of Londnina and Tamarana), Bahia and Sargipe pursuant to new PCS liceases aoquired in
November 2002. BCP is the second largest wireless provider in the metropolitan region of Sio Paulo. As
a result of the acquasition of cur merests m BCP, Alecan Telecommmicagbes Ltda, 2 subsidiary of
TdmAmm,wvdmnghmmﬂrPCSlmeﬂmumedme&nbsmﬁxhlm
megahertz radio spectrum (Bands D and E) in the state of S3o Paulo.

All of these companies are wholly-owned and controfled subsidianes of Telocom Amenicas,
mfamhofAmicddedamﬂﬁchBNDBPa(themmymofm the

Brazilian development bank) holds in the aggregate approximately 1.5% and 1.0% of the share capital,
respectively. In November 2003, the National Telecommmunications Agency of Brazl, or “ANATEL,”
approved the acquisition of voting control by Telecom Americas of ATL, Tess, Amencel and Telet, and
Telecom Americas has by now acquired voting contro! of all these compantes. Prior to that trme, Telecom
Ammericas owned substantially all of their economic interests (other than certzin minonity interests in each
of Americel and Telet), but was not permitted to acguire comtro] of the ma jonity of their voting shares.

‘We are currently implementing a major restructuring of our ownership of Telecom Americas. As
a part of tus restructuning; in November 2003, Alecan Telecommumicagbes spun off its equipment assets to
Americel, and Albra Telecanmnicagies merged into Telet.

We currently own approximately 97.5% of Telecom Americas. Telecom Amenicas was
orgamized m November 2000 as 2 joint venture among us, Bell Canada Intemational Inc. (“BCT") and
SBC International, Inc. (“SBCT™). Telecom Americas was mitially organized to hold certain of the
partners’ telecom interests throughout South America, but was reorganized in February 2002 to focus on
the Brazilian wireless sector. In July 2002, we acquired afl of BCT's shares of Telecom Amenicas. We
paid approximately U.S.$370 million for the shares, of which U.S.$194 mullion was paid in 2002 and the
remainder was paid in March 2003, Also in July 2002, we acquired SBCT's mnterest in Telscom Americas

36



()

pxmmanmnmmwhmhweabosddmio%mtstmcdhlzmmmsofm
Rico, Inc. to SBCL

n Apni 2002, Telecom Americas ssued to a financial tnvestor 1,844 noavoting convertible
preferred shares, representing approximately 2% of the capital stock of Telecom Amenicas. The
preferred shares may be cooverted to common shares at the holder’s option at any thme. The preferred
shares are entitled to dividends per share equal to 1.5 times the amount of any dividends per share
declared on the common shares and to preference over the common shares in the refumn of capital upon
hquidation up 1o an aggregate amount of U.S.$300 million The preferred shares have no voting nights and
00 right to representation on the board of directors. A holder has the right to require that haF of these
shares be included for sale in a registered offering by Telecom Americas, including demand registration
rights exercisable beginning in 2006, and in some circumstances 1o require that half of these shares be
mcluded 1f we sell more than 20% of the shares of Telecom Americas. Holdess have the right to sell half
of the shares to us beginning in 2006 at a price based on the amount of the liquidation preference for such
dmaphunw&aanommlmu&mmﬂmhveﬂrnglﬂbmmhzﬂofﬁrmadr
same price begianing in 2006 and untit July 31, 2007.

Competition
Although the rumber of competitors has decreased primanily as a result of consohdation,

competition in the Brazilian wireless mdustry is substantial and vanes by region. In addition to us, there
3re two other groups in Brazil with significant natiouwide coverage. The largest is Vivo, a joint ventare
between Telefonica Méviles of Spain and Portugal Telecom The joint venture of one of its partners ooms
inferests in some of the companies that were created upon the breaknp of Telebris. The other is Telecom
Tialia Mobale (TDM). Ox, which is owned by Telemar, is also an important competitor, with a significant
presence in Rio de Janeiro and other areas. We also face competition from Nextel, 2 jotnt venture
between Motorola and Nextei Communications, Inc., for trunking servioes to the corporate segment in
urban areas.

Recent acquisitions

Telecom Americas acquired its imterests in ATL, Americel and Telet primanily throngh
contributions from us and cur former partners m transactions that were undertaken in 2000 and 2002,
Telecom Amaricas acquired its interests in Tess from Telia Overseas AB, Telia AB and Algar Telecom
SA in 2001 for U.S.$950.0 million, consisting of U.S.$318.7 milhion in cash and U.S.$631.3 milkion in
pronussory notes. Telecom Americas made the final payment of principal under the promissacy notes in
March 2004.

In May 2003, Telecom Americas acquired 97.5% of the shares of BSE S A. from a subsidiary of
BellSouth Corporarion and from holding companies of the Safra family. The purchase price was based oo
a net emterprise vahe of BSE of U.S.$180 mithon  Later tn 2003, Telecom Americas aoquired the
remaming interests in BSE held by minonity investors, thereby increasing its mterest to 100%. n 2003,
BSE reported consolidated revermes of Ps. 2,247 million and consolidated operating income of Ps. 108
million, based on Mexican GAAP, We began including the results of BSE in our coasolidated financial
statements tn May 2003. BSE had approximately one million subscribers at the ttme of the acquisition.

In November 2003, Telecom Amenicas acquired 100% of the shares of BCP S.A. from certzin
lenders to BCP, who had acquired the shares formerdy held by affiliates of BeliSouth and the Safra family
and local minonity investors. The purchase price was U.S.8643 million.  All of BCP's outstanding long-
term indebtedness prior to the acquisition was cancelled or acquired by us in connection with the
transaction. In 2003, BCP reported consolidated revenmes of Ps. 4,965 million and consolidated operating
loss of Ps. 525 million, based on Mexican GAAP. We began including the results of BCP in our
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consolidated financial statements in December 2003. BCP had approximately 1.7 million subseribers 2t
the time of the acquisition. In connection with our bid for BCP, we granted Telernar an option to acquire a
minonity wmterest in BCP, subject to certam conditions. In October 2003, the option was cancelled, and we
agreed to pay Telemar U.S.$35 million during the second quarter of 2004.
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Regulatory environment

In conjunction with the breakup and privatization of the Telecommmicacdes Brasileiras S A —
Telebris telecommmmications monopoly, Brazil opened its celhidar mobile telephone service industry to
private enterprises. Starting in 1997, ten cellntar hicenses covenng all of Brazil were auctioned 1o wireless
operators to compete agamst the eight mcumbent providers that emerged from the Telebris breakup and
that were subsequemtly auctioned 1o private enterprises. Accordingly, there were two cellular service
providers m all markets in Brazil, mcluding the city of S30 Paulo, one operating in subfrequency Band A
and another n subfrequency Band B. Starting in 1999, the entire Brazilion telecommmmications sector has
been open to competition.

In 1997, Brazil enacted the General Telecomnmmications Law {Lef Geral de Telecommicagdes)
0 promote competition among service providers and establish an independent regulatory agency.,
ANATEL, to regulate its teleconmmumicanons mdostry. ANATEL issues hicenses for both wireless and
wireline operators. ANATEL has the authority to grant concessions and Licenses for all

In September 2000, ANATEL published guidelines for the implementation of BCS (Servigo
Mbével Pessoal) operations m Brazil Under the guidelines, Brazil 15 divided mro three regions foc PCS
operation within the 1800 megzhertz frequency, as opposed to ten regions for the cellular service
providers, Under the September 2000 gutdetines, the Band A and Band B cellutar providers have the
option to switch to PCS, and mmgration to PCS is a condition for the extension of their concessions. All
concessionaires in Brazil have migrated to the PCS regrne. Upon migration to PCS, the Band A and
Band B cellular providers have the right to apply for long distance services licenses and are no longer
wbjxtmceﬂulzmguhnasdmmmmdﬂnnﬁumopamgmmeﬂmtwompmspu&nd

lati ire that migrating companies adopt PCS service plans and provide for the establishment of
dmgsﬁ:rﬁr\scofoneopuanrsnﬂwakbymdn During 2003, all of the Telecom Americas
operating companies exchangad their oniginal concessions for 15-year PCS anthonizations. The 15-year
period started from the tme the original concessions were granted, generally in 1997 or 1998. This change
will allow the operating companies to extend the Jife of the license for an additional 15 years, upon the
payment of a fee.

The September 2000 giidelines also established rules regarding the selection of up to three
additional wireless providers per region, corresponding to Bands C, D and E. Any company organized and
based in Brazl, even if foreign-owned, was allowed to bid for a PCS license, Interested companies were
permitted  bid for PCS hicenses in each of the three regions, and were permitted to acquire PCS licenses
for all three regions. Howeves, each provider, whether cellular ex PCS, 1s linvited to only one License per
service area.

Beginning in February 2001, ANATEL initiated a senies of auctions through which it sold rights to
D-Band and E-Band licenses. After canceling the avction of new heenses under the C-Band, ANATEL
mplemented procedures in May 2002 for the sale of C-Band bandwadth mn instalhments not to exceed 45
megahertz per service provider, through which each of Telecom Americas’ principal operating companies
acquired bandwidth.

In Brazil, rates for telecommunications services are regulated by ANATEL. In general, PCS
ticensess are zuthonized to increase rates only for inflation and on an anmmal basts. Under extraordinary
conditions, licensees can request ANATEL for approval of real increases m rates, but there isno
assurance that ANATEL would grant such authonzation.

There have been recent press reports about the possibitity of ANATEL enacting new regulations

39



determine interconnection fees by agreement, subject to ANATEL approval of the agreed tates. Itis
anncipated that, if enacted, these new regulations would provide for a cost-based method of determinmg
mterconnection fees and mechade a transition period. Because ANATEL has not published any infomation
regarding these possible new regulations, we are not able to determine the impact, if any, that these
possible new regulations may have on our results or operations.
Central America

Guatemala (Telgua)

Teleconmmicaciones de Guatemala, S.A. (Telgua) 1s a fixed kine telecommmmications operatos in
Guatemala that was privatized in November 1998, Subsidianies of Telgua also provide wireless, Internet,
cable television, paging, data transmission and other services in Guatemala, We own approximately 98.8%
of the stock of Telgua. We acquired a portion of our interest in the subsidianies in May 1999. We
acquired the majority of our interest tn Telgua and the balance of our interest in the subsidianes m March
2000 and mcreased these imterests to their preseat levels through a senies of acquisitions of shares from
minonty shareholders during 2001, 2002 and 2003. We use the term “Telgua™ below to refes to Telgna
and the affiliates together.

At December 31, 2003, Telgua had approximately 930,000 fixedtine subscribers compared to
804,000 at December 31, 2002, 3 market share of approximately 95%.

Telgua's wireless business 1s operated by its affiliate Servicios de Comunicactones Personales
Inalémbricas, S A (Sercom). Sercom's cellutar network nses CDMA digital tectmology and, as of
October 2003, overianid GSM technology, which covers approximately 78% of its populanon. At .
December 31, 2003, Sercom had approximately 870,000 wireless subscribers, representing a market share
of approximately 45.3%.

Telgna offers a vaniety of services through its fixed-line and wireless networks, including faternet
acoess, data transmission, cable television, two-way commmmication systers vsed mainly for group
communication, and dispatch applications, or “trunking,” and also sells handsets and related products.
Telgua markets and distributes its services and products directly to custamers and also employs a netwock
of independent distributors for services and products other than basic telephony, such as prepaid calling
cards and handsets.

Telgua continues to be the principal provider of fixed-lme and mobile services m Guatemala,
Telgua's principal competitors in the wireless sector are Mithicom (Comcel), Telefémica of Spain and
BellSouth

Telgua’s tusiness is subject to comprehensive regulation and oversight by the Guatemalan
Telecommumications Agency (Superintendencia de Télec iones de Guatemala) under the
General Telecommunications Law (Lay General de Telecomunicaciones). Telgua holds a license from
the Guatemalan government to operate its nationwide fixed-line network 2nd numesous licenses to operate
its cellular network on different frequencies and in different regions. See “Legal Proceedings™ under Item
8 for a discussion of certain proceedings that the Guatemalan government has commenced against Telgua.

Nicaragua (Sercom and ENITEL)

We own a 99.0% interest in Servicios de Conmmnicaciones de Nicaragua, S A (Sercom) and
taunched wireless services in Nicaragua in Decerabes 2002. Sercom’s celtular network uses GSM
technology to provide sefvice to its customer base. As of December 31, 2003, Sercom had approximately
100,000 subscribers.




Sercom entered the market 25 the third mobile operator, joining BellSouth and ENITEL Mévil, the
celtular branch of ENITEL. the incumbent fixed fine operator in Nicaragna. Sercom’s bustness s subject
to comprebensive regulation and oversight by the Nicaraguan Telecommunicanons Agency (Instituto
Nicaragiiense de Telecommunicactones y Correos] undes the General Telecommunications and Postal
Services Law (Ley General de Telecomunicaciones y Servicos Postales).

In December 2003, the Nicaraguan Govemment accepted our bid to acquire a 49% interest tn
Empraahhwagﬁwscdermonnmamm,SAm)fwapmechSM96mﬂm
ENITEL provides fixed, mobile and other telecommmmications services tn Nicaragua. At December 31,
2003, mmmylmmmmmmwmm ‘We consummated
the acquisition of the 49% trmerest m ENTTEL m Jamary 2004.

In June 2004, we signed an agreement to acquire an additional 50.03% interest in ENITEL from
Megatel LLC and certain other investors. We also agreed to acquire from these mvestars all of the
shares of Megatel de Honduras, S.A. de C.V., which provides wireless and other telecommmmications
services in Honduras. At March 31, 2004, Megatel de FHonduras bad approximately 61 thousand wireless
subscribers. The acquisition of Megatel de Honduras closed on June 29, 2004. The acquisstion of the
additional 50.03% tterest m ENITEL is subject to a mmmber of conditions, inctuding recetpt of regulatory
approvals, and 1s expected to close m July 2004.

El Salvador (CTE}

Compaiiia de Telecommmicaciones de El Salvador (CTE) provides fixed, mobile and other
telecommumications services in El Satvador. We acquired a 51% ingerest in CTE from France Telecom
and certain other tnvestors tn October 2003 for an aggregate purchase price of U.S.$417 milhon.
Subsequently, we acquired an additional 1.2% interest in CTE from mumority shareholders at the end of
2003 and the begimmmg of 2004. As part of the acquisition, we acquired the right t recesve a management
fee equal to 5% of CTE’s EBITDA and 2% of CTE s net sales until at feast 2008 For the purpose of
calenlating the fee, each of EBITDA and net sales 15 defined in the management agreement. The
dedmmgommunholdsapymmﬂyﬂ%ofmsmmmdwmyﬂ%shddby
employees or former employees. During 2003, CTE reported consofidated saies of Ps. 4,241 mithon and
omh@dmmmofhmmwmmw We began inclucing the
results of CTE m our consolidated financial n Novemb

At December 31, 2003, CTE had approximately 704,000 fixed-tine subscribers and a market share
of approximately 90%.

CTE’s wireless business is operated by its subsidiary CTE Telecom Personal SA de C.V.
Personal's cellular netwark uses GSM digital technology and covers approximately 67% of the
Salvadorean population. At Deceraber 31, 2003, Persanal had approximatety 212,000 wireless subscribers,
which we estimate represents a market share of approximately 24%. Personal offers both prepaid and
postpaid plags.

CTE offers a vanety of services through its fixed-ime and wired orks, inchiding Intemet
operates a telephone directory business in El Salvador and offers fixed-lne services in Guatemala CTE
markets and distribares its services and products directly t© customers and also employs a network of
mdependundmibtmfumandpmduﬁsoﬁxhnbamndeplmy such as prepaid calling cards
and handsets. At December 31, 2003, CTE and its subsidiaries had approximately 2,563 employees.

CTE is the principal provider of fixedline services in El Salvador. CTE's principal competitor in
the wineless sector 1s Telemovil, an affiliate of Millicom International, with a market share of
4]




approximately 44%. CTE also competes with Telefonica de El Salvador, an affiliate of Telefonica
Modviles of Spain, and Digicel, which s cwned by 2 consortum of mtemational mvestors.

CTE’s business is subject to comprehensive regulation and oversight by the Salvadorean Energy
and Telecommunications Agency {Superintendencia General de Electricidad y Telecomunicactongs).
CTE holds a concession from the Salvadorean government to operate its nationwide fixed-line network
and a nationwide PCS 1900 hioense to operate its celtular netwark.

Colombia (Comcel, Occel and Celcaribe)

Comumecacién Celnlar S A. (Comeel), Occidente y Caribe Celular S.A. (Occel) and Empresa
Regional de Commumicaciones Celulares de [a Costa Atlintica S.A. (Celcanibe) provide wireless
telecommuumnications services in Colombia, Comcel i the eastem region of the country, Oceel i the
westem region, and Celcanbe principally in the Canibbean region. We acquired our interests in Comos]
and Occel in 2002 from Telecom Americas and certain other shareholders and increased them to their
present levels through a series of capitalized mvestments in 2002. Comeel acquired its interest in
Celcanibe from Millicom Intemational Cellular in February 2003. This acquisition allowed us to provide
nationwide coverage in Colornbia. We hold a 95.7% fmterest in Comeel, a 93.4% interest in Occel and a
94.0% interest in Celcaribe. Occel and Celcanibe operate under the “Comoel” brand, and we use the teom
“Comcel” below to refer to Comeel, Occel and Celcanbe together.

Comcel's network uses analog and TDMA digital technology and covess approximately 74.0% of
Colombia’s population. In Iate 2003, Comcel completed the overlay of a GSM network and can now offer
GSM services nationwide. At December 31, 2003, Comoel had approximatety 3.7 mithion subscribers,
ccmpamdto28nnllmsubsulbusatm31 2002, and beheved it had a 59.0% share of the

wireless market.

Comcel offers basic cellular service through a variety of rate plans and also offers prepaid
service. Purchasers of Comcel's “Amigo™ kit for prepaid service receive a cellular phooe together with a
prepaid calling card, enabling the customer to activate wireless service without contracts, monthly fees or
credit checks. Comcel markets its services through independent local distniburors and a direct sales force.
In addition, Comcel and its distributors have amamgements with vanous supermarkets for the distribution of
all of Comeel’s basic services and products as well as the provision of technical service and assistance.
The Amigo prepaid card is available in various chain stores nationwide. Comcel’s strategy is to cantinve
o expand its customer base through the build-out of its network.

In each of the three regions of Colomina, we compete with BeltSouth and Colombia Mivil, a

um of two Colombian public -sector, fixed-line operators. Colombia Mévil started nationwade
cmmcmlopaammNovmﬁuZOOS Tn March 2004, BellSouth reached an agreement to sefl its
assets in Latn America to Telefonica Méviles of Spain  This transaction, if completed, may increase
competition in Colombia. Comcel also competes with traditional fixed-line telephone service operators. In
addition, Comoel faces competition from alternative wireless services, including mobile radio and pagmg
services, rural wireless operators and trunking services. These competing wireless services are widely
used in Colombia as a sbstitute for fixed-line services.

The Ministry of Commmunications of Colombia and the Telecomnrmications Regulation
éperations. The Ministry of Communications, which pranted the celiular concessions in 1994, supervises
and audits the performances of the concessionaires’ legal and contractual obligations. The activities of
Comoel are also supervised by the Colombian Superintendency of Industry and Commerce, which
enforces antitrust regulations, promotes free competition m the marketplace and protects consumer rights.
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Comeel, Occel and Celcaribe hald ten-year concessions, acquired in 1994, to provide wireless
telecommunications services in the eastem, westem and Caribbean regions of Colombia. Under the terms
of the concessions, each of Comceel, Occel and Celeanibe is required to make quartedy royalty payments
to the Ministry of Commumications based on its reveres. Under the teams of an agreement entered mto
in Jamuary 1997, the Ministry of Commumications has agreed to reaew their concessions through 2014.
Ecuador (Conecel)

Consarcio Ecuatotiano de Telecommnicaciones, S.A. CONECEL (Conecel) s a wireless
telecommmications operator in Ecuador. We acquired a 60% interest in Conecel in March 2000 and gave
the other investors certain rights to sell us their shares. In April 2002, the other investors exercised ther
first put rights, and we paid approximately U.S.$70.3 million to increase our iterest to 80.6%. In July
2003, we. acquired the remaining tterests in Conecel for an identical amount, increasing our imterest m
Conecel o 100%.

At December 31, 2003, Coneoe] had approximately 1.5 million subscribers, compared to
approximuately 923,000 at December 31, 2002, representing a 64% share of the Ecuadonian wireless
market.

Canecel owns and operates a cellular network that uses TDMA digital technology, and n May
2003, it launched a new GSM network. The two networks cover the same areas, which account for
approximately 809 of the geographic area of Ecuador. Conece] is focusing its conmmercial and marketing
efforts towards encouraging use of GSM technology by new subscribers and existing subscribers
renewing their contracts and expects GSM to become 1ts principal wireless technology within the pext five
10 ten Years.

Conecel's principal competitor is BeliSouth Ecuador, which offers wireless local, natiogal and
imemational long-distance and public telephone services in Ecuador. At December 31, 2003, BellSouth
Ecuador bad approximately 860,000 subscribers, representing a 35% share of the Ecuadorian wireless
market. In March 2004, BellSouth reached an agreement to sell #ts assets in Latin Amenica to Telefomea
Moviles of Spain. This transaction, if completed, may increase competition in Ecuador.

Conecel is subject 1o regulation from ‘

o  the National Telecommmications Counsel (Consejo Nacional de Telecornmicaciones, o«

Comate]), which is responsible for policy-malang in the telecommamications area;

o the National Telecommmmications Secretaniat (Secretaria Nacional de

Telecomunicaciones), which is responsible for executing Conatel’s resohstions; and
o  the Telecommunications Agency (Superintendencia de Telecommicactones), which
monitors the use of authonized frequencies and compliance with concession provisions.
medhddsnmwdem,whchhmbmhﬂypzﬂ.mmmwmm
on the 800 megzhertz (Band A) radio spectrum. These inchude a cor service
ﬁnmml@,mdcmfaduummaﬂmmmdmmmmn

United States (TracFone)

TracFone Wireless, foc. is engaged in the sale and distribution of prepeid wireless service and
wireless phones throughout the United States, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. We own 98.2% of
the capital stock of TracFone. We first acquired a controlling interest in TracFooe in February 1999.

TracFone currently offers its prepaid wireless service and wireless handsets throughout the
United States using an extensive distribution network. At December 31, 2003, TracFone had
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approximately 3.0 mullion subscribers and is ane of the three largest operators in the U.S. prepaid celtular
market. TracFone’s subscniber base mereased by 50.0% in 2003,

TracFone does not own any wirele ss telecommmications facilities or hold any licenses. Instead, it
purchases airtime through agreements with approximately 40 wireless service providers and resells airtime
to customers. Through these agreements, TracFone has a nationwide petwork covenng all areas in which
wireless services are available. Customer usage is monitored using patented, proprietary software
mstalled tn each phooe TracFone sells, 20d TracFone provides customer service and manages customers
as though it were 2 network-based camier. TracFone has entered info agreements with Nokia and
Motorola to enzble them to inchide TracFone's software in various handsets they produce. TracFone's
tusiness mode] does not require any significant capital expenditure. TracFope sells handsets through a
variety of U.S. retail stores and sells its prepaid airtime through a large mmmber of independeat retailers
throughout the United States. TracFone competes with the mmajor U.S. wireless operators. TracFone
expecnﬂmmn)ofﬁmsecmmwd]musedmrﬁmmmmdwndmmmdrﬁmn
TracFone 15 subject to the jurisdiction of the U.S. Federal Comnmumications Commission, of “FCC,” and to
US. telecommunications laws and regulations. TracFoue 1s mxt required to procure hicenses to carry out
its bosiness.




OTHER INVESTMENTS
Our principal investments in affiliates other than our subsidiaries are described below. Financial
information provided for these affiliates has been prepared in accordance with local accounting principles
and restated in constart pesos as of December 31, 2003. We can give no assurance as to the extent,
timing of cost of futore intermational investrnents, and such mvestments may imvolve risks to which we
have not previously been exposed.
Techtel (Argentina)

Pursuant to the February 2002 reorganization of Telecom Americas, we acquired a 60% tnterest
in Techte}!IMDS Connmicaciones Interactivas, S_A_, which operates a local multipoint distribusion
services (LMDS) and fber optic network in Argentina, providing voice, data and video transfer services
and other related telecommunications services. LMDS is 2 wireless broadband technology that uses radio
signals to transmit voice, video and data. Techtel began providing long-distance fixed-ne voice services
and call center support in December 2000 and Imunched local fixed-tine voice services m Angust 2001. 1In
April 2004, we sold our interests in Techte] to Telmex See “Relaed Party Transactions™ under Jtem 7.

Telstar (Uruguay)
We acquired a majority interest in Telstar S_A pursuant to the February 2002 reorganization of
Telecom Americas. Telstar has completed an LMDS network to provide data transmission services in
Montevideo, Uruguay. In April 2004, wesoldaxmmm’felsxzrm'rdm See “Related Party
Transactions™ uader Itemn 7.
U.S. Commercial Corp.—CompUSA
We acquired a 49% interest in CompUSA, Inc. ;m March 2000. In December 2003, as a result of
a series of transactions, we exchanged our 49% interest in CompUSA for a 29.7% imterest in US
Commercial Corp., S.A de C.V. and Ps. 180 million U.S. Commerczal Corp. is a Mexican company with
shares listed on the Mexican stock exchange. Its principal asset is 100% of the shares of CompUSA.
We recorded 2 loss of Ps. 279 milkion on the transaction. In 2004, we reclassified our mvestment n U.S.
Commercial Corp. as available for sale. The controlling shareholder of US Commercial Carp. is an
affiliate of América Telecom, our controlling shareholder. See “Rela ted Party Transactions™ under Item
g

. CompUSA is a provider of techmology solutions and a retailer of personal computing equiprent,
based tn Dallas, Texas, and operates a number of CompUSA Computer Superstores throughout the United
States. CompUSAmmp@esmﬁamofmlhsofpamalmmmdmhwdpm&mmd
sesvices, inchuding large foomat computer retzilers, Internet-based retzilers, manufacturers and distributors
that sell directly to the public, and other personal computer retailess. In addition, CompUSA has aumerous
competitors i 1S training and technical service businesses.

Telvista

We own an indirect 44.2% titerest in Telvista, which we acquired in June 2001 from Technology
and Intemet Holding Co., 2 company in which we, Telmex and Grupo Carso bave a jomt mterest. Tebvista
is a Delaware corporation that operates call centers in the United States.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
The following table sets forth our consolidated capital expendrtures for each year in the three-year
peniod ended December 31, 2003

Year ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003
(millons of constant pesos as of December 31, 2003)
Transmission and switching equipment ... Ps. 13398 Ps. 93™ Ps. 11,685
[ ST 3661 1871 1968
Total capital expenitures

Be 1702 B ll2X B Jdsd

Our capital expenditures during 2003 related prmarily © the completion of the roflowt of 2 GSM
network in Mexico and the rollout of new GSM networks m Brazil, Colombia and Ecuador. We have
budgeted capital expenditures of approximately U.S.$1.4 billion for the year ending December 31, 2004,
tat this budgeted amount could change as we re-evaluate our expenditure needs duning the year. We
expect that our capital expenditures dunng 2004 will pamarily relate to the completion of the rollout of a
pew GSM network in Argenting and the expansion of GSM coverage in Mexico and Brazil. We expect to
muake approximately 35% of our 2004 budgeted capital expenditores in Mexico, which represents a
decrease from prior years.
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1tem 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited financial staiements and
the notes thereto included in tins anmal report. Our financial statements have been prepared
accordance with Mexican GAAP, which differs in certain respects from U.S. GAAP. Note 23 t0 the
audkired financial statements provides a description of the principal differences between Mexican GAAP
and U.S. GAAP, as they relate 1o us. a reconciliation to U.S. GAAP of operating income, net income and
total stockholders’ equity and a condensed statement of cash flows under U.S. GAAP.

Pursvant to Mexican GAAP, in our financial statements:

»  nonmonetary assets (inchuding plant, property and equipment of Mexican ongin) and
stockholders” equity are restated for inflation based on the Mexican National Consumer Price
Index; plant, property and equipment of non-Mexican origin are restated based on the rate of
flation m the country of orign and converted into Mexican pesos using the prevailing
exchange rate at the balance sheet date;

o gains and Josses in purchasing power from holding mooetary liabslities of assets are recognized
m meome; and

o all amounts are restated in constant pesos as of December 31, 2003.

Background
Effects of Recent Acquisitions
mmzmdNOS,mmmadamlofmmwmm The
consolidation of these compames affects the comparability of our recent results and wall continue to affect
comparzbility 1 2004, partcularty as the more significant of our 2003 acquisitions were not consolidated
until the fourth quarter of 2003.

During 2003, we compieted the acquisition of five companies. Qxcomulxbtedﬁmmal
statements reflect the consotidation of these companies as follows:

e Celcaribe (as from February 2003);
+  BSE (as from May 2003);

s CTE (as from November 2003);

s CTI(as from November 2003); and
» BCP (as from December 2003).

As a result of these acquisitions, we acquired 4.2 million new wireless subscribers during 2003,
representing approximately 35% of our subseriber growth during 2003. The revermes of these companies
that are inchuded in our consohidated financial statements together accounted for 4.5% of our operating
fevenes i 2003.

Our 2002 auchted financial statements reflect the consolidation of Comeel beginning in February
2002 and Telecom Americas beginning in July 2002. Comeel and Telscom Ame ricas togethes accounted
for 20.0% of consolidated reveres in 2003 and 12.0% in 2002. Prior to their consolidations, our audited
financial statements reflected their net results under the equity method. We acquired control of Comceel 25
part of the reorganization of Telecom Americas in February 2002, and we acquired control of Telecom
Americas when we acquired the mterests held by cur former partners pursuant to a series of transactions
ending in July 2002,
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The following table sets forth the full-year revermes of the companies we acquired m 2002 and
2003 in sullions of constant pesos as of December 31, 2003, as well as the percentage of those revennes
that are included 1n our consohdated revenues. The table does not mclude results of these companies for
years prior to the year duning which we consummated the respective acquisitions. Revenues for periods
prior to the date on which we acquired these companies are not reflected in our consolidated financial

— Asmibmees
“ [
102 w8 .
Comeel(1) Psd 302 S16% P57 1000%
Telecom A {) 7.032 468 11.397 1000
Celeari — - 549 928
BSE —_ —_ 2247 70
CIE - —_ 4,241 19.0
cn — — 2,700 198
BCP - — 4,965 80

(1) Inchudes Celcaribe (as from Febrry 2003).
@ Ieciodes BSE (as from February 2003) and BCP (as from December 2003).

Geographic Segments

We have significant operations m nine countries, which are grouped for financial reporting
purposes in eight geographic scgments. Segment informmtion is presentad in Note 21 to our consolidated
financial statements inchuded in this anmal report. Mexico accounted for 61.0% of our total operating
revermes tn 2003, down from 71.0% in 2002, This percentage may decrease samewhat in 2004 as 2 result
of a full year of consolidating the compantes acquired during 2003.
and Ecuador showing margins higher than or similar to our consolidated operating margin m 2003 and the
remainder showing lower margins or, in the case of Brazl, an operating oss.

The factors that drive financial perfonnance can differ for our operations in different cotntries,
depending on the business mode], competitive situation, regulatory eavironment, capital expenditure
requirements, debt profile and manry other factors. Accordingly, our results of operations in each period
accordingly reflect a combination of different effects m the different countries.

Efffects of Economic Conditions

Our results of operations are affected by economic conditions in Mexico and m the other countries
in which we operare. In periods of slow economic growth, demand for telecommunications services tends
o be adversely affected.

Our results of operatians are also affected by changes tn currency exchange rates. Changes in
the value of the various operating currencies of our subsidiaries against the U.S. doliar may result m
exchange losses of gains on our net U.S. dollar-denominated indebtedness and accounts payable. Tn 2003,
changes in cumrency exchange rates led us to report a foreign exchange gain of Ps. 1,355 million (an
amount that is equal to 7.5% of our operating income), whereas in 2002 we reported 2 foreign exchange
Joss of Ps. 1,526 milbon.

In addition, curency fluctuations between the Mexican peso and the currencies of our non-
Mexican subsidianes affect our results of operations as reported m Mexican pesos. Our non-Mexican
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subsidiaries and affiliates acoounted for approximately 39% of our 2003 operating revernues and 65% of
our year-end 2003 assets, as companed to 29% and 58%, respectively, in 2002.

Trends in Operating Results

Besides acquisitions, the principal factors affecting our operating revenues and operating income
relate to growth in subscribers and traffic. The markets we serve provide opportunities for contrmed
growth, and as subscribers and traffic increase, we generally expect to report higher revenue and
operating mcome (before depreciation and amortization) as a result of economies of scale. These effects
can be partly or wholly offset, however, by the effects of competition on prices and on subseriber
acquisttion costs. The market and competitive conditions are independent in the different markets m which
we operate, and they are sometimes subject to rapid change. As a result, it is difficult to predict overall
trends in our operating performance.

" AtDecember 31, 2003, we had approximately 43.7 million wireless subscribers, as compared to
31.6 miltion at December 31, 2002. The 12.1 muilion, or 38.4%, imcrease tn subscribers in 2003 includes
4.2 mitlion subscribers resulting from aoquisitions we consimmated m that year.

Composition of Revennes

Most of our revennes (86.0% in 2003) come from the sale of airtime and other services. Of our
service revernes, the largest portion is from usage charges, which inchude airtime charges for outgoing
calls and mterconnection charges billed to other service providess for calls completed on our network. The
prmary dover of usage charges is traffic, which, in turn, ts driven by the mumber of customers and by their
average usage. Postpaid customers generally have an aflotment of airtime each month for which they are
not required to pay usage charges. Service revemes also inchude (1) monthly subscription charges paid by
postpaid customers, (2) long-distance charges and (3) charges for other services, such as roaming, call
forwarding, call waiting, call blocking and short text messaging.

Revenues from sales of prepaid services are deferred and recognized as airtime is used or when it
expires, and are incloded under usage charges. For postpaid service, monthly fees are billed in the moath
prior to service, and are deferred and recognized m the month that service is provided. Revenues from
airttme used by postpaid subscribers above the amount covered by their monthty fees are recognized as
airtime is used.

We also have sales revennes from selling handsets and other equipment. Most of our new
subscribers purchase 3 handset, and although we also sell pew handsets to existing customers, changes tn
sales revenues are driven primarily by the number of new customers. The pricing of handsets is not
geared primarily w making a profit from handset sales, because # also takes account of the service
revenues that are expected to result when the handset s used.

Consolidated Results of Operations
The discussion below inchides the results of our transactions with affiliates, mchuding Tetmex.
Affiliate transaction information is presented m Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements included
tn this anmual repoct.
Operating Revenues
Operating revenues increased by 43.9% in 2003 and by 31.4% in 2002. The Ps. 26,198 million
frKrease i revermes n 2003 principally reflects the following factors:

e orgamic growth in all of our geographic segments, particularly Mexico which reported an
increase in revenues of Ps. 10,058 million (or 23.7%%);
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s the consolidation of the results of the five companies acquired during 2003, acoounting for
approximately 14.8% of the increase; and

. ﬂtﬁﬂ-ywmoﬁd:ﬂonofﬂrmﬂtsofTebmmAnﬂi@sdemdinlom,

In 2002, our operating revenues increased by Ps. 14,285 million, or 31.4%, as compared to 2001.
This tocrease was due primarily to an increase in revenmies in Mexioo (up by Ps. 6,947 million), and the
consolidation of revenes from Colombia (Ps. 3,943 mithion) and Brazil (Ps. 3,377 milliog). Excluding
Brazil and Colombia, which were consalidated for the first time in 2002, operating revenues woald have
tncreased by 15.7%.

The increase in operating revenues in 2003 also inchudes a Ps. 4,874 million, or 67.7%, merease in
equipment revenues reflecting subseriber growth and the introduc ion of GSM services in some of our
markets. Equipment revenues as a peroentage of total revermes increased from 12% m 2002 t0 14% o
2003.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Cost of services and equipment—Cost ofsuvmandeqmpnmmpusmdﬂe%
operatng revermes M 2003 and 42.5% of operating revenes i 2002. Cost of services and equipment
mereased by 47.6% in 2003 and by 30.2% m 2002. TlnsmmZOOh:ﬁectsboﬂxguwﬂam
subscribers and acquisitions.

Cost of equipment was Ps. 19,223 miftios in 2003, and prirmarily represents the cost of handsets
sold to subscribers. The 59.5% imcyease in 2003 compares favorably to the 67.7% intrease in equipment
revenues, Cost of equipment increased more slowly than our equipment revenues, prmanly as a result of
our efforts to centralize the purchase of handsets leading to lower equipment unit costs and 2 change in
mix from TDMA to GSM equipment, which 1s generally lass expensive than TDMA equipment. Cost of
equipment increased by 43.2% in 2002 as compared to 2001.

Cost of services increased by 36.7% in 2003, to Ps. 18,251 million. This increase in cost of
services was slower than the growth in service revennes, which increased by 40.6% in 2003. These costs
have increased more slowly than our service revennes, as a result of increasing scale, cost control
measures and higher usage of GSM services. Cost of services increased by 23.2% in 2002 as compared
w© 2001

Commercial, admintstrative and general-—Commescial, administrative and general expenses
represented 19.3% of operating revenues in 2003 and 21.3% of operating revenues in 2002. Onan
absolute basis, cormmereial, admmistrative and general expenses mereased by 30.6% 1n 2003 and 4.1% in
2002. This increase in 2003 reflects both growth tn subscribers and acquisitions. These costs have
increased more slowly than our revenpes, as a result of ncreasing scale and cost control measures i each
country i which we operate.

Depreciation and antortization—Depreciation and amoctization represented 16.1% of operating
revennes in 2003 and 14.5% of operating revenues in 2002, Depreciation and amortization mncreased by
61.3% m 2003 and by 74.9% in 2002. Agart from the consolidation of our recently acquired compantes
2003, the increases in depreciation and amortization m 2003 and 2002 reflect the substantial investments
made in our petworks, particularty m connection with the kaunch of GSM services in Mexico, Braal,
Colombia, Ecuador and Guatemala.

Operating Income
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Operating meome increased by 38.4% in 2003 and 94.5% m 2002, reflecting revenue growth and
2002 improved operating margins. All of our subsidianes, except for Telecom Amernicas, reported
operating moome in 2003.

Operating margin (operating income as a percentage of operating revenues) was 20.9% tn 2003,
21.7% m 2002 and 14.7% m 2001. The significant mcrease in depreciation and amortization caused our
operating niargin to decrease slightly in 2003. The improvement in our operating margim in 2002 reflected
greater efficiency due tothe larger number of customers, cost-control measures and lower subscriber
acquisition costs a5 a perceniage of revemes.

Conmprehensive Financing (Income) Cost
foreign exchange gain or loss, gain of loss antributable to the effects of inflation on monetary assets and

We had comprehensive financing incorne of Ps. 2,123 million in 2003 and comprehensive financing

cost of Ps. 1,023 million in 2002 and Ps. 665 miflion in 2001. The change between 2003 and 2002 reflects

3 combination of factars—principally, a foreign exchange gain in 2003 as opposed to a foreign exchange
Joss i 2002 and a decline in other financing costs.

For 2003 and 2002, changes in the components of comprebensive financing cost were as follows:

o in 2003 and 2002, we had net interest expense of Ps. 1,393 miftion and Ps. 1,095 milbon,
tvely. The increase was attributable primanily to the depreciation of the Mexican peso
agamst the U.S. dollar during 2003, which caused the reported amount of our debt as reported
in pesos to increase.
®  We had a foreign exchange gain of Ps. 1,355 miltion in 2003, as corapared to a Joss of Ps.
1,526 milkion 1 2002. The net exchange gain in 2003 was mainly due to the increase in vahe
of the Brazilian real relative o the US. dolfar. The net exchange loss recorded tn 2002 was
Mydxmhdmwaﬁwdﬂ:mpsomdxﬁnﬁﬁm@mhﬁvemdxus.

o In 2003 and 2002, our average monetary lisbilities excoeded our average monetary assets,
resulting in a net gain from monetary position.

*  We reported a et other financing cost of Ps. 189 million m 2003 and of Ps. 1,274 million i
2002. Netother fnacing costs mehude commissions, fair-vatue gans and losses on
investments, and gains and losses on the sale of mvestments.

I Tax and Employee Profit-Sharing

The statutory rate of Mexican corporate income tax was 34% in 2003 and 35% tn 2002 and 2001.
Our effective rates of provisions for corporate income tax as a percentage of pretax meome were 51.2%,
26.3% and 17.2% for 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively. In 2001, our effective tax rate exceeded the
statutory rate because we had pre-tax josses in our non-Mexican operations that were not deductibic
against our Mexican taxable income. In 2002 and 2003, our non-Mexican operators reported tmproved
results, and some of them enjoyed benefits from net loss camryforwards. The Mexican corporate imncome
tax rate is schednled to decrease to 33% in 2004 and 32% in 2005.

Telcel, like other Mexican companies, is sequired by law to pay to fts employees, in addition to
thetr agreed compensation and benefits, profit sharing in an aggregate amount equal to 10% of Telcel's
raxable income. mamamxpayabkmusedbyna%tol’s 247.9 miltion in 2003 and decreased by
3.5% tm 2002.
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Equity in Results of Affiliates
Our proporticnate share of the results of equity-method affiliates resulted in net Josses of Ps. 130
mifbon m 2003 and Ps. 4,170 million m 2002. The net losses m 2002 resulted primarily from an impatrment
of goodwill recognized by CompUSA and the losses incurred by Telecom Amenicas before we began to
consolidate 1t in July 2002. In 2003, the net loss reflects principally our share of the net Joss reported by
CompUSA :
Other Income (Loss), Net

In 2003, we recorded other net loss of Ps. 1,045 million  This loss reflects primanily losses
recorded i connection with a sale Jeaseback transaction entered into by Teleel and losses recorded m
connection with the exchange of our interest m CompUSA for an interest in U.S. Commercial Carp, SA.
de CV. and cash. See “Related Party Transactions™ under Item 7.

Majortty Net Income '

‘We had majority net income of Ps. 15,032 miltion i 2003 and Ps. 4,784 million in 2002, compared
to a majonity net loss of Ps. 910 million tn 2001. The significant increase in mzjonity net income m 2003
reflected increased revenues and operating income, as well as improved comprehensive financing income
and equity i results of affiliates. The improvement m majonty net income in 2002 reflected improvements
in revenues and eamings from ail cur mayor subsidiaries,
Results of Operations by Geographic Segment

We discuss below the operating results of our subsidianies that provide telecommmmication services
m our principal markets other than Argentma and El Salvador. We are nct discussing operating results in
Argentina and El Salvador because we did not have material operations in those countries m 2002. All
amounts discussed below are presented in accordance with Mexican GAAP. Note 2(g) to our
consolidated financial statements included in thus anmsal report describes how we twanslate the financial
starements of our non-Mexican subsidianes. We restate the financial statements of our foreign )
subsidiaries for mflationary effects nsing restatement factors of the relevant country and then convert
foreign cumency amounts tnto Mexican pesos, using, for ftems from the statement of operatians, the
exchange rate between the Mexican peso and the local cusrency at the end of the applicable year.
Accordingly, changes in the rates of inflation in our markets and exchange rate changes between the
Mexican peso and those currencies could sigmificantly affect reported results in Mexican pesos and the
comparability of reported results with those of prior years. Financial statements for 2001 and 2002 are
restated at constant pesos as of December 31, 2003 based on the anmual rate of mflation in Mexico.

The following table sets forth the exchange rate used to translate the results of our significant non-
Mexican operations, as expressed in Mexican pesos per foreign currency vart, and the change from the
rate used in the prior year.

Merxican pesos per foreign currency anit .
01 won * Change 200 % Chmpe
G tan quetzal 1.1576 13498 16.6% 13975 ™
US. dofiar(1) 9.1423 103125 1280 112380 90
Boazitian real 39492 29161 @615 3.8890 3336
Colombian peso 00041 00035 (1033 00040 15.55
(1) The US. dollar is the sole monetary instrument and unit of and the main y for

purposes in Ecuador.
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Note 21 to our consolidated financial statements includes certain financial information of our
operations by country. Except as discussed below, th:ﬁ:llowmgdxsmsamsbasedonﬂuw@mdm
inclnded in that note.

Mexico

Operating sevemes increased by 23.7% m 2003 and by 19.6% m 2002. In 2003, the oumber of
Telcel subscribers mcreased by 16.8%, to approximately 23.4 million, and there was an mcrease tn total
traffic of 38.5%. In 2002, the mmmber of Teloel subscribers increased by 18.3%, w approximarely 20.1
million, and total traffic increased by 29.0%. We have expenienced dechning rates of subsertber growth in
recent years as penetration rates increase in Mexico. We expect this trend to continue in the fisture.
Teleel’s average monthly revenues per subscriber increased by 10.7% in 2003 as a result of a decrease in
the percentage of Telcel's subscriber base represented by new subscribers and promotions that led to
higher nsage. New subscribers tend to have lower usage than existing customess.

Operating income increased by 44.0% in 2003 and by 24.9% in 2002. Our operating margin was
33.7%m 2003 and 29.0% m 2002. The increase in operating sargin tn 2003 reflects greater
resulting from increasing scale and cost control measures, lower licensing fees and the reversal of a
provision eseblished in 2002 i connection with a Mexican tax applicable to certain telecommunication
services.

Bragl

We began consolidating the resulrs of Telecom Americas in July 2002, such that our consclidated
financial statements do nos reflect reventies or operating income from Brazil prior to that date (except for
our equity in the net results of Telecom Americas). To measure the operating performance of Telecom
Americas, we compare its operating revenues and operating tncoene for contininng operations using its full-
year 2002 and 2001 results. On that basis, Telecom Americas’ operating revenues from continning
operations increased by 55.3% in 2003 and by 44.7% in 2002. The 2003 results include BSE from May
2003 znd BCP from December 2003. Approximately 50.0% of the increase in 2003 operating fevenues
resulted from the consotidation of BSE and BCP. In 2003, the number of Telecom Americas subscribers
tncreased by 4.3 million subscribers, fo appraximately 9.5 milion subscribers, and there was an increase m
total traffic of 26.8%. Of the increase in subscribers in 2003, approxnately 1.6 million resated from
organie growth and appeoximately 2.7 million from the acquisition of BCP and BSE. In 2002, the murmber
odenomAmmmsmbsmbusmnsedbyHS%mwmtdySZniﬂmmﬂﬁnewasm
ncrease in total traffic of 9%

Telecom Americas reparted an operating loss of Ps. 2,134 miflion 1 2003, as conpared to a Ps.
197 million operating Joss in 2002. The mcreased operating Joss in 2003 reflects expenses incurred in
connection with the lamch of a unified brand name “Claro,” the deployment of the new GSM netwaork, the
imegration of BCP and BSE and the start-up of operations in: the regions of Bahia-Sergipe and Parani -
Santa Catanina, as well as increased depreciation expenses.
Central America—Gnatemala and Nicaragua

: Operating revenues incréased by 22.6% in 2003 and by 4.9% in 2002. In 2003, the mmber of
wireless subscribers in Guatenmla increased by 38.5%, to approximately 870,000, and the mumber of
wirelass subscribers in Nicaragua reached approximately 100,000 Telgua began providing wireless
services in Nicaraga in December 2002 Traffic increased by 44.1% in 2003. In 2002, the murnber of
wireless subscribers increased by 49.4%, to approximately 628,000, and there was an increase i total
traffic of 5.1%. The mumber of Telgua's fixed lines m Guatemala reached approamately 929,700 at
December 31, 2003, a 15.7% increase from December 31, 2002.
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Operating income increased by 36.5% in 2003 and decreased by 6.9% in 2002. Our operating
margin was 30.1% m 2003 and 27.0% in 2002. During 2002, we reduced the long distance rates
applicable to incoming and outgomg rates.

Colombia

We began consalidating Comoel in February 2002, such that our consolidated financial statements
do not reflect revenues or operating income from Colombia prior to that date (except for our equity in the
net results of Telecom Americas). To measure the operating performance of Comeel, we compare 1ts
operating revenues and operating incorme using s full-year 2002 and 2001 results. On that basis,
Comeel's operating revermes increased by 54.4% in 2003 and by 26.2%4 in 2002. In 2003, the sramber of
Cormce] subscribers mereased by 30.2%, to approximunely 3.7 mullion, and total traffic mcreased by 54.6%.
The consolidation of Celcanbe accounted for approximately 25% of Comeel’s subseriber growth in 2003
In 2002, the number of Comce] subscribers increased by 49.7%, to approxamately 2 8 milhion, and there
was an increase in total traffic of 43.7%.

Operating meome mereased by 133.1% i 2003. Operating mcome was Ps. 592 million m 2003
and Ps. 254 million in 2002, a5 compared to an operating loss of Ps. 355 milkion in 2001. Our operatmg
margm was 10.3% tn 2003 and 6.7% m 2002.

Ecuador

Operating revenues increased by 108.9% in 2003 and by 52.6% m 2002. In 2003, the mumber of
Cmecdwlsaﬂ)asmmdby&S%mmmﬁdylSnﬂhmmﬂMwummmml
traffic of 35.0%. During 2003, we reached agreement with cetain op on miterc ion fees for
calling party pay and recorded income with respect to fees for prior years and fees accrued after the
agreement date. In 2002, the number of Canecel subscribers increased by 90.8%, to approximately
923,000, and total traffic increased by 67%.

Operating income was Ps. 548 million, s compared to losses of Ps. 110 million in 2002 and Ps.
547 million m 2001. Our operzting margin was 20.2% in 2003.
United States
Operating revenues increased by 47.3%6 i 2003 and decreased by 10.7% in 2002. In 2003, the
mmber of TracFone subscnibers increased by 50%6, to approximately 3.0 million, and total traffic increased
by 60.4%. In 2002, the mmmber of TracFone subscribers increased by 2.9%, to approximatety 2.0 miltioa,
and total traffic mereased by 11.6%. The decline in revenues m 2002 resulted in part from a change m
TracFone’s revenue -deferment methodology, implemented in September 2002, meant to ensure that
revenues more closely mirror the actual consumption levels of prepaid cards sold by TracFone.
In 2003, for the first tme m its luistary, TracFone reparted operating mcome, of Ps. 200.2 milkion.
n addition to subscriber growth, the improvement reported in 2003 reflects certain discounts on atrtime
obtained by TracFone as a result of achieving certain operating targets. TracFone’s digital traffic -
contimues to expand, and digital traffic is more profitable than analog traffic. Operating loss decreased by
177.9% tm 2002,
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Capital Reguirements
*  We must make substantial capital expenditures to contimie expanding and improving our
networks in each coumtry m which we operate. hszandMWemv&cdappmmmdy
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Ps. 13.7 billion and Ps. 11.3 billion m plant, propesty and equipment. We have budgeted
capital expenditres for 2004 to be approximatety U.S.$1.4 billion (Ps. 15.7 billion). See
“Capital Expenditures” under Irem 4.

»  We pay dividends, and we also repurchase our own shares from ume 1o tme. We paid Ps.
794 milkion in dividends m 2003 and Ps. 618 mullion in 2002, and we are paying dividends
quarterly in 2004. We also spent (including commissions and value-added taxes) Ps. 975
miltion repurchasing our own shares in the open market in 2003 and Ps. 2,192 million in 2002
Our sharehoiders have authorized additional repurchases, and whether we do so will depend
on considerations nchuding market pace and our other capital requirements. We have made
additional repurchases m 2004. In a shareholders” meeting held oo Apal 27, 2004, our
shareholders resotved to pay a dividend of Ps. 0.12 per share and authorized a Ps. 10,000
miilion increase in our reserve for the repurchase of additional shares, thereby increasing our
resesve to Ps. 25,000 million.

» Dunng 2003, we spent approximately Ps. 18.2 billion in order to acquire new companies and
ncrease our imerest i some of our subsidiaries.

The following table summarizes certain contractual liabilities as of December 31, 2003, The table

does not mclude acoounts payable or pension habihitses:

Payments Due by Period
laczthan 1
Tetad oy Myen  4Syen  AfwSyews
(miTiions of censtast peses as of December 31, 2003)

Ps. 993 Ps 37 Ps. 956 - —

. 620 752 2360  Ps. 1311 Ps 2397

Loue-temm 8otk ... oo 40156 3917 30091 5101 o7
Shorttemdebt ..o 8164 8164 — - —
Other (1) 40% 1547 2503 — —
Total B QU8 Be 447 Ba36010 B 6412 PBa 3344

(1) See discussion below.

We have entered into agreements to purchase equipment for the rollont of GSM networks in
Argentina, Brazil, Colombda and Ecuador. Total amounts payabie under those contracts that are not
reflected in our acoounts payable or paid are approximately U.S.5325.5 million (Ps. 3,657 million). We
recognize a liabthity in our financial statements under these agresments when we have tested and accepted
the equipment. Our payment obligations under these agreements are contingent on the suppliers’
compliance with their terms. Aménica Mévil guarantees amounts payable by our subsidianies under these
agreements. Other than the amounts described i the table above, we bad no other outstanding matenial
purchase commitments as of December 31, 2003. We enter into a mumber of supply, advertising and other
contracts 1o the ordinary course of business, but we do aot believe that any of those contracts are material
0 our bguidity.

We could have opportunities in the fisnre to tnvest m other telecommunications companies outside
Mexico, especially in Latin America, because we believe the telecommmications sector m Latin Amesica
will continue to undergo consolidation We can give no assurance as to the extent, tming of cost of such
mvestments. Some of the assets that we acquire may have substantial dedx and may require significant
fundmg for capital expenditures.
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Working Capital

At December 31, 2003, we had a working capital deficit (excess of corrent hiabilities over comrent
assets) of Ps. 10,230 milkon, as compared to a working capital deficit of Ps. 4,643 milion at December 31,
2002. This increase in 2003 principally reflected the extension of favorable payment terms obtained by us
fram equipment suppliers during 2003. We have substantial capital resources, inchading finds generated
fram operations and boowing capacity, to meet our short-term obligations as they become dve and
payable.

Capital Resources )

‘We generate substantial resources from our operations. On 2 consolidated basis, operatmg
activities provided Ps. 29,038 miltion in 2003 and Ps. 19,408 million in 2002. All of our geographic
segments (other than the United States in 2002 and Brazil in 2003) ge nerated net resources from
operations in 2003 and 2002.

In addition to funds generated from operations, we have used new bomrowings to find acquisitions
and investments. We have relied on a combimation of equipment financing, other boarrowings from
intemational banks, and borrowings in the Mexican capital markets. Many of the companies we acquired
during 2002 had substantial indebtedness. Dunng 2002 and 2003, we sought w reduce their indebtedness
by incurming additional debt at our Mexican companies, which reduces our borrowing costs.

We were able to find our capital requirements during 2003 principally through resourees

Kwse&wmxﬁxﬂsbysmgamlm&,mbykwsmhﬂwmmlmckd
each class i the same proportion.  This would kimit our ability to 1ssue mose 1 Shares, which are the most
liquid class of our capital stock, unless we tsspe more AA Shares, which are an valisted class of voting
shares currently held only by Aménca Telecom and SBCT

Outstanding Indebiedness

At December 31, 2003, we had total consolidated indebtedness of Ps. 49,313 million, as compared
to Ps. 48,036 million at December 31, 2002, Cash and cash equivalents amounted to Ps. 10,082 million at
December 31, 2003 and Ps. 11,023 million at December 31, 2002. Approximately 76% of our
indebtedness at December 31, 2003 was denominated in currencies other than Mexican pesos
(approvimately 67% in U S, doflars and 9% in other currencies, prinaipally in reais), and approximately
42% of our consahidated debt obligations (after taking into acoount smterest swaps) bore tterest at floating
rates. The weighted average cost of all our third-party debt at December 31, 2003 (including mterest,
commissions and reimbursement of certain lenders for Mexican taxes withheld) was approximately
5.19%.

Our major categonies of indebtedness are as follows:

o Equipment financing factlities with support from export development agenctes. We have

2 number of equipment financing factlities, under which expart development agencies provide
support for financing to purchase exports from their respective countries. These facilines are
generally mednmm- to long-term, with periodic amortization and irterest at a spread over
LIBOR. They are extended 1o us of to operating subsidiaries, usually with guarantees from
one or mose of América M6vil, Telcel or Sercotel. The aggregate amount outstanding under
equipment financing facilities at December 31, 2003 was U.S.$795 million (Ps. 8,933 million).
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®  Other bank loans. At December 31, 2003, we had approximately U.S.$1.7 billion (Ps. 19.1
billion) outstanding under a sumber of dollar-denominated bank facilities beaning tnterest at
LIBOR plus a spread. For certain of the facilities, the spread over LIBOR can vary if there
15 a detenoration m our financial condition. The facilities have stmilar tecms as to covenants,
and under all of the facilities Amésica Mévil, Sercotel and Tecel are either borowers or
guarantors. For certain of these facilities, Telgua is also a guarantor, At December 31, 2003,
we also had bank loans denominated in cumencies other than U.S. dollars, incloding pesos, in
an aggregate amount of Ps. 3,409 million,

& Peso-denominated notes. At December 31, 2003, we had Ps. 11.25 billion tn senior notes
that had been sold i the Mexican capital markets. These senior notes were issned by us with
a guarantee from Telcel

* BNDES. An,TssmdmmulhawammﬂngsthmMWﬁm
of the Banco Nacional de Desenvolvimento Econfmico e Social, or “BNDES”, the Brazitian
féderal development bank These loans are principally denominated in reais, with a portion
indexed 10 U.S. dollars. At December 31, 2003, the aggregate principal amount of these loans
was approximaely R$618 million phus the equivalent in reais of approximately U.S.$60 milkon
in foreign currencies.

We are subject to financial and operating covenants under our loan agreements. They limit our
ability 1o pledge our assets, to effect a merger or a sale of all or substantially all of our assets, 2nd to
penmit restrictions on the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or make distributtons to us. The most
restrictive fimancial o quire us to maintam a consolidated ratio of debt to EBITDA (as defined m
the loan agreements) not greater than 3.5 to 1 and a consolidated yatio of EBITDA to fterest expense not
less than 2.5 to 1 (using terms defined in the loan agreements). Teleed ts subject to fimancial covenants
sumiar to those applicable to Aménica Movil A mumber of our financing mstruments are subject to exther
acceleration or repurchase at the holder’s option if there is a change of control. In the event of a defaute
under certain material provisions of some of our bank loans, we are prohibited from paying dividends to
our shareholders.

At December 31, 2003, Teicel had, on an unconsatidated basis, unsecured and unsubordinated
obhgations under indebtedness and guarantees of parent company and subsidiary indebtedness of
approximately Ps. 42,832 million (U.S.$3,812 milbon), excluding debt owed to us or our other subsidianies.
At such date, Sercotel, our wholly-owned subsidiary that holds directly or mdirectly the shares of all our
operating subsidianies, had, on an unconsolidated basis, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations under
indebtedness and g of pareat company and subsidiary indebtedness of approximately Ps. 28,896
osilion (US.$2,572 milkion). In addition, at December 31, 2003, our operating subsidianes other than
Telcel had mdebtadness of Ps. 5,336 million (U.5.$474.9 mallion).

On March 9, 2004, we issued U.S.$500 million in principal amount of 4.125% senior notes due
2009 and U.S.$800 milkion i prncipal amount of 5.500% senior due 2014. In addition, on April 20, 2004,
we issued U.S.$300 million i principal amount of floating rate notes due 2007, bearing mterest at a rate
equal to three-month Libar plus 0.625%. These notes are guaramteed by Telcel. The notes were sold in
the United States to qualified instmutional buyers under Rule 144A and outside the United States m
compliance with Regulation S. The net proceeds from the sale of the notes, after initial purchasers’ fees,
were approximately U.S.$1,590 million.  As of the date of this anmmal report, we had paid approximarely
U.S.$1,446 million of debt, meluding approximately U.S.$1,310 milhon of US. dofiar-denonvinated debt,
using the net proceeds from the sale of the notes. We have agreed to use our reasonable best efforts o
offer to the holders of notes the opportunity to exchange their notes for an equal principal amount of notes
to be 1ssued pursuant to 2 registration staterent filed with the SEC. If we fail to satisfy our registration
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obliganions by October 31, 2004 with respect 1o the fixed rate notes or December 31, 2004 with respect to
the floating rate notes, the annual imterest rate applicable to the notes watl, until such obligations are
satisfied, be increased by 0.50% per year.

OfF-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have obligations to purchase additional shares of our subsidianes Telecom Americas and CT1
at the option of their minority sharebolders. In the case of Telecom Americas, the minomty shareholder
has the right to sell half of its shares to us beginming m 2006 for U.S $150 million plus imerest. In the case
of CTI, the mmonity shareholder bas the night to seil all of its shares to us within a specified period after
the completion of the restucturing of the indebtedness of CT1 for U.S.$17.1 million

In connection with an investment in a small Spanish company that was transferred to vs i cur
spmn-off from Telmex, we have agreed to mdemmify Telmex for up to euro 13.7 million in respect of a
guarantee given by Telmex o other fnterest holders in that company. In 2001, we wrote off the ennire
batance of our investment in that cogpany.

Except for the obligations described above, as of December 31, 2003, we had no off-balance
sheet amrangements that require dischsure under appticable SEC regulations.
U.S. GAAP Reconciliation

We had net mcome under U.S. GAAP of Ps. 14,899 milkion i 2003 and Ps. 6,037 sillion m 2002,
as compared to 3 net loss of Ps. 670 million i 2001. Compared to Mexican GAAP, net income under
U.S. GAAP was 0.88% lower in 2003 and 26.2% higher m 2002.

There are several differences befween Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP that significantly affect
our net income and stockholders’ equity. The most significant diffecences in their effect on 2003 pet
ncome related to the recording of deferred income taxes and the reversal of the amortization of 1
reported under Mexican GAAP. In 2002, for U.S. GAAP purposes, we adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141, Busfness Combinations, and No. 142, Geodwill and Other Intangible
Assets. As a result, for U.S. GAAP purposes we no longer amortize goodwill and other intangible assets
with indefintte useful ives. Another significant difference b US. and Mexican GAAP s how the
carrying vahue of plant, property and equipment is restated w reflect effects of mflation. Under Mexican
GAAP, we restate fixed assets of non-Mexican ongin based on the rate of inflation in the country of origin
and the prevailing exchange rate at the balance sheet date, while under U.S. GAAP we use the Mexican
inflation rate. In 2002 and 2003, this resulted in lower net income under US. GAAP, because Mexican
inflation exceeded the rate used to restate fixed assets of non-Mexican origin. Other differences that
affected 2003 net income relate to accrued vacation pay, capitalized interest on assets under construction,
ﬁmwmmwmm)mmmaﬁmﬂhmmﬁm
mterests. The differences m stockholders’ equity under Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP reflect
peincipally these same matters. For a discussion of the paincipal differences between Mexican GAAP and
US. GAAP, see Note 23 to our consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates in Certain Accounting Policies

In preparing our financial statements, we make estimates concerning a vanety of matters. Some
of these autters are highly uncertain, and our estimates mvolve judgments we make based on the
mfrmation available to us. Tn the discussion below, we have identified several of these matters for which
our financial presentation would be matenally affected if either (1) we used different estimates that we
could reasonably have used o (2) in the fisture we change our estimates in response to changes that are
reasomably likely to occur.




)

()

‘)

()

)

)

The discussion addresses only those estimates that we consider most important based on the
degree of uncertainty and the likelihood of a material impact if we used a different estimate. There are
mzny other areas in which we use estimates about uncertain matters, but the reasonably likely effect of
mmdmdﬁummsmmdmmﬁmﬂm

Estimated useful lives of plant, property and equipment

We estimate the. usefid lives of particular classes of plant, property and equipment in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded in each peniod. Depreciation expense isa
significant element of our costs and expenses, amounting i 2003 to Ps. 9,727 milkion, or 14.3% of our
operating costs and expenses. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements.

The estimates are based on our historical expetience with similar assess, anticipated technological
changes and other factors, taking mito account the practices of other telecommunications companies. We
review estimated useful lives each year to determine whether they should be changed, and at times, we
have changed them for particular classes of assets. We muay shorten the estimated useful life of an asset
class in response to technological changes, changes in the market or other developments. This results in
ncreased depreciation expease, and i some cases, it can result in our recognizing an impaitment charge
to reflect a write -dovwn in value.

Impairment

We carry substantial balances on our balance sheet for plant, property and equipment and for
goodwill that are based on historical costs net of accunmilated depreciation 2nd amortization. We are
required to evaluate each year whether these assets are impaired, that s, whether their future capacity to
genesate cash does not justify maintaining them at their carrying valoes. If they ate impatred, we are
required to recognize a loss by writing off part of their value. The analysis we perfonm requires that we
estimate the future cash flows attributable to these assets, and these estimates require us to make a
variety of judgments about our fiture operations. Changes in these judgments could require us to

recognize mpairment losses in fiture periods. Our evaluations tn 2003 and 2002 did pot result in any
am&mmmwdwﬂmmmd@mammm

Our equity-method affiliate ConpUSA wrote-off goodwill by U.S $410 million tn 2002 upon
adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goadwill and Other Intangtble Assets.
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Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
MANAGEMENT
Directors

Management of our business is vested in our Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has
broad authority to manage our company. Actions requiring the approval of our board of directors include:

» 2 change of control of the company:

»  transactions with related parties (as defined in the Mexican Secunities Market Law);

o acquisitions of sales of assets equal in value to, or greater in vatue than, 10% of the vatue of

the company’s assets;
e guarantees of amonnts exceeding 30% of the value of the company's assets; and
o any other transaction i an amourtt greater than 1% of the valve of the company’s assets.

Our bylaws provide for the Board of Directors to consist of between five and 20 directors and
aflow for the appoimtment of an equal number of altemate directors. Directors need not be shareholders.
A majexity of our directors and 2 majority of the altemate directors must be Mexiean citizens and elected
by Mexican shareholders. A majority of the holders of the AA Shares and A Shares voting together elect
a majority of the directors and alternate directors, provided that any holder or group of holdess of at least
10% of the total AA Shares and A Shares is entitled to name one director. Two directors and two
alternate direcioss, if any, are elected by a njonity vote of the holders of L Shares. Each alternate
director may atrend meetings of the Board of Directors and vote in the absence of a corresponding
director, Directors and altemate directors are elected or ratified at each anmial ordinary general meeting
of shareholders and each anmal ordinary special meeting of holders of L Shares, and each serves umtil a
successor is elected and takes office. Pursuant to our bylaws and Mexican law, at beast 25% of oor
directors and 25% of our alternate directors must be independent, as defined under the Mexican Securities
Market Law. Incuﬂexmhaw:quaumfo:amungothwdofDne@us.ammoﬁhose
present must be Mexican nationals.

All of the cumrent members of the Board of Directars and of the Executive, Andst and
Compensation Committees were elected or ratified at a shareholders” meeting held on Apal 27, 2004, with
ten directors elected by the AA Shares and A Shares voting together and two directors elected by the L
Shares. No alternate directors were appointed. Aménica Telecom and SBC International have agreed to
vote for the number of directors and alvernate directars named by each of them in proportion to thetr

Our bylaws provide that the members of the Board of Directors are appointed for terms of one

year. Pursuant to Mexican Lyw, members of the Board continue in their positions after the expiration of
&xmmmsxfnrwmbexsmmnppomed mnanﬁxﬂposnomdﬂlemunmmﬂ:esofﬂz
Board, their year of birth and nformation concemning their conxmttee membership and princpal bustness
activities outside América Movil are as follows:
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Cartos Slim Hehii
Chainman and Member of the
Executive Comenittee

Director and Member of the
Executive Committee

Jaime Chico Pardo
Director

Director and Chairman of the Andit

Director and Member of the Audit
- Committee

Bom: 1940

Firstelected: 2000

Temm expires: 2005

Principal occupation: Honorary Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Grupo Carso, S.A. deC.V.

Other & b Chairmsn of the Board of Directors of

and busigess Teimex and Grupo Financiero Inbursa,

experience: SA deCV.

Bom: 1966

First elected: 2000

Term expires: 2005

Principal occupation: Chief Executive Officer of América Movil

Other directorships: Director of Carso Giobal Telecom,
América Telecom and Grupo Canso, $.A.
deCV.

Business experience: Chief Executive Officer of Hulera Enzkadi,
SA deCV.

Bom: 1950

First etected: 2000

Term expires: 2003

Other di hip Vice-chat of the Board of Directors
of Telmex; Director of América Telecom,
SA de C.V.. Carso Global Telecom, S.A.
de C.V., Grupo Carso, S.A- de CV. mnd
Honeywell Intesnational

ief Executive Officer of Grupo

B ¥ Condumex, Presidentt of Corporacié
Industrial Liamers (Exuziadi Genesal Tire
de Mexico)

Bom: 1960

Finstelected: 2000

Term expires: 2005

Principal occup Chat =d Chaef Executive Officer of
Cotporacian Interamenicana de
Egtretenimiento, S.A. de C.V.

Other directorships: Director of Telmex, Bolsa Mexicana de
Valores, S A de C.V. and Corporacicn
! icana de E: i SA
deCV.

Bom: 1963

First elected: 2000

Term expires: 2005

Principal occupation: Chief Executive Oficer of Tresatia Capital
Director of Grupo Modelo, S.A. de CV.,

Other directorships: Grupo Televisa, $.A., Grupo Financiero
BanamenAccival, S.A. de C.V. and KIO
Nerwarks
President of Tresalia Capitat

Business experience:
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Rafael Robles Mizja

Bom: 1965
Director and Corp S y Firstetected 2000
Term expires: 2005 .
incipal occopation: Partner, Franck, Galicia y Robles, S.C.
Other di ships: Carp S y of Carso Global
Telecom, S.A. de C.V,, Sears Rochuck de
México, S.A de C.V, América Telecom,
S.A de C.V. and Parras Cone de México,
SA deCV.
Jonathan P. Klug " Bom: 1956
Duarector First elected: 2003
Term expires: 2003
Principal occupation Vice-President Finance of SBC
Other directorships: Director of Belgacan, 8 A, Telkom SA
Limited, ADSB Telecommunications B.V.
and TDA A'S
James W. Callaway Bom: 1946
Director and Member of the First elected: 2003
Executive Committee Term expires: 2005
Principal occupation: Group President of SBC
Communications, Inc.
Ocher directorships: Director of Belgacan, S.A, TDC A/S and
Teléfonos de México, S A de C.V.
Ciodio X. Gonzilez Laporte Bom: 1934
Director and Member of the Firstelected: 2000
Compensation Committee Term expires: 2005
de México, S A deCV.
Other directorships: Director of the Rimberty Cluk
Carporation, Rellogg Company, IBM
Latin America and Grupo Carso, S.A. de
cVv.
Business expenience: Various positions at the Kimberly Clark
Corporation
David Ibarra Muiioz Bom: 1930
Directos and Member of the Andit  First elected: 2000
Committee and the Term expires: 2005
Conpensation Cornmistee Other directorships: Director of Grupo Financiero Inbursa,
SA deCV.
Business experieace: Chief Executive Officer of Naciooat
Financiera, served in the Mexican
Ministry of Finance and Public Credit
62



0

O

()

)

)

Pairick Slim Doit Bom: 196
Director Firstelected: 2004
Term expires: 2005
Other directorships: Directos of Carso Global
Telecom, S A, América
Telecom, S A, US. Comuercial Corp.,
S.A.de C.V. and Grupo Sanborns,
SA&CV.
Business experience: Chief Executive Officer of Grupo
Carso, SA de CV.
Carlos Bremer Gatiérrez Bom: 1960
Director Firstelected: 2004
Term expires: 2005
Other directorships: Director of Grupo Fmanciero
: Valoe, SA de CV.
Business expetience: Chief Operating Officer of Abaco
Casa de Bolsa, SA deCV.

Daniel Hajj Aboumrad is the son-m-law of Carlos Shm Hehi, and Patrick Stim Domt 15 the son of
Calos Shim Heliz
Executive Committee

Our bylaws provide that the Executive Commnmuttee may generally exercise the powers of the
Board of Directors, with certain exceptions. In addition, the Board of Directors is required to consult the
Exeastive Committee before deciding on certain matters set forth in the bylaws, and the Execiutive
Committee mmst provide its views within ten calendar days following a request from the Board of
Directors, the Chief Executive Officer or the Chairnman of the Board of Directars. If the Executive
Committee is unable to make a recornmendation withm ten calendar days or if 2 majonity of the Board of
Directors or @y other corporate body duly acting within its mandate determines in good faith that action
cannot be deferred until the Executive Commuttee makes a recommendation, the Board of Directors 1s
authorized to act without soch recommendation. The Executive Cogunittee may not delegate its powers to
special delegates or attoreys-in-fact. )

The Executive Committee is elected fram among the directors and alternate directors by a
majority vote of the holders of common shares (AA Shares and A Shares). The Executive Committee is
currently comprised of three members. The majonity of its members must be Mexican citizens and elected
by Mexican shareholders. Our controlling shareholders have agreed that two of s members shall be '
Shareholders™ under Item 7. The current members of the Executive Committee are Messrs. Cardos Skim
Hedt and Daniel Hajj Aboumrad, narned by the Mexican cantrolling shareholders, and Mr. James W.
Callaway, named by SBC International, Inc.

Audit Committee

Mufioz and Ms. Maria Asuncién Aramburuzabala Lamregn.  The mandate of the Audit Commitree is to
establish and monitor procedures and controls in order o ensure that the fimemcral mformation we distribute
is useful, appropriate and reliable and accurately reflects our financial position. In particular, the Audit
Commttee is required to:

o assist the Board of Directors in selecting candidates for our auditors and reviewing the scope

and terms of their engagement;
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assist the Exscutive Committee in monitonng the. performance of our auditors and re-
evaluating the terms of therr engagement:

recommend procedures for prepanng financial statements and intemnal controls;

monitor mternal controls and accounting for specified types of matters;
mmfmﬂwmﬁmofwmﬁxwmmxn
mwwﬂdxaﬂmﬂwmumlﬁmmalmaﬂhmommgmsm
applied m the annual and the mterim financial statements;

report to the Board of Directors @ fis activities; _

opine on transactions with related parties as defined in the Securities Market Law and
propose consulting independent specialists to opine on such transactions; and

perform any other functions the Board of Directors may delegate to the Audit Committee.

In addition, pursuant to our bylaws and Mexican law, the Audit Committee 15 required to submit an arvmal
report to the Board of Directors and to our shareholders, and the Board mmst seek the opinion of the Andit
Committee regarding anry transaction with 3 related party that is owside the ordinary course of our
business. Each member of the Andit Commnitee 15 independent, as independence is defined i the
Compensation Committee

The

Conmmittee consists of Massrs. DamdlbaunkﬁmandclzudeGm}cz

Compensation
Laporte. The mandate of the Compensation Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in evaluating
and compensating our semor executives. In particular, the Compensation Committee is required to:

recommend to the Board of Directors procedures for the selection and succession of our chief
executive officer and our principal executives;

propose cnitenia for evaluating executive performance;

analyze the proposals of the chief executive officer concerning the struchire and amount of
compensation for our senior executive and raise them with the Board of Directors;

feview new executive compensation programs and the operations of existing programs;
Wmmmmwmtmmm

assist the Board of Directors i developing appropriate p { pobi

participate with the Board of Directors in developing a plan for employees to fnvest in our L
Shares and review the implementation of such plan;

feport to the Board of Directors on its activities; and

perform any other fimetions the Board of Directors may delegate to the Compensation
Committee.

Senior Management
The names, responsibilities and prior business expenience of our senior officers are as follows:
Daniel Hajj Abouswad Appointed: 2000
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Chief Executive Officer Business experience: Director of Telmex's Mexican
subsidiaries, Chief Executive Officer of
Compania Hulera Evziaudi. S.A . de C.V.
Carlos José Gareia Moreno Elizondo Appointed: 3001
Chief Financial Officer Business experience: Genera] Directar of Public Credit st

fi ing at Petrolens M S.A
de C.V. (Peraex)
Carlos Cirdenas Blisquez Appointed: 2000
Latin Americen Operati Busi xperi : Vmpmwnl"ehmx.mdudms
Manager for the
service Company Buscatel, S.A. de C.V.

Financiero Inburga, S.A de CV.
Jost Elins Briones Capetillo Appointed: 2001
Admenistration and Finance Bust xperi : Comptroller of Telce!
Alejandro Cantis Jiménez Appointed: . 2001
General Counsel Busi xXpers _ Mijeres, Angpitia. Cortés y Fuentes, S.C.

Mr. Carlos Cérdenas Blasquez s the son-m-law of Jaime Chico Pardo, one of our directors.

Statutory Auditors

Under our bylaws, the holders of a majonty of our outstanding common shares (AA Shares and A
Shares) may elect one or more statutory auditors (comisarios) and corresponding altemnate statutory
anditors, who serve until 2 successor is elected. Stanrtory anditors are normatly elected or ratified at the
anmmal geperal shareholders’ meetings. The primary role of the statutory auditors is to repont to the
shareholders at the anmmal ordinary general meeting reganding the accuracy of the financial information
presented to such holders by the Board of Directors. The statutory auditors are also authorized to:

s call oxhinary or extraordinary general meetings;

» place items on the agenda for meetings of shareholders o the Board of Directors;

»  attend meetings of shareholders, the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee; and

o generally montor our affairs. ) '

The statutory auditors also receive monthly reports from the Board of Directors regarding material aspects
of our affairs, inchuding our financial condition. The crent statutory anditor and altemate starutory
auditor are: Francisco Alvarez del Campo and Agustin Aguilar Laurents, respectively.

According to our bylaws and Mexican law, any holder or group of holders of at least 10% of our
capital stock is entitled to name one statitory auditor. The appotntment of statutory anditors elected as
described above may only be revoked if the appomtment of statutory auditors elected by the majority of
the holders of our conimon shares is also revoked.
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Compensation of Directors and Senior Management

The aggregate compensation paid to our directors and senior management i 2003 was
approxmuately Ps. 2.1 mitlion and Ps. 89 million, respectively. Provisions to provide pension, retirement of
similar benefits for management totaled approxtmately Ps. 2.04 nullion.

Dunng 2001, we established a stock option plan for our most semior executives. Our
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors aothonized the plan, reserving a total of 3,215,000 L
Shares from our treasury. The subscription price for the 2001 plan is Ps. 1.00 per share. Participants
under the plan may exercise 25% of the options duning 2001, 25% dng 2002, 25% during 2003 and the
remaining 25% during 2004. Because the options do not expire if not exercised m a particnlar year, a
participant could wait until the fourth anniversary of the plan to exercise 100% of the options granted by
us. During 2002 and 2003, we established second and third plans, respectively, each of which fimctions
under the same rules as the 2001 plan, except that the second plan has a one-year lag and the third plan
has a two-year lag and a subscription price of Ps. 7.00 per share. In 2002, 2,939,000 additional L Shares,
and m 2003 2,565,000 additional L Shares, were reserved from our treasury for such plans. As of
December 31, 2003, a total of 3,355,750 L Shares have beeq acquired by aur employees under our stock
option plans.

Share O hi

According to beneficial ownership reports filed with the SEC, Carlos Slim Hehi, the chairman of
our Board of Directors, and certain members of his immediate fammly, including his son and mermber of our
Board of Directars, Parick Shim Domit, together own 2 majority of the voting stock of América Telecom,
S.A de C.V,, our controlling shareholder. See “Major Sharehalders.” In addition, according to beneficial
ownership reports filed with the SEC, as of June 14, 2004, Carlos Stim Hehi held 40,000 of cur A Shares
and 100,000 of our L Shares directly, and Patrick Stom Domit held 8,134 of our L Shares directly. To our
knowledge, none of our other directors, attemate directors or executive officers is the beneficial cwner of
more than 1% of any class of our captal stock.
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EMPLOYEES
The following table sets forth the number of employees and 2 breakdown of employees by man
category of activity and geographic location as of the end of each year in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2003:.

December 31,

R 2001 2002 2003

Number of empbyees ................. 14,786 17553 . 480
Can-,gq'y of activity:

WArEess ... 11942 14949 20,165

7644 7943 8,64

646 466 356

6,496 9.144 15,880

As of December 31, 2003, the Sindicato Progresista de Trabajadores de C tcacion y
Transporte de la Repiiblica Mexicana (Progressive Union of Communication and Transport Workers of
the Mexican Republic) represented approximately 83% of the employees of Telcel Al manapement
positions at Telcel are beld by noo-union employees. Salanies and certain benefits are renegotiated every
year. In May 2004, Telcel and the union agreed to 3 4.3% nominal increase in basic wages, retroactive o

" March 2004.

Under our labor agreements and Mexican labor Law, we are obligated to pay senionity prepmurms to
retiting employees and pension and death benefits to retired employees. Retirees will be entitied to receive
pension increases whenever salary increases are granted to arent employees.

Seme of our foreign substdianes, inchuding Telecom Amenicas, Telgua, CTE and CTI, also have

We believe that we have good current relations with our warkforce.
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Item 7. Major Sharebolders and Related Party Transactions
MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
The following table sets forth our capital structure as of Apnil 30, 2004:

Number of Percentof
Shares Percent of Voting
Class _{wilfions) ~_ Capitl  Shares(*)
L Shares (nc par value) 8,729 65.00% -—
AA Shares (no par valoe), 3,647 2853 9300%
A Shares (no par value) 27 217 700
Tota 12530 10000% o 10000%

(*) Except on limited matters foc which L Shares have voting rights.

The AA Shares represented 93.00% of the full voting shares (AA Shares and A Shares) and
28.83% of the total capital stock of América Movil as of Apel 30, 2004. The AA Shares are owned by
Aménica Telecom, S.A. de C.V.,, SBC International Inc. (a subsidiary of the U.S. telecommumnications
company SBC Commumnications, Inc.) and certain other Miexacan investors. The following table sets forth
their respective ownership amounts and percentages of AA Shares as of April 30, 2004.

AA Shares Percent of
Owned Perceni of Voting
Shareholder {millions) Class Shares(*)
América Telecom. .. 259 B35% 6349%
SBCH ional 956 Pl s 2439
Other Mexican holders of AA shares 162 44 412
Total i64] 10000 b ——

(*) Except on limited matters for which L Shares have voting nights.

Aménica Telecom was established in November 2001 in a spin-off from Carso Global Telecom
using a procedure under Mexican corporate law called escisién or “split-up.” According to reports of
beneficial ownership of our shares filed with the SEC, Carios Slim Hehi and certain members of his
tmmediate famaly, inchading his son and member of our Board of Directors, Patrick Stim Domit, together
own a majority of the voting stock of América Telecom.

América Telecom and SBCT are parties to an agreement relating to their ownership cf AA
Shares. Among other things, the agreement subjects certan transfess of AA Shares by either party to a
right of first offer m favar of the other party, although the night of first offer does not apply 1o the
conversion of AA Shares to L Shares, as permitted by our bylaws, or the subsequent transfer of L Shares.
The agreement also provides for the composition of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee
and for each party to enter into a Management Sesvices Agreement with us. See “Directors” and
“Executive Commyiitee” under Item 6 and “Related Party Transactions.”
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The following table ideatifies each owner of more than 5% of any class of our shares as of
April 30, 2004. Except as described below, we are not aware of any holder of more than 5% of any class
of our shares.
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Capital Group ional, Inc (3) - -

AA Shares A Shares L Shares
Percent
Shares Perceat Shares Perceat Shares Perceme of

: Ownad of Owned of Oward of Vating

Sharehelder (millions) Class (millions) Class (miilicas) Clazs Shares
América Telecom( 1) 1520 &% 48 175% 2192 Bu% 6SN%

SBC I ozl 956 262 — - - - A3
JPMarean Chase & Co.(2) —_ —_ —_ —_ 690 79 —
-_ -_— 559 641 —

(1) According to beneficial ownership reports filed with the SEC, Amérnica Telecom has the
obligation to purchase approximately 1,132.5 million additional L Shares under forward share
purchase transactions maturing between October 2005 and May 2009. As of June 14, 2004,
according to beneficial ownership reports filed with the SEC, Aménica Telrcom was deemed a
beneficial owner of 15.9% of our A Shares and 35.9% (inchxding L Shares under the forward
share purchase agreements described above) of our L Shares.

{2) Bencficial ownership, as of March 31, 2004, as reported in a Schedule 13G, filed by JPMorgan
Chase & Co.

(3) Beneficial ownership, as of March 31, 2004, as reported in a Schedule 13G, filed by Capital
Group Intermational, Inc.

As of April 30, 2004, 76.70% of the outstanding L Shares were represented by L Share ADSs,
each representing the right to recesve 20 L Shares, and 99.99%% of the L Share ADSs were held by 14280
holders (including The Depositary Trust Company) with registered addresses i the United States.
25.68% of the A Shares were held in the form of A Share ADSs, each representing the right to receive 20
A Shares, and 99.99% of the A Share ADSs were held by 4,483 holders with registered addresses in the
United States. Each A Share may be exchanged at the option of the holder for one L Share,

‘We may repurchase our shares on the Mexican Stock Exchange from time to time up to 2
specified maxitum aggregate vale authonzed by the holders of AA Shares and A Shares and our Board
of Directors. In March 2001, we were authorized by our shareholders to repurchase shares with an
aggregate valoe of up to Ps. 5,000 million; in July 2001, we were authonized to repurchase an additional
Ps. 5,000 paillion; in Aprl 2003, we were authorized to repurchase an additiomal Ps. 5,000 million; and in
April 2004, we were authorized to repurchase an additional Ps. 10,000 million, for a total aggregate value
of Ps. 25,000 million. AsoprﬂSOZOMwehadchhasedl}ZZnnﬂmLﬂmsmddnﬂmA
Shares, with an aggregate value of approximately Ps. 13,356 million.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSA CTIONS

Transactions with Telmex

We have, and expect to contirme o have, avxwtyofemuacanlrdanons&psmdxhhuand
1ts subsidianies. Mmmmmammmdhwdmmmﬂ
arrangements.

According to beneficial cwnership reports filsd with the SEC,Tdm:sMcommcmul
with our controlling shareholder América Telecom.

Continuing Commercial Relationships

Because Telmex and Teloel provide teleconmmumications services in the same geograpincal

markets, they have extensive operational relationships. These relationships inclnde interconnection
between their respective networks; use of facilities, particularly for the co-ocation of equipment on
premises owned by Telmex; use by Telcel of Telmex's private circuits; and use by each of the services
provided by the other. These relationships are subject to a variety of different agreements. Many of them
are also subject to specific regulations governing all telecommmmnications operators. The terms of these
agreements are simnilar to those on which each company does business with other, unaffiliated parties.

These operational relationships between Telcel and Telmex are material to our financial
performance. In 2003, 17% of cur total revennes (Ps. 52,466 million) was attributable 1o interconnection
with Tebmex, primarily representing payments under the calling party pays system anising from fixed-to-
mobile calls. We had Ps. 498 million in accounts recetvable from Telmex and subsidiaries at
December 31, 2003. Also in 2003, Ps. 3,902 milhoan of aur cost of sales was attribetable to payments to
Telmex, primarily representing interconnection paymens for long-distance calls camied by Telmex and use
of facilities under leases and colocation agreements with Telmex.

Telmex distributes Telce! handsets and prepaid cards on commercial terms sinmlar to those given
to other celhudar distributors. See “Mexican Operations—Sales and Distribution™ vnder Item 4. '

Implementation of Spin-off

The creation of América Mévil and the transfer of assets and liabilities to us were effected by the
action of an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of Telmex held on Sepiember 25, 2000. Nesther we nor
Teimex made any promises to the other regarding the vatue of any of the assets we received i the spin-
off. Under the shareholder resalutions adopted at the meeting. we are obligated to indemmify Telmex
against any lisbility, expense, cost of contrivution asserted against Tehmex that arises out of the assets
owned directly or indirectly by Sercotel, S.A. de C.V., the subsidiary whose shares were transfered to us
in the spm-off

We have entered into an agreement with Telmex to ensure that the purposes of the spin-off are

fully achieved. Among other things, this agreement provides in general terms s follows:

e we agree to indemmify Tehnex against any loss or expense resulting from the assertion against
Telmex of any hiabilities or claims that were transferred to us in the spin-off or that relate to
the businesses transferred to s in the spin-off,

¢ Telmex agrees to mdemnify us against any loss of expense resulting from the assertion agamst
us of any habilities or claims that were retained by Telmex i the spin-off or that relate to the
businesses retained by Telmex in the spin-off;

n
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»  each party agrees to maintain the confidentiality of any mﬁxmanmom:gﬂxodnrhaxu

] obmedpumﬁzspm-oﬁ'orﬂmnobmmsmm the implementation of the
spin-off,

» each party agrees that 1t will not take any action that could reasonably be expected to prevem
the spin-off from qualifying as tax free under Mexican or U.S. federal tax laws;

o each party releases the other from certam clatms anising prior to the spin-off—Telmex makes

10 representations conceming the assets transferred directly or indirectly in the spm-off.
Other Transactions

In April 2004, we sold our imerests in Techtel and Telstar to Telmex for U.S.$75 million in the
aggregate. See “Other Investments” under Item 4.
Transactions with Other Affiliates

In December 2003, as a result of a series of transactions, we exchanged cor 49% interest in
CompUSA, which we had acquired in March 2000, for a 29.9% irgerest in US Commerdial Carp., S.A de
C.V. (whose controlling shareholder is an affiliate of Amética Telecam, our controiling sharcholder) and
approximately Ps. 180 million. We recorded a loss of Ps. 279 million on the transaction.

Cestatn affiliates of Aménica Telecom purchased approximately U.S.$316 million m pencipal
amount of the notes used to finance the acquisition of Tess by Telecom Américas in 2001. Telecom
Amenicas made final payment of principal outstancing tnder the notes in March 2004.

Teleel purchases materials or services from a variety of conpanies that, according to beneficial
Telecom These services incinde insurance and banking services provided by Grupo Financiero Inbursa
and its substdiaries. In addition, we sell products in Mexsco through the Sanboms and Sears store chains,
Telcel purchases these materials and services on terms o less favorable than it could obtain from
wnaffiliated parties, and would have access to other sources if our affilistes ceased to provide themon -
competitive tenms.

‘We have agreements to receive consulting services from each of América Telecom and SBC. In
2003, we paid U.S.$10.0 million to Anérica Telecom and U.S.$1.0 million %0 SBC m compensation for
ther respective services. Our audit committee has approved an increase to U.S.$15.0 million in the fees
paid to Aménca Telecom anmually.
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Item 8. Financial Information
See “Item 18—Financial Statements” and pages F-1 through F-87.
DIVIDENDS

We bave paid cash dividends on our shares each year since 2001. The table below sets forth the
nominal amount of dividends paid per share in each year indicated, in pesos and trambated mto U.S. dollars
at the exchange rate on each of the respective payment dates.

Year ended
Decemnber 31, Pesos per Share Dollars per Share
2003.. Ps. 0.056 USS$S 0.005
2002, 0043 0.004
2001......... 0.030 0.003
The declarati and pay of dividends by América Mowvil is determined by majority

vote of the holders of AA Shares and A Shares, generally on the recommendation of the Board of
Directors, and depends on our results of operations, financial condition, cash reguirements, fisture
prospects and other factors deemed relevant by the holders of AA Shares and A Shares. We declared a
dividend 10 Apnil 2002 of P5.0.044 per share, payable in four equal tstaltments of Ps.0.011 per share in
June, September and December 2002 and March 2003. We declared a dividend in Apal 2003 of Ps.0.06
per share, payable in four installments of Ps.0.015 per share in June, September and Decemiber 2003 and
March 2004. In an ordinary shareholders mesting held an Apnl 27, 2004, our shareholders resolved to pay
adividend of Ps. 0.12 per share, payable in four instaliments of Ps. 0.03 per share, for each AA, Aand L
Share outstanding on the payment dates of June 24, 2004, September 23, 2004, December 23, 2004 and
March 23, 2005.

Our bylaws provide that holders of AA Shares, A Shares and L Shares participate on a per-share
basts m dvidend payments and other distributions, subject to certamn preferential dividend rights of bolders
of L Shares. See “Bylaws—Dividend Rights” and “Bylaws—Preferential Rights of L Shares™ under rem
10.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In each of the countries in which we conduct operatians, we are party to vanious legal proceedings
in the ordinary course of busmess. These proceedings inchude, without himitation, tax, Iaber, antitrust and
genenally subject to early termmation for violations of certain service, thtyandcovexagesmﬂrdsmd
in the case of our fixeddine operations, of certain interconnection obligations. We are also party to a
mumber of proceedings regardmng our compliance with concession standards. As of the date of this annal
m&mb&mhmdﬁem&&n@ah&ﬂyhmﬂmhmdmdwm
concessions. Below ts 3 summary of the most significant legal proceedings in which we are currently
mvolved.

Telcel

In November 1995, a competitor of Teleel that provides celiular telephone services reported
Tehmex and Teice] w Cofeco, the Federal Competition Commisston, for alleged monopolistic practices. In
July 2001, Cofeco suled that Telmex was responsible for the afleged monopolistic practices. The suling did
not find Telce] responsible for such practices.
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Administrative proceedings were commenced in Jamary and June 2001 by Cofeco against Telcel
for alleged ant-competitive behavior in connection with actions by certain distibutors of Telcel in 2001, In
May 2002, Cofieco ruled against Telcel in connection with the proceeding begun tn January. Telcel
appealed this ruling in June 2002. In September 2002, Cofeco ruled agamst this appeal Telcel filed a
Lawsuit (demanda de mulidad) against this rulmg m Jarmary 2003, the resohition of which is stll pending.
With respect to the administrative proceedings commenced in June 2001, Cofeco ruled against Telcel m
December 2002, and Telcel appealed this ruling. In May 2003, Cofeco ruled against this appeal. In
August 2003, Telcel filed a lawsuit (demanda de nulidad) against this ruling, the ruling of which is pending.
If we are unsuccessful in challenging these proceedings, they may result in fines or specific regulations
apphczble to Teloel

We have received requests for information from the Mexican Banking and Secunties Conmmission
(the Comision Nacional Bancaria y de Valares or the CNBV) and the SEC regarding Teleel's emry into a
capacity services agreement with Operadora Unefon in Seprember 2003. To our knowledge, the
investigation regards the afleged use by Operadora Unefon of the U.S $267.7 million paid by Telcel to
Operadora Unefon under the agreement and related public disclosures made by an affiliste of Operadora
Unefon. We are cooperating with the authorities.

Under the terms of its concessions for the 800 megahertz spectrum, Telcel must pay a royalty on
gross revemes from concessioned services. The royalty is levied at rates that vary from region to regica
but average approximately §%. We believe that short messape services are value-added services, which
2re not concessioned services, and that revenues from short message services should not be subject to this
royalty. In related proceedings, Cofetel has nided that short text messages are sulyect to the
interconnection regulatory regime and that such services do not constinte value-added services. We are
mmﬂymm&mmma&mmmwhzwnﬁmmmﬁmﬂl
statements with respect 1o this potential Habikity.

Telgua

In June 2000, the executive branch of the Guatemalan government issued declarations concerning
Empresa Guatemalteca de Tekecomunicaciones (Guatel), a Guatemalan state agency that conducted the
privatization of Telgna. The declarations stated that certain actions of Guatel relating to the privatization
of Teigin were contrary to the interests of the Guatemalan State. In September 2000, the Guatemalan
mwmmmMngmMcumoﬂummdwdm
the paivatization of Telgua seeking reversal of the privatization.

In October 2001, the Guatemalan State announced a governmental accord issued by the President
of Guatemala and the Cabinet Ministers establishing the principal tenms and condinons of a setdemers
agreement among the Quatemalan State, Telgua, Guatel and America Central Tel S.A. (ACT), and
crdering the Attomey General of Guatemala to enter mfo such agreement in the name and on behalf of the
Guatemalan State. Under the terms of the settiement agreement, which was execiuted on October 2001,
Telgua agreed, among other things, to undertake 2 fixed, mobile, sural and Imemet telephooe development
project within Guatemala, to be completed within 3 period of three years and o consist of an investment of
a1 Jeast 1,950 million quetzals (approximately U.S 5246 million), and to establish  total of 380,000 public,
mobile and rural telephone Lines. Pursuant to the settiement agreement, the Guatemalan State, ACT and
Telgua agreed to zhandon all litigation and refated actions with respect to this matter. While the
competent court held that as a prooedural matter the attorey for the Guatemalan State could not
withdraw the State’s claims, it recognized the settlement agreement and ordered the files closed. Dunng
2002, certain former government officials presented claims to the Guatemalan courts challenging the
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vatidity of the October 2001 settlement agreement on the grounds that they should have been mcluded as
In addition, judicial proceedings were commenced in the United States District Court for the
Scuthem District of New York in March 2001 by Intemational Telecom, Inc. (IT]) against Generadora
Elsctrica de Oriente, S.A. (GEDO), Antonio Jorge Alvarez and Telgua, alleging breach of contract,
tortions mterference with contract and fraud in conmection with an intemational telecommunications
service agreement. In March 2002, the court granted Telgua's motion to dismiss the case agamst it for
Iack of personal jurisdiction, holding that Telgua had insufficient contacts with New Yok to subject st to
jurisdiction in that forum. After a final judgment is issued, ITI, GEDO or Mr. Alvarez may appeal the
decision dismissing Telgua from the litigation to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit.

Concel

The Colombian tax authorities have demanded that Camcel and Occel pay additional vatue -added
taxes arising from celtular activation fees in 1995 and 1996. Comcel and Occel have chalienged these
several of the bi-momthly tax periods in question and have decided all of them in favor of Comcel and
Occel The amount claimed by the tax authorities (including fines and mterest) relatng to the tax periods
for which challenges were still pending as of Decernber 31, 2003 totaled approximarely Colombian Ps.
19.6 billion for Comeel and Colombian Ps. ZThEmEorOmd(appmrmdyPs.ElnﬂlnnandPs
10.9 million, respectively). In the opinion of ifs management, Comeel and Oceel have appropriately filed
and paid the value-added tax for all of the periods in question and has made no provisions in its financial
statements as of December 31, 2003 aganst these proceedings.

Tn March 2000, the Colombian Superintendencia de Industria y Comercio (SIC) issued Resolution
No. 4954, requining Comoeel to pay a fine of Colornbtan Ps. 234 million for alleged anti-competitive
behavior. In addition to this adminictrative fie, the SIC ordered Comeel to pay damages to other long
d:slmceoperamrs Thehng&smmusemddrndamgsmbeUsﬂOnnnm Comeel
d an admy ive review of the dammges decision, which was dented in June 2000. Comcel -
appalzd.mdd:eappea&wasreyctcdnﬂovmbum Comeel resubmitted the appeal in February
2001

Concet also filed a special action in court challenging the denial of the administrative review.
Following a series of court proceedings, a Colombian appeals court in June 2002 ordered that Comcel’s
February 2001 appeal be granted and that the administrative decision against Comeel be reviewed.  After
additional proceedings, the Consejo Superior de 1a Judicatura ratified this dectsion. However, m 2003, an
appeals court decided to revoke the decision of the Consejo Supenor de 1a Judicatura, and the Tribunal
Superior de Bogota currently is reverting the procedure back to the SIC m order to continue the damages
clatm.

Telecom Americas

ANATEL has challenged each of Tess and ATL regarding the calculation of inflaton-related
adjustments due under these companies’ concession agreements with ANATEL. Forty percent of the
concession price under each of these agreements was due upon execution and 60% was due mn three
equa! annual mstaltments (subject to mflanon-related adiustments and interest) beginning m 1999. Both
companies have made these concession payments, but ANATEL has rejected the companies’ calculation
of the mflation-related adjustroents and requested payment of the afleged deficiencies. The companies
have filed declamatory and consignment actions in Brazilian courts seeking resolution of the disputes. The
court of first instance ruled against ATL s filing for declaratory action in October 2001 and ATL's filing
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for consignment action in September 2002, Subsequently, ATL. filed appeals, winch are pending. In
September 2003, the court of first mstance ruled against Tess’ filing for consignment action.
Subsequesntly, Tess filed an appeal, which is still pending No ruling has been made to date in respect of
the declaratory action filed by Tess. The aggregate contested amounts were approximately Reais 422
nnlhonﬁnch:dmgpmum!pm!namdm)(USSl%mlhm)aDeombuBl 2003. We have
made provisions in our fmancial statements for these poteatial habilities.

Prior to our acqusition of Telet and Americel, BNDESPar, a subsidiary of BNDES, the Brazitian
bank, had emtered into investment and other shareholder agreements with Amenice], Telet

and cestain of their significant shareholders. Under these agreements, BNDESPar bad the night, among
others, to participate in the sale of shares of Telet and Americel in the event of certain transfers of control,
for so long as BNDESPar held 5% of the share of capital in those companies. In October 2003, we
increased the capital of each of Telet and Americe] and BNDESPar’s ownership fell below 5% from
approximately 20% in each as 1t elected not to exercise its preemptive rights. Subsequently, BNDESPar
sent official notices to Telet and Americel reserving ts nights ander the agreements m respect of certan
past transfers of shares. More recently, in May 2004, Telecom Americas was served with an official
notice from BNDESPar, whereby BNDESPar demanded that Telecom Amenicas purchase the shares of
Americel and Telet that are held by BNDESPar based on a price used for transactions oocurring in June
2001, which accordmg to the notice would armount w approxmatety U.S.160 million. To our knowledge,
BNDESPar has not commenced judicial action agatnst us ar any of our subsidiaries. We do not believe
that BNDESPar has a valid claim agamst us or our subsidiaries under the agreements, and we do not
intend to vohumtarily purchase those shares at that price.

the application of certain gross reverme taxes. 'We believe that the likelihood of these claims being
resotved against our interest is remote. However, any such adverse resolution may have a matenial
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. We have made no provisions in our
financial statements with respect to these proceedings.

ComplUSA

In January 2000, a lawsuit was filed in Texas agamst CompUSA on behalf of COC Sesvices, Ltd
(*COC™) alleging, amoeg other things, breach of contract, tortious imerference and conspiracy in
connection with a letter of intent for the franchising of retail stores tn Mexico. The lawsuit also named as
defendants James Halpin, CompUSA's former chief executive officer, Mr. Cados Shm Heli, our
chatrman, and certain other persons. The jury trnal concluded in February 2001 with a jury verdict agatnst
CompUSA in the amount of U.S.$90 million in actual damages. The verdict also awarded punitive
damages i the amount of U.S.$94.5 miltion agaimst CompUSA and U.S.$175.5 million agamst Mr. Halpin
Damages were also awarded against the remaining defendants.

In March 2001, CompUSA and the other defepdants filed a motion with the trial court for
judgment notwithstanding the verdict In May 2001, the trial court granted the motion for judgment
notwithstanding the verdict, vacating the award agamst ComplUSA and Mr. Halpin and reducing
significantly the amount of damages. OOC has appealed the judgmem, and the Court of Appeals heard
arguments m April 2003, The case has been briefed and argued and awaits the decision of the Court of
Appeals. Despite the significant reduction in damages, Mr. Stim Hebis and the other defendants have
appealed seeking discharge from all claims.
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Item 9. The Offer and Listing

TRADING MARKETS )
Our shares and ADSs are listed or quoted on the following markets: )

L Shares ...oooooeorire e Mexican Stock Exchanga—Mexico City
Mercado de Valores Latincamericanos en Earos
(LATIBEX)~-Madrid, Spain

L Share ADSS.....ccocvrivereraennn New Yotk Stock Exchange—New York
Frankfurt Stock Exchange—Frankfint

A Shares.........cooerieeeineennn Mexican Stock Exchange—Mexico City

A Share ADSs......................NASDAQ National Market—New York
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the L Shares on the Mexican Stock Exchange and the reported hgh and low sales prices for the L Share
ADSs on the New York Stock Exchange Prices have not been restated i constant currency units.

Mexican Stock New York Stock
Exchange Exchange
_High  _Low _Low_
(U.S. dollars per
{pesos per L Share) L Share ADS)
Ps. 1126 Ps. 58 US.®320 USSR
923 5n 20.39 11.54
15.46 6.99 27.34 12.50
Ps. 923 Ps. 817 U.S£039 USS$1700
511 5.96 971 11.89
11 5. 14.52 11.54
173 ' 6.06 1535 11.88
Ps. 812 Ps. 6.9 US$156  US$1250
) 984 7.2 18.80 13.61
1299 999 23.68 19.16
1546 12.40 2734 220
Ps. 812 Ps. 7.53 USS1562 US.513.88
7.78 6.99 1430 12.50
7.76 7.27 14.07 1331
B.73 729 16.89 13.61
945 8.67 1826 16.74
9.84 9.37 18.80 17.60
11.89 999 22.74 19.16
1279 1129 23.08 20.78
1299 12.64 23.68 23.00
13.17 12.40 23.80 2220
14.81 13.69 26.12 24.59
15.46 14.55 27.34 25.84
Ps. 1823 Ps. 1572 US.$3348 US$832
20.09 17.85 26.89 31.95
21.85 19.43 39.08 3495
228 19.30 39.73 33.80
20.66 1829 36.37
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The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, the reported high and kew sales prices for the
A Shares on the Mexican Stock Exchange and the high and low bid prices for A Share ADSs published by
NASDAQ. Bid prices published by NASDAQ for the A Share ADSs are inter-dealer quotations and may
not reflect actual transactions. Prices have not been restated in constant currency units.

Mexican Stock
Exchange NASDAQ
_High low  _High = _low
(U.S. dollars per
{pesos per A Share) A Share ADS)
Annual highs and lows
2001 Ps. 1123 Ps. 580 US®300 USSIL7
220 560 20.20 11.60
1535 654 27.05 12.57

Ps. 920 Ps. 812 US8£020 USS$7.00

9.10 5.90 19.35 12.10
7.15 5.60 14.59 11.60
7.75 6.15 15.60 11.75

Ps. 802 Ps. 694 USS$I550 USSI257

9.80 720 19.10 13.50
1292 9.9%0 2344 18.83
1535 nn 27.05 22.00

Ps 802 Ps 745 USSSS0 US$H350

175 694 14.04 12.57
7.70 731 14.60 13.05
8.70 7.20 16.91 13.50
9.40 8.70 18.20 16.50
9.80 9.26 19.10 17.45
11.83 9.90 250 18.83
12.56 1115 2.9 20.76
1292 12.61 2344 2226
1320 1.7 23.65 200
14.60 13.60 26.50 B8
1535 14.50 27.05 24.50

Ps. 18.60 Ps. 1545 US$3450 USS$2300
20.03 17.80 37.00 31.26
21.75 19.20 40.00 34.92
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Mexican Stock
Exchange NASDAQ
High Low _High Low
(U.S. dollars per
(pesos per A Share) A Share ADS)
April. e 2220 19.80 3%.75 339
May RO 20.60 19.00 3595 31.02

TRADING ON THE MEXICAN STOCK EXCHANGE

The Mexican Stock Exchange (Bolsa Mexietna de Valores, SA de C. V), located in Mexico City,
is the only stock exchange i Mexico. Founded in 1907, it is organized as a corporation and operates
under a concession from the Mimstry of Finance and Public Credit. Its shares are held by 30 brokerage
firms, which are exchisively authorized to trade on the Exchange. Trading on the Mexican Stock
Exchange takes place principally through utomated systems between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 3:00 pm.
Mexico City time, each business day. The Mexican Stock Exchange operates a system of automatic
suspension of trading m shares of a partic ular issuer as a means of controlling excessive price volatility, but
under curent regulations this system does not apply to securities such as the A Shares or the L Shares
that are directly or indirectly (for example, through AIDSs) quoted on a stock exchange (inchuding for tese
purposes NASDAQ) cutside Mexico.

Settiement is effected two business days after a share transaction on the Mexican Stock
Exchange. Deferred settlement. even by mitual agreement, is not penmitted without the approval of the
Mexican Nationa! Securities Commission (CNBV). Most securities traded on the Mexican Stock
Exchange, ncinding those of América Movil, are on deposit with Institucion para el Depésito de Valores,
S.A. de C.V. (Indeval), a privately owned securities depositary that acts as a clearinghouse for Mexican
Stock Exchange transactions.
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Item 10. Additional Information
. BYLAWS

Set forth below s 3 bref summary of certain significant provisions of our bylaws and Mexican
law. This description does not purport to be complete and is qualified by reference 1 our bylaws, which
have been fited as an extibit to this anmual report. For a description of the provisions of our bylaws
relating to our Board of Directors, Executive and Andit Conunittees and statutory auditors, see “Trem 6—
Directors, Senior Management and Employees.”

‘We atnended oux bylaws in July 2001 in order to comply with the amendments to the Securities
Market Law and the National Banking and Seaurities Commission Law published oo June 1, 2001 in the
Diario Ofictal (Official Gazette), which are designed, among other things, to protect the rights of mmonty
shareholders.

On March 19, 2003, the CNBV published new peneral rules, the New Rules, for Mexican issuers,
which codify the principal rules applicable to issuers and public offerings. The New Rules increased the
obligations and responsibalities of the Andit Committee by requiring the comsmitiee’s opimon to delsst or
md&gn@mﬁmdﬁ;%damyadmmh:mydm@smhmmwm

Pursuant to the New Rules, we amended certain articles of our bylaws on December 8, 2003
principally to comply with the new requirements for the delisting and canceliation of the registration of our
shares.

Organization and Register

América Movil is a socledad andnima décap!ral variable organized in Mexico under the
Mexican General Cosporations Law (Lay General de Sociedades Mercantiles). Tt was registered in the
Public Registry of Conmerce of Mexico City on October 13, 2000 under the mumber 263770.
Share Capital ) .
vatue and Senes L Shares, without par vaiue. All of the outstanding shares are fully paid and non-
assessable.

AA Shares and A Shares have full voting rights. Holders of L Shares may vote only in hmited

circumstances as described under —Vofing Rights. The rights of olders of all series of capital stock are

otherwise identical except for Fmitations on non-Mexican ownership of AA Shares. The AA Shares,
which must atways represent at least 51% of the combined AA Shares and A Shares, may be owned only
by bolders that gqualify a5 Mexican investors as defined in the Foreign Investment Law and our bylaws.
See —Limitations on Share Ownership.

Each AA Share or A Share may be exchanged at the option of the holder for one L Share,
provided that the AA Shares may never represent less than 20%% of our outstanding capital stock or less
than 51% of our combined AA Shares and A Shares. The AA Shares represented 93.00% of the full
voting shares (AA Shares and A Shares) and 30.99% of the total capital stock of América Mévil as of
Apnl 30, 2004.

Voting Rights
Each AA Share and A Share entitles the holder theseof to coe vote 2t any meeting of our
shareholders. Each L Share entities the holder to one vote at any meeting at which holders of L Shares
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are entitled to vote. Holders of L Shares are entitled o vote only to elect tvo members of the Board of
Directors and the comesponding alternate directors and oa the following matters:

»  the transformation of América Mévil from one type of company to another,

+ any merper of América Mévil,

o the extension of our corporate life,

o our vohmtary dissolmion,

o achange In our corporate purpose,

o' achange m our state of inoorporation,

e removal of our shares from listing on the Mexican Stock Exchange or anty foreign stock

exchange, and
e any action that would prejudice the rights of holders of L Shares.

A resolution on any of the specified matters requires the affirmative vote of both a majority of all
outstanding shares and a mmjority of the AA Shares and the A Shares voting together.

Under Mexican law, holders of shares of any series are also entitled to vote as a class on any
action that would prejudice the rights of holders of shares of such series, and a holder of shares of soch
senies would be entitled to judicial rehief agarnst any such action taken wehout such a vose. The
determmation whether an action requires a class vote on these grounds would tntially be made by the
Board of Directors ar other party calling for shareholder action A negative detenmination would be
subject to fudicial chaflenge by an affected shareholder, and the necessity for a class vote would ultimately
be determined by a court. These are no other procedures for determining whether a proposed shareholder
action requires a class vote, and Mexican law does not provide extensive guidance an the critenia to be
applied in making such a determmation.

Shareholders” Meetings

General shareholders’ meetings may be ardinary meetings or extraondinary meetings.
Wwﬂmmmmmmmmw&dmmmzdﬂr
Mexican General Corporations Law, inchading, principally, amendments of the bylaws, liquidation, merger
and transformation from one type of company to another, as well as to consider the removal of our shares
from listing on the Mexican Stock Exchange or any foreign stock exchange. General meetings called to
coasider all other matters are ordimary meetings. The two directors elected by the holders of L Shares are
elected at a special meeting of bolders of L Shares. All other matters on which halders of L Shares are
entitled to vote would be considered at an extracrdinary general meeting.  Holders of L Shares are not
entitied to attend or address meetings of shareholders at winch they are not entitled to vote.

A special meeting of the holders of L Shares mmast be held each year for the election or matification
of directars and statstory auditors. An ordinary general meeting of the holders of AA Shares and A
Shares mmst be held each year to consider the approval of the financl statements for the preceding fiscal
year, to elect or ratify directors and statutory auditors and to determmine the allocation of the profits of the
preceding year.

The quorum for an ordinary general meeting of the AA Shares and A Shares f5 50% of such
shares, and action may be taken by a majority of the shares present. If a quanm is not available, 3
second meeting may be called at which action may be taken by a majonity of the AA Shares and A Shares
present, regardless of the mmber of such shares. Special meetings of holders of L Shares are govemned
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byﬂzsmnﬂesapp&mbkmuﬂ:mgmalmmgsofholdusofAAShnsuﬂAShzs The

q for an extraondinary general meeting at which holders of L Shares may not vote is 75% of the AA
shzumdAthe&mdﬂrqmmfamexumdmzygmﬂmmgmwbdxhoﬁusoflems
are entitled to vote 15 75% of the outstanding capital stock. If a quorum is not available i either case, 2

swondmngmybealhdandﬁmmybeukw.pmndedam:gmofﬁndmuumﬂedmm
1s present. Whether on first or second call, actions at an extraordinary general meeting may be taken by a
majonity vote of the AA Shares and A Shares outstanding and, on matters which holders of L Shares are
eatitled to vote, a majonty vote of all the capital stock.

Holders of 20% of our outstanding capital stock may have any shareholder action set aside by
fiting a complaint with a court of law within 15 days after the close of the meeting at whuch such action
was taken and showing that the challenged action violates Mexican aw or our bylaws. In addition, any
holder of cur capital stock may bring an action at any tane within five years challenging any shareholder
action Relief under these provisions is only available 10 holders:

. whowuemuﬂcdwmon,audnsengmasshzeholdssmadmsdyaﬁbcmdbyh

challenged shareholder action, and

o whose shares were ot represented when the action was taken of, if represented, were voted
agamst it

Shareholders’ meetings may be called by the Board of Directors, its chairman, ifs secretary, the
statutory auditors or 2 court. The Board of Directors of the statutory anditors may be required to eall a
meeting of shareholders by the holders or 10% of the outstanding capital stock  Notice of meetings must
be putiished in the Diarto Oficial de la Federacion (Official Gazette of the Federation) or a newspaper
of general circulation in Mexico City at least 15 days peioc to the meeting  In order to attend a meeting,
shareholders must deposit thedr shares at the office of our corporate secretary with a Mexican or foreign
banking instittion or with a Mexican exchange broker. If so entitied to attend the meeting, a shareholder
may be represented by proxy. The depositary for the L Share ADSs and the A Share ADSs does not
satisfy this requirement, so ADS holders are not entitled to attend shareholder meetngs. However, ADS

Dividend Rights
A:ﬁ:mal«dmmypnalmeeungofholdmofAASlmesaﬂAslmes,drdeof
Directoes submits our financial for the previous fiscal year, together with a report therean by

drBoardwtheho&dusanA&msmdAShamsforagme mholdusofAASha:umdA
Shares, once they have approved the financial staterneats, determine the allocation of our net profits for
the preceding year. They are required by law to allocate 5% of such net profits to a Jegal reserve, which
15 not thereafter available for distribtion except as a stock dividend, until the amount of the legal reserve
equals 20% of our capital stock  The remainder of net profits is available for dismbution.

Aﬂslmtsamdngatdrmadmdmduothud:mbmonsdedmtdmmnﬂedb
participate in such dividend or other distribution, subject to certain preferential rights of the L Shares. See
- Preferential Rights of L Shares.”

Preferential Rights of L Shares

Holders of L Shares are entitied to receive a comulative preferred anmul dividend of 0.00125
pesos per share before any dividends are payable in respect of any other class of América Méwil capital
stock If we pay dividends with respect to any fiscal year m addition to the L Share preferred dividend,
such dividends must be allocated:
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»  first, to the payment of dividends with respect to the A Share and AA Shares, in an equal
amount per share, up to the amount of the L Share preferred dividend, and

+  second, to the payment of dividends with respect to al classes of América Mévil shares such
that the dividend per share is equal

Upen biquidation of América Mévil, holders of L Shares will be entitied to a iquidation peeference
equal to:

*  accrued but vnpaid L Share preferred dividends, plus

*  0.025 pesos per share (representing the capital attributable to such shares as set forth in cur

bylaws) before any distribution is made in respect of our other capital stock in accordance
with Article 113 of the Mexican General Corporations Law.

Following payment n full of any such amount, holders of AA Shares and A Shares are entitled to
recetve, if available, an amount per share equal to the hiquidation preference paid per L. Share. Following
payment i full of the foregomg amoumts, all shareholders share equally, on a per share basis, in any
remaining amonts payable i respect of our capital stack.

Limitation on Capital Increases

Our bylaws require that any capital increase be represented by new shares of each series m
proportion to the mumber of shares of each senes autstanding.

Preemptive Rights

In the event of a capital increase, a holder of existing shares of a given senies has a preferential
right to subscribe for a sufficient mmber of shares of the same series to maintam the holder’s existing
proportionate holdings of shares of that seies. Preemptive nghts must be exercised within the next 15
calendar days following the publication of notice of the capital increase in the Diario Oficial de la
Federacion (Official Gazette of the Federation) and a pewspaper of general circulation in Mexico City.
Under Mexican law, preempiive rights cannot be traded separately from the comesponding shares that
give rise to such rights. As a resuit, there is no trading market for the rights 1 connection with a capital
increase. Holders of ADSs may exercise preemptive rights only through the depositary. We are not
required to take steps that may be necessary to maloe this possible. See “Description of American
Depositary Shares—Share Dividends and Other Distribations™ under Item 12.
Limitations on Share Ownership '

Our bylaws provide that at least 20% of our capital stock amst consist of AA Shares. Our bylaws
also provide thar A Shares and L Shares together cannot represent more than 80% of our capital stock.

AA shares can only be held or acquired by

o Mexican citizens,

. mmmwmswwwmmmm
articles of incorposation contain a foreigner exclusion

. mw%ﬂdmmﬂeﬁmnmﬁ%ddmnannl
stock may cnly be held or acquired by (1) Mexican citizens, {11) Mexican corporations whose
articles of meorporation contain a foreigner exchusion clause or (i) Mexican corpogations that
allow minority foreign pasticipation,

o Mexican credit and insurance companies,
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o Mexican mvestment compamies operating under the Investient Companies Law and Mexican
institutional investors as defined in the Mexican Securities Market Law, and

s Trusts expressly permitted to acquire AA Shares i accordance with Mexican law and i
which (i) the majonity of the trustee’s rights are held by Mexican citizens, corporations whose
capital stock is completely held by Mexican citizens, and Mexican cradit, msurance and
mvestment companies of (i) the AA Shares coatrolled by the trust represent a puinority of the
outstandmg AA Shares and are voted in the same manner as the majonty of the cutstanding
AA Shares.

If foreign govemments or states acquire our AA Shares, such shares would immediately be
rendered without effect or value.

Non-Mexican investors cannot hold AA Shares except through trosts that effectively neutratize
their votes. SBCI, one of our shareholders, holds its AA Shares through a trust that has been approved by
selevant authorities in Mexico for this purpase.

Restrictions on Certain Transactions

Our bylaws provide that any transfer of more than 10% of the combined A Shares and AA
Shares, effected m one or mose transactions by any person or group of persons acting in concert, requires
prioe approval by our Board of Directors. If the Board of Directors denies such approval, however,
Mexican law and our bylaws require it to designate an alternate transferee, who maist pay market poce for
the shares a5 quoted on the Mexican Stock Exchange.

Restrictions on Deregistration in Mexico

sthaummgxstardmﬂztbeNmmlRegsuyfmSeammasmqmmdmﬂuﬁr
Securities Market Law and regulations issued by the CNBV.

Emﬁémmdu@mﬁmuiﬁbmﬂkdw&m.dzmm
the majortty of the ordinary shares or that may, on any basis, impose decisions at shareholders’ meetings,
or appoint the majority of the Board of Directors of the Company at that tme will be requred to make a
public offer to purchase all autstanding shares prior to such cancellation.

Unless the CNBV authanzes otherwise, the affer price will be the higher of (i) the average of
the closing price during the previous 30 days on which the shares may have been quoted, or (i) the book
value of the shares m accardance with the most recent quarterly repert submitted to the CNBV and to the
Mexican Stock Exchange.

In order to comply with the Rules, at the extraordinary shareholders meeting held m December 8,
2003, we amended certam articles of our bylaws. Some of the amendments were made to comply vath
certain new requirements for the delisting and canceilation of the registration of the shares of the
compaay. As a result, our bylaws now provide that if, after the public offer is concluded, there are still
outstanding shares held by the general public, the shareholders that control América Mévil will be required
to create a trust for a period of six moaths, into which such controlling shareholders will be required o
cantribute funds in an amoxnt sufficient to purchase, at the same price as the offer price, the number of
outstanding shares held by the geneval public. Within the five days priar to the commencement of the
public offer, after taking mto account the opimion of the zudit committee, our Board of Directors must
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Tender Offer Rules

-Our bylaws provide that any purchasers or group of purchasers that obtam or increase 2
significant participation (7.¢., 30% or more) in the capital stock of the company, without conducting a
previous pubhc offer m accordance with the applicable rules issued by the CNBV, would not have the
nght to exercise the corporate nights of their shares, and that the company will not register such shares m
the share registry boak.

Other Provisions

Variable capital. We are permmitted to issue shares coastitutmg fixed capital and shares
constituting variable capital.  All of our outstanding shares of capital stock constitute fixed capital The
tssuance of vaniable -capital shares, unlike the issuance of fixedcapital shares, does not require an
amendment of the bylaws, although it does require 2 majority vote of the AA Shares and the A Shares.
Under Mexican law and our bylaws, if we issued vanable -capital shares, any holder of such shares would
be entitled to redeem them at the hoider’s option at any time at a redemption price equal to the lower of:

*  95% of the average market value of such shares on the Mexican Stock Exchange for 30

trading days preceding the date on which the exercise of the option 15 effective and

s the book value of such shares at the end of the fiscal year in which the exercise of the option

is effective. »
The redemption price would be payable following the anmul ardinary general meeting of holders of AA
Shares and A Shares at whuch the relevant annual financial statements were approved.

Forfeiture of shares. As required by Mexican law, our bylaws provide that “any alien who at
the time of incocporation or at &y time thereafier acquires an interest or participation fn the capital of the
corporation shall be considered, by virtue thereof, as Mexican in respect thereof and shall be deemed to
have agreed not to invoke the protection of his own government, under penalty, in case of breach of such
agreement, of foeferture to the nation of such interest or participation.” Under this provision a noo-
Mexican shareholder is deemed 1o have agreed not to invoke the protection of his own govemment by
asking such govemment to interpose a diplomatic claim against the Mexican govermment with respect to
the sharcholder's nights as a shareholder, but 15 not deemed to have waived any other rights it may have,
including any nights under the U.S. securities laws, with respect to its investment i América Mévil If the
shareholder invokes such governmental protection m violation of this agreement, its shares could be
focfeited to the Mexican govermment. Mexican law requires that such a provision be mchided in the
bylaws of all Mexican corporations unless such bylaws prohibit ownership of shares by non-Mexican
persons.

Exclustve furisdiction. Our bylaws provide that legzl actions relating to the execution,
interpretation or performance of the bylaws shall be brought only m Mexican courts.

Duration. Aménca Mévil's existence under the bylaws confinues indefinitely.

Purchase of our own shares. According to the bylaws, we may repurchase our shares on the
Mexican Stock Exchange at any time at the then prevailing market price. Any such repurchase must
conform to guidelines established by the Board of Directors, and the amount availzble to repnrchase
shares must be approved by the genecal ardinary sharsholders meeting. In the event of any such
repurchase, our capital stock will be reduced automatically in an amount equal to the assumed par vatue of
each repurchased share (determined by dividing our cutstanxiing capital stock by the mumber of shares
outstanding immediately prior o such repurchase); if the purchase price of such shares exceeds the
assumed par vatue, the difference will be charged against amounts aliocated from net eamings to a special
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reserve created for the repurchase of shares. Repurchased shares will be held as treasury stock, pending
future sales thereof on the Mexican Stock Exchange or cancellation.  Our capital stock is automatically
mcreased upon the resale of such shares in an amount equal to their assumed par value; anmy excess
amount ts allocated to the special reserve referred to above. The economic and voting rights
corresponding to sepurchased shares may not be exercised during the peniod in which we own such
shares, and such shares are not deemed to be outstanding for purposes of calculating any quorum or vote
at any shareholders’ meeting during such period.

Conflict of interest. A shareholder that votes on a business transaction in witch its interest
conflicts with Aménica Mévil’s may be hable for damages, but anly if the transaction wonld not have been
approved without its vote.

Appraisal rights. Whenever the shareholders approve a change of corporate purposes, change
of mationality of the corporation or transformation from one type of company to another, any shareholder
entitied to vote on such change that has voted against 1t may withdraw from América Movil and recesve
the book value attributable o its shares, provided 1t exercises ifs right within 15 days following the
adjournment of the mesting at which the change was approved
Rights of Sharebolders

The protections afforded to minority sharcholders under Mexican law are different from those in
the United States and many other purisdictions. The substantive law concerning fiduciary duties of
directors has not been the subject of extensive judicial interpretation in Mexico, unlike many states in the
United States where duties of care and loyalty elaborated by judicial decisions belp to shape the nghts of
derivative actions, which permit shareholders in U.S. courts to bring actions oo behalf of other
shareholders or to enfarce rights of the corporation itself Shareholders cannot challenge corparate action
taken at a shareholders’ meeting unless they mees certain procedural requirements, as described above
under “Shareholders’ Meetmgs.”

As a sesult of these factors, m practice it may be mare difficult for our minority shareholders to
enforce rights against us or onr directors or controlling shareholders than it would be for shareholders of 2
U.S. company.

n addition, wnder the U.S. securities laws, as a foreign private 1ssuer we are exenpt from certam
rules that apply to domestic U.S. issuers with equity seamities registered under the U.S. Securiies
Exchange Act of 1934, mchuding the proxy salicitation rules and the rules requining disclosure of share
ownership by directors, officers and certain shareholders. We are also exempt from the corporate
govemance requirements of the New York Stock Exchange and NASDAQ, except that begmning n July
2005 we will be snbyect to the requirements conceming audit commmittees and independent directors
adopted pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Enforceability of Civil Liabilities

Ameérica Movil 1s organized under the kaws of Mexico, and most of our directors, officers and
controlling persons reside cutside the United States. In addition, all or a substantial partion of our assets
and thetr assets are located m Mexico. As a result, it may be difficult for mvestors to effect service of
process withim the United States on such persons. 1t may also be difficult to enforee against them, etther
inside or outside the United States, judgments obtained against them in U'S. courts, of o enforce m US.
courts judgments obtained against them tn courts in jurisdictions outside the United States, in any action
based on crvil lisbilities under the U.S. federal secunities kaws. There is doulx as to the enforceability
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against such persons in Mexico, whether tn oniginal actions or in actions to enforce judgments of U.S.
courts, of hisbilities based solely on the U.S. federal secunities laws.
CERTAIN CONTRACTS

Telce! has entered mto concession agreements with the Mexican Commumcations Mmistry with
respect to its Band B and Band D licenses in each of the nine regions m Mexico. See “Mexican
Openations—Regulation” vnder Item 4. A mmber of our subsidiaries and affiliates have also entered into
telecomnmnications concession agreements with regulatory authorities in the countries i which they
operate. See “Mexican Operations,” “Ncn-Mmcanpamm-—TdmAm”axl“Oﬁu
Investnents” under Item 4.

Our agreements with related parties are described in “Related Party Transactions” under Item 7.
EXCHANGE CONTROLS

Mexico has had a free market for foreign exchange since 1991, and the government has allowed
the peso to float freely against the U.S. dollar since December 1994. There can be 0o assurance that the
government will matntain its cumrent foreign exchange policies. See “Exchange Rates™ under em 3.
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TAXATION
mﬁouowmgﬂmycummadsammofwmanmfedualmdUs federal income
tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of L Shares, A Shares, L Share ADSs or A

mmwn&ummwhamtmohﬂof&mmm
may be relevant to a decision to purchase or hold shares or ADSs.

The Convention for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion and 2
Protocol thereto (the “Tax Treaty™) between the United States and Mexico entered into force on January
1, 1994. The United States and Mexico have also entered into an agreement conceming the exchange of
information with respect to tax masters.

This discussion does not constitute, and should not be considered as, legal or tax advice to holders.
The discussion 15 for general information purposes onlty and 5 based upon the federal tax faws of Mexico
(inchudng the Mexic an Income Tax Law and the Mexican Federal Tax Code) and the United States as in
effect on the date of this anmal report (incinding the Tax Treaty), which are subject o change, and such
changes may have retroactive effect. Holders of shares or ADSs should consult thetr own tax advisers as
to the Mexican, U.S. or other tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of shares or
ADSs, inchading, in particular, the effect of any foreign, state or local tax laws.
Mexican Tax Considerations

The following is a peneral summary of the principal consequances undes the Mexican Income Tax
Law (Lay del Impuesto sobre la Renta) and rules and regulations thereumder, as currently in effect, of 2n
investment i shares or ADSs by a holder that is not a residest of Mexico and that will not hold shares oc
ADSs or a beneficial interest therein in connection with the conduct of a trade or business through a
permanent establishment in Mexico (a “nonresident holder™).

For purposes of Mexican taxation, tax residency i a highly technical definition that invoives the
application of a mmmber of factors. Generally, an individual 15 a resident of Mexico if he or she has
established his or her home i Mexico, and a carporation is considered a resident if # is corporated under
the laws of Mexico or it has 1ts center of interests in Mexico. However, any determination of residence
should take into acoount the particular situation of each person or legal entity.

Tax Treaties

P:wmofﬂ:cTuTmydmunyaﬁemtheumofmesholdus(asdeﬁmd
bedow) are summarized below.

The Mexican Income Tax Law has established procedural requirements for a holder disposing of
his shares to be entitled to the benefits under anty of the tax treaties to which Mexico is a party. These
procedural requirements inclode among others the obligation to (i) prove tax treaty resadence, (if) presem
mm!mhuomm&bymﬁmmdouuﬁdpbkmmanﬂ(m)mmsmm
for taxation purposes.

Paymeant of Dividends

Dividends, either in cash or m kind, paid with respect to the L Shares, A Shares, L Share ADSs ar
A Share ADSs wilt not be subject to Mexican withholding tax.

' Taxation of Dispositions

Under cumrent Mexican law and regulations, there & no basis for the Mexican tax authorities to
tmpose taxes on moome realized by a nonresident holder from a disposition of ADSs, provided that (3) the
transaction is cammied out through (a) the Mexican Stock Exchange, (b) other securities exchanges of
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markets approved by the Mexican Ministry of Finance or (¢) other securities exchanges or markets with
ample secunties trading that are located m countries with which Mexico has entered into an income tax
treaty, such as the New York Stock Exchange, the Frarkfurt Stock Exchange, NASDAQ and the
Mercado de Valores Latincamericancs en Euros (LATIBEX), and (i) certzin other requirements are
met. In addition, income realized by a noaresident holder from tendering shares or ADSs pursuant to 3
public ender offer may be exempt from Mexican taxation, provided that certain requirements are met.
Sales or other dispositions of shares or ADSs camed out in other circumstances generally are subject to
Mexican tax, except to the extent that a nonresident holder is elighle for benefits under an income tax
treaty to which Mexico is a party.

For nan-resident corporations and individuals that do not meet the requirements above mentiooed,
gross income obtained on the sale or disposition of shares will be subject to 5% tax if the transaction is
carried out through the Mexican Stock Exchange or other securities markets approved by the Mexican
Ministry of Finance. Under certain circumstances, non-resident cosporations and individuals, altematively,

- may elect to pay a 20% tax on the net amaunt of the transaction.

Pursuant to the Tax Treaty, gains realized by a U.S. holdes (as defined in —U.S. Federal Income
Tax Considerations) from the sale or other disposition of shares, even if the sale or disposition is not
catried out under the circumstances described in the preceding paragraphs, will ot be subject to Mexican
mcome tax, provided that such U.S. holder owned less than 25% of the shares representing our capital
stock (inclodmg ADSs), directly or indirectly, during the 12-month period preceding such disposition.

Gains realized by other nonresident holders that are eligible to recetve benefits pursuant to other
income tax treaties to which Mexico is 2 party may be exenwt from Mexican income tax in whole of tn
part. Non-U.S. holders should cansult their own tax advisers as to their possible eligibility under such
treatics.

In other cases, nonresident holders will be subject to Mexican income tax on the sale or other
disposttion of shares or ADSs. Such nonresident holders should consult with their own tax advisers as to
how Mexzican income tax would apply to thetr circumstances.

If a corporation is a resident m 2 tax haven (as defined by the Mexican Income Tax Law), the
applicable rate will be 40% on the gross mcome obtamed

Other Mexican Taxes

Under certain circumstances, a nonresident holder will not be liable for estate, inheritance or
stmiar taxes with respect to its holdings of shares or ADSs; provided, however, that gratustous transfers of
shares may in certain circumstanoes result in imposition of 3 Mexican tax upon the recipieat. There are
no Mexican stamp, issue registration of similar taxes payable by 2 nonresident holder with respect to
shares or ADSs.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following is a semmmary of certamn U.S. federa! income tax consequences to U.S. holders (as
defmed below) of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of shares or ADSs. The summary does not
purport to be 2 comprehensive description of all of the tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership of
disposition of shares or ADSs. The summary applies caly to U.S. holders that will hold thesr shares or
ADSsasmp:talmmddoaanytospeualdxsesofUS holders such as dealers in securities
or currencies, bolders with a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, holders of 102 or mare of our
voting shares (whether held directly or through ADSs or both), tax-exempt organizations, financial
institutions, holders lisble for the ahernative mmmimmm tax, secorites traders electing w account for their
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nvestment n thetr shares or ADSs on a mark-to-market basis, zndpﬂswsboldmg&uusharsuADSs
mzhadgmgnmsacﬂmaaspmofamd:ﬂeammtman

F«mupmsof&s&sma‘vs,houe{‘sahﬂduofm«mdmis:
*  acitizen o resident of the United States of Amesica, '
. :oapaaﬁmagzﬁzedmduthchwsofﬂ:UxﬁmdSntsofAmiammymﬂnm{

* otherwise subjectto US. fedualmmrmmm:namrmbwsw:ﬂumpeamﬂle
shares or ADSs.

Each U.S. holder shounld consult such holder’s own tax advisor concerning the overall
tax consequences to it of the ownership or disposition of shares or ADSs that may arise under
foreign, state and local laws.

Treatment of ADSs

In general, a U.S. holder of ADSs will be treated as the owner of the shares represented by those
ADSs for U-S. federal income tax purposes. Deposits or withdrawals of shares by U.S, holders in
exchange for ADSs will not result in the realization of gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax pusposes.
U.S. holders that withdraw any shares should consult their own tax advisors regarding the treatment of
any foreign cumrency gain or foss on amy pesos received in respect of such shares,

Taxation of Distridutions

In this discussion, we use the term “dividends” to mean distributions paid out of our cumrent or
accumulated earnings and profits with respect to shares or ADSs. In general, the gross amount of any
dividends will be mctudible 1 the gross tncome of 2 U.S. holder as ordiary income on the day on which
the dividends are received by the U.S. holder, in the case of shares, or by the depositary, in the case of
ADSs. Dividends will be pad in pesos and will be inchudible in the income of a U.S. holder in a U.S. dollar
amount calculated by reference 10 the exchange rate in effect on the date that they are received by the
U.S. holder, in the case of shares, or by the depositary, in the case of ADSs {regardless of whether snch
pesos are n fact converted mto U.S. dollars on such date). If snch dividends are converted into US.
dollars on the date of receipt, 2 U.S. holder generally should not be required to recognize foreign currency
gain or loss in respect of the dividends. U.S. holders should consult therr own tax advisors regarding the
treatment of foreign currency gain or loss, if any, on any pesos received by a U.S. holdes or depositary
that are converted wto US. dollars on a date subsequent to recetpt. Dividends paid by us will not be
ehigible for the dividends-received deduction allowed to corporations under the U S. Irternal Revenne
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™).

Subject to certain exceptions for short-term and hedged positions, the U.S. dollar amount of
dividends receved by an individual prior to January 1, 2009 with respect to the ADSs will be subject o
taxation at a maximmm rate of 15% if the dividends are "qualified dividends.” Dividends paid on the ADSs
will be treated as qualified dividends if (1) the ADSs are readily tradable on an established secunities
market m the United States and (11) we were not, in the year prior to the year in which the dividend was
paid, and are not, in the year in which the dividend is paid, a passive foreign investment companty ("PFIC™),
foreign personal holding compary ("FPHC™) or foreign investment company (“FIC™). The ADSs are listed
on the New Yark Stock Exchange, and will qualify as readily tradable on an established securities market
in the United States so long as they are so listed. Based on our audited financial statements and relevant
market and sharcholder data, we believe that we were not treated as a PFIC, FPHC or FIC for U.S.
federal tncome tax purposes with respect to 2003 taxable year. In addition, based on our audited finangial -
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statements and our current expectations regarding the value and nature of our assets, the sources and
nature of our income, and relevant market and shareholder data, we do not anticipate becoming a PFIC,
FPHC or FIC for 2004 taxable year. Based on existing guidance, it is not entirely clear whether dividends
recerved with respect to the shares will be treated as qualified dividends, because the shares are not
themselves listed on a US. exchange. In addition, the U.S. Treasury has announced 1its mtention to
pronmigate rules pursuant to which halders of ADSs or common stock and intermediaries though whom
such secunities are held will be permitted to rely on certifications from sssuers to establish that dividends
are treated as qualified dividends. Because such procedures have not yet been issued, it is not clear
whether we will be able to comply with them. Holders of ADSs and common shares should consnlt their
own tax advisors regarding the availability of the reduced dividend tax rate m the light of their own

Distributions of additional shares or ADSs w0 U.S. holders with respect to their shares or ADSs
that are made as part of a pro rata distribution 1o all of our shareholders geaerally will not be subject to
U.S. federal income tax.

Taxation of Dispositions

A ULS. holder generally will recognize capital gain or Joss on the sale or other disposition of the
shares or ADSs in an amount equal to the difference between the U.S. holder’s basts in such shares o
ADSs (in US. dollars) and the amount realized on the disposition (in US. dollars, determined at the spot
rate on the date of disposition if the amount realized is denominated in a foreign curency). Gam or loss
recognized by a U.S. holder on such sale or other disposition genemally will be kang-term capital gain of loss
if, at the time of disposition, the shares or ADSs have been held for more than one year. Long-term
capital gain recognized by a U.S. holder that is an individual is subject to lower rates of federal income
taxation than ordinary meome or short-term capital gam. The net amount of long -term capital gain
recognized by an mdividual U.S. holder after May 6, 2003 and before Jamary 1, 2009 generafly is subject
0 taxation at 3 maximum rate of 15%. The net long-tenm capital gain recogmized by an mdividual U.S.
holder before May 6, 2003 generally is subject to taxation at a maximnm gate of 20%. The deduction of a
capital loss is subject to kmitations for U.S. federal mcome tax parposes.

Gam, ff any, realized by a U.S. holder on the sale or other disposition of the shares or ADSs
geaeralty will be treated as U.S. source income for U.S. foreign tax credtt purposes. Coasequently, if a
Mexican withhokding tax is imposed an the sale or disposition of the shares, a U.S. holder that does not
receive significant foreign souroe income from other sources may not be abie to derive effective U S.
foreign tax credit benefits in respect of these Mexican taxes. U.S. holders shonld consult their own txx
advisors reganding the application of the foreign tax credit rales to their investment i, and disposition of,
the shares.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Drvidends on, and proceeds from the sale or other disposition of, the shares or ADSs paid to a
U.S. holder generally may be subject to the information reporting requirements of the Code and may be
subject to backup withhokling uniess the holder:

e establishes that 1t is a corporation o other exemnpt holder, o

e  provides an accurate taxpayer identific ation mmber on a properfy completed Intermal

Revenue Service Form W-9 and certifies that no loss of exemption from backup
withholding has occurred.
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The amount of any backup withhokiing from a pay to a holder will be allowed as a credit against the
U.S. holder's US. federal income tax liability and may entitle such bolder to 2 refiund, provided that
certain required mformation ts fumnished to the Service.

U.S. Tax Consequences for Non-U.S. holders

Distributions. A holder of shares or ADSs that is, with respect to the United States, a foreign
corparation of a non-resident alien individual (3 “noo-U.S. holder™) generally will not be subject o USS.
federal mcome or withholding tax on dividends recefved on shares or ADSs, uniess such income is
effectively connected with the conduct by the holder of a U.S. rade or bosiness.

Dispositions. A non-U.S. holder of shares or ADSs will not be subject to U.S. federal income or
withholding tax on gam realized oo the sale of shares or ADSs, unless:

o such gam ts effectively connected with the conduct by the holder of 3 U.S. trade or business, or

e in the case of gain realized by an indrvidual holder, the holder is present m the United States for
183 days or more in the taxable year of the sale and certain other conditions are met.
Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Abhough non-U.S. holders generally are

exempt from backup withholding, a non-U.S. holder may be required o comply with certification and
mmmmmmmmmmmmm
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DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY

We file reports, inchding anmuf reports on Form 20-F, and other information with the Securities
and Exchange Commission pursuant to e rules and regulations of the SEC that 2pply to foreign private
fssuers. You may read and copy any matenials filed with the SEC at its public reference rooms in
‘Washington, D.C., at 450 Fifth Street, N-W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at1-800-
SEC-0330 for firther information on the public reference room. As a foreign private isser, we were not
required to make filings with the SEC by electronic means poor to November 4, 2002, aithough we were
permitted to do so. Any filings we make electranicatty will be available to the public over the Intemet at
the SEC’s web site at Intp:/Avwnw sec.gov.

ftem 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
EXCHANGE RATE AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates.
Interest rate risk exists principally with respect to our net financial hiabebittes bearing irerest at floating
rates. Tnterest rate risk also exists with respect to the fair valve of fixed rate financial assets and habilties.
Exchange rate risk exists with respect to our financial assets and Habilities denominated in currencies other
than Mexican pesos. We are also subject to exchange rate risks with respect to our investments outside
Mexxo. :

At December 31, 2003, we had approximately Ps. 6.3 billion m financial assets denomnated
mmmmmmmdemm
muarketable securities, and approximately Ps. 37.3 bilkion in financial Habilities denominated in curencies
other than Mexican pesos, consisting of debt. Approximately 88.1% of our nop-peso indebtedness was
denominated in U.S. dollars.

We@ﬂymmmmdma&mmnﬂhmwhﬂhuw
adjust or hedge our position. We may use derivative instruments to hedge or adjust our exposures. For
example, during 2003, we entered tnto interest rate swaps to hedge interest payments under our US.
doltar and Mexican Peso denominated indebtedness bearing irterest at floating rates and with maturity
dares starting in 2005. See Note 11 1o our consolidated financial statements included i this anmual report.
We have only used derivative instruments to hedge exposures associated with financial ssets and

During 2003, we also d into y swaps b the Mexican peso and the U.S. dollar -
m order to finance some of cur US. doﬂarobhgamandmnmmvemﬂmmwuﬁ
have obtamed by accessing the U.S. dollar market directly.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS DISCLOSURES

The potential increase in net debt and comesponding foreign exchange loss that would have
resulred from a hypothetical, instantancous 10% depreciation of all of our operating currencies against the
U.S. dollar, would have been approximately Ps. 2.97 billion. Such depeeciation would have also resulted i
additional imterest expense of approximately Ps. 96.1 million per anmum, reflecting the increased costs of
servicmg foreign cumrency mdebtedness.

A hypothetical, immediate increase of 100 basis points in the interest rates applicable to our
floating rate financial assets and Hahifities at December 31, 2003 would have resulted in additional merest
expense of approximately Ps. 133.2 million per year, assuming no change in the prncipal amount of sach
indebtedness. The potential loss in the fair value of our fixed-rate financial assets at December 31, 2003,
that would have resulted from the hypothetical, immediate increase of 100 basis points m the miterest rates
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applicable to such financial instrements would have been approximutely Ps. 85.5 million. This potential foss
would have been offset by the potential reduction in the fair value of our fixedsate financial habilities at
December 31, 2003 of approximately Ps. 818.1 million, which would have resulted from that same
increase in interest rates.

The above sensitivity analyses are based on the assumption of unfavorable movements in
ammgeammmapﬂabkmwmmmdﬁnmﬂmmdmm A

category is defined according to the curency in which financial assets and habilities are

demmmwdandmmﬁwmachmgemmmmmmmhmgm
category. As a result, exchange rate risk and interest rate risk sensitivity analysis may overstate the
impact of exchange rate or interest rate fluctuations for such financial instruments, as consistently
unfavorzble movements of all exchange rates or interest rates are unlikely.
Ttems 12-14. Not Applicable
Item 15. Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evahmtion under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
inchiding our Chief Exeautive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2003. There are inherent
limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedres, inchiding the
possibility of uman error and the circumvention or ovemding of the controls and procedures.
Accordingty, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of
achieving thetr control dbjectives. Based upon our evaluation, cur Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures as of Deoember 31, 2003 were
effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file
and submit under the Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, ts recorded, processed, summanzed
and reported 2s and when required.

There has been no change in our mternal control over financial seporting dhuring 2003 that bas
materially affected, or is reasombly likely to matenially affect, our intemnal control over fmancial reporting.

Itemn 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that Maria Asuncidn Aramburuzabala Lamregu: qualifies
23 an “zudit committee financial expest” within the meaning of this tem 16A.
Item 16B. Code of Ethics

‘We have adopted a code of ethics, as defined in Itemn 16B of Form 20-F under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended  Our code of ethics applies to our chief executive officer, chief
financial officer and comptroller, and persons perfooming similar functions. Our code of ethics is available
on our web site at www.amenicamovil.com. I we amend any provisions of our code of ethics that apply
to our chief exeautive officer, chief financial officer, comptroller and persons performing similar fimetions,
or if we grant any waiver of such provisions, we will disclose such amendment or warver oo our web site
2t the same address.
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Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Andit and Non-Aundit Fees

The following table sets forth the fees billed to us and our substdianes by our independent aditoss,
Mancera S.C., a member practice of Emst & Young Global ("Mancera™), during the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2003:

Year ended December 31,

o 003
(thousands of coastant pesos a3 of
December 31, 200%)
Andit foes P 9,799 Ps. 17,300
Anditrelated fees 3 1,067
Tax foe 9337 13242
Other fees 289 8
Total fees 19,464 31671

Aundit fees in the above table are the agpregzte fees billed by Mancera and its affitiates m
connection with the audit of our annual financial and 'y and regulatory audits.

Auit-related fees in the above table are the aggregate fees billed by Mancera and its affiliates for
the review of reports on our operations submitted to the Mexican Federal Telecomnmanications
bymareguhﬁmh:m.‘

Tax fees i the above table are fees billed by Mancera and its affiliates for tax camphiance

Other fees in the above table are fees billed by Mancera and its affiltates primanily related to
Audit Committee Approval Policies and Procedures

Our audit committee has not established pre-approval policies and procedures for the engagement
of our independent auditoss for services. Our audit commuttee expressly approves on a case-by-case basis
any engagement of our mdependent auditors for audit and non-audit services provided o our subsicianies

Of us.
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Item 17. Not Applicable
Item 18. Financial Statements

See pages F-1 through F-87, incorporated herein by reference.

Item 19. Exhibits

1.1

21

22

31

4.1

4.2

43

44

45

4.6

4.7

Documents filed as exhibits 1o this annual report:

Amended and restated bylaws (estatutos sociales) of América Mévil, SA de C.V., dated as of
December 8, 2003 (together with an Enghish translation).

L Share Deposit Agreement (mcorporated by reference to onr registration statement on Form
F-6, File No. 333-72960, filed on December 8, 2000).

A Share Deposit Agreement (mcorporated by reference to our registration statement on Form
F-6, File No. 333-12962, filed on December 8, 2000).

Shareholders Agreernent dated December 20, 2000 between América Telecom, S.A_ de CV.
(as successor to Carso Global Telecom, S_A. de C.V.) and SBC International, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to the report of beneficial ownership of our shares filed on Schedule 13D on May
16, 2001).

Post-spm-off Master Agreement dated Jannary 18, 2001 between Teléfonos de México, SA. de
CV. and Aménica Mévil, S A de C.V. (together with an English transtation) (incorpocated by
reference to our registration statement on Form 20-F, File No. 001-16269, filed on February 5,
2001).

First Amendment dated March 15, 2001 to Post-spm-off Master Agreement dated January 18,
2001 between Teléfonos de México, S.A. de CV. and Aménica Movil, S A de C.V. (together
with an English translation) (incorporated by reference to our anmal report on Form 20-F, File
No. 00116265, filed on July 2, 2002).

Second Amendment dated Apal 30, 2001 to Post-spin-off Master Agreement dated Jamoary 18,
2001 between Teléfonos de México, S.A de C.V. and Aménica Movil, SA de C.V. (together
with an English translation) (incorporated by reference to our anmeal report on Form 20-F, File
No. 001-16269, filed on July 2, 2002).

Mamagement Services Agreement dated February 27, 2002 between SBC International
Muanagement Services, Inc. and Radiomévil Dipsa, SA. de C.V.

sttAmmdmﬁndademmyB,ZOOBmewSuviccsAgrmd:mdfehmxy
27, 2002 between SBC Intemational Management Services, Inc. and Radiomdvil Dipsa, S A de
CcVv.

Second Amendment dated October 29, 2003 to Managsment Services Agreement dated
February 27, 2002 among SBC Intemationa] Management Services, Inc., Radioméuil Dipsa, SA.
de C.V,, and América Movil, SA de C V.

MAWMJM}'I MmegmmSemesAgmmdmdl’m
27,2002 b SBC Inter | Management Services, Inc., and América Movil, SA de
CcV.
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4.8 Operating and Administrative Services Agreement dated Jamsary 2, 2004 between Aménica
Telecom, S.A de C.V. and Aménica Movil, S A. de C.V. (together with 20 English translation).

8.1 List of certam subsidiaries of Aménca Movil, SA. de C.V.
12.1 Cestification pursisant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

12.2 Cemification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

123 Cerufication of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002
Omitted from the exhibits filed with this anmual report are certain instruments and agreements with
respect to long-term debt of Aménica Méwil, none of which authonzes securities in 2 total amount that
exceeds 10% of the total assets of América Movil. We hereby agree to fumish to the Seamties and
Exchange Commission copies of any such omitted instuments or agreements as the Comnussion requests.
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SIGNATURES
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Dated: June 30, 2004
AMERICA MOVIL, SA DECV.

By. /s/ Carlos José Garcia Moreno Elizondo
Name: Caros José Gareia Moreno Flizondo
Tide: Chief Financial Officer

By i

i

Name: Alejandro Cantis Jiménez
Title:  General Counsel
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Exhibst 12.1
CERTIFICATION

1, Daniel Hajj Abowmnrad, certify that:
l.Ihawmirwedﬁsmnl@monanNFofAm'ﬂ‘aMﬁiLSAdeC.V.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statementt of a matenal fact or ont to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in Light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on may kmowledge, the financial statements, and other financial mformation mecluded in this report,
fairly present tn all matenial respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; )
4. The company's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and mamtaining
disclosure comtrols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) for the
company and kave:

a. wmmmmmammmmm
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that matenal information relating to the
company, inchiding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
eatities, particularly during the period m which this report is being prepared;

b, Evazluated the effactiveness of the company’s disclosure comrols and procedures and presented in
this report cur conclusions about the effectrveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based ou such evahuation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the compeny’s intemal control over financial repocting that
occurred durning the period covered by the anmual report that has matentally affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s imtemal control over financial reporting.

5. The company’s other certifying officer{s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our mast recent evaluation of
intemal contro] over financizl reporting, to the company's auditors and the audst committee of the
company's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakmesses in the design or operation of internal coatrol
ovu&mniﬂmpuﬁngwﬁcbmmﬂylh}ymadwsdyaﬂbamemy’sabﬂhyw

b Anyﬁmd.mdﬁamtmmalthmmvolmmmwodumpbymwbma
signﬁcammkmthemysmumlmn&mﬁmncnlm

Date: June.’iom

/s/ Damel Hajj) Abonmrad
Chief Execunyve Officer
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Exhibit 122

CERTIFICATION
1, Carlos José Garcia Moreno Elizondo, cerufy that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of América Méwil, SA de C.V,;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contamn any untrue statement of a matenal fact or cont to
state a material fact necessary to make the staternents made, m hight of the Gircumstances under which
such statements were made, not muisteading with respect o the period covered by thos report;
3. Based on my knowiedge, the financial statements, and other finzncial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
company 2s of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The company’s other centifying officer(s) and I are respansible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined tn Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) for the
company and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, 1o ensure that material nformation relating to the
company, inchuding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, pznmlmiychnmgﬂupmodmwh@hsqunzsbangm

b Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evatuation; and

c. Dasclosed in this report any change in the company’s tntemal control over financial reportmg that
occurred during the period covered by the anmial report that has matenially affected, of is
reasonably likely to matenally affect, the company’s mternal control over financial reporting.

3. The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evahuation of
imternal contro! over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit committes of the
company's board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses m the design or operation of intemal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably hikely to adversely affect the company’s ability to
record, process, sunmarnize and report financial information; and

b, Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the comparry’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: _June 30, 2004

/s Cados José Garcia Moreno Elizondo
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibir 13.1

Certification
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
{Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1358, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code)

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (2) and (b) of section
1330, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), each of the undersigned officers of Aménica Mdwil, SA
de C.V., a sociedad anénima de capital variable orgamzed under the taws of Mexico (the “Company™),
does hereby certify, to such officer’s knowledge, that:

The Anmial Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 {the “Form 20-F)
of the Company fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and infarmation corgained in the Form 20-F fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial conditton and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: June 30, 2004 /s/ Daniel Hatj Aboumrad

Dated: June 30, 2004

Amgndaxgmalofﬂnswnnmmmqumdbysmmﬂmsbemprmﬁcdmm
MovdmdmﬂbermdbyAmuMmﬂmdﬁnmdmdmmeSmmsdexchangeCmmﬁsmx

its staff upon request.
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